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DQAl\D or ZONING A1'l!ALS 

1\Q,\NOKS I VllGlNtA 

The th1~d day ot october, 1972, 

A B!SOtUTION amending the Rules of Pro~edu~e of 
this Body. 

WH!lEAS, the Board of Zoning Appeals deems 1~ 

p~ope~ that its &ules of P~ocedure be amended to ineluda 

a pA~1!4~enta~y author~ty to govern the ptoceedinsa o£ 

ehia Doal:'d, 

!HiaBI'OU • BS 11: BISOLVID tbaC: the l\llea of 

P~ocedure of chis Bo4y be amended by lncludin& there'Q 

as A~~. XV the follow1ns: 

ART'ICtB XV. PMLtAMENtAilY AUTHORITY 

1. 'rlle nlea conta:l.ned in Robe1:ts llule1 
of Otcle..: newly rev£sed shall govem 
the Boa1:cl in all oases co whi~b they 
~e applicable aDd tn wh1cb they a~a 
no~ £n~aus1atant witb the staadins 
nlu of the lo&l'd, 

"' , 
"-··· 
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FILE COPY 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

OF THE 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

Roanoke, Virginia 

ARTICLE I. BOARD OF ZO~tiNG APPEALS 

1. Purpose of Board of Zoning Appeals. 

The Board of Zoning Appeals has been appointed by City Council 
as a Board of Appeals to act as a discretionary administrative 

. body. 

2. Jurisdiction. 

The Board of Zoning Appeals may act on: 
l. An interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance. 
2. A request for a Special Exception 
3. A request for a variance from the terms of the Zoning 

Ordinance in accordance with Powers and Duties of 
Board of Zoning Appeals, as set forth in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

ARTICLE II. OFFIC!RS : 

1. The Board shall elect a Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary at 
the first meeting held in each year to serve for one year or until 
their successors have been elected and qualiiied. 

2. the Chairman shall preside at meetings of the Board and public hearin3s. 
He sh~ll decide all points of order·or procedure· unless otherwise 
directed by a majority vote of the Board in session at that time; advertise 
all hearings; sign resolutions and any other important papers of the Board; 
administer oaths and compel the attendance of witn~sses. He shall ap9aint 
committees, supervise the work of the Secretary and perio~ such other 
duties as may be necessary or incident to his office1 

": . 

3. The Vice-Chairman shall perform.the duties of the C~airman in the latter's 
absenc~. or inability to serve. 

4. The Secretary, subject to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, these 
rules or the direction of the Board and its· Chairmnn, shall have responsible 
charge of the office and records of the Board; conduct all official corr~s­
pondence of the Board; prepare and send out all notices required by these 
rules and the order of the Board; attend all meetings and all hearings of 
the Board; scrutinize all .1ppcals and applications to see that these rul.as 
are complied with; keep the minutes and a perm~nent record of all the Board's 
proceedings; compile all required records and shall maintain the necessary 
files and a proper index. !he s~cretary shall prepare an agend3 of the 
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appeals and applications to be heard by the Board at each meeting and 
shall notify each member o£ the Board of each regular meeting, as well 
as each speci~l meeting,and shall furnish such detailad information as 
may be available relative to each question to be considered by the Board. 

ARTICLE III. ~!EETn:as: 

l. Ihe office of the Board of Zoning Appeals shall be in the Municipal 
Building, City of Roanoke, Virginia, or such other suitable place as 
may be designated by the City ~~nag~r. Public hearin~s shall be 
conducted in the Council Room or in such other satisfactory space as 
may be arranged for in case of conflict in the use of the room. 

2. Re;ular meetings of the Board for the hearing of appeals and applications 
shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Sunday in each month, 
unless said Tuesday shall fall on a holiday, in which case~ the meeting 
shall be held the following day or on a date designated by the.Chai~an.· 
I£ no appeals or applications are pending, no meeting shall be held. · 

3. Special meetings may be called by the Chairman or at the request of 
three Board m~mbers, and notice of such special meetings shall be 
mailed to each Board member at least 24 hours before the time set, 
except that anouncement of a special meeting, at any meeting at which 
all members are present, shall be sufficient notice of such ~eeting. 

~ 4. Three members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the t~ansacting 
of business, but the concurring vote of three members·of the Board shall 
be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision or deter.nination 
of any administrative official. 

5. The order of business at all regula4 mee.tings of the Board shall be as follo\.0 

Call to order 
Reading of appeals 
Administering of Oaths 
Hearing of appeals, evidence, examination of witnesses, etc. 
Disposition of appeals 
Unfinished business 
Reports of committees. 
New business 

6. If all applications or appeals on the agenda for a regular meeting cannot 
be disposed of on the d4y set, the Board, on the affirmative vote of a 
majority of the members present, may adjourn the meeting arid set a new date 
for public hearing or reaching a decision on the remaining appeals and 
applications. In such instances the Chairman shall set a new meeting date 
and no further public notice shall be required for the items remaining on 
the agenda. 

ARTICLE IV. Mil'ruTES AND RECORDS. 

1. The Board shall keep minu~es of its proceedings. showing the vote of 
each member upon each ques~ion, or i! absent or failing to vote, indicating 

3 
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such fact and shall keep records of its examinations and other 
offici3l actions, all of which shall be filed in the office of the 
Board and shall be a public record. 

2. The Minutes of each meeting shall be.signed by the Secretary and 
all members of the Board p~esent at the meeting. 

3. The Orders of the Board shall be signed by the presiding officer 
and the Secretary. 

ART!CLE V. PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLO~.JZD IN F!LING APPEALS. 

· 1. t-lho Nay Aooeal: Appeals to the Board may be made by any person 
aggrieved, or by any officer, depar~~ent, board or bureau of the 
City affected by any decision of the Zoning Administrator, and by 
applicants for a Special Exception. No appeal or applicat'ion will 
be considered by the Board if legal proceedings involving the appeal 
or applic3tion are pending "or in progress. -

2. Time in ~~ich to Ao~eal: Notice of appeal, application for interpretation, 
Special EAception or a variance must be filed ~ithin thir~y days after the 
date of the Zoning Ad~inistrator's interpretation or order denying a 
building permit or a cereificate of occupancy. 

3. Procedure to be Follo~ed: 

a.. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

Each appeal shall be filed on the official application blank 
provided by the Board of Zoning Appeals, a copy of which shall 
serve as a notica of appeal or application to~the Zoning Adminis­
trator. No application or appeal will be considered by the Bo3rd 
unless it is made on the official application form. The Zoning 
Administrator shall transmit to the Board all papers constituting 
the record upon which the action appealed from was ta~ 

. . .ao.oo1 
Each appeal shall be ace~panied by a fee of~ to defray the 
cost of printing the required notices, said amount to be turned 
over to the City Treasurer in the manner prescribed by Roanoke 
City Council. 

The applicant shall provide the Secret~ry widh all in£or=ation 
required by the application blank and any ad4itional infor~ation 
and data as may be necessary to advise the Board fully wit1 re!erence 
to the application for .appeal, ~~nether or not such iniorm.l ;ion is 
requi~ed by the official application forM. 

' ... 
Any eommunication.purporting to be an appeal or application for 
variation. or modification shall be regarded as a mere notice to 
seek relief until an official application form is filed by the 
appl.ic:tnt. 

Each application p:operly filed shall be numbered serially and 
placed on the calendar of the Board. The appeal numbers shall 
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begin anew on January 1st of each year and shall be hyphenated 
with the number of the year in which the said application is 
filed. Applications shall be assigned for hea,ing in the order 
in which they are numbered, except that an appeal or an application 
may be advanced for hearing b~ the Chairman upon good cause shown. 

f. The Secretary shall prepare a legal notice of hearings which 
shall be published in one local newspaper of general circulation 
at least ten days prior to the date of the hearing. Exception 
may be made in any case to which, in the opinion of at least one 
Board member, special consideration should be given, provided 
there is sufficient time to comply with the requirements o£ the 
Zoning Ordinance and thesa rules. The Secretary shall notify the 
applicant and interested parties, as well as property owners in 
the i~ediate vicinity, of the date, time and place of the 
public hearing, and this information shall be mailed to such 
person at his last kno~m place of business or residence. Said 
notices shall be prepared and mailed as soon· after the applica­
tion is advereised as the work of the Secretary will permit. 

ARTICLE VI. INVESTIGATIO~S. 

Preceding each public hearing, the Board shall cause to be made by its own 
members and/or the Secretary:personal inspection of the properties in 
question, and such investigations of fact bearing upon such application. 
as will serve to provide all necessary information to assure that the action 
on each application is consiseent with the intQnt and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Inspections may be made individually or in a group. The members 
of the Board may keep a record of the mileage of official inspections which 
shall be turned in to the Secrecary for payment of mileage as provided for 
in the budget. 

ARTICLE Vti. PROC!DtmE AT PUBLIC HEARINGS. 

l. Public hearings shall be held before the Board at th~ time and place 
for which public notice has been given. The hearing shall be informal, 
and QVery effort shall be made co insure a full, prompt, complete and 
fair: hearing for each party who has any rights in the subject; and in 
an effort to accomplish such a result, there need not be a strict en­
forcement of procedural methods required of those who desire to state 
their positions. The Board shall not permit lengthy questioning or 
annecessary cross-examination by attorneys. !o maintain orderly pro­
cedure, each side shall proceed without interruption by the other. 
Every person shall abide by the order and direction of the Chairman. 
Discoureesy or disorderly conduct shall be regarded as a breach~of the 
privileges of the Board and shall be dealt with as the Chairman deems 
necessary and proper. 

2. Board hearings shall be open to the public, but the Board may go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing appeals and applications. 
Final decisions of the Board on appeals and applications shall be made 
in public hearing. 

5 
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3. The applicant may appear in person or by agent or by attorney. In the 
absence of any personal appearance on behalf of the applicant, the Board 
may proceed to dispose of :he mat:er on the agenda before it. 

4. At a he~4ing of e~ch appeal and application the order shall be as follows~ 

a. Applicant's presentation of request. 
9. Evidence of property owners in favor of request. 
c. Evidence of proper:y o•Nners opposing request. 
d. Examination of '~itnesses. 
e. Applicant's rebuttal. 
f. Decision of Board. 
g. Entering of decision on records of Board together with the 

reasons on which the decision was based. 

ARTICLE V!II. FINAL DISPOSITION OF APPEAL. 

l. The final disposition of any appeal or application before.the Board 
shall be ~ade within a reasonable length of time after the conclusion 
of the public hearing. 

2 •. The decision of the Board shall be in the form of an order or a 
resolution which shall affi~, modify or reverse the refusal of 
a permit by, or any order or decision of, the ZQ~ing Administrator. 
In case of an application for variation or modification, the resolu• 
tion shall set forth that the application is denied or that it is 
granted with or without conditions, and said resolution shall speci­
fically set forth what variations or modifications are permitted and 
what conditions, if any, shall be complied with. 

3. A copy of said order or resolution shall be sent to·the applicant 
and to the Zoning Administrator and a copy filed with the record of 
the appeal or application. Other copies may be sent to interested 
parties at the Secretary's discretion.· 

4. The Secretary may notify the applicant verbal~y of the Board's decision 
pending co~pletion of the records of each case. 

S. Any: applicant may withdraw his appenl or. application ·at any time p~ior 
to the call to order for the public !'learin; by the Board. Any request 
for withdrawal after the meetin~ has been called tq order shall be 

0 

granted only upon consent of t!le Board. ;·: 

ARTICt! IX. REHEARINGS • 

l. No rehearing of an appeal or 3pplication on which,the Board has 
previously rendered ~ecision shall be held,.excep~ motion mace 
by a member of the Board to reconsider the previous deelsion, made 
not later than the first meeting succeeding the meeting at which the 
decision was rendered and carried by not less than a_majority affirma­
tive vote of the Board members present at the original hearing. ........ .. . 

2. No motion for a rehea~ing shall be considered by the Board unless new 
evidence is submitted which, in the opinion of the Board, could not have 
been reasonably ~resented at the meeting at which the original hearing 
was held. 
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3. If a rehearing is granted, the case shall be put on the agenda for a 
rehearing, and the same procedure shall be followed as for a new·appeal 
or application. 

A..~TICLE X. APP::ALS FROM THE BOARD'S OECISIO~. 

1 •. Appeals from the Board's decision shall be made in accordance with the 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 

ARTICLE XI. l!CO}~E!-rDATtO::s. 

l. The Board may submit a recommendation for a change in the Zoning Ordinance 
whenever it has reason to believe that any provisions of the Ordinance 
3re not in harmony with the public good. Such rccocmendation may be 
submitted either to Roanoke City Council or the City Planning Commission. 

ARTICLE XII. RECONSIDERATION OF APPEALS PREVIOUSLY HEARD. 

·/ 

l. Having once considered and rendered a decision upon a request, the Board· 
shall not reconsider substantially the same request for one year, except 

·as provided in Art:iclelX. REHEARINGS. 

ARTICLE XIII. ADVICE. 

1. No informal requests of applicants for advice or moot questions will be 
considered by the Board. 

2. If legal advice is deemed necessary, the Board may ask the City Attorney 
for an opinion. 

ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENTS • 

1. these rules, insofar as they do not ~onflict with the latest official 
copy of the Zoning Ordinance, may be amended or modified by a majority 
vote of the whole Board, provided that such amendment be p~esented in 
writing at a regular meeting and action taken thereon ae a subsequene 
regular m~eting. 

2. The suspension of any rule of procedure may be ordered at any ~eeting 
by a unanimous vote of the Board members present. 

Approved by the Board ·of Zoning Appeals, 
September 2, 1969. 

ARTICLE X!V I PARLIAMENrAR.Y AUtHORITY - AMENDMENT 

1. The rules contained in Roberts Rules of Order newly revised shall 
govern the Board in all cases to which they are applicable and in 
which they are not inconsistent with the standing rules of the Board. 
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CI'I'Y OF ROANOKE BOARll OF ZONING A»PEALS 

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL EXCEPTION 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 36.1-656, Code of the City of 
Roanoke (1979), as amended, this application is hereby filed with 
the zoning Administrator and the Board of Zoninq Appeals 
requesting that the Board grant a special exception to the 
provisions of the :oninq regulations of the City of Roanoke, as 
clesc:ribed. below. 

Subject property --------•la~,n~~NQ~d~r~g~t~~s~R~o~a~d~,-t.t ••• t.i•·~<~!~J_-~A~c~·~t:r=a=c~t~)----------

Applicant ---~~o~awn~g~k~e~t~1e~n~t~a~l~l~ty~g~1~·e~n~e~S~e=rv~i-c=e=s._,_I_n_c~.------------------------

Applicant's address ---3~0~l~F.~·-~~-~A~V~e~n~u~e~,~s~._.tr ••• ,~R~o-an~o:k~e~,_v~a~·~2~4~0~1~6~-------­

owner of property --~n~a~n~ie~J_s .. _t~1owow.ldw.r.id~a~e----------------------------------

owner's address ____ p~-o~-B~n~·~·--1~2•1•'•7._MBow.rn~rn~;e._._y~a~.~?~d0~,~~3~-------------------

Designated as Off. Tax No. _2•3•5•0•1~0~1~-------------------------------------
Classified as Zoninq District ___ R_s_-_3._ ______________________________ __ 

I hereby request that the Boara grant a special exception to the 
zoninq regulations of the City of Roanoke, in accordance with the 
provisions of section 36.1- 90 (2) Code of the City of Roanoke 
(1979), as amended, in order to permit the followinq use to be made of the 
subject property. · 

Details of proposed use, inclu~inq any variances requested ______________ _ 

Applicant r.eCTueats special P.:mt=m~:ln!" f:n .,.,c~i ~.:. ~ropertv in '1Uest:ion 

to be used as a crroup home for substance abusers, with a variance fron 

Section 36. J.-560 to allow as. nan,, as ?.4 residents in lieu of the 

permissib~e eiqht. It is proposed that a building to house 14 oersons 

would be constructed on the prooerty. This buildinq would be used i~ 

addition to the existing residence for the ~roup hOMe. The residents 

would be refe:red to this £acility ~rom other substance abuse agencies, 

the Courts, the ~ocmunity Diversion Incentive nroqran, the Department 

of corrections. P.esidents would live at this location from si.:: to nine 

~urchase of the ~roperty 

day of 

Application accepted aa a~tte4 in accordance with provisions of 
Cha-pter 36.1-656, Code of the City of Roanoke (1979), aa amenclec:l. 

~~.Q4Uy~&o&1'a&~f%z~i.'~~<Mfpeal• 
~~ .. PI:ovoaecl. ~'\at the 24 a:ea£ctenta nov •t: llec)'£z:oa rrou•ca, ~.JtJ~ Second 

.... • a. .., • • woul.cl be ~an-~o~ to t:h£a 1ocrac:.£on. 

--- - . -- . --·--·---·--- -~-·-··· •• 0 .--- • 
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APPEAL NO. 

APPLICANT: 

PREMISES: 

PRESIDING: 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

32-91-A 

Roanoke, Virginia 
April 9, 1991 

Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 

1919 Andrews Road, Northwest 

L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, T. E. Roberts, 
Walter Wheaton, Richard Rife, Bob Copty 

Chairman: Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services Inc. for special 
exception to permit group home at 1919 Andrews Road 
with a variance to permit 24 persons in lieu of 8. 
Let's have everyone that is going to speak stand and 
raise your hands and don't speak later if you have not 
been sworn in, please. Alright. Do you solemnly swear 
to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 
truth so help you God? 

All: We do. 

Chairman: Alright, if you all will be seated and let these 
gentlemen speak first. As these first people speak 
they must give their name and address to the secretary. 

Mr. Altice: Members of the Zoning Board my name is Henry 
Altice and I am the director for Hegira House which is 
currently located at 1301 Second Street, southwest 
operated under Mental Health Services of Roanoke 
Valley. The Roanoke Mental Hygiene service, Inc. is a 
corporation that purchases property for the mental 
health services of the Roanoke Valley and it is a 
holder of property. I have several people who will be 
speaking about the concept that we're, hopefully, going 
to be putting in at 1919 Andrews Road, and we'll have 
some explanation of that property. This is an overview 
of a sight plan that was done by Oliver Stein and he 
will be helping me explain that in a few minutes. But 
let me speak a little bit, first of all, about who we 
are and what we do. Hegira House has been in operation 
at the corner of 2nd and Walnut in Southwest for 18 
years, since 1973. During that time, we have addressed 
substance abusers with problems with drug addiction and 
alcohol addiction. Our program is one of the most 
strict and disciplined programs in the state of 
Virginia. We do not allow our clients to go anywhere 
in the community unless they have staff supervision or 

they're in the latter par~ of their tr:~;;.nT~_::~.~A~(j). 
P o.u.J . ..,. H.:.~, . :; . ..,, ...... ~ ....,, .:. .:::. y of 
Roanoke Cl~y 3o.cJtl cf Zcr;i:lG Appea!s 



capable of going in the community and behaving 
themselves accordingly. People cannot go and come in 
our program as they chose. Part of the structure of 
the program is that they have to learn to be 
responsible themselves, and responsible for their own 
recovery. They learn to demonstrate values in 
interacting with themselves as well as people ~n the 
community. We do not tolerate them going out .!nd 
disrespecting people in the community. We do not 
tolerate them using drugs and alcohol, these behaviors 
will be dealt with and dealt with severely. Ultimately 
these people could, in fact, be sent to jail for some 
of these activities. We do weekly urinalysis tests as 
well as at random urinalysis tests to determine at 
another level whether or not these people are involved 
with drugs or alcohol. People who have been through a 
therapeutic community such as Hegira House have stated 
that it was harder for them than going through jail and 
going through prison. The program means a tremendous 
commitment to changing ones life. These people come in 
with their lives in total dysfunction because for their 
substance abuse addition, and when they leave our 
program and complete it and graduate and go back into 
the community they are production and constructive 
citizens in our city and in our community. Hegira 
House's reputation in the southwest community has been 
one that has been very positive and has been one that 
has been very supportive to our community. There is no 
time that Hegira House has been seen as a nuisance. We 
do not have drug addicts hanging out on the corner. We 
do not have drug addicts hanging out around the house. 
As I have stated on numerous occasions, there are two 
groups of people that drug addicts despise in this city 
and one is the police and the other is the Heqira House 
program. Because what it means is that they either 
have to comply with our high values or they have to 
move on. And I know that there are a lot of people who 
are concerned about a program such as Hegira House 
coming into their community or close to their 
community. And I can understand that. That is 
something that would be a concern of mine. But I have 
a strong commitment on educating the community on what 
we do. I have a strong commitment on saying today 
what we're about and in talking with someone about our 
record in the Southwest community and in the city of 
Roanoke. Heqira House did not pick Northwest Roanoke 
because we wanted to be in Northwest Roanoke. We 
picked a site that was most feasible to us. This 
particular site provides a tremendous amount of privacy 
which is vital for us to be able to work with our 
clients. I think a lot of people think well we don't 
want Heqira House clients effecting our community. 
Also we have to be careful because the community can 
have an effect on the client because there are people ~-~ 
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in all areas of this city who are using drugs and 
abusing alcohol who can have a very negative effect on 
our clients. One of the things we are bound in is the 
federal confidentiality laws where the person is 
entitled to privacy and confidentiality in terms of 
their treatment. People who are familiar with AA and 
in AA knowing that Alcoholics Anonymous means 
anonymous, and we believe that the person has a right 
in their treatment to privacy and a right to be 
reflective and buy into their treatment so they can be 
constructive members of their community. If people 
have been reading the paper the last few days they've 
noticed that there are several articles about treat­
ment. An editorial last night which I thought was 
extremely informative because what it stated was that 
even though you may deny treatment initially, and feel 
like it didn't have a cost, overall it has a tremendous 
cost on the community. Regrettably so, the city of 
Roanoke deals with a tremendous crack problem, a 
tremendous cocaine problem and a great alcohol problem. 
It spares no one. And I think that is one thing that 
Hegira House offers is an alternative for people to get 
their lives together other than having to be ultimately 
killed in the street, hopelessly addicted, overdose on 
drugs or end up spending long periods of time in 
prison. I don't work. with pushers, I work with abus­
ers. I work with people who are using the drugs, not 
the ones who are profiting from their sales. That is 
what we are committed to, to rehabilitate our citizens 
so they don't have to keep using the drugs and costing 
our community. I want to talk a little bit about some 
of the concerns that I would have and about some of the 
concerns that I have heard. Like I said, Hegira House 
is not something that addicts who are actually using 
drugs wants to be close to because it represents the 
very thing that they're scared of and that is being 
straight and having to look at their drug problem. We 
maintain a low profile in our community as much as 
possible. And in looking at traffic flow problems 
which would come out of this facility, as private as it 
is, would be minimal. We have one van that would carry 
our clients, we have 12 different staff cars that would 
only be going in and out of the facility on different 
shifts because we provide 24 hour a day coverage. We 
have limited visiting for the clients and that would 
present no problems, and other than general deliveries 
that would bring supplies into the program. Another 
issue that people probably have is client control and 
security. And that is true. That is something that I 
am concerned about. I believe that people initially in 
treatment need to have security, they need to have 
controls upon them because their life itself as lost 
control. Hegira House is licensed by the Department of 
Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substlce Abuse ~~ 
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Services and to go through the local licensure require-
ment for a program such as ours is a very rigorous task 
and it holds every part of our program accountable. We 
are also licensed by the Department of Corrections 
which also deals with the issue of security and we have 
close relationships with the Roanoke City Police 
Department and the various probation and parole and 
Department of Corrections officials to maintain that if 
anything does cause problems that we can deal with 
these individual instantly. We have stringent health, 
fire and safety requirements that we comply with so 
that the needs of the clients are met as well as the 
issue of safety is addressed. We have got an extremely 
professional staff. Six of my staff are certified 
counselors. All with different levels of degrees and 
experience. There is no program in the state of 
Virginia that has as many certified counselors on staff 
as I do. We provide 24 hour a day coverage 7 days a 
week. There's always a counselor on duty and present 
at the site to address any issues which may come up. 
Also, any person who comes into the program starts out 
at the bottom. There is no free lunch. They either 
have to start out on an operations crew where they 
clean up the facility and maintain its grounds to where 
they have to learn to cook food and maintain the 
kitchen. As time goes on, these people increase status 
and they learn to head these crews and ultimately they 
learn to become coordinators where they supervise these 
crews under staff supervision. To get these positions 
requires a lot of work and a lot of commitment to 
change. And to get these posi~ions and maintain them, 
they have to support the concept of the program. And 
that is also maintaining our accountability because we 
believe that we, the staff, cannot change these people 
without the peer support of each other. We believe 
that they need to learn to say no and they need to 
learn to make responsible decisions on their own. If 
they could do that they would not, in fact, be involved 
in drug addiction. so they learn to support each other 
in the right way and instead of giving each other drugs 
they give each other support. So that we know what's 
going on with these people and they're not relapsing 
and they're not being a problem to the members of the 
program and the members of the community. The· people 
who will be housed at 1919 Andrews Road will not be 
given unlimited access to the community. These people 
are the ones who will be staying in the in-house phase 
of the program while the re-entry, the latter phase of 
the program, people will still remain housed in our 
re-entry apartments in Southwest. So we believe in 
security. We believe that without security, privacy 
and confidentiality there is no way that our program 
can work. We believe in integrity, we believe in 
professionalism so that these clie~~~~-:,;.a.'_l_~~-~est >~~ 

1.2 : ..... '·. :. ·:. . ·- -- fo 
~..::.:. :r:c. ~::· :~ · :: ~ _.:: .. : ·~: _:: ."·.:· .... !' ......... _, .. 

• -- •. :. :.. • . ::J 

-·---fl·-···----· -... -- .. -·-- --·4·-· ..... -·-····--- ----··-------------·--·~-.....--~- .. ·-···--~·-------. -·--·· ... --·-···-··. 



possible treatment available to them. We have been 
seen in many areas as one of the finest programs in the 
state of Virginia and in the east coast and it has been 
a model program for programs throughout the state of 
Virginia. To be a program for this length of time says 
a lot for who we are and what we are about. We do not 
want to come in and devaluate a community or cause 
problems in the community, but rather to be a 
supportive part of that community. What I would like 
to do now, before I address some other concerns, is to 
talk a little bit about the facility and the site plan 
itself. Oliver and Mike Smith you could come up with 
me. 

(Someone in the audience) Mr. Chairman, could you please 
limit these talks? It seems like they have all the 
time and by the time you get to us it could be 6 or 
7:00. 

Chairman: It's always the person asking the request gets to 
explain the request first. We'll give you all the time 
that you need. 

Mr. Altice: OK, Oliver. 

Mr. Stein: I'm Oliver Stein, a retired architect and I 
was asked to work with Henry Altice on preparing a site 
plan. These is a 14 acre site as illustrated here and 
the very nice existing residence on that. I think some 
of you have been out to see that. And they propose to 
add two buildings. One a general purpose or 
multipurpose building which is·27 1/2 feet wide and 56 
feet long and that's basically a multipurpose room, 
dining hall sort of a building. We've located it in 
this location. This is the old existing building and 
this is the old existing garage and the multipurpose 
building is to the right and 40 feet this direction 
we've located the dormitory building 

Chairman: And the creek is to the right, there? 

Mr. Stein: The creek is, this is Lick Rock. You drive 
in off Andrews Road some quarter of a mile I think it 
is ••• 

Chairman: Well now Andrews is going to be up here and 581 is . . . 
Mr. Stein: 581 is right in this lo~ation, parallel to 

Lick Run and it's just off drawing. And, of course, 
Valley View Mall is up here. And you drive in going 
toward the city's property and then into this driveway 
and this existing residence has been back there since, 
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I think, the late 1930's. The second building is here, 
that's the dormitory building, and that's SO feet by 
27 1/2 feet and they are Moducraft prefabricated 
buildings. 

Chairman: Some of the board members could not find it, I 
think. 

Mr. Stein: I have a picture of the site. 

Chairman: A beautiful site and all that meadow down there in 
front goes .•. all that meadow down there in front •... 

Mr. Stein: 
and •.• 

Yes, there are a number of trees on the site, 

Chairman: It's almost completely enclosed in trees, isn't 
it? 

Mr. Stein: Yes, it is. It would, I don't think, be at 
all visible from the neighborhoods and it's about, the 
closest building is something like 125 feet to a 
property line. 

Chairman: Alright. 

Mr. Wheaton: Next Question. The line I see going up there 
over on this side of the line. That's the boundary? 

Mr. Stein: Yes, this is Breakview Drive that dead ends 
up here. 

Mr. Wheaton: That, that's the question I want to raise. 
There is no entrance from Lake View into that property? 

Mr. Stein: No sir. 

Mr. Wheaton: The street, the bottom there? No, coming 
down this way. Yes. There's no entrance there? 

Mr. Stein: Springhill Drive. 

Mr. Wheaton: Huh? 

Mr. Stein: Springhill Drive. 

Mr. Wheaton: It's a cul-de-sac there, isn't it? 

Mr. Stein: No. 

Mr. Wheaton: Dead end or cul-de-sac. 

Chairman: It's a dead end. · 
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Mr. Wheaton: I'm saying going into your property. Into 
the proposed property. 

Chairman: Show him how you get into it. 

Mr. Wheaton: The only way in is from Andrews Road? 

Mr. Stein: Yes, sir. 

Chairman: Next question. 

Mr. Wheaton Is there any barricade or anything along that 
line that separates that property? Just ... 

Mr. Stein: At this point there's a gate ••.• there's a 
fence along here. Just a regular ••. 

Mr. Wheaton: Just a regular fence? 

Mr. stein: Just a regular fence, yes sir. 

Mr. Wheaton: And Lick Run is on the North, so to speak? 

Mr. Stein: This is generally North. 

Mr. Wheaton: Right. OK. 

All right it would be a good idea, •.. you might turn it 
around to let the neighbors see what it looks like. 

Chairman: I think most people have driven down that 1,000 
foot driveway, or whatever, you can drive down there, 
turn around and get back out. 

Mr. Altice: Let me point out to them how you enter so 
they'll be oriented on this. Like they were saying 
before, 581 runs right here across the road and a part 
in the back. Back here is Andrews Road when you scale 
this, this part down here is in the water and when you 
go across this track, you get to these two lots. There 
is a private double drive all the way down to here and 
then turns in. All this is all wooded, very private. 
Even though there's a break in the foilage is there is 
a small gate used in the past to get in and out to a 
small trailer that used to sit back there and then this 
is all woods and creek down here and meadows and like 
this. 

Audience: Is that a private road down there? 

Mr. Altice: What this goes down to •• remember that water 
drainage catch basin that the City of Roanoke 
constructed which comes across 581 over to Valley View. \-1 That is what they've got is an entr::::y.::::Q; .. ~~so;Leeo 

15 Pr.::i C.;".:_:--;~~ -3:_ -···~ ~·~··-:, •. :~o f.,;:;~e21S 
• C'"'' • "'\'.,r\,; Ol "-.. '"''·::~ ,., RvanOKd i\.~ 0 ""'"'"' 

-~~-·-·- ____ .., ____ ........ ---·----.. ..._.-.-.. -------------·--·,..-· -----·-·--·-... ---....... ___ .. __ .. ___ ., __ .. __ ~ .. -·---..-- .. ··--,. ... --.-------- ·---·~---··--



here and access that drainage catch basin in order to 
maintain it. The properties down here, is another large 
meadow before you get to 581 which is actually zoned 
manufacturing and I believe it's in trust to Dominion 
Bank. You can only really see it from the interstate. 

Mr. Roberts: Is this the only entrance and exit you have? 

Mr. Altice: Yes sir. 

Mr. Roberts: Are there any plans to make this travel way a 
public road? 

Mr. Altice: No sir. That's the whole glory of this, one way 
in, one way out. 

Mr. Wheaton: In other words, all traffic has to go down 
that road. 

Mr. Roberts: What's that gate used for? You see, there's 
a gate there. 

Mr. Altice: That could even be closed off. It's been 
there a long time ••••• 

Mr. Roberts: It's not in use, then? 

Mr. Altice: No, sir. 

(Unintelligible) 

Chairman: 
name. 

Hold on just a minute. We need somebody's 

Ms. Armstrong: Could I have your name? 

Mr. Smith: Mike Smith with Progress Rush Realty 

Chairman: And let's have your name and address. 

Jeffrey Banks: Jeffrey Banks, 1826 Syracuse Avenue. 

Chairman: She didn't quite hear you. 

Dr. Banks: Dr. Banks. 

Chairman: Dr. Banks. You live up on the cul-de-sac up 
there? Up on the hill? 

Dr. Banks: Yes sir, 1826 Syracuse Avenue. 

Chairman: Syracuse, OK. Alright. Let's try to refrain 
from asking questions. We're going to give 
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everybody a chance to come up here and ask ques­
tions into this microphone. 

Dr. Banks: (unintelligible) 

Chairman: I appreciate your letting us .•..•... 

Mr. Altice: I want to go on.and keep Michael here, if I 
could and talk about property value and appearance. I 
know that's an issue people have, and rightly so. we 
have several facilities in the Roanoke Valley. 3605 
Melrose Avenue, behind Rose Porshe Audi. We own that 
facility and we bought it for $76,000 and it was 
recently assessed at $104,000. We just did a major 
renovation on the detox center on Shenandoah Avenue 
which use to be a builders mart and it is now a very 
attractive facilities. We have other facilities on 
Reed Road and Niagra Road that we believe that are 
enhancing to the community. And we have also put 
countless thousands of dollars into the current 
facility that we are in. And maybe you could speak a 
little bit more about real estate values. 

Mr. Smith: I know some of you have been wondering and 
thinking well we get this program in there, this 
facility, that it may damage our property values and I 
believe I can assure you that that is not going to be 
the case, because I have gone to the city and gone 
through their records and checked out some property 
values, ones that I could find multiple sales on, in 
the near area where Hegira House is currently located. 
And they have all reasonable gone up as you would 
expect real estate in any part of the city. There has 
been no decrease in values and no stagnation in values. 
They have all gone up to a very reasonable amount. In 
fact there. is a 10 unit condo group that is right 
across the street from Heqira House and, just to give 
you some examples, unit 6 was bouqht at $28,240 and 
later sold at $41,000. It is currently assessed at 
$46,500. There is another unit there that sold for 
$22,900 and it sold later at $28,950. And this is not 
a lonq time later. 

Mr. Altice: This is a year. 

Mr. Smith: This is a year or so later. 

Mr. Altice: 86 

Mr. Smith: And it's currently assessed at $36,600. 
There is a piece of property which is directly across 
the street from Heqira House that was sold in November 
of as for $65,000 and they made some improvements. Not M 
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$135,000. So surely, if Hegira House is a negative 
limiting factor then they would not have been able to 
have done this. Now I have other, which I don't think 
I'll need to go into, I have three or four others which 
show the same kind of property value increases. Plus 
Hegira House will be located so far back, so isolated, 
with no signs, not even a mail box that says "Hegira 
House" out in the regular neighborhood, you'll never 
know they're there. 

Mr. Altice: I want to reiterate that, too, is that we 
have no intentions of having a mail box, we'll have a 
post office box and the 1919 Andrews Road sign that is 
currently on the post will be the type of sign that 
will remain, and nothing more. We do not, we have no 
need to have any major signs or any kind of thing that 
indicates where we are. I want to just read a couple 
of letters, very briefly and then I will give it to you 
for information, from people that are in our current 
community. 

Dear Mr. Altice: This letter is to inform future 
neighbors of Hegira House of what they may expect from 
your groups presence in their community. My husband 
and I qwn a home on the next street down from Hegira 
House and operate our business two blocks from Hegira 
House. We have been in the neighborhood for over 20 
years. Hegira House is one of the most well kept homes 
in all Southwest, the grounds are always well 
maintained and attractive. I have never seen anything 
that would be considered an ey~-sore anywhere on their 
property. I have never heard loud voices of any nature 
coming out of this home. I have never witnessed any 
police action on this property or violence of any 
nature. I have actually felt safer knowing that they 
were there. I feel that the quality of the supervision 
at this facility acts as a form of crime prevention for 
the whole neighborhood. Hegira House also offers help 
in the community on weekends, they have car washes and 
offer extended automobile cleaning care. Many times I 
have called for help with yard work and other heavy 
duty work and never been refused help when it was 
available. If you have any further information which 
is needed, feel free to call me at 345-0047. And that 
is from Mrs. Pat George who owns the Roamer Restaurant 
on the corner from us. 

This next letter is from Image Advertising which is 
right across the street from us. It's 1302 we're 1301. 
Dear Mr. Altice: This correspondence is in reference to 
the zoning hearing on the new proposed site at 1919 
Andrews Road, Northwest. In the 13 years of being 
neighbors across the street, I have found your 
residents to be well behaved, well mannered ~-c..-~\0 
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presenting no problem to the community. They keep the 
facility clean, orderly and are contributing members of 
the Old South West community. I have never had any 
kind of problems with Hegira House or any residents. I 
hope these statements are a help to you in your plans 
for the future. Sincerely, William H. Tangier, owner 
of the Image Advertising. 

I also have a letter here which is far too much to read 
from Judge Trumpeter who is the chairman of the Roanoke 
Drug and Alcohol Abuse Council which is endorsing the 
program as well. And I would like to offer this 
information to you for your records, if I could please. 

Chairman: Alright. 

Mr. Altice: And also I have some letters written by other 
members of Northwest that are supporting our program, 
Family Services of Roanoke Valley has written a letter, 
Lee Hartman and Son, Airport Exxon, Quality Cleaners, 
Bob's Car Corner and Interstate Motors. 

Chairman: Alright, thank you Mr. Altice. 

Mr. Roberts: And you have discontinued your operation at 
the present location. 

Mr. Altice: That's correct. 

Mr. Roberts: And how is your operation financed? 

Mr. Altice: our operation currently? 

Mr. Roberts: Yep. 

Mr. Altice: OK. We're currently financed through 
federal, state and local money to run the program as 
well as private fees. We do not own the current 
facility we're in, we're renting it and we would like 
to be able to own our own facility. However, we have 
been unable to really secure buying the facility we're 
at and also it requires a lot of work to get it 
renovated and we just don't have the money. We do have 
a capital campaign going on at this point that we would 
be able to purchase this facility that we're trying to 
get and we would be able to underwrite that. That 
would be coming from private donations which we do not 
say have federal, state or local money to buy that from 
public money. 

Mr. Roberts: 

Mr. Altice: 
we're not 

The reason you want to move is to expand? 

No, no, we're staying at the same level, 
expanding. What we're doing is ~:t.~. for 1-\\ 
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our own security in terms of owning our own facility. 
We're also moving because we feel like the site would 
provide a much more therapeutic environment for our 
clients. And we'll also have to spend almost as much 
money on our current facility as what this facility 
costs to be able to get it to where it needs to be. 

Mr. Roberts: How long have you been at your present 
facility? 

Mr. Altice: We've there since March of 1973. 

Chairman: And Mr. Miller have you ever had any complaints 
from Old South West? 

Mr. Miller: 
recall. 

I don't have any recorded complaints as I 

Ms. Armstrong: I don't remember any. 

Chairman: OK. 

Mr. Altice: That's all I have. 

Chairman: You all are approaching half million dollars at 
this facility? 

Mr. Altice: It looks like its going to cost $440,000 to 
be able to upgrade the facility and get it the way we 
want it to be. The new buildings, I might add, will 
be, we're going to be putting up for bids and it will 
be consistent with the decor and the colors of the 
current facility so they will not devaluate that 
property. We don't know who's going to do the work. 
Roger craft gave us an estimate and some plans but that 
does not mean that they'll going to get it. 

Chairman: You'll have to be careful or you might devalue the 
present house. That's a beautiful house. 

Mr. Altice: It really is and we're real sensitive to that 
and we don't want that to happen. And we'll go out to 
bids and to local contractors to be able to do it and 
we would commit to the same color shingles, the same 
color siding and so forth that would be consistent with 
what we've got. 

Chairman: You can't do that. That's a slate roof on that. 

Mr. Altice: That's true for that, but also, if you look 
at the office building that's adjacent to it, it has 
grey shingles on it that would be consistent with that. 

Chairman: Alright, sir. 
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Mr. Roberts: What are the disadvantages, if any, to being 
off, isolated, away from ••• you've been use to beinq 
downtown, you might say, and now you're out in the 
country. What are the advantages, pro and con, there? 

Mr. Altice: Well, I think the advantages would be that it 
would give us the opportunity to clients not to feel so 
cramped in to feel be able to walk outside, to have 
groups outside. Statistics prove that people who have 
an opportunity to be able to sit out in the yard, be 
able to sit under the trees reflect those experiences 
are therapeutic. So we have, as I said earlier, a lot 
of times where we are people will try to come around 
and influence our people. They go to the Hop In or 
somebody will walk by or ride by because they know that 
one of their loved ones is there and it gives us an 
opportunity to not have to deal with that. Also, just 
that fact that there are people in the community who 
use drugs who don't even know them and that impacts our 
people, because someone who has been an alcoholic or 
drug addict knows that if they see someone else doing 
drugs that something they have to address. Because it 
can cause them to want to do that again. So it offers, 
in terms of the senior clients who are still in the 
community and goinq to school they can still be housed 
in the southwest area. 

Chairman: You spoke about control. I'm think that some of 
the folks in the audience might be wondering about the 
control, lack of it, whether it's sufficient or whether 
it's adequate, so forth. 

Mr. Altice: Well, I can only say, I can only say that it 
is a very high structured, very highly intense and very 
highly supervised program. The fact that we are 
licensed by the Department of Corrections to be able to 
provide their security needs speaks in its own right. 
Because they do not just allow anyone to be able to 
house their people. And we have a tremendous amount of 
licensure issues and quality of care issues we have to 
address. But in addition, the very nature of therapeu­
tic community and its intense accountability of where 
people are at all times with their physical presence 
and emotional presence and their behavior keeps the 
security at a high level as well. 

Chairman: Alright, let's see if we can ••• Is that •• 

Mr. Altice: I had some other people I think who wanted to 
speak for us. That's all I have. 

Chairman: That's all you have? 

Mr. Altice: Yes. 
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Chairman: Well, let's go on, finish your group. Who 
else, or would you just as soon hear from some of these 
other folks first? (Background conversation) Do you 
all have a spokes person? Would you come forward and 
give you name and address? (More background conversa­
tion) Would you give us your name, please.) 

Mrs. Banks: Doris Banks, 1823 Syracuse Avenue, Northwest. 
One thing I wanted to point out is we are not talking 
about Old South West, we are talking about an area that 
the neighbors have moved into and developed for single 
family living. The private road is in full view of my 
family room window and my kitchen sink. So it is very 
close in there. We the neighbors of 1919 Andrews Road 
are opposed to a special exception to permit a group 
home of substance abusers in our area. such a facility 
would depreciate the properties not only in Willington 
Hills, but in Rose Mont, Sanford Hills, Tower Heights, 
Highland Manor, Heritage Acres and Fairlane. It would 
bring into our area a transient population which would 
jeopardize the safety of all the residents. Especially 
the elementary school children who travel unattended 
along Andrews Road and 19th Street to the Roanoke 
Academy for Mathematics and Science. Kennedy Park 
would provide a perfect haven for this type facility 
and we have had enough problems with Kennedy Park and 
last, but not least, it would very definitely put an 
end to any further single family development in the 
area. Since we wish to preserve the single family 
characteristics of our area and to protect the property 
values, we petition, we ask, we·beg you to object to 
this exception. I have a petition here, I don't know 
if all names are one it or not, I have five pages and I 
would like to leave them with your secretary. 

Chairman: We'd like to have that, yes. All these are people 
in the immediate area? 

Mrs. Banks: Yes, and all sections. 

Chairman: Alright. Moral Avenue, Cove Road, 22nd Street. 
Florida's is 3 or 4, 5 blocks away. It intersects ••• 

someone from the audience: With Andrews Road. 

Chairman: It does? Almost as far as on the other side of 
Cove Road. on both sides? OK, alright, probably 70 or 
80 petitions. Of course I wish there were all here to 
hear just exactly what is proposed. 

someone from the audience: May I make a comment? 

Chairman: If you'll come up here and speak in this 
microphone. And give us your name and addres~~-\ l..\ 
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Mr. Prunty: w. c. Prunty, 2201 Florida Avenue, Northwest. 
Mr. Chairman and board, most of our people are working 
at this hour They in favor of the project but they 
tied up. Now, about the project. Round where this 
area location is we have approximately 2,000 homes 
built around this, where this is suppose to be set in 
the area. These folks have come out of another 
interrupted area, which I'm a victim of, come of of 
Northeast, you all know the old story about Northeast 
where we all lost in that deal. Then you come in and 
get this place all set up and people are good livers, 
go along, try to control the community, try to raise 
nice family now you come and put this on us. Most of 
these homes around there range pretty close $90,000 to 
$100,000 and you got about $200,000 property around 
here, he say $70,000 he's trying to put in here. But 
we been in the rest of the area. He's been in 
Southwest all this time, 17 years, hasn't made any 
advance forward, hasn't purchased any building and we 
been over here fixing our homes now he want to come 
invade our privacy over here. We locked in. We locked 
in by Rugby Boulevard and lOth Street there. We locked 
.in by Harshbarger Road. We locked in by 581 and we 
locked in by Orange Avenue. Now we have nowhere to go. 
No room for advancement, we can't develop and what 
little land is around us where we can develop then you 
come in and move in on· it. This project is not even 
welcome by the people. No, they work hard for their 
money and they want to stay where they are. They want a 
nice neighborhood. I think you all are proud of the 
Northwest corridor in there and I think that what we 
trying to do. We have a few problems like you have in 
Southwest or anywhere else. We trying to rid ourselves 
of those to keep a nice neighborhood, nice schools, 
manageable children. Now you come in and prevent us 
from carrying out. Why you want to come over and leave 
Southwest go where the crucks of the matter is and got 
everything under your control? You putting it in our 
neighborhood. Why? Why come over here and put it on 
us? You put it on our neighborhood. Why? Many of the 
citizens wonder why. Why? Why come over here when you 
been over there all these years? And you say it's for 
convenience. You gonna spend $400,000, half a million 
dollars you say you are, but look how much money we're 
spending. We're tax payers and it hurts when we have 
to pay those taxes, but we have to go along with the 
rest of the people. sure. And we try to control 
things and we proud of our location. We try to 
eliminate crime. Of course, there's a lot of crime out 
of our zone, but it hurts when something happens. 
Sure. But we don•·t want for someone else to come in 
and add on to certain things that create another 
problem for us. We right proud. We lost Northeast and '1-\S 
I was a victim of it, ~t a home, :::~~i~,~~' ~<>111.>0 . 
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father lost a house, and they turn around and sold all 
the property in Northeast, now this is a shame, sold 
all that property from 4th street all the way down to 
7th street all went up for business. We were chased 
out our home. We was suppose to go back in there. 
Whenever you get little things that come into a unit 
after awhile it start breaking down and other things 
creep in, too. so this is why we trying to say to you, 
let's don't start breaking up our neighborhood for 
corporations and businesses. Let them start in there 
with the corporate area. They out there with 
corporations scattered all around them. We don't need 
a corporation in a residential neighborhood. I 
wouldn't think. I appreciate you, Mr. Chairman, and 
the members of the board. Please think in our direc­
tion. We like to stay alive. Thank you. 

Chairman: Thanks. Do we have one more, and try not to 
repeat, now. This gentlemen, alright. No sir, the one 
behind you, first. I'm sorry. I was looking at him. 
Would you give us your name and address? 

Mr. Hamlar: My name is L. H. Hamlar. My address is 1837 
Grayson Avenue, Northwest. I talk to a lot of people, 
friends, neighbors and they are against changing of the 
zoning. They knew when they moved into this neighbor­
hood and they bought their homes there and they knew it 
was a residential neighborhood and this is why they 
bought and built there. Now I have all the sympathy in 
the world for this program that is run by the ••• for 
drug abuse. We know that they.are doing a good job. 
They have done a good job. They say that they are a 
model for the state, some parts of the nation and they 
did it where they are, if they could find places I 
think they're in a business neighborhood I know proper­
ty when you're in their business neighborhood, but some 
of the property where you have on Melrose or other 
places, I'm sure that hasn't increased as much as your 
property over there at the Hegira House and I'm sure 
when it comes down our property don't increase that 
fast and with this I'm sure it wouldn't increase as 
fast as it is. But I do know everyone in here is in 
sympathy with the drug abuse program, but we have a 
neighborhood there, isn't residential neighborhood, 
we'd like to see it remain that way and it was that way 
when you bought it, and as Mr. Prunty said, you change 
it, then it could bring in something else, then the 
next thing you know well, something like what happened 
in Northeast where you have a neighborhood that has 
gone business and going down. So I urge you to vote 
against the changing of the zoning and let it remain a 
quiet residential neighborhood. Thank you very much. 

Chairman: I might say ... the press isn't ~:~: .. :~e ~:X ~r...~ . 
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Mr. Wheaton: No. 

Chairman: Can say what we want to say, the press isn't here 
today. But if anybody were to complain about this 
Hegira House, Old Southwest would have. You all go out 
and tell them and I'll deny I said it. They watch 
everything over there and I have never heard a single 
complaint. 

Audience comment: That's why Old South West has better 
police protection than Northwest does. 

Chairman: It's hard for us to talk one on one and we're not 
suppose to do that so if you all want to heard, let's 
come on up and go ahead. Would you come up, please? 
Would you give us your name and address, please? 

Mr. Burks: Daryle Burks, 1529 Grayson Avenue. 

Chairman: Alright Mr. Burks. 

Mr. Burks: As I said, Old South West does have better 
police protection. You're speaking about a neighbor­
hood that you asked about the media. The media i.s 
always talking about the Northwest neighborhood and the 
fact that there are open air drug markets there. 
You're putting people, substance abusers, in an area 
where they're in for more temptation. I grew up not 
far from this 1919 Andrews Road. I know the property 
like the back of my hand. Anybody can get on the 
property. I don't know what type of security the folks 
are talking about, but unless they're talking about 
erecting high fences, doing a lot of things, there's no 
way to keep those people out of there. 

Chairman: To keep who out? 

Mr. Burks: To keep drug dealers and everybody out. I 
grew up not far from there. 

Chairman: You say what you like, but I don't see that 
problem. 

Mr. Burks: I live not far from there now. I grew up not 
far from there, there are open air markets, different 
parts, where people sell drugs openly, drive by, go up 
to your car and try to sell you drugs. 

Chairman: Did you hear Mr. Altice say there was 12 staff 
members and 24 hours ••• 

Mr. Burks: Yeah, there are also staff members at other 
••• within the paper within the past couple of months 

~ 
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there have been people from a half-way house who robbed 
a credit union at Lewis-Gale Hospital past ••• 

(tape ended at this point) 

Mr. Rabb: Omar Rabb, 1325 Creston Street, Northwest. I 
formerly lived at 1543 Syracuse Avenue, Northwest. I'm 
a former graduate from Hegira House, the criteria, the 
structure, and I can speak to the facts. These people 
are to be commended for what they are trying to do. 
You have about 5,000 drug addicts in this city, maybe 
more, that would take. You need something in 
Northwest. You got a lot of drugs addicts over there. 
You may have them all over the city, but specifically, 
we need a treatment center by brave people, by people 
that have a great track records, by people that can 
rehabilitate and change behavior if its 10 out of 30, 
if its 40 out of 100, we need commendable people, we 
need professional people, we need this type of program 
in Northwest. 

Chairman: I wish you all wouldn't try·to divide the city. 
It's not for Northwest people, this is for anybody. 

Mr. Rabb: I stand to be corrected. The entirety of the 
city. But what I'm trying to speak to ••• 

Chairman: Because in South West, if it hadn't been for 
Southwest people, so let's try ••• 

Mr. Rabb: I'm only trying to say we need a program, a 
program is needed all over the·city for all residents 
of the city and I think that a job has been well done 
in sw and I think that if you had this home over here, 
this substance abuse home, it would reach a lot of 
people who may not want to leave Northwest to come to 
Southwest. You know, and I believe the location would 
serve the purpose for the city. 

Chairman: You've seen the property? 

Mr. Rabb: Yes, sir, I have. I use to live over there. I 
use to live in that area over there on Syracuse, 78, 
79, 80, 81, 82, for about 5 years I lived over there in 
that area. And I'm only saying that I think the 
program, would be commended and worthwhile to have the 
program. 

Chairman: Why would this be a better place than over in 
Southwest? 

Mr. Rabb: I don't know if it would be a better place, but I 
think ••• 
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Chairman: Well, it's different because you're isolated over 
here and in Old South West you're right in the middle 
of traffic. 

Mr. Rabb: I tend to agree with the therapeutic part. 
Isolation tends to bring out, to cause, the person 
can't, like Mr. Altice said, he can't go right next 
door to Hop In, he can't go right next door to the 
store, he's in a controlled environment and people 
respond to substance abuse treatment better in a 
controlled environment. And I know that because we had 
a program in a prison environment ran by Hegira House. 
I was in the program for 2 years and we had a 75% 
success rate come out of that program. And this in a 
prison. 

Chairman: From your experience, did the inmates wander 
around al-l over Southwest or were they confined and 
looked after? 

Mr. Rabb: The people in the program act as security along 
with the staff to take care of each other. They look 
after each other. They ••• 

Chairman: They don't wander around through the neighborhood 
then? 

Mr. Rabb: No, sir, no, sir. 

Ms. Armstrong: Would you give me you~ last name again? 

Mr. Rabb: R a b b. 

Mr. Rife: Mr. Rabb, you said you've been through this 
program? 

Mr. Rabb: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Rife: At the Old South West location? 

Mr. Rabb: No, sir. I went through the same principles of 
the program at unit 25 in Troutville, a prison environment. 
The environment is different, but similar. 

Mr. Rife: I guess you can help me with this, then. It said 
in our information that typically someone is in this 
program for 6 to 9 months. And I believe Mr. Altice 
said that basically, for the majority of that time, 
they live at this facility. What do you do all day. I 
think these people are concerned that yo~•ve got people 
here who've had problems with substance·abuses and 
they're just going to be wandering the streets and 
luring their children into trouble. And I guess that I ,-~~ 
want to know, and they want to know,. what do~Q-~:~ 
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day? Tell us all how you fill your time when you're in 
this program. 

Mr. Rabb: You get up in the morning, you have groups to go 
to. You have educational groups, you have substance 
abuse groups and all of these groups are ran by a staff 
person and a lot of times when a person graduates from 
one level to another, like from the cleaning up of the 
building to the kitchen staff ••• I was a coordinator. I 
came through the whole program from clean up all the 
way through the coordinator level. Where as I helped 
run groups, also. But you have classes pretty much all 
day. You have house meetings where the 20 or 30 
people, whatever it is in the program, come together 
and they air out their problems. You have three 
individual groups. Like the program I was in you had 
three groups, 10 people in each group and you meet, you 
talk, you bring out your problems, you deal with your 
behavior, you deal with your loved one, you deal with 
the crimes that was committed. Me, I liked to, I was 
check writer. I wrote checks to support by habit. A 
lot of people like to rob, a lot of people like to 
steal, a lot of people may even harm someone just to 
get money to buy drugs, or crack or cocaine, whatever 
the drug of choice may be. But a person in this 
program learns how to be themselves. They learn how to 
discard all of those negative behaviors and those 
negative personalities and it's a reformation process 
and you're constantly learning all day. 

Chairman: Alright. 

Mr. Lawrence: Members of the board, concerned citizens- and 
observers, my name is Bill Lawrence and.I am the 
reentry director of Hegira House. To specifically 
answer your question, Hegira House is a highly struc­
tured program. It involves a daily structure on work 
on the various crews that they have depending on the 
individual skill deficits that the individual may have. 
They could either learn how to fix things around the 
facility, they could learn kitchen preparation, food 
preparation from menus, menu planning and actually 
ordering food. For a period of time during the day 
they're working on the crew preparing breakfast, lunch 
and supper and in between they're attending therapy 
sessions. In the therapy sessions they're working on 
certain problems which are underlying to their sub­
stance abuse. It could range from family problems, 
problems with intimacy, problems with communities, such 
as employment, education. People who do not have GED 
are attending GED classes. 

Mr. Rife: Off site or on site? 

2B 

-···- ·-- -- --+-~·-··~ -----·-----··--------



Mr. Lawrence: Off site. We also try to pool our community 
resources with TAP or Department of Vocational 
Rehabilitation or Virginia Western or the area colleges 
other than Virginia Western. During evening hours 
usually is involved with personal time when they're 
writing letters, making phone contacts with family or 
they're doing assignments. In the late evening time 
they're involved in groups. We tend-to try to run at 
least two groups a day as well as the individuals 
having their individual family sessions. Family 
members are constantly involved in the treatment being 
that we see the addiction as well as the dependency of 
the chemical as a family problem so we try to 
constantly involve the family because we have found out 
that individuals that try to pick themselves up by 
their own bootstraps, using that theory, that it does 
not. OK, this problem of substance abuse is a 
community problem and has been addressed as an 
individual, community, family problem since the 60's. 
The fact is the state has deinstitutionalized the 
community of mental health has put half-way houses and 
treatment centers and cohabitation living such as the 
Oxford houses program, a new concept that's going to be 
introduced to the Roanoke Valley this year. A part of 
the reentry process, being that Hegira House is a very 
structured program, not just for the first day to the 9 
months of in-house patient treatment, but they also 
have the out-patient treatment. That structure is 
where the individuals move from Hegira House facility 
move into our supervised apartments over in Old South 
West. There that person works out of a contract with 
Hegira House. That person must begin to clean up the 
mess that they made, either from fraudulent checks or 
debts, problems with employers, whatever. They must 
begin to integrate into the community, reunite with 
their family. A lot of ways that happens is through a 
contract, as I stated. But, specifically, they must 
find employment. No one can be in the reentry program 
without employment. Adequate, gainful employment. 
From there they must begin to repay their debt to 
society, whatever that debt may look like. Either 
they're in school, college or vocational training or 
they're working. From there they continue the family 
sessions, they continue to come back to the Hegira 
House program once a week for group therapy with myself 
and another staff person as well as I monitor them on a 
daily basis so that at no time are they free-loading in 
the community. I also would like to address one other 
concern, from a Hegira House point of view. Once we 
found out, and Hegira realized the possibility of 1919 
Andrews Road was a reality, we began to realize, also 
that we needed to touch base with the community at 
large. so, therefore, we have established some PR ,~~\ 

committees whereby we will be con~a~:~~~~~~~i~.~ 
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hearing their concerns as well as setting up a 
interface relationship where we can give to them as 
well as receive from them. A part of that is that 
historically we have been willing to educate the 
community providing them with facts, facts about 
substance abuse rehabilitation, the addict himself, 
when he's chemically effected versus when he'S in 
recovery. It's a different process all together. It's 
a different characteristics of behavior. You'll find 
the violence when the person is chemically effected. 
You'll find the humility when the person is in 
recovery, so there are different sets of behaviors that 
go along with that. People in Hegira House are in the 
recovery process the day they stepped in. And so we 
will be contacting the community and churches concerned 
with the local substance abuse problem in the Roanoke 
Valley as well as the Northwest area who began problem 
solving and began to make some interventions that can 
be viable to what to alternatives as to what we're 
facing today. 

Chairman: Have you talked to any of these people here in the 
audience? 

Mr. Lawrence: Not really. I talked to a few. 

(Argumentative voices raised in-the audience; lawyers and 
things like this, they're from the other group) 

Mr. Roberts: One other question. Did you choose this 
place because of its suitability or .because it's available? 

Mr. Lawrence: I first made contact with the realtor on the 
site and it was suitable and very conducive for a healthy 
environment for rehabilitation. The serenity of it, the 
isolation of it, is very conducive. 

Mr. Roberts: Thank you. 

Chairman: You did look at several other.places? You looked 
at a number of places? 

Mr. Lawrence: No. 

Chairman: This one just came up and looked ideal? 

Mr. Lawrence: It looked very ideal. 

Chairman: Alright. 

Mr. Rife: I've got a couple of questions for Mr. Lawrence. 
Does the program run on weekends? 

Mr. Lawrence: seven days a week, 24 hours a day.~~~ 
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Mr. Rife: Do any of these people have jobs while they're in 
Hegira House? 

Mr. Lawrence: While they're in the in-house phase they're 
not gainfully employed, however, we do allow them to go 
out into the community to do short contractual type 
work. Whether it is helping a neighbor out or to work 
for one day, probably as a dishwasher in a local 
business, if the business needs, and if we can afford 
to allow that person out of the facility. However, 
once they are in the re-entry phase they do find 
employment or school and their income is supplement 
through whatever means they have. 

Mr. Rife: How does one get referred to your program? 

Mr. Lawrence: Referrals are self-referrals through knowl­
edge of the program, referred from the Department of 
Corrections, referred from the court systems as well as 
other mental health community agencies. 

Chairman: Alright, Mr. Lawrence. Would you give your name 
and address, please. 

Ms. Terry: My name is Mary Terry. I live in the 
Northwest area but not in the vicinity of the Andrews 
Road area. Personally I'm a chairman for a concerned 
citizens group in the Northwest area and we're looking 
at the drugs and other crimes that are going on within 
that area. Last night we had our regular meeting and 
we did discuss this issue. I guess the thing I would 
like to say to you is that the residents that are here 
do have a concern. They have worked hard for many 
years to establish their homes within a community that 
they actually feel safe with. I guess the things that 
I would like to say to the community people is you need 
to stop and think about what's not just now but what's 
facing us five to ten years down the road. And when 
I'm talking about that I'm talking about our young 
people who are out there who have gone through this 
program. I'd like the members of the Hegira H9use 
approximately how many blacks have gone through their 
programs and what is the black percentage of the 
participants that have gone through your program. 

Chairman: Would you like to answer that, Mr. Altice? 

Mr. Altice: Yes. As far as say how many blacks have gone 
through the program, there has been numerous blacks 
that have gone through the program. The majority of 
the participants now are black. That has been the case 
for a long time. When the program first started many 
years ago, there was a reluctance in the court system 1-~ 

to refer blacks to. treatment. The~ ~-~-~~~ s~~~ · 
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to prison rather than to a treatment program. That 
whole concept has changed through the years. And more 
of the courts are now open and consistent in referring 
blacks to treatment which I think gives blacks a better 
chance of making it. We've seen that change 
tremendously in our program. And also the changing of 
the drugs. I think when you had more heroine on the 
street you tend to have more blacks in the program and 
when you have more crack cocaine you tend to have more 
blacks in the program. The more marijuana and LSD, you 
tend to have more whites. So a lot of times the drug 
of choice tends to change the clientele. Plus the fact 
of the matter is that a lot of successful black clients 
have gone through the program and the numbers are far 
exceeding 50% of the program. 

Chairman: This is certainly no black or white issue. 

Ms. Terry: It's no black or white issue but it needs to 
be talked about. The thing that I would like to voice 
my opinion is that the fact that the mental health 
services did not take into consideration community at 
Andrews Road and 19th Street to go and to show with 
them the fact that they were going to go into the area 
and try to purchase the property and ask for the 
rezoning for their services in that area. And I think 
it was really a disrespect to the community and an 
oversight on your part. I feel like in the city of 
Roanoke we have to work together. I know they're here 
asking for a rezoning audience and I feel like this 
committee cannot really make a decision based on the 
fact that we really now have a'split within a part of 
your community. People who are saying that they live 
in this community and they do not want the services to 
come there. But I feel like we have to sit down 
together to think out what is really best for our 
community. I would ask that you would continue this 
issue for another 60 to 90 days. Ask the mental health 
services to go and work with the community and if they 
decide that 1919 Andrews Road is not the spot for the 
facility, that this community would work along with 
mental health in order to provide a facility for the 
drug users in our community. And I'm saying this 
because we are going to be facing more drug abuse users 
trying to get into programs and the facilities are 
needed but I'm not saying that it is needed in the 1919 
Andrews Road area. But I want us to come out on one 
accord and I hope that you will hear my recommendation. 

Chairman: Excuse me, but what is your job, Ms. Terry? 

Ms. Terry: What is my job? 

Chairman: Yes. 
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Ms. Terry: I work for the Virginia Water Project. I'm 
director of administration. 

Chairman: Alright, Ms. Terry, you're just interested in •• 

Ms. Terry: Oh. I said I was chairman for the concerned 
citizens of Roanoke. That's what you heard. 

Chairman: Oh, the concerned citizens. 

Ms. Terry: And this is a community groups which also 
takes in that community. 

Chairman: Alright. 

Ms. Terry: And I would say that in the meeting last 
night that we had approximately 45 people in attendance 
and the group did split on the issue. Thank you. 

Chairman: Well, you make a lot of sense. Your name and 
address. 

Mr. Brown: My name is Gary Brown, my address is 3053 
Ordway Drive, that is my residence. My business 
adQress is 3237 Cove Road. I live and operate and own 
a car dealership in Northwest Roanoke. I have been 
there, it will be 4 years March 3, just past. There 
are several things that I can say. Number one is that 
I have talked with a number of businesses in the NW 
area. I guess being in business you have a first hand 
look and kind of a pulse check.of a lot of things that 
goes on in the community that perhaps a lot of people 
don't see. I'm on the corner of what is identified as 
Cove and Hershberger Roads. I have set in my office 
and visually seen people make a dope deal, a dope 
transaction, across the street from me. We talk about 
need• The need is strong everywhere in the community. 
I personally feel a great deal of anger, hurt when I 
see this happen. I feel anger, resentment, when I see 
something like a drug, an illicit drug, crack cocaine 
which is very prominent now, in the community. Come 
into the community and basically start tearing it's 
heart out. Because me being a part of NW Roanoke, I 
care about what happens in that community. We talk 
about problems and we talk about solutions. If there's 
one thing that I could get across today, and I under­
stand you alls concerns~ I understand all that was 
stated, I empathize totally with a lot of those con­
cerns. However, I want to get across that Hegira House 
is not the problem. It is a major solution to the 
problem. A major solution to the program. I have a 
great of knowledge in reference to these programs. My 
former profession, I worked 12 years, it's in psycholo­
gy field specializing in substance abuse. I can 
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identify some things in the community and be aware of 
some things in the community that perhaps somebody else 
may not see. And I see a lot of things going on that 
needs to be addressed. Once again, the problem is 
there. We cannot turn away from it, we cannot bury our 
heads, we cannot act as if it does not exist and Hegira 
House, to me, is a prime, prime example of one way of 
dealing with that. As a business owner, I have talked 
with a number of business owners in the community, 
procured the letters that the board has in possession 
now from some of the business in that area. We 
wholeheartedly, 100% support the program coming into 
that area. I want to say one other thing. Hegira 
House is a controlled environment. When a person comes 
to that program they are not made .to come to there. 
They have to have a great deal of motivation to come 
into that program. They don't just walk in off the 
street and go into there, under some kind of false 
pretense. That does not happen. The standards are 
high, the ethics are high and it continues to be that 
way ever since I have come to know about the program. 
It has a lot to offer. If I can say anything to the 
community members, I beg of you, open your arms, 
embrace the program and use it to your potential. And 
the young folks with drug and alcohol problems. Thank 
you. 

Chairman: Alright, sir. Any questions? Thank you. Your 
name? 

Ms. Fuller: My name is Laverne Fuller Prunty. I live at 
2201 Florida Avenue, Northwest. I think that everybody 
here realizes something needs to be done about the 
situation here as far as drugs are concerned. The 
program that we have heard outlined sound like it might 
be a means of dealing with such a program that is 
needed. But what we are saying to you is that we don't 
need that in our particular community. We feel that 
some other secluded area where you have lots of unused 
space may be more conducive to taking care of and 
helping the counselors to carry out their objectives. 
We're not saying that the program is not needed. We're 
not saying that your program may not be good. We 
simply want you to understand we just don't want it in 
that particular part of our neighborhood. We were 
given a park right across the street from that property 
and nobody walks in it, nobody rides bicycles in it, 
unless they are in groups or in numbers and you need to 
be out there when you late on Saturday nights or when 
it gets dark and hear those weird sounds that make you 
know that something dangerous is going on. That's 
within walking distance to the same place that you say 
would be a safe haven for the people who do not need 
that type of enticement. So we are asking that you 
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please find some other place that would be equally 
conducive to carrying out this worthwhile program. We 
just don't want it in our community. And the 
businessmen who want and own businesses, they go home 
at night. And I would just about say that you won't 
find any of them living in the community where we live. 
They are there by day, but they are gone by night. 

Chairman: I think this gentleman lives on Ordway? 

Mr. Brown: Yes, sir. But that's a long way away. 

Ms. Prunty: That's about 2 miles away. Very few of them 
are in our community. Thank you. 

Chairman: Alright. Thank you, Ms. Prunty. 

Someone from the audience: I'd like to add Mr. Chairman 
that we have two of our current clients and families 
that live in the vicinity or a few blocks of this 
proposed facility. 

Chairman: Your name? 

Ms. Ennis: My name is Hugh Ennis. I live 1811 Syracuse 
Avenue, Northwest. I am quite familiar with the Hegira 
House and its program. I, through my agency, have 
referred people over a period of years. However, I 
also live in the same area where the proposed project 
is supposed to be placed. I understand my neighbors 
feelings and I echo everything Ms. Fuller has said. 
They don't feel safe because the park is there. It's 
not uncommon each night to hear semi-automatic fire in 
the park and the surrounding area. It's not uncommon 
for me to observe drug deals going down and I know this 
when I see it because I work with drug pushers and drug 
dealers every day. I think it's going to be unsafe for 
the community. While I feel fairly safe, I'm carrying 
a gun 24 hours a day, because I am authorized to do so. 
But it is not s~fe for these people. There's going to 
be to much temptation, we cannot control the drug 
pushers and drug addicts that are there already. We 
have and have had a problem for the last several years. 
So I'm asking that you take a good long look at this. 
and let these people keep their homes the way they are 
now and let's work with the problem that we have now, 
let's work that out first. 

Chairman: And your job is? 

Mr. Ennis: I'm a u.s .. probation and parole officer and 
pre-trial service officer assigned to the Western 
District court. 
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Chairman: Alright, sir. 

Mr. Ennis: Thank you. 

Mr. Rife: Let me ask a couple of questions. 

Chairman: Mr. Ennis? 

Mr. Ennis: Yes, sir? 

Chairman: Come here. 

Mr. Rife: I'm thinking out loud and bear with me. It 
appears that there is a good deal of drug trade in 
Kennedy Park. 

Mr. Ennis: That's right. 

Mr. Rife: OK. Now, is it your fear or your susp~c~on that 
the residence of Hegira House will walk up this drive­
way and go over to Kennedy Park and buy drugs? 

Mr. Ennis: Yes. 

Mr. Rife: OK. As I understand it, they get a urine test 
every week and if they fail that urine test they're 
kicked out. 

Mr. Ennis: That's true. 

Mr. Rife: So, if they, indeed, do that, as I understand the 
program, then they get out of your neighborhood. They 
get kicked out. 

Mr. Ennis: Yes. 

Mr. Rife: OK, so that aspect of the problem kind of polices 
itself. 

Mr. Ennis: But see the crime may have already been 
committed by the time they have a urine test. 

Mr. Rife: Yes, but now ••• 

Mr. Ennis: or the transactions may have been completed 
by that time. 

Mr. Rife: Right, and I guess the other side of the print 
thing is, if the sale of drugs in Kennedy Park is as 
open and bold as you say it is, and I don't doubt you 
for a second, what's, I don't see the different between 
somebody living a half mile away walking up to it and 
somebody getting in their car and d~~ving u~:~ -~ -~"'?, 
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mean, I don't see that these people being located there 
necessarily makes Kennedy Park any worse. 

Mr. Ennis: That's true. It's as easy to walk to a drug 
dealer and to drive to one. People do it all the time. 

Mr. Rife: Now to me, I'm not really knowledgeable about 
how one buys drugs. But to me, I'd rather do it 
in a car where I can get away. on foot it seems 
to me I'm more susceptible to being caught. 

Mr. Ennis: It depends on the area you're trying to get 
away from. Whether you're easily caught running or in 
a car. It depends on what the police or the DA are 
using to try to catch you. 

Mr. Copty: Mr. Ennis, I'm sitting here and wish I wasn't 
sitting here. Because I'm very uncomfortable with 
trying to make decisions, I'm a real strong believer in 
neighborhoods. Where do we put these things? Every­
body that's come here, and I think everybody in the 
audience, and I don't want to speak for everybody, 
admits that we need to have these programs. This is 
real positive program. It doesn't deal in negatives. 
I live in a neighborhood. I can honestly say I would 
rather not have anything next to me other than fields 
and houses and those types of things, but is a communi­
ty is Roanoke city, I mean, people want them in seclud­
ed areas we can't depend on other communities to deal 
with our problems. We have to deal with our own 
problems. Where do you suggest that we do this? 
Roanoke is not a place bless with, or whatever ••• where 
are we going to put them. I've got drugs in my neigh­
borhood. We've got kids on our street that have 
problems and we have kids in every neighborhood, this 
is just a huge problem and we've got this 13 acre site 
sitting in the secluded area, a real rare find for our 
community, not that it just happens to be in your 
streets, or areas. But, where are we going to put 
them. 

Mr. Ennis: To answer yours question, I'll answer it two 
ways, really. If you look at that 13 acre tract there 
are streets already next to it. And those streets and 
vacant spaces for about 200 homes that have not been 
built. About 6 or 7 have been built. The contractor 
that built it ran out of money, or whatever, then the 
recession hit. Nevertheless, I would prefer, 
basically, an isolated area. Maybe in the county. 

Mr. Rife: The county won't take our problems. They won't 
take their own problems. 
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Mr. Ennis: Oh, I know that, but at the same time we have 
to look ••. although I make a living off of this, I have 
job security because people are drug addicts. It's 
nothing I'm proud of. It's just what I do for a 
living. 

Mr. Rife: Well, thank you for your job. 

Mr. Ennis: At the same time these people don't do that 
and they should have, they have a right to live the way 
they want to live and feel safe in doing so. 

Chairman: Do you honestly believe that this house located in 
this area would increase the drug traffic in this area? 

Mr. Ennis: Definitely. Sure it would because, you see, 
while there are so many, policy things at Hegira House, 
because I refer people there, some have graduated and 
some haven't. Some probably shouldn't have gone there 
in the first place because they couldn't cut it. 
Because the program they thought was too hard. Life 
was basically too hard for some of them so they didn't 
make it. I've had more failures than success. And it 
wasn't because the program wasn't good. It wasn't that 
at all. It was just because these people were 
psychologically addicted to the various drugs they'd 
been using and only about 5% of the people that use 
drugs every stop using drugs again in their life, of 
some kind, I know. 

Chairman: But how would this increase the drug traffic in 
that area because this operation would be controlled. 

Mr. Ennis: You can't control any operation but so much. 
There are drugs in a prison. I don't know of any 
prison where drugs aren't present. I don't know of any 
building where drugs aren't present. In this very 
building that we're in now somebody has used or is 
using drugs today. Illegally. 

Chairman: But you think this would increase it? 

Mr. Ennis: sure. It would because we have drug 
trafficking now, you see. And we have a hard time 
getting the police to respond to that. Quite often I 
call the police and they don't do up there and some­
times they'll come to my house and I'll go up there 
with them and show them where the people are. By this 
time they're gone. 

Chairman: But you're going to have drug traffic everywhere, 
so why would it increase? 
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Mr. Ennis: I just explained that to you. These people 
mean well, the people at Hegira mean well, and they do 
a good job. And the people that go there go with good 
intentions of succeeding, of being successful in their 
program. But quite often they don't and they don't 
need any negative things near them to attract them from 
the program, or from their concentration. 

Chairman: Alright, thank you Mr. Ennis. Your name, sir? 

Mr. Woolridge: My name is Dan Woolridge. I live at 1919 
Andrews and I cannot really speak authoritatively about 
drugs. That might be some relief to you. I came up 
here because I've lived there for approximately 11 
years and there were some questions about the physical 
nature of the property and I've made some notes. The 
driveway is four and a half tenths of one mile long. 
It's not a quarter of a mile. There is a gate at the 
rear of the house. The gate was put there by me 
because there was no gate when I bought the place. 
There is no driveway back there, but it does give me an 
opportunity to put my travel trailer in a place where I 
like to keep it. That's the only reason that it's all 
grass, it's the only reason you can get in and out 
there. Anybody that wants to build a fence or lock the 
gate and throw the key away, there's no way to get in 
from there. There was a comment made about not having 
a mail box. That's not my choice and it's not Hegira 
House's choice. The good old postal service refuses to 
deliver to me because I am too isolated. They will not 
deliver mail, I live in the ci~y of Roanoke, but they 
will not deliver mail to me. I must have a post office 
box because I'm too far off of any of their routes. 
And if you have any other questions about the physical 
layout of the property, I'm happy to answer. I put it 
up for sale about 9 months ago. I am approaching 
retirement, hopefully, one of these days. This is the 
only offer that I've received on the property. In 
return for that offer, I'm donating back the tractors 
and the equipment to maintain the property with. But I 
can't speak to the drug problem. There have been drug 
exchanges in my driveway. That's not a very happy 
circumstance. I hear Hegira House people say that with 
them there there would not be drug exchanges in the 
driveway. They claim they can keep that clean. I 
don't know if they can or they can't. That's what they 
tell me. But as far as the physical layout of the 
property, if I can answer any questions that you may 
have about the driveway or the boundaries or anything 
like that, I'll be happy to. 

Chairman: It's just about as private a place as you can get 
if that's any help. If that's a help or a hindrance. 1-3\ 
You've enjoyed livinq there, haven't you? .5h,' .. c ~ 
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Mr. Woolridge: Yeah, the neighborhood has changed over the 
years. It's gone this way. 

Chairman: Well, I think that that fact that some houses were 
built there and not occupied a while ••. 

Mr. Woolridge:· In fact it was a number of years they were 
empty. 

Chairman: I think one of the big builders tried to develop 
some of that area and, I don't know ••• but then there 
are nice homes in there, too. Alright, sir. You all 
have any questions? So this is the owner. He's not 
pushing one way or the other. Alright. Did you all 
have maybe one other person that needs to be heard or 
you think we've heard .•• 

Mr. Charlton: My name is Tyrone Charlton. I live in the 
Northwest section of Roanoke. I'd like to say I've 
heard a lot of positives, a lot of negatives and don't 
seem to be getting anywhere. And really, you stop and 
think about it, we know the living, I'm just speaking 
of Northwest section right now. We want to live in the 
Northwest section. we have a drug problem there, and 
we got to address this drug.problem. It's inherited. 
We inherited this drug problem. We didn't want it. 
It's here, it's there. We've go to do something about 
it and the treatment center, treatment is good. I 
worked in the Department of Corrections for 20 years as 
a correctional officer, and I worked around treatment. 
Treatment is goodo But if you·don't offer anything 
then it's not going to be. We've got to offer the 
treatment for the people that wants it. Everybody on 
drugs doesn't want to be on drugs. It's a sickness. 
It starts off as a high and it's a sickness. As 
doctors well know and as we well know, sickness has to 
be treated. Everybody is not successful. You treat 
people with cancer. Everybody don't live. Some of 
them die. Treat people with drugs, some make it, some 
don't. But I feel it's our obligation as citizens and 
humans and taxpayers that we ought to think this thing 
over, come together, and talk this situation out. Find 
out which is more positive or the negative and weight 
this situation out and see what we can do to bring this 
about. Thank you very much. 

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Charlton. 

Mr. Wheaton: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to make one 
observation, or two. First one, I heard the issue of 
rezoning. We don't have the prerogative of at this 
level to do any rezoning. I think the issue at hand is 
a balance for special exception. We cannot\U= or 1-3(;).. 
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issue any matters on zoning. Second issue I would like 
to address is, I wonder how much, or how much has been 
communicated between these two bodies here. This is a 
very vital matter here, I think, that maybe the people 
from the Hegira House and the people from the community 
need to sit down and see, talk, to communicate with one 
another. Maybe it's feasible. Maybe you don't know 
all the detail. Maybe he doesn't know all the details 
of your desires, your wishes and your concerns. Maybe 
we need to communicate. I sense that there has been no 
communication between the two issues, two bodies. I 
see where your point is, I see your concern for the 
welfare of your property. You're saying you don't want 
that thing in your neighborhood, but you don't know 
what that thing really is until you have communicated 
with somebody to find out what it is. I would 
certainly be one to recommend not to make a decision 
this evening as to how we address it, but however you 
whose spokes person meet with these people and sit down 
and see what they are about and come back after a time 
and see what we can resolve. That would be my 
thinking. 

Chairman: Very short. Two words, three words. 

Unidentified: That's something I'm a negative for on this 
further extension of this. For the reason why this was 
a hidden agenda that somebody picked it out of the 
papers, said look, tomorrow, look it here. We weren't 
suppose to know about this. They didn't come and 
contact the people in the community. We had no contact 
whatsoever. Which was a little unfair to us. If I 
come to your neighborhood try to do something I should 
get together with you and communicate. 

Chairman: Let's ask the secretary. Did you send notices ••• 

Ms. Armstrong: Yes, sir. We did our very best. 

Chairman: We're suppose to send notices to, what? Within 
200 feet of the property. 

Ms. Armstrong: No, no, no. Adjoining. 

Mr. Miller: 

Mr. Wheaton: 

Adjoining property. 

Adjoining property. 

Chairman: I can understand that. Well, anyway ••• 

Unidentified: But anyway the fact is that we didn't they 
didn't intend to communicate with us. They're people 
all around here. ·You could have got some information 
to those folks if you'd wanted. 
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Chairman: I admit I've learned more about it today, too. 

Mr. Wheaton: I have, too. 

Unidentified: We just hate to lose this. Some of these 
people have $75,000, $125,000 invested here. What is 
it? If things break bad they got to find some way to 
get rid of their homes. This is wrong. You got 
doctors, lawyers, everybody. We got all kinds of 
unprofessional people. Teachers. And unfortunately I 
was a teacher I lost some of them, too, to drugs. Yes, 
I did. They just dropped dead. And its pathetic •.• 

Mr. Roberts: I agree with Mr. Wheaton, I think we've had 
not enough communication here. 

Mr. Wheaton: I certainly think so. 

Chairman: I'd like to hear a motion. If you'd like to make 
a motion. 

Mr. Wheaton: Mr. Chairman, I would offer a motion that a 
committee from the concerned neighbors neighbors of 
those petitioning would sit down with a committee from 
the Hegira House and talk about this thing some and set 
it over to for whatever time limit they need. 30 days 
or 60 days, or whatever, and come back and let us make 
a decision at that time. I don't think we ought to try 
and even attempt to make a decision this evening. 

Mr. Roberts: If you want to make ~hat a motion, I'll 
second it. 

Mr. Wheaton: No, sir. I second, I offer that motion. 

Chairman: Alright, let's have the time. 30 days, 60 days. 

Mr. Wheaton: 60 days. 

Ms. Armstrong: The June meeting? 

Mr. Wheaton: June Meeting. 

Mr. Copty: I'd like to say one thing, if out of school 
or not out of school. You know that there's a problem 
in the neighborhood, a very serious problem already. 
And we've got some experts who want to come into the 
neighborhood who just happen to be probably one of the 
most capable bunches to help take care of a problem in 
the neighborhood and as you all talk, hopefully you'll 
get together and talk, maybe instead of this being 
perceived as a negative for this community, if you all 
can get together and find some ways to make it a 
positive for the community. To interact and ~-of 1-3."-\ 
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some affirmative programs with which this is not just a 
14 acre tract that's going to, you know, do what it's 
suppose to do, but it's going to be something that will 
permeate and get programs started through the community 
to clean up a problem. And that's my 2 cents. 

Mr. Wheaton: Motion on the floor. 

Chairman: Motion on the floor. 

Mr. Roberts: I second it. 

Mr. Wheaton: I second it and we have to stop it on ••• 

Mr. Roberts: What? 

Ms. Banks: I wouldn't like to leave you with the 
impression that the drugs are right around us. Kennedy 
Park is another drug place. We talk about Northwest 
the drugs are in our section, but they come into the 
park. 

Chairman: I don't think you can limit this to Northwest. 

Mr. Wheaton: There's a motion on the floor. 

Chairman: Oh, we have a motion on the floor. 

Mr. Riff: Let me point out one thing here. 

Mr. Roberts: Discussion of the motion. 

Mr. Riff: As I understand the motion before us, Hegira 
House is currently operating and they are not going to 
be in a bigger place here as far as the number of 
people they can serve. Now it's possible that this is a 
better place and I'm not convinced that this might not 
be a positive thing for this area. Now, now, and I 
think it's on Hegira House's duty here to educate you 
folks some and maybe convince you ••• 

(Mechanical Failure, tape ended) 

Due to a mechanical failure, the vote was not recorded. It 
passed unanimously and the chairman thereupon declared the 
motion carried and it was accordingly ordered that the 
request be continued until the regular meeting of the board 
in June. 
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April 8, 1991 
11 Walnut Avenue s.w. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24016 

Dear Mr. Altizer, 

This letter is to in~orm future neighbors of Heigera House, 
as to what they may expect from your group's presence in their 
community. 

My husband and I own a home on the next street down from Heigera 
House and operate our business two blocks from Heigera House. 
We have been in the neighborhood for over 20 years. 

Heigera House is among the most well kept homes in all of Old 
Southwest; their grounds are always well maintained and 
attractive. I have never seen anything that could be called 
an eyesore anywhere on their property. 

I have never heard loud noises of any nature coming from this 
home. I have never witnessed any police action at this property 
or violence of any nature. I have actually felt safer knowing 
that they were there. I feel that the quality supervision of 
this facility acts as a form of crime prevention for the whole 
neighborhood. 

Heigera House, also, offers help to the community; on the weekend 
they have carwashes and offer extended automobile cleaning care. 
Many times, I have called for help with yard work or other heavy 
duty work and I have never been refused help, if it was 
available. 

If any further information is needed, please feel free to call 
me at 345-0047. 

Yours truly, 

Pat George 
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Apr I 1 8 , 1991 

Henry Altice, Director 
Heg J ra House 
1301 2nd Street, SW 
Roanoke, VA 24016 

Dea r Mr. A 1 t i ce : 

This correspondence is In reference to the zoning hearing on 
the new proposed site at 1919 Andrews Road, N.W. 

In the thirteen years of being neighbors, just across the street, 
I have found your residents to be behaved and well mannered and 
presenting no problems to the community. They keep the facility 
clean and orderly and are contributing members of the Old South-· 
west community. I have never had any kind of problem with Hegira 
House or any of its residents. 

I hope these statements are helpful to you In your plans for the 
future. 

William H. Tanger 

' 

UOZ SECOND STREET. SOUTHWEST 
ROANOKE. VIROINIA 24016 

P.O. BOX 1750, 14001 
(70J) .J4J.J69J 
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TWENTY-THIRD J U D JCIAL DISTRICT 
OF VIRGINIA 

PHILIP T"R.OMPETEll. JUDGE 
315 W. CHURCH AVI!NUI! 
POST OFFICE BOX 98e 
1\.0ANOK!., VIR.CI'NlA 24005 
c 703, 981-23ee 

Henry Altice, Director 
Hegira House 

COMMONWEALTH OF' VIRGINIA 

March 28, 1991 

Mental Health services of the Roanoke Valley 
1301 Second street, s.w. 
Roanoke, VA 24016 

IUVI!NIUl AND DOMESTIC IUv.TIONS DIST1UCT COU"-T 
I'Oil 1'1-11! CITY OP "--ANO.Itl 

IUVINILI AND DOMesTIC lt.I!LAnONS DISTR.ICT COUR.T 
I'Oil 11-11! COUNTY 01' llOANOICil 

IUVI!NILa AND OOMI!STIC Jt.llv.TlONS DISTIUCT COUR.T 
I'Oil 11-11! CrTY OP SALaM 

Re: Rezoning Request for Relocation of Hegira House 

Dear Henry: 

At its last meeting, the Roanoke Valley Alcohol and Drug Abuse 
council VQted to officially endorse and support Mental Health services 
of the Roanoke Valley's relocation of Hegira House tol919 Andrews 
Road, N.W., in the City of Roanoke. I am writing this letter to you 
to further state that the council not only acknowledges the fine work 
of the Hegira House Program for over 18 years, but it also feels that 
the move to the new facility would provide the citizens of Roanoke 
Valley even more enhanced services for addicted individuals. 

The council has been impressed that the Hegira House Program has 
been a good neighbor to the residents of Old southwest, and that there 
have been no reports or complaints of improper or illegal activity 
associated with Hegira House. Treatment for druq addicted individuals 
is a very structured, carefully supervised and strictly monitored 
process at Hegira House. No doubt, this accounts for Heqira House's 
success as a responsible and highly respected program in the Roanoke 
valley. 

The Hegira House Program has long been supported by the agencies 
in the public and private sectors of our community, includinq the 
court system. Residents of the program know that, as a condition of 
acceptance, nothing less than prescribed behavior and performance will 
be tolerated. There is no reason for anyone to fear the unknown about 
Heqira House, all because of its lonq record of success for its 
residents and for its peaceful co-existence with the community it 
serves. 

Please know that each of the individuals and representative 
agencies which were appointed to the Roanoke Valley Alcohol and Drug 

<b-3 
A Copy, Teste~l~X ~aAAQLl 
P~ttfC H::~~s S.sci·Btary of 
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Henry Altice, Director 
Hegira House 
March 28, 1991 
Page TWo 

Abuse council support your agency's plans to move Hegira House to the 
more acceptable quarters at ~19 Andrews Road, N.W., so that you may 
continue your fine work for our citizenry. Afterall, your program 
helps not only the individuals needing your direct care, but our 
community benefits by returning our own to a life of responsibility, 
gainful employment and meaningful contribution. 

If there is anything I may do to assist you further in these 
efforts, please don't hesitate to contact me. 

PT:m 
cc: Angie Williams, coordinator 

' 
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Sincerely, 

Philip 
Judge, and chairman of the 

Roanoke Valley Alcohol and Drug 
Abuse council 

---- ..... --· --------- ---·- . --------. ------~--- -----..- ---·-



Family Service of Roanoke Valley 
90th Anniversary Year 1901-1991 

ExECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

JOHN F. PENDARVIS MSSW, AC~ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

c. T. ·surcH· MEREDITH 
PRESIDENT 

MARY MEADE WINH 

FIRsT· V.ICE PRESIDENT 

CHRISnNE HARKNESS 

SECOND VICE PRESIDENT 

A. TAYlOR ToDD 

SECRETAR'f 

RoBERT M. BRowN, JR. 

TREASURER 

MARGIE CHILDRES 

ASHBY W. COLEMAN 

C. Sn.N: CRoss, JR. 

DoRIS N. ENNIS 

CLARENCE Grws 
RICHARD KuRSHAN 

WlLUAM H. UNOSEV 

DANA MARTIN 

OLIN R. MELCHIONNA, JR. 

DoN MtLLER 

T. CHRISTOPHER MoORE 

WENOV MOORE 

GRETA RIKARD 
BARRY SIMMERMAN 

PHIWP F. SPARKS 

UNOA L STEELE 
ELAINE E. STEPHENSON 

Ao~TETEA 
8AAAV C. WEBB 

HCHORARY l.RTIM& 
MIIIBERS 
SARA S. AIAHEAAT 

NATALIE FoSTER lEMoN 
JoHN A. GEARHART 

Roanoke City 
Board of Zoning 

RE: The Relocation of Hegira House to the Northwest 

To whom it may concern: 

Family Service would like to take this opportunity to express its 
support for the relocation of Hegira House to the northwest area of 
~oanoke. 

For years, Hegira House has performed a valuable service to the 
community. The quality of its program, professionalism of its staff 
and contribution to the Old Southwest neighborhood have been 
recognized since its birth on Second Street. On a national level, its 
treatment program has been acknowledged as one of the most 
effective. Its graduates have become productive and committed 
community leaders. 

In short, we would welcome Hegira House to our area. Indeed, their 
positive, stabilizing influence in the neighborhood would produce 
many benefits for residents and businesses alike. 

_FalL~~ 
c::::=t~ Pendarvis 

Executive Director 
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LEE HARTMAN 6 SONS, INC. 
WHOWI&J.E DIS11UBUTOR 

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS- AUDIOVISUAL- SOUND- VIDEO 

P.O.BOX 1H6S ROANOKE. VIRGINIA 24033 32 )6 COVE ROAD, N. W. 

--------·]1[ .... ____ _ 
April 8, 1991 

City of Roanoke 
Board of Zoning 
Roanoke, VA 

Re: Hegira House ~equest for Zoning Approval for NW Roanoke 

Dear Members of the Board: 
As a business operating at 3236 Cove Rd. NW, we would be pleased to 
have Hegira House move into our neighborhood. 
We feel that they are taking very. positive action in helping our 
young people with drug and alcohol problems. 
We urge that you approve their request. 

Respectfully, 

Lee c. Hartman, 
Vice President 
CFD 
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AIRPORT EXXON 
2825 HERSHBERGER RD. N.W. 

ROANOKE. VIRGINIA 2 4017 

~~ f\~om~) 
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ROBERT 1.. -&081
' VAH DYKE 

· OWNER 
PHONE (7031 366-4986 
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Interstate Motors 
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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

Roanoke, Virginia 
April 9, 1991 

The Board of Zoning Appeals met in regular session on 
Tuesday, April 9, 1991, in the Council Chamber, Municipal 
Building, and conducted a public hearing on the request of 
Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 

PRESENT: L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, T. E. Roberts, 
Walter Wheaton, Richard Rife, Bob Copty. 

ABSENT: None 

CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Ronald H. Miller, Zoning Admn. 
Steve Talev~, Asst. City Attorney 

PREMISES: 1919 Andrews Road, N. W. 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by the 
Chairman, who presided. 

SUBJECT: 

The request of the applicant for a special exception, as 
provided under Section 36.1-90 (2), Zoning, to permit a 
group home, with variance from Section 36.1-540 to allow 
as many as 24 persons in lieu of eight. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

Henry Altice appeared before the Board in regard to the 
application filed. Mr. Altice explained that the 
applicant proposes to purchase the property in question 
and move the occupants from Hegira House, 1301 Second 
Street, s. w., to this location. 
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Mr. Altice explained that Hegira House has been located 
in its present location for eighteen years and during 
that time they have developed the most structured and 
efficiently operated home for substance abusers in the 
State of Virginia. He assured the Board that the 
residents of the program do not cause any disturbance in 
the community. 

Mr. Oliver Stein appeared and told the Board that he has 
prepared a site plan for the applicant which includes 
the addition of two structures on the subject property. 
One would be used for a multipurpose building and one 
for a dormitory. He explained further that the closest 
building would be 125 feet from a property line and that 
the entrance from Andrews Road is the only entrance into 
the property. 

Dr. Banks, 1823 Syracuse Avenue, N. w., asked when the 
property owners would be allowed to speak since the 
applicants were using so much time, and the Chairman 
assured him that they would be given ample time to 
expre-ss their views. 

Mr. Michael Smith, Progress Rush Realty, discussed 
property values and informed the Board that his 
investigation and research has shown that properties in 
the near vicinity of the present Hegira House have 
actually increased in recent years. He also read letters 
from property owners in the area who support the 
application and confirm that the residents of Hegira 
House have presented no problem to the community. 
Also presented was a letter from Judge Philip Trompeter, 
who is Chairman of the Roanoke Valley Alcohol and Drug 
Abuse Council, stating that the Council had voted to 
officially endorse and support Mental Health Services 
relocation of Hegira House to 1919 Andrews Road. His 
letter stated further that the Council not only 
acknowledges the fine work of the Hegira House Program 
for over 18 years, but it also feels that the move to 
the new facility would provide the citizens of Roanoke 
Valley even more enhanced services for addicted 
individuals. 

Mrs. Doris Banks, 1823 Syracuse Avenue, N. w., then 
presented to the Board a petition consisting of five 
pages of signatures who oppose the requested special 
exception and gave her reasons for such opposition, a 
copy of which is filed with the records of this appeal. 
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Following Mrs. Banks, Mr. W. c. Prunty, 2201 Florida 
Avenue, N. W., Mr. L. H. Hamlar, 1827 Grayson Avenue, 
Mr. Burke, 1529 Grayson Avenue, N. w., spoke in 
opposition to the request, advising the Board that they 
strongly feel that the location of this home in their 
neighborhood would increase the drug problem, especially 
in Kennedy Park. 

Mr. Omar Rabb, 1325 Creston Street, N. w., then 
testified that he went through a program similar to that 
of Hegira House in another locality and that he 
supported the program and the application. 

Mr. Bill Lawrence, Reentry Director for Hegira House and 
a Mental Health employee, spoke in strong support of the 
request, offered further information as to the benefits 
of the program and described the daily activities of·the 
residents, which include therapy, household chores, etc. 

The next speaker was Mary Terry, who stated that she 
lives in the northwest section of the City but not in 
the vicinity of the property in question. She said that 
she is Chairman for the Concerned Citizens of Roanoke 
and asked how many blacks have come through the program 
at Hegira House and inquired as to the percentage of 
relapse. Mr. Altice responded that the majority at this 
time are blacks, that when the prpgram first started 
fewer blacks were referred by the Courts, but that 
situation has changed. He stated that they have had a 
lot of successful blacks and that the percentage is 
about SO/SO. 

Mr. Gary Brown stated that he lives on Ordway Drive but 
that he has had a car dealership at the corner of Cove 
Road and Hershberger Road for four years. He informed 
the. Board that he has actually seen drugs sold in the 
area, that Hegira House has a controlled program which 
he believes is needed in that section of the City and 
that he wholeheartedly supports the request. 

Mr. Hugh Ennis, a u. s. Probation Officer, then spoke·, 
advising the Board that he believed the location of the 
home in this area would increase the drug problem. 
Mr. Copty asked Mr. Ennis where he would suggest that 
these homes be located. Mr. Ennis replied that the 
large tract in question could be used for approximately 
200 homes and that he would suggest that homes of this 
type be located in the County. 
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Mr. Daniel Woolridge, the owner of the property in 
question, approached the Board and advised that he was 
speaking only to bring information as to the property 
itself. He advised that the driveway into the property 
is .4 of a mile, that there is a gate at the rear of the 
house, no road at that point, and that the postal 
service will not deliver mail to the house because it is 
too isolated. He stated that he put the property on the 
market about nine months ago and that this is the first 
offer he has had. 

Mr. Tyrone Charlton, 3419 Pittsfield Avenue, N. w., then 
spoke, saying that he knows there is a drug problem· in 
the northwest section which has to be addressed and that 
he knows that treatment must be offered for the 
sickness. He stated further that he knows that everyone 
who is treated is not helped, but that he feels it is 
"our" responsibility to weigh the situation. 

Mr. Wheaton then advised those in the audience that 
several references had been made to rezoning and he 
wished to make it clear that this Board has no authority 
to rezone property, only to grant a special exception 
for a particular use. Second, he observed that it 
appeared that there has not been much communication 
between the citizens of the area and the applicant. He 
suggested that it might be wise to defer action on this 
request until ample opportunity is given for meetings to 
attempt to arrive at a solution. Mr. Burke advised the 
Board that there has been no offer from the applicants 
to meet with the citizens. 

THE MOTION: 

A motion was made by Mr. Wheaton and seconded by Mr. 
Roberts that a committee from the community sit down 
with Hegira House and talk about the issue and come back 
to the Board in June, at which time a decision on the 
request could be made. 

THE VOTE: 

AYES: Messrs. Rife, Roberts, Norris, Wheaton, Copty. 

NAYS: None 

The Chairman thereupon declared the motion carried, and 
it was accordingly ordered that the request be continued 
until the regular meeting of the Board in June. 

A ::::-. -~ . -
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. THIS CONTRACT, made this 27th day..of December ,19 _!Q_, between 
... Daniel S. & Betty M. Wooldridge ·hereinafter referred to u SELLER; and 

Roanoke ilfental Hygiene Service, Inc. hereinafter referred to aa PURCHASER; 

and PROGRESS-RUSH CO., hereinafter referred to as AGENT: .; ·~ · · • ·-- · ·· · · · ........ . 
WITNESSETHz THAT FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of T)p hmdred twenty seyen .: ... 

thousand five hundred and 00/100-----($ 227 ,500~ 09oollara,paidandtobepaidaafollowe, 

to wit: s 2,5'0A PO · · . caablcheclclnote in hand on signing of thia contract, paid by the PURCHASER to 
PROGRESS.. RUSH CO., AGENT, to be held in escrow until finalsettlement,.the reeeipt of which ie hereby acknowledged. 
This contract is made subject to the PURCHASER obtainins/81DiiJCixgdlH:II:~ttt Fin ancin 9) bam in 

ih~ prl~cipal ~m~u~i· of s : ~27 ,s 00'/00. ·~=~ .... ;,.: ~'····.· ~-· .... :.~ala~ce.of ·~~·~ . . :z;~~·oao·~qn .to be paid as 
followsondeliveryofdeed •• ·. :,, .... ,·.&:· ·,·~·.:· :··•·~ •.• ~ ..... ;,_~ ...... !··, .. ~ · .•.. ·:·~ •.... , .ot:·· 

cash at Settlement. ; ., ... ; ~~: ::··· :;~ , .. , .... , ·.: :u .. :~' · • .· •• :•· · '· ·· .. · .... ·'• 

Seller to make tax deductible contribution of all major lam and garden 
·• · :·equipment, except~g one red ridinq· nower. · ... ;. . .. .... , 
PURCHASER agRes to buy and SELLER agrees to sell that certain Jot or parcel of land with all appurtenances thereunto 
belonging, situated-in the City/C::mmc,cof. Roanoke • Virsi~ia, and described as .follows, to wit; 
Lot Block Map of Sec. . 

Addreaa: 
1919 Andrews Road NW 
Roanoke, VA 24017 

Consisting of Dwellinq, outbuildings on 
appx. 13:36 acres. Tax Map i' s 2350101,2350102 

Complete legal description to be furnished in the deed. 2350103· ' 2350106 

SELLER agreea to convey said propeny DY deed with General Warranty and Modem Enslish Covenants ofTitle, said deed 
to be prepared at SELLER'S expense, and SELLER agrees to pay SELLER'S Deed Tax. Otherdosingcostaor prepaid items to 
be paid as follows: Buyer and Seller to pay own norlf.al closing costs 

PURCHASER agrees to make every effort to secure any loan to which this contract is made subject and to accept said loan 
when it is approved. 

Included with the sale of the above real estate (if any in said property ataigning ofthia contract unless otherwise stated) are 
the shades. venetian blinds. curtain and drapery rods, screens and screen doors, storm windows and doors, light fixtures, wall 
to wall carpeting, garbage disposal, dishwasher, laundry trays. awninp, electrical wiring connections for appliances, and all 
other items attached to the real estate and being a part thereof, including all shrubbery and plantins on the premises. 
Other property to pasa: 2 refrigerators, range/oven ,window a/c' s, fireplace screen, 

carpet±nq and drapes 
The risk of loss or damage to or destruction of any structure on the premises BY ANY MEANS until the deed of conveyance is 

delivered is assumed by the SELLER. 
It is understood that the property is to be free and clear of all liens and indebtedness of every kind except the liens mentioned 

herein. · · · 
At settlement. SELLER is to fumiah a certificate t'rom a recogrrlzed termite exterminator showins subject house and 

property to be frM of termites, and other woad deatroying insect infestation. Should infestation be present, same ie to be 
corrected at SEIJ.ER'S expense. 

Posaeaaion to be given PURCHASER on Settlement . 
All rents. interest. ~!f:pmii2P•· and fuel oil (if any) are to be pro-rated u of settlement and settlement is to be 

made on or before a 54 ~ ..11.._, or as soon thereafter u the title can be examined and all neceuary 
papers prepared. allowing a reasonable time for the correction of any defects reported by the title examiner. 

SELLER warrants that at the time of settlement (or occupancy, whichever occurs first) all appliances, utilities and 
equipment, including heatins, central air conditioning, electrical and plumbintr systeme, are in good workins order. 

Should either party hereto default in the performance of hia part of this contract. the party so defaultins asreea to pay 
AGENT, the full commisaion stated in thi• contract. 

Should the PURCHASER be the defaulting party, AGENT shall have the risht to apply ail monies held in escrow toward the 
costa incurred by reason or this contract and toward the AGENT'S commission due under this contract. 

SELLER and PURCHASER agree that AGENT wae only procurins cause for this contract. 
SELLER agreea to pay to AGENT. lor its services a commission on the sale price of the property at the followinr rate: 

6% . . Both partiu to this contract agree that the amount of the commission provided for in the 
can~ct ie ~reasonable fee based on theeffortaofPROGRESS..RUSH CO., and its AGENTS. contractors and employees in 
secunntr thil agreement. · 

• THISSALEISSUBJECTTOTHEFOLLOWING: 1. MBS/RV Boam approval 2. Zoninq and use 
permit obtainable 3. Ability to. vacate curmnt rental lease 4. Ability to 
procum needed financial resources · . ~ . · · 

Approval of Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Inc. A Copy. T~:::_: ..... ~~!~ (=?~ 
Patti'"'· H •..•.. _., ... ..: ... ::. r 

The SELLER and PURCHASER hereby bind themselves, their heirs, succesaoraf\lif~ &:eculi;riiand/~r·~dmi~iS&ratl.re 
for the faithful performance of the ContracL 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said partiea to thia contract hereunto have set their banda and seale thed 
written: or , NC. 
CMalJ -------.,.~~~--------SELLER 
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FHA Claa~ I& l1 expnaiJ aaned that. aotWi&ha&andiDI any odler provltiaae of thla eontr1d, the Purchaser •hall not bt oblh&a&ed to 
e~nnplete the parchaH olth• pmpaty described hetebl ur to lncar any penally by fortelture or eamest mon~J depoaita or otherwiH unleo the 
Seller hu delivered to the Pan!huer a wriUenlte&ementiaauld by the Federal HouinaCommiAioneueUinilorththe appralaecl value nfthe 
property (exeladinl elOiinl coa&l) of not leu than t , which 1&a&emen& the Seller. hereby aarreet to 
delivertothePun:haHrpromp&lyafterncbappraiatclvalue•tatemntiamadeavailabletotheaellft'. Theparch&Arahall.however.have&he 
privilepand option ofpn!Cetdin1 with &htconamnmadon ofthtcontracl wl&hoal reprd to the amoan&oftheapprailed valuation made by tbe 
Federal Hoalinl Commlulon•. Tht appraiaecl'valuatkm II anivcd u to c:le&maine the awdmam modplt &he Deputma& ofHouaintand 
Urban Denlopment will laaun. HUD doa no& wunmt the value or tbe colldltl011 of Uw property. The parchuer •ho~alcl taUtly 
~mtlf tlW the priat ad the condiUon ol the cnoPiri7 an acceptable. · 
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• ··~. • .. - (SBAL) . '-'' "-'------··-·-· .. ·_·_ .. __ ·· .. · .. :· .. ' .. '~'~_~_a_ .. _. -· • ____ ._.·_·_~· .. :_(SEAL) 

Seller . =•':,. - ·~ ....,_ •••• , ••.• , '!,. .... : :·.• ··•·tai --·---·:._._ .. ~ ... - .... :...:_ .. :.~ ... 
:~.:._·._· .. : ___ . , .:· ••. l_ .•• _ .. _·.. ·.:._; __ : .... : : •• : \' ·' --~ •• : •. .::..··· .• ·-··. ' .. ••• .. .• J.J.:· .. '.:::-.-··1!• '·.~ .:: · .. l, ... ·,~l (~·i!f•l:'···~·~.l ·-·-···....--- ... ~. .. 

--------------------<BEAU :~r.u~~ ···· ·.,~. · (SEAL). 
~~~.-:: .':::.~.:. ".";7,·;_,.;.J~ . .-.:~.:..:.-u_;;;!:, f£L:• __ "tv M'4•.: d; t.; ttl.~ ::~:1tL<.; .l \i I'.Jd!C•;t ·::.;·1 r ::r;~.;~-:;:·!·. -· ,:;.• 
·!'"''f·:··,: ~~ ·.:. •, ~~ rs.! t fiH b! ..• , .~~r:;c.t:·i~. ~:~.~~~5 · .:.:.~•:·::.:=:~ · ···~~-~.-!:::~ .. -:.-._~~~~~~.r':i~!.....::~:.:-~ •. -~~~~:.;·.: ··• .. ; 
VA Cl~ I& te apriul, apeed that. notwithltaDdln• an; oth• ~10lthla CcmtnaotSal" Parch ... abaU ao& beobU.a&ecl to 
compla &ba ~ of tbt P1'01Mifty unlea Pan:b ... II able to obtain a Vet.trau Admialatn&loa paran&elcl lou of no& leu &han 
$ · · · ·,: ·• If Pan:huer la unable to obtain ncb loaa. tiM cub depo~it, Ita u' npenM Incurred Cor 
apprailal. photopaph ol the propaty, and eredii nport.. •hall be ntumocl to Panhuer. ao ..... Parcbutr •hall ban the priwtlep and 
option of proceedins witb the consummation of this Contract ol Purcbuc without rcprd to tbe obtalalna of anr Vetcraaa Administration 
auaranceed loan. The seller shall pay aU discount points. inspection fees. fillllnciftlltaUmtl\l mordiaa rea. document preparation ren and 
photograph fees required by the lender to enable the purchuer to obtain his loan. • w • .. • .. - • - • • 

., .. .• i·.i ... , iU.t:t::-~ •••.• '4:J ':.J ........ .., . ...... . J .• 1 
---------------(BEAU. ------------~------------~E~ SeUer 

......... -----··-·_;_._....;·;_·..;·,~---· -···;.......;.._...;~·;...;' ·-·~:''<SEAU ···~'·' .. 
Seller 

---·-·_r_·._.-__ ._._._,_:_·_:_·._·_~_:_._; _._·~_:_. _____ :_:._·._~_• (SEAij 

!." '• 
:. . ... • .;,.1~ I :~:, ! ... :.: . 

·' i.: ·- ~: .:. zu!J 

Purchuer · · . · • -..·:·~·- .: .1 ,., •:,. ,.:•• .:ue: • .,j 

:. ·' ~ .. 
. · . .; .. . ., . , .... -..•. 

........ · .. :~::. ·• ....... · •. :.•··o:.) ••• .:::· • l a.·r: i .. ,,.·. !Ita&.. - l••f•t"t•. •: • ; ·~ .·.• :!.·· .• , ·•&) •••• · ': .. ~••'1" ~.;&It .·:s·~!f·l·.t ·.t.t -.,_-,,::~ ii::! · .. :.;~ 
-:. · .: ~~- ·;q ;· .. ·.. .... :;....-.• · . .~.;s,:;,:;·,~·:: ,. '., t •• ! •· .. i·.t. -:.: i~: :.:J. ::~~=-: ,_.,_, ·tJ .... '21'"·•. · ,:· ... &. • ; ;J ': ''' ·~.-,n~tth~• ; ... · :1:.1 •. : ... :~ ~ : · u·•~n•l·!''' ~;.~ ut 

·-·· ___ ••. __ . ·.: :}.!.:::.,·.-· ::- ... ~ .. • ~:..:.~ . .. ·-::.:: ..... ·~ •. ':..:~:c.· _·.-o.!.· ·._: ..... ~=" ·:-~-: _ :z_~_-:..:..~ .~. _ ..... ,.,:.ar ··a. ·\'•' .tri 
··i·~1·=:·: ._: ·.'" ·:dt.:~~,: . ..•. ~.: .'• .. uJ --~.&!' u .. t·-·. ··-·· ·.::·~· .. ·:·~·'i· .. •· • ··~l·J·.·· "···•·•.,::r::,.·:·.·'"'"= . . ; ,.,lkl-:;.t;ll"• : .. ~! 

/ ..... ,, ·: ; ; ~ ,. ' ..... , 
·-·~ ·. •. ·· !tr::• :•t .. •.i .:·•·.:.·;··.:·;·· ••••• :;t··.·.a~·.::~~ -.,, .· ·!.iid.·. :.;.tl ·;':HJ:rl·\1-· "'•it&••rfr;~'">:~., ·~ ······f, .• i-..:~ 1 -1 
· ·~· ·~.~:~;\: •. ":'":. ·:· .· · •·:i '·:·,,.,_,:·_ .. 1.······.~,-.: ·~~·~· ·.· '1;· U•tt r•:.;~·:···• •"! : '·:·;tl' ~::·· :i:.rttJ!6.:·hr.i • d ··.·1~'' •. ·•····· •·,:iJ 
;·_ ~ :·: .~:.,te:.:-~; .. · ·. ~ ui:J.\.~,:·'' : ·i:oe· .; ...... .,! ~~•li~lt: ···~u-..-·::· ·.r.•f )~!i:!:': vat··:l:.(,,., ;~;;,.,.~•··•-:~~·.,;.:~Jt·~· •. 1 ···•·. 1 ,, 

-:.t.ll"f'-1 .•. :;··· ;.~ .. 1:.•'1 •,• •. ~ ••. ·• ·.=~:'!:, .: ·::;:nw~··, .•.....• ·· •t .,.,,,i ,,, ... ,.: ~ ,.,,, "i·(···· , .. •:•· ... , 
. ~L~~-~ .. h ·;.£. _ ~:::-~. :.:. -.. :~~·~::• !.: ... .::!:: ;,_:;l·~: :.l~_! ~· .. :::i~i~-x ~~·~i_:·=-.. ··L-· ..... :.~: .';; .. :·~. ·:.~;~'!' .. ' ~:·,:·; 

.-l~··i • ...-· .• .:. .;,;.'Z, :. J· • .t=.::· 
:r.'t;;~::,::;:;;;.~:~;-~;~ -. ~.-,~-;.;;··~-;~-;~~~:;.·~.-.:-:;:!;:;.-~·~~·; -;:,:,·,;:.~;,~.~;. .,:;;l;;~.T~·.;~'f!•:•• .• ;;;;;- -:·. :-i~:~-~~-~;:· !. 

'•: ·,J.i.-: •art: :.~1 .. !•:·:.•• 1i ;_,., ,.,!.··!) 
.,, .... ! -~~·:,...~;, .,,, .• :.: ~--'"•-:·: .... : •'· ···•;,brn;,.~ ·! 

. ·.:: .· .. .:·; .. ! :~.;~-!..:~ •·=······a.it ;• .......... , .. , ...... -:~-, ... :,! .. , ·\ ........ •\ , .... ·~ 
; . •. ..! .. 4 ~ .. !&:.... .. ·: :! _ .. ~ ·~c.·.J..;. ~,;.-! ...... :~ •. r.:..~d· :u•. :.a:: . ~~· • • • . 'l I (J'l . .'l 

·. ~ .. ·· 
J\.- .• .. ~ .. · 

.. : ~ 

.. :. ,; ... : ......... •":: '······· ·: ... : 
• ••• • •1 ........ ·~· ~ . -; .... . .. -~ ~·· 

.... , ..... : • ··--·'"'W'«. ,. ..; .. · .. · .. :·: .. · ··i ·· ...... . •l .. 
. ·. : .·:..·· .· 

I ... :;,;\l.,t"; 
• e.., r .•. ,,. ·•.:;.. '~... •. 

••• c:oJ! t ••. ·:: •• ·, .. . . . ;i" • "!J1f" I ::•• . 
::···· .... · .. , ... · .. ; . ·~ ... ~:~.:··:"'•·~ . ... • .... . ~ .. i .. f. : •1.&. 

.·• . : · ... 
:., ' .. ,;, 

. j 

....... , .... : \. '.' • •• • .~ .. t • ' .... ··· 
.: .,., . , ·;.· .. 

. · ... 
• ::~ .. ·.;: ; • t • • 

.:-;~ .. · ,~ .. ---··· - .:, .. ' 60 
.. ·\..~ ··-··· .... ::.·.· ·. ·• 

·' ....... 

.. r. 
: . ~ . 

I. 

r,"\ :!i 

. •. .. ~·•.•: ,.., :A 
•• • . • .. :•J•"t'!fl 

.:. ... ~·· ••.• f .... 

' ..... 
: ; . :. , .• ·.~of.' • 

., ~ ~ •• , •• . • ..1 • ; 1 

:~·:· . : ., : .. . , .; :. 

. -· 

. . ~-- ... 

'• . . . .· ... 



APPEAL NO. 

APPLICANT: 

PREMISES: 

PRESIDING: 

Chairman: 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

32-91-A 

Roanoke, Virginia 
June 4, 1991 

Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 

1919 Andrews Road, Northwest 

L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, T .E. Roberts, Walter Wheaton, 
Bob Copty 

Alright, the next request is that of, no its continued from April 9th of 
Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Incorporated for special exception to 
permit a group home at 1919 Andrews Road with a variance to permit as 
many as 24 persons in lieu of 8. Henry Altice, alright anyone that is going 
to speak for or against, you are to stand up and raise your right hand. 
Not to many. Everybody except The Roanoke Times &: World News showed 
up to say a word. Do you all agree to tell the solemnly swear to tell the 
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God? 

Persons 
From 
Audience: 

We do. 

Chairman: 
Alright, if you all will be seated then and l~t this gentlemen start. 

Mr. Altice: 
Thank you, first of all I want to read an amendment we would like to make 
to our Motion. First we would like to establish a Community Advisory 
Board to serve the purpose of receiving any complaints in resolving any 
difficulties resulting from the presidents of the program in this area and 
take any requests from the neighborhoods, any of the programs for 
assistance and drug-alcohol abuse prevention in the neighborhood. And 
second, we would like to erect a fence on the perimeter of the property in 
which now a gate exists. 

Chairman: 
Whats the second one now? 

Mr. Altice: 
To erect a fence in the perimeter of the property where a gate now 
currently exists. 

Secretary: 
Can I have a copy of that amendment 
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Mr. Roberts: 
Have you talked to the neighbors about these 

Mr. Altice: 
These are concerns that has been 

Mr. Roberts : 
Are they familiar with before this with what you 

Mr. Altice: 
We've talked about them in their community meetings, yes. 

Mr. Roberts : 
Their familiar with that then. 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes , Yes to some degree, yes . 

Mr. Wheaton: 
When you say a fence on the adjacent side, 

Mr. Altice: 
Uh huh 

Mr. Wheaton: 
That means wherever a property is adjacent to the property in question 

Mr. Altice: 
Uh huh, yes 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Now that property I understand goes all th~ way down uh to the interstate 

Mr. Altice: 
It goes down to the bottom of the hill where the creek is, not the interstate 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Yeah, down there 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes Sir 

Mr. Wheaton: 
That would be on the facing it would be on the right on the left side 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes 

Chairman: 
He's got a plat 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Yeah, I want to see where the fence is going to be 
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Mr. Altice: 
We're proposing putting a fence up in this area here where these houses 
are 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Oh okay 

Mr. Altice: 
Not up, this is just woods if you take a look at this aerial photograph you '11 
see that where the red marks are cornerstones of the property. Putting a 
fence along here where these houses are because this area here is 13 acres 
of land this thats still unoccupied and there is a fence already along here at 
the present and this is unoccupied property through here 

Mr. Copty: 
What kind of fence? 

Mr. Altice: 
That would be something that we would talk to the neighborhood community 
about and work with some agreement with them would be our proposal 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Another question, uh, what is the objective for the fence? 

Mr. Altice: 
Uh it is to deal with issues around security and people moving back and 
forth 

Mr. Wheaton: 
People meaning who? 

Mr. Altice: . 
It would mean people from the community wandering into this property, 
people from our property possibly wandering out. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Wandering out, okay. 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes Sir. Apparently we've been told that people to go through this 
property going to various places and this would have some deterrent on 
this as well 

Chairman: 
I think some kids probably cross there to go over to the mall 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes, thats what I've been told 

Chairman: 
Very dangerous on the highway, really ought to be stopped somehow. 

Mr. Altice: 
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Yeah in the course of my investigation I was told that, it was asked, that 
there's a gate right here to put a fence and right there is one of the 
neighbors 

Mr. Wheaton: 
There's a gate there now isn't it? 

Mr. Altice: 
Well, its a gate 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Something 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes Sir. Its sort of grown up with bushes and its not very functional. 

Chairman: 
Well I think that the fellow who lives there left a gate for children to use 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes he did 

Chairman: 
Whether thats a good idea or not 

Mr. Altice: 
He was one· of the ones who told me about the traffic that went through 
there and built a barbed wire fence up there and he left a place where they 
could go back and forth 

Mr. Roberts: 
Do you propose to use the whole thirteen acres. 

Mr. Altice: 
Well, we're going to use the thirteen acres in terms of people being able to 
walk the property as a meditation or have athletic events and that sort of 
thing, but not in terms of building 

Mr. Roberts: 
You've developed that into a use concern with your patients 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes, we're going to use that just for that purpose. We're going to build 
two buildings as we proposed last time, but nothing other than that. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Altice: 
Also, in minutes from the last meeting it was the motion was made and 
seconded that ~ committee from the community sit down and talk with Hegira 
House and talk about this issue and come back to the Board in June at what 
time a decision for the request would be made. Uh, to my knowledge, uh, 
this group was never appointed definitely. Nobody every initiated any 
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con tact with us in terms of meeting with us. On the other hand, we did do 
the following. We had an open house at Hegira House and also offered 
individual meetings for anybody in the community that wanted to come. We 
sent a letter of this to each person who signed the petition as well as 
sending 200 flyers in the immediate community for that purpose. Also, we 
discussed with individuals and various community groups our concerns 
during this time. We also planned three community meetings to be held at 
three different churches in close proximity to this proposed facility and 
announcements were made at all the local churches and sent to community 
groups. The first meeting was held at the Garden of Prayer No. 7, May 27 
and about eight people attended. The second meeting was held at High 
Street Baptist Church on May 30, and approximately 40 people attended. 
The third meeting was held this past Sunday at Pilgrim Baptist and about 
25 - 30 people, and these three churches pretty much surrounded the 
property. At that time there were a great deal of discussion about what the 
program is about and and what are intentions are and what we do as well as 
a voicing of some concerns that the community has. I want to, well we 
kept records of these concerns and the most common ones are property 
value, program security and client freedom, threats to children of school 
age that will be moving through the park, bringing more drugs into the 
community, the lack of initial community involvement and why this 
neighborhood. I want to take just a couple of moments and respond to 
these if I could. First, in terms of property value, as we presented last 
time, Mental Health Services is as concerned about property value as 
anyone else and the history has been throughout uh since we've been 
operating in this city that are property value does not harm the property 
value of the community but actually enhances the community and we 
maintain our property in excellent condition. This is not only by our own 
concerns about the fact that we value what we own and respect what we 
own, we feel like that by owning and maintaining the property in the 
excellent manner helps in the rehabilitation of the people that we serve and 
also we have very stringent requirements qn various state and local 
ordinances and regulatory boards that we must respond to. We also talked 
to the National Institute of Drug Abuse about this concern because it is a 
concern that they deal with all the time throughout the United States and 
they gave us some material that we distributed at the community meeting as 
well as having a video that they provided so that the people could 
understand a little more about what we were doing and what we were doing 
and the issue of property value for them is that they say that usually the 
property goes the way its going to go, the programs doesn't really have 
any impact on it one way or the other and thats nationwide. The program 
security and client freedom, we talked about that some last time that we 
were here and I can reiterate very quickly that our program because of its 
license regulations is very closely monitored, our clients do not have 
freedom to go where they want. If they do that they are in violation of the 
uh uh there probation and major program rules that could result in them 
being violated by the courts, they do not have that freedom to do so. The 
only clients that we have that have the freedom to pretty much go and come 
as they please are the clients that are housed on First Street here in 
Southwest and they are our after care clients, but none of those clients will 
be housed at Andrews Road. When they reached that level of the program 
they would move over into Southwest in that facility. Uh, we also have 
twenty-four hour a day coverage, the staff, there's somebody always on 
duty there, there's always somebody awake and answers th~d who 
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will do bedruns and dorm checks on the hour uh so that any kind of 
movement would be detected. We do not, we do a lot of work in terms of the 
next concern about threats to the children of the community. Our clients 
are highly educated in dealing with substance abuse and substance abuse 
addiction. Thats part of their treatment process that they go through and 
many of them are mandated to do community service time and one of the 
services that we provide not only in the Northwest community, but other 
parts of the city, is talking to school children, talking to schools, being a 
part of community activities that the city puts on or local churches or 
interests groups. We feel like we have a message to give and we need to be 
a part of that and give back to the community. ·There has never been an 
incident in the history of our program that one of our clients has gone out 
and threatened or bothered or tried to involve a child into any kind of 
illegal activity. In terms of bringing more drugs into the community, I 
understand, I can understand all of these concerns, and I can understand 
this concern to and I think one of the issues that stands.out to me is that 
people that are in Hegira House are like people that are in a hospital, they 
are like people that are in treatment for disease. Substance abuse 
addiction is a disease and they are in treatment. The people who are using 
drugs and going through the process of getting money to procure drugs 
are the ones that are doing criminal activities. These are the people that 
are not dealing with their disease. Those people are not at Hegira House. 
We do not have people that are actively using drugs at Hegira House, we do 
not have people that are involved in crimes in the community at Hegira 
House. That is not what happens in a treatment program. That happens 
when their on the street and and robbing and stealing to get what drugs 
they need. Also, we have a very tight system in terms of detecting 
whether or not they are using drugs and alcohol. We have, we do 
unannounced urinalysis tests at least weekly on every client when they 
come and come back from being on time out or being out on an outing, we do 
these as well so that we can determine what these people have been using. 
Also, if they have been, this could ultimat~ly result in them being returned 
to the Court. Uh, we believe that the lack of initial community 
involvement, we believe that that was an initial mistake on our part, uh, 
one of the reasons why we want to amend our petition is that we felt like we 
should involve the community more into what Hegira House does and to deal 
with the problems that may arise from us being or concerns that arise from 
us being in the community and we would like to work with them to resolve 
those concerns. Why this community, uh, there are several reasons. In 
the past there have been requests made to Mental Health Services to put a 
drug program and other services in the Northwest Community, uh and that 
one reason why I think that this is feasible. Uh another primary reason 
and probably the most primary reason is that this facility, uh, in terms of 
the type facility, the location uh, the security purposes better fits our 
needs than anything that we've seen and we've looked and looked. Uh 
since we've talked we've had real estate agents look and see if there is 
anything comparable to this and to his knowledge there is nothing 
anywhere and in my years of being around this definitely seems to be uh 
unique property. Uh so, we, you know, we have addressed and listened to 
these concerns, we feel like we've made contact with a lot of people, I know 
there are a lot of people here who feel like we would be a negative in their 
community and I understand that uh, I feel Uke that there are a lot of 
people here who are somehow swayed in one way or the other and I think 
there are some that support us. I believe that if we are allowed to be in 
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this community a year or two from now that we will be seen in a different 
light. That we will be seen as not a threat to the community but rather 
someone thats helping deal with some of the problems that exist not only in 
the Northwest community but in the community at large. I know I was 
reading uh uh uh a memorandum that went out uh from the concerned 
citizens of a Roanoke community group talking about and using their words 
"the purpose of our meeting is to plan a focus on how we can provide 
positive activities for the youth and young adults in our community in 
order to divert them from the many crimes, drugs and illegal activities that 
are plaguing are neighborhood. We must reclaim our community's children 
and clean up our neighborhood of these many problems. We must come 
together in a black community and address these concerns." And some of 
their goals is to hold community meetings, discuss concerns of the 
community residents and business representatives, to identify resource 
facilities and existing programs in our community. So I think that its real 
clear that there is some need for support and there's some need for 
programs to address some of these issues in that city and particularly in 
the Northwest area. Uh, also I want to give you some copies of uh the 
material that we sent out, uh, this is also about where the location is and 
also a copy of the flyer thats being distributed throughout the community 
opposing Hegira House and while I take major concern with all six of these 
points and and and question their validity, I would like to point to number 
three that a facility in a neighborhood has been rejected in South Roanoke 
and far Northwest. Hegira House or Mental Health program has not been 
rejected in these areas and I have no idea where that came from and uh, I 
also think its quite interesting that a major focus uh in the last few years 

·has been to say no to drugs and and that phrase has b.een uh distorted to 
say no its to say no to Hegira House which is in fact one of the premier 
drug programs in the Commonwealth of Virginia. So I thank you for your 
time I know there's some other people who want to say a few words, but we 
certainly hope you will give us the opportunity to relocate our program in 
this community. 

Mr. Roberts: 
You certainly made a good presentation and I would like to ask you a couple 
of questions. How are your clients referred to you? 

Mr. Altice: 
Our clients come from, they come from the courts, they'll come from the 
department of corrections, they'll come from other programs and some of 
them will come from off the streets themselves who just need treatment. 
Primarily they come from the courts. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I was going to ask you what point in treatment that you receive these, but 
you receive them right from the first day in some cases 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes, but we take no one who is actively addicted. If we get someone who is 
being referred to our program that is actively addicted to drugs, then they 
go to our detox center on Shenandoah A venue before they come into the 
program. And thats what I was saying earlier, that these people are not 
participating in crime when they are in the program and they are not using 
drugs; they are going through a treatment process. \"1-
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Mr. Roberts: . 
Now you made this presentation to a number of groups of people, probably 
a lot of these are included, what was the reaction, can you tell us anything 
about the reaction to your presentation at some of these churches and other 

Mr. Altice: 
I felt like the primary, at least the majority of reaction is of people who are 
concerned about these issues that· I raised and the value of their property 
and they seem to be primarily concerned with the value of the property and 
very little I can say would change that. I see that a lot of other people, 
uh, on the other hand, there are people that are concerned about the 
problem of drugs in the community in dealing with that problem and also 
saw Hegira House in a different light once it was explained it was not a 
prison and it is not going to bring a lot more crime into the community and 
there were some people that were supportive of our program and and and 
spoke at these meetings. I felt like the first meeting at the Garden of 
Prayer No. 7 uh, we were not very popular. I feel like the meeting in High 
Street uh, we were still not very popular, but there were some people in 
our support, that was the meeting that this flyer was passed out, the 
meeting that was at Pilgrim last Sunday, in my opinion, if there was a vote 
that was taken at the presentation we would probably have been even or we 
would have won the vote. So thats that my opinion. 

Mr. Roberts: 
One of the main things we have to consider here is the compatibility with 
the neighborhood. 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes sir. 

Mr. Roberts: 
And of course now, the neighborhood in Southwest is a little different. Its 
part business and part residential. Up here its all residential. There's a 
little difference there, but the compatibility, I think thats the thing we 
have to consider. Thank you. 

Mr. Copty: 
We need an amendment to your 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Henry, I have another question. You stated in our dialogue concerning 
restrictions. I want to know whats the ratio of tenant to staff or staff to 
tenant, whats the ratio. 

Mr. Altice: 
About 2! to 1. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
And they are the ones who uh provide the restrictions, the staff. 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes, they provide the yes they are the ones who make the restrictive 
decisions. Of course, Hegira House is a therapeutic community and a lot of 
what that means is that the client themselves provide support for each 
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other. They work their way up through the structure. The come in and 
they'll work on a kitchen crew or working in the year and as they continue 
to work their treatment and and become more involved in what their doing, 
dealing with their issues, and showing more responsibility, they are given 
more responsibility in the program, where they'd answer the phones and 
they would head some of these crews. So they have jobs to lose and 
privileges to lose and they have a lot of and we teach that one of the main 
ways that they can stay clean and sober is that they need to be able to 
provide positive peer support. Thats the very thing that they didn't 
have. So you have 2! - 1 staff ratio plus you have a structured hierarchy 
system within the program that support is provided. So it doesn't become 
you and they, it becomes more our problem, a community problem within 
the community. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Of course we're concerned first of all with the granting of the permission to 
have the house and then of course you've also requested permission to 
expand it from eight members to twenty-four. 

Mr. Altice: 
No we are not expanding, thats the current number that we have now. We 
would not be expanding, we would just be moving the same facility. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
You would be expanding it from the number allowed. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I didn't realize ya'll were going to keep your present location. 

Mr Altice: 
No, we don't not for Hegira House, I don't have any idea, we're going to 
keep the apartment, the 12 unit apartment building thats on First Street. 
Thats the one we'll keep. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Oh okay. I see. 

Mr. Altice: 
And that will be where the ones that will be living in the community, going 
to work, going to school. Although there is staff supervision there, its not 
near as intense as in the other facility. 

Mr. Copty: 
And right now, this very program is being run out of Old Southwest. 

Mr. Altice: 
That's correct, it has been since March 3, 1973, and at that time it was a 
residential neighbo.rhood when we first moved in there. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Would you give me or the Board some highlights as to the problems that 
have been encountered in Southwest, or have there been any? 

Mr. Altice: 
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Yes there were problems when we initially moved there and I think a lot of 
the problems were similar to what we are dealing with now and that is the 
lack of understanding as to what the program is and there is a lot of 
articles written in the paper and we were called dregs and that seemed to 
be the common statement for several years, uh, there were other programs 
that wasn't successful, not the same type program, and at times we were 
put in that group, but we was able to address that effectively. I think one 
of the ways that was done is because the community itself saw the 
differences in the programs and the the differences in the people and were 
able to speak to that concern. Uh, thats been our primary concern. The 
fact that we've had a program on that corner which is so close to the 
streets, its been miraculous that we've been able to adjust the way we 
have. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
You've been there about thirteen years, is that right? 

Mr. Altice: 
I've been there since 1974. 

Mr. Copty: 
The numbers, of the numbers for your program only, this program thats 
being moved to this location, the numbers of occurrences of police calls, 
problems with the law, uh, direct complaints with neighbors, are there 

Mr. Altice: 
I don't, I remember one time probably ten years ago we had a small band 
come there and the neighbors complained and we had to stop it, we do at 
times have to have parole officers and police officers come to the property, 
but in terms of having major scenes on the streets, thats never been an 
issue. Uh, nothing, I mean its nothing extraordinary. I mean when your 
dealing with the criminal justice system and the criminal population who has 
been involved and parole officers and police officers then there is going to 
have to be some interface, but nothing extraordinary and nobody in the 
community has suffered from that. 

Mr. Roberts: 
But how often would the police officers, police cars being seen going into 
this place, how often. 

Mr. Altice: 
Maybe once every two weeks. 

Mr. Roberts: 
That seldom? 

Mr. Altice: 
Uh huh. There are other programs in that community that deal with this 
issue a lot more than we do. Uh, but thats not something that happens 
very often. Sometimes you might have a Department of Corrections car or 
something bring someone to the program or a parole officer might come in a 
state car, but they look pretty much like a regular vehicle. In terms of the 
Roanoke police force coming, I'd say once every two weeks. 
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Mr. Roberts : 
You wouldn't have a steady stream of police cars going in at one time. 

Mr. Altice: 
Oh no, no no. That just doesn't happen. 

Chairman: 
Alright, did you have any one else 

Mr. Altice: 
There are some others that are going to speak, I would just let people 
speak at·random 

Chairman: 
Ordinarily we would let you all go on and do all of your speaking and we'd 
let some of these others folks, whichever 

Mr. Altice: 
That, that would be, lets lets let the process fall as it may. 

Chairman: 
Alright then if you'll have a seat. Do you all have one spokesperson, and 
lets limit it to a reasonable amount, who would like to speak? Alright now 
give your name ~d address to the secretary please 

Ms. Williams: . 
Okay, I'm Angie Williams, I'm the coordinator for the Roanoke Drug & · 
Alcohol Abuse Council. Did you say my address? 

Chairman: 
Yes. 

Ms. Williams: 
27 

Chairman: 
Business address will be fine 

Ms. William: 
Excuse me. 

Chairman: 
Business address will be fine. 

Ms. Williams: 
Uh, its 520 19th Street, Southeast and thats 24013. 

Chairman: 
Alright Ms. Williams 

Ms. Williams: 
As I said I'm the coordinator for the Roanoke Drug & Alcohol Abuse 
Council. Uh back in 1989 the City Manager of Roanoke, Bob Herbert, 
appointed a seventeen member drug task force to begin to uh develop a \,-\\ 
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strategy to deal with the many problems of substance abuse and trafficking 
in our community. That task force wrote a report called Roanoke at Risk 
that contained 56 recommendations. One of those recommendations was that 
an affordable residential treatment and after care program that is holistic in 
its approach should be established in a predominantly minority community. 
Uh they believed that the reason is that including fear of the unknown, an 
inability to relate to nonminority counselors, unemployment or lack of 
transportation, that members of minority communities are often reluctant to 
seek help outside of their community. The court has written a letter that I 
believe you received at the April hearing on behalf of the Drug Council, 
uh, endorsing this move, praising the many years of good service that 
Hegira House has provided to the community. We believe that the move to 
Hegira House directly helps us with our objectives here, our 
recommendations that were in that task force report and in that providing 
the affordable adult residential treatment. 

Mr. Roberts : 
Did you have some input into the selection of this particular spot of the 
Hegira House. 

Ms. Williams : 
No I did not. However, I have been to Hegira House's location in Old 
Southwest, was given a tour there. It is a very well run facility. We, 
when Mr. Altice, told uh spoke to the Drug Council and told us that he has 
chosen the thirteen acre site, the treatment committee went out there and 
went on a tour of it one evening so that we could see the facility and we 
believe its as Mr. Altice told you a few minutes ago, its the best possible 
location, the thirteen acres, its rather secluded, its beautiful out there, I 
can't think of a better site. 

Mr. Copty: 
Are there any other, your in Southeast, I guess thats your office. 

Ms. Williams: 
Right, I'm located at Fallon Park Elementary. 

Mr. Copty: 
Are there any other drug outreach programs similar or dissimilar to this 
one in other communities or are there any other plans to institute this type 
or similar type of drug treatment facilities into residential communities. 

Ms . Williams: 
I don't know of any, but I'm just the coordinator for the Drug & Alcohol 
Abuse Council and there may be something that I don't know about that 
people in the treatment community may know more about. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Have you considered any alternate locations? 

Ms . Williams: 
Mr. Altice and Mental Health Services have been handling that. I'm just 
here on behalf of the Drug & Alcohol Abuse Council uh in support of the 
move uh. Hegira has been in the community for many years and uh has 
been a great service. 
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Mr. Roberts: 
So, I see this Hegira House has a good track record and they've made a 
good reputation and established a good standing in the community and we 
appreciate that. 

Ms . Williams : 
Well thank you. 

Chairman: 
Thank you Ms. Williams. Alright, would you give your name and address 
please. 

Ms. Kylie: 
Yes, I'm Margo Kylie and I'm the Director of Substance Abuse Services for 
Mental Health Service of Roanoke Valley and our business address is 301 
Elm Avenue, and its 24016. Um, I came forward because of the question of 
whether are there any plans to expand residential treatment facilities in 
any of the other communities, I would imagine that Mental Health Services 
that the council is involved with and Mental Health Services serves the 
cities of Roanoke and Salem and Counties of Roanoke, Botetourt and Craig 
and in our comprehensive plan we have primarily look to expanding 
nonresidential services and the reason for that is that we have a fairly good 
array of current residential services and we don't look forward to a big 
increase in state funding any time soon. So, uh, given the state of the 
Commonwealth and the current financial picture, we don't look forward to 
any expansion. Thats not to say that we don't currently have waiting 
lists. We have waiting lists currently at all of our residential facilities. 
That includes our detoxification center and primary care unit on 
Shenandoah Avenue, our multi-lodge program which is located on Patterson 
Avenue and Hegira House. We also have waiting lists for prevention 
services and we also have waiting lists for outpatient services. Seventy 
percent of my division's clients come from Roanoke City and so we intend to 
focus our attention on the you know where the greatest uh number of our 
clients are from. I'd be pleased to answer any other questions you might 
have. 

Mr. Roberts: 
The need for this service is almost desperate then. 

Ms. Kylie: 
The need for this service is certainly desperate. 

Mr. Copty: 
Could we get your title again? 

Ms. Kylie: 
I am the Director of Substance Abuse Service for Mental Health Service of 
this Roanoke Valley. 

Mr. Copty: 
Well I think that the community is obviously concerned that this is a drug 
treatment program thats being located in their community and if I think 
what I don't know that it makes anybody any less or any more comfortable 
about that fact, but if other communities are also going to be seeing this or 
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are seeing these facilities, at least you don't feel so singled out as being 
the community thats having to take something that others are not going to. 

Ms. Kylie: 
Well our agency has residential facilities located all over the valley and we 
have residential facilities, we serve people with substance abuse problems, 
people with mental health problems and people with mental retardation. 
And we have facilities all over the valley, I mean our children's center 
program which is for severely emotionally disturbed children has just 
relocated to the City of Salem and our you know we have programs in 
Vinton and Roanoke County and so forth. Our goal, we don't have any in 
Craig yet, but our goal is to make our services accessible to the people who 
need the services and to provide services and places which are safe and 
secure and which provide the best possible rehabilitation for our people. I 
also wanted to correct Henry on one little thing. You asked if there had 
been any pollee complaints and in addition to the time we had the little band 
come to entertain the clients, we one time had a client in therapy who was 
expressing himself pretty loudly and a neighbor called because she thought 
somebody was being hurt. That was eleven years ago and thats the last 
complaint I remember. Any other questions? 

Chairman: 
Any other questions? Thank you. 

Ms. Kylie: 
Thank you. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Is anybody else for, are you going to mix them up? 

Chairman: 
Your name and address. 

Ms. Banks: 
Doris Banks, 1823 Syracuse Avenue, Northwest 

Chairman: 
Are you the lady who wrote me a letter? 

Ms. Banks: 
Yes, I wrote each Commissioner. 

Chairman: 
Did you send a copy to the Board? 

Ms. Banks: 
I sent each Commissioner. I also have a petition an additional petition of 
262 names that I would like to leave to submit to you. 

Chairman: 
Are these people in the immediate area or ten blocks away? 

Ms. Banks: 
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They are from Tenth Street and LaFayette Blvd. and from Melrose and 
Fairland Lakes. Now we have some other people here who need to speak, 
we have Mr. Cooper, Mr. Riles, Ms. Carolyn Patterson, these are, and Mr. 
Dewall, Alfred Dewall, who is president of the FairLand Lakes Civic 
League. We have also gotten an endorsement from the Melrose Rugby 
Neighborhood Forum and both of those presidents are supposed to be 
present today. Opposition to exception of RS3 zoning at 1919 Andrews 
Road. Since our last meeting we ·have listened carefully to the Mental 
Health Services. We have listened to what they have said and to what they 
have not said. I have a problem understanding why a group who spent 
over $200,000 federal funds for a home for only 24 residents when they 
have to my knowledge leased the Embassy Motel as a halfway house, two 
homes in Vinton and a home on Patterson Avenue. Now these are just the 
ones that I know about. I also don't understand with all the vacant 
property in Roanoke City, zoned for this type of facility, why they only 
looked at 1919 Andrews Road. Now, when they had their meeting at High 
Street Church, we asked them about this and they admitted that they had 
looked no where else. One property is a three story brick apartment 
building located less than two blocks from them. Also, there is a stately 
home on Cole and Hershberger Road, two doors from the interstate motors 
that could serve their purpose. We have no qualms with their program, but 
we are even more convinced that it just does not belong at 1919 Andrews 
Road in the center of our neighborhoods because it would have a negative 
effect on all the surrounding neighborhoods, especially the youth. It has 
an uncontrolled environment where the residents come and go at will and 
m9st of them are not only drug addicts, but have committed crimes of some 
type or other. We do not want a transient and criminal population from 
Roanoke County, Salem, Botetourt County, Craig, New York, Baltimore, 
wherever pummeled into our neighborhood every six months. It would 
jeopardize the safety of all our residents, especially our youth who travel 
along Andrews Road and our senior citizens Park and last, but not 
least, the property in the whole midquadrant of Northwest would become 
worthless. As our city representatives I ask you, please protect our lives 
and our property by voting against this exception. Now, I would like to 
add to that, we have a very viable neighborhood group and if Mr. 
Wooldridge wants to get rid of his property, we want him to get rid of his 
property, but if I'm sure that they would appoint a committee to work up 
acceptable uses for their property. There is a lot of land over there. 
Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Your name and address. 

Mr. Alcahad: 
My name is Michael Karim Alcahad and I leave at 1630 

Chairman: 
Just leave that there and we might ask someone else to sign it, yeah that'd 
be fine. Alright sir. 

Mr. Alcahad: 
My name is Michael Karim Alcahad and this property that we are speaking of 
is right behind my house and I'm pro and con you know for this uh Hegira 
House being brought into our community. One reason is that I think that 
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the Northwest section has enough to deal with as far as negative problems 
at this point without something else coming in to burden us, one one 
problem that we have is that this property, there be a lot of shooting going 
on over there at night, we call the police and by the time the police get 
there the people are gone, its just a lot of unnecessary problems, shooting, 
and you know my wife have to get up and my children is afraid of all this 
shooting going on and we think it would be too much right now as a burden 
not only on the grown-ups mind, but also on the children's mind. Now we 
now we are for treatment for people who are addicted to drugs, we are not 
against it, but we are saying is that we know these people need to go some 
where, we cant just eradicate we can't just kill them, but you see we have 
an all american city here, all of us need to join in and find a proper place 
for these people to go where every body will be comfortable and where 
every body will be able to live in peace. We think that this section over 
there is already enough going on without something else coming in at this 
point. 

Chairman: 
Alright thank you. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Is there any shooting going o.n over there now? 

Mr. Alcahad: 
Yeah, it goes on all the time, these people will tell you it goes on, you know 
I live, the property is like this and I live I live right behind right right 
behind the property and I have call~d the police on numerous occasions and 
they have came and they uh, and they take cars over there and they strip 
them down and they go over there and on one occasion a lady got attacked 
over there over there in that its a little side street that you go down, they 
go over in there, they go over in there and they just do all types of stuff in 
there. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Wouldn't the Hegira House improve that, it wouldn't get any worse? 

Mr. Alcahad: 
I think I think I don't think. that it would improve it, but what we don't 
understand, people do not understand the situation of people coming in 
from correctional or or facilities. We have people who are con artists and 
they will come into the community you see with the idea of seeking help that 
would not only play on the people who was trying to provide them help but 
they would also play on and be parasites on the community. They would 
come in like they are really in need of help and then when if the help is not 
·being provided that they want then they would seek some type of other 
avenue to leave their place or like the lady said wander off and then we'd 
have to be faced with it. And we have a nice school up there which is 
Roanoke Academy school, my children go there and we think that these 
children don't need to see this type of thing. 

Chairman: 
Alright thank you. 

Mr. Alcahad: 
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Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright, who else, who else would like to be heard. Mr. City Attorney 
would you give them that 

Mr. Cooper: 
My name is Philipp Cooper. I live at 1933 Andrews Road. I recently built, 
are ya '11 famjUar with the area? 

Mr. Roberts: 
Yes we are, we've been there. 

Mr. Cooper: 
Uh, I have recently built a home, I've been in there a little over a year with 
a great investment to myself and my major concern naturally is the 
property value. Uh, it was stated that they as my understanding that they 
were approached with the offer to buy the house whereas they were not 
actually looking. I moved to that area thinking that it was one of the 
beautiful areas in the neighborhood to uh live and I do not appreciate 
thinking that I did this for no avail. Ten to fifteen years down the road 
when I attempt to sell this house and this organization is in the back of me, 
its directly in back of me on Andrews Road, I am very much concerned 
about the property value decreasing if I had to sell at a later date. Uh. 

Chairman: 
·Let me ask you what would you consider the average value of the houses 
along Andrews Road. · 

Mr. Cooper: 
The house that I built. 

Mr. Roberts: 
The average value. 

Mr. Cooper: 
The average value, $70-$80, 000. 00 present value now. My house is more 
than that. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I see, I thought some looked to me like they were almost a hundred. 

Mr. Cooper: 
Well, they have just increase the value this last year, its been appraised. 
My house increased $10, 000 in one year and I hope at a future date, just 
like Mr. Wooldridge now is contemplating selling his house at a profit and 
his land, I would like to do the same thing and I don't think anybody would 
necessarily come into that neighborhood and buy, thats my own idea so my 
primary concern is the property value by me moving into the neighborhood 
and that neighborhood maintains all of their property, its a beautiful 
neighborhood. 

Mr. Roberts: 
How long has your house been there? 
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Mr. Cooper: . 
February of last year, fourteen months. Brand new. 

Chairman: 
Alright Mr. Cooper thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright sir, your name is 

Mr. Dowall: 
Alfred Dowall. Alfred T . Do wall, Sr. 

Chairman: 
Alright sir. 

Mr. Dewall: 
First of all the citizens of immediate and surrounding areas were not duly 
notified of the intention to establish Hegira House at the Andrews Road 
location. This was totally unfair to the people who have invested in homes 
and who anticipate the neighborhood would remain residential. The Hegira 
House, as you know is a business. We do not oppose agencies or 
institutions who attempt to rehabilitate persons who have encountered 
persons. We applaud your efforts, however, we do oppose your locating it 
at this particular area. Surely there are areas where this place can be 
located which would not generate any opposition from some of the 
residents. The owner of the property did not consider contacting the 
citizens of its community. He had simply just a lucrative motive. Had this 
matter been done in a matter whereby citizens could have expressed their 
views we would have been more sympathetic in assisting them in finding 
another location. The citizens of this area were educated about the 
program, some would feel threatened having heard reputations about 
institutions which are not as successful as yours. Again, may I remind you 
that I respect what you are doing, I'm sorry, we do not try to stand in 
your way, but we would like you to relocate in another area. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright sir. Your name? 

Mr. Shaw: 
My name is Robert Shaw, um 

Chairman: 
Shaw 

Mr. Shaw: 
. Yeah. 

Chairman: 
Alright. 

Mr. Shaw: 
I'm a recovering drug addict, I'm a graduate of Hegira House. Uh, I want 
to address a couple of concerns that I've heard raised up here, uh, the 
young man was talking about the criminal elements that's already in the 
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neighborhood, the shootings that go on, the drugs in the Northwest area. 
I live in Northwest, uh, like I said I am a graduate of Hegira House. I was 
in Hegira House program for eighteen months, I spent eighteen months 
there, um, its been my experience that Hegira House tends to be a positive 
in the community as opposed to a negative. Um, they have a positive effect 
on crime, criminals, drug activity, um, drug dealers, drug users, 
criminals, don't want to be anywhere near Hegira or Hegira clients because 
of its like my peers now are different than the peers I had when I was in 
the Northwest using drugs. I'm not about the same things then that I am 
now. Um, to those people who are still out there actively using drugs, 
doing crimes, I'm not what they want to be about. Neither are the 
residents of Hegira House. They don't want to be around those type 
people. Um, with their probation officers going and coming all the time as 
Henry Altice already said, um, I have two children in Roanoke Academy of 
Math and Sciences. I do volunteer work, I've helped coach some of the 
children over there. I worked with Mr. Cannaday at Roanoke Academy of 
Math & Sciences. Um, I think that Hegira is turning out model citizens. 
There graduates are business owners in the City of Roanoke, they are urn, 
they are profitable citizens. I work, I hold a job, I work every day, I've 
worked for the last two and a half years. I think what they need is a 
chance. I realize that you all are going to have to make a decision and its 
going to either be its going to be popular with some people and unpopular 
with others, but I think what we have to look to is the future and Roanoke 
along with the rest of the country has a major drug problem and I think its 
time we stopped thinking about how its going to effect people now and give 
Hegira the chance to prove themselves and to better the community because 
I know they will better the community and I think I'm living proof of that. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Copty: 
You went to the Old, the old Southwest property. 

Mr. Shaw: 
Yes I did. 

Mr. Copty: 
Were their neighbors around there? 

Mr. Shaw: 
Yes there are. 

Mr. Copty: 
How did you interact with the neighbors, what type of, what went on, what 
type of · 

Mr. Shaw: 
Yeah, yeah, uh in fact the neighbors in the community that were in there, 
uh, some of them even get to know you by name, you wash their cards, you 
go to yard work for them, things like this, you know. They provide, they 
provide jobs for some of· the clients to you know make a little spending 
change this type of thing and the other, um. And you know like I said 
some of them I know of you know we're um on a first name basis, that type 
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of thing. So you know, they were, interacted in the community, um, I 
know I got sick. My addiction was community related. I was out here 
hurting the community, I got better in a community. You know my my 
treatment took place in a community and its my belief that's the way you 
treat it. You don't treat it out isolated somewhere. You have to you have 
to rehabilitate within the community. 

Mr. Copty: 
When you were there were there some of the citizens of Hegira House that 
took advantage of the neighborhood? Were there crimes, thefts, those the 
types of things and if there were what was the process that happened and 
so on and so forth. In other words, what did Hegira House provide any 
peril for the neighborhood when you when you went through the program. 

Mr. Shaw: 
Okay, um, there was never any, never any breaking into houses or 
anything like, nothing like that ever occurred. Um, those peoples, the 
clients that just aren't about that, you know maybe in their past when they 
were actively using, but it never happened when I was there. I'm going to 
be totally honest with you and I have going to tell you of an incident and 
how it was handled. There is a Hop In on the corner of Jefferson Street 
and Walnut Avenue, and there was a client once who went down there and 
took a pack of cigarettes or a soda or something like that. And the nature 
of the program, the program is built on honesty, responsibility and 
consistency. And basically what happened, the guy couldn't live with 
himself and and he told, he said I went down there and I didn't have any 
money and I took a soda. I believe what happened is he had to go back 
down there, take the soda back, pay for the soda, do some work for the 
people, I mean he was dealt with pretty severely, but that is the only 
incidence that I remember happening of anything negative in the 
community. Um, but I felt like it was dealt with appropriately by the staff 
at Hegira. And like I said as far as you kn!JW people's property or 
anything like that, no, not while I was there, never. In fact, I think those 
people think pretty highly of Hegira House. 

Chairman: 
Alright Mr. Shaw, I appreciate your remarks, thank you. Next gentlemen. 
Your name and address. 

Mr. Hopkins: 
My name is Howard Hopkins, I live at 1659 Syracuse Avenue, Northwest in 
the community that is we're talking about. I have the interests of the 
neighbors at heart in that we do want and have moved into a community that 
is relatively drug free, is a low crime area, and we would like to keep it at 
the rate. I did not know anything about Nigeria House when I heard that it 
would be that it was wanting to move into the area and I attended one of the 
community meetings , the one held at High Street Baptist Church on May the 
30th. After listening to the way the Hegira house is conducted and uh the 
fact that the people who are in it voluntarily come in it wanting to get rid of 
their drug problems, uh, the security that is carried on through this 
house, I do not object to it moving into the area. I feel like it cannot be 
against us, but it will help us. So, my feeling is that we are not looking at 
something that is going to help tear our community down. But we have 
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drugs and if we don't do anything about it, its like weeds in your garden 
that you can never cut out, they will finally consume you. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Thank you Mr. Hopkins. Alright, your name. 

Ms. Lee: 
My name is Dorothy Lee, 1546 Syracuse Avenue, Northwest. I am a 
resident in this area, we moved in the Rugby area in 1954 and have enjoyed 
the pleasure of a quiet and peaceful neighborhood. Of course, some things 
go on that can't be helped as in all other neighborhoods also. I'm saying no 
to the Hegira Institution because that is what it is and it is a business. 
This is a residential area and I think I and my neighbors would like to 
remain it as so. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright. Name. 

Ms . Patterson: 
My name is Carolyn Patterson, I live at 2025 Andrews Road, directly in 
front of the property that is going to be coming, uh that we are discussing. 
Um, in a democratic process I have attended two of the three meetings that 
you mandated that the organization um hold, and we have discussed at 
length with the uh uh uh the persons responsible for Hegira House our 
concern. And at the last meeting at High Street, uh, the majority of the 
residents do not want this and they have expressed this to the concerned 
people. One or two people have spoken out for it as always in a democratic 
society. I ask the lady uh who was in charge of the program if she did not 
hear our wishes that night and she said yes. And I said do you not hear 
the majority of these people saying we do not want this facility in our area, 
she said yes. I said can you go back and talk to your people and tell them 
that the people do not want this in the area. Um, I did not, I don't 
remember her saying yes I will do that. I think that one of the main 
problems that we have is the fact that if the zoning is not granted, then we 
won't have a problem. Therefore, we are asking, I am asking you to not 
grant th& zoning exception. Then the problem will not exist. As I have 
talked with people throughout this community and I have gathered these 
petitions, uh, the residents are totally opposed to this. I have been in and 
out of homes all over our area and they are totally opposed and if a 
democratic, uh, if democracy exists, and the petitions do stand, then the 
residents should prevail because you have the signatures there. We are 
opposed to the zoning whether it be Heironimus, whether it be a Hop In, 
Stop In or whatever. We don't want out are rezoned, we don't want to let 
this go. If we let this go, then we feel that in two years, they'll be another 
zoning hearing that we may not see or hear, and of course, I called Mrs. 
Armstrong, and she's here, and I said to Mrs. Armstrong, how did this gef 
by the residents of this area and she explained to me that only the people 
that lived next to the property had to be notified. Well, nobody really lives 
next to it that much except one resident and she was notified because I 
called her and asked her. And I said, well this would have totally slipped 
us by if you had if if some of the people who are not concerned about who 
are concerned about our area had not notified us of this uh, of this plight. 
So I'm asking you the zoning board in a democratic manner to hear the plea 
of the people here, to look at your petitions that you have and let the will 
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of the people prevail. If you do that, we won't have no further problem. 
It is not the idea of the Hegira, all of us are supportive of what Hegira is 
trying to do, we are trying to preserve our neighborhood that is our big 
thing. We want to keep it a single area residential area. All of us have 
worked hard. My home, I've been there seventeen years, our properties 
are valued between $80- $100,000.00. We don't want to have that change 
so we are asking you to prevail to let the zoning stand as it is and then we 
won't have this problem. Thank you. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
One observation we need to get clear. This Board does not have the 
prerogative of changing zoning. We are a board of zoning appeals. Zoning 
changes are made by another organization completely different from this, 
so we have no authority in changing zoning authority. 

Ms. Patterson: 
Well Mr. Wheaton, whatever you all do that will help the residents of this 
area, please do it. 

Chairman: 
Alright sir, your name and address. 

Mr. Fizer: 
Good afternoon, my name is Walton Fizer, Sr. I am co-president of the 
Melrose Rugby Neighborhood Form, I am vice-president of Pro-Tech, Inc. 
and retired treasurer of Fizer Funeral Home. I am here not just only in 
those positions or former positions, but I am here surely for because of the 
fact that I'm a deeply concerned citizen and resident of that community. I 
feel like that I must say this. Although I don't know whether its 
permissible or whether it would sit well with some people, but I feel like I 
have to try to give you uh, or let you know of some of the fears that some 
of us have because of this particular type of project coming into our 
community. I have a son that is dead and buried because of drugs. 
Murdered by a drug addict. I have another guardian son that is dying 
from drugs and other related things to drugs. I am surely I am deeply 
concerned about the location of Hegira House in our community. I received 
a call from a Mr. Lawrence some time ago calling me as co-president of the 
Melrose Rugby Neighborhood Forum. I returned his call, I've never been 
able to talk to Mr. Lawrence. Our neighborhood forum sent 
representatives to some of the meetings, most all of the meetings that was 
held in the community and nothing was said that would guarantee our 
feelings of not being afraid of this situation over there at 1919 Andrews 
Road. We have uh, a particular type of fear at this particular point in our 
Hfe our lives. Uh, as a predominantly black neighborhood, we have been 
on a modern day exodus for forty years here in Roanoke. Beginning with 
Northeast, Gainsboro, Northwest, Dean Wood Terrace and always wherever 
we get and we begin to try to build our community certain elements are 
allowed in our community that causes certain other people in our community 
to look at our community as something that it doesn't need, some of the 
nicer things. Gentlemen, we are hoping and praying 'that you all will 
please understand that we respectfully, with utmost respect request that 
you please do not allow this appeal to go through, that Hegira House will be 
located in our neighborhood. We than you very much. 
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Chairman: 
Alright sir. 

Mr. Banks: 
My name is T. W. Banks 1823 Syracuse Avenue Northwest I don't want to 
repeat things that have already been said. I attended the meeting at the 
High Street Church there was one person who went along with Hegira 
House. Everyone else was against it. Also at this meeting, excuse me, we 
were told by some of the officials at Hegira House who were there that there 
would be an extension, I believe they said something about June. Also, at 
the meeting, excuse me, it was said that usually the inmates had a choice of 
either going to jail or coming into the program. Naturally, they are going 
to come into the program rather than go to jail. We do not want this house 
in our neighborhood. Nowhere have they gone where they have had 
positive approaches to it. Everyone is against it. So I do hope that you 
will see fit not to vote for it. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright, sir. Your name. 

Ms. Eads: 
My name is Sharon Eads. 647 Albemarle Southeast. I am currently getting 
my associates degree at Virginia Western in mental health. This spring I 
was sent to Hegira House to do a counseling internship. I had never been 
to Hegira House before and I have to admit that I am basically addressing 
the fears that the gentlemen before last brought up. I had some fears and 
some preconceived notions, I had heard that it might be a difficult place. 
Uh, it took me about fifteen minutes of being there, actually on the 
premises, to realize that what I had formed my opinion on was all myth. 
The amount of effort that these young men and women put out every day 
and as the last gentleman said they don't get a choice between going to jail 
and going there. There is a screening proqess. These people have to go 
through a program of being screening, they have to be chosen as 
appropriate for this program. I am 5'3", I'm female, I weigh 115 pounds 
and I feel very safe there. The other thing that I feel is admiration. When 
I went there I didn't know what to expect. I watched these people every 
waking minute of the day working to transform their attitudes, their 
emotions, their behaviors and increasing their awareness to a level that is 
not found that often in the community. If anything, I've learned some 
humility from being around them. I don't think there is a person in this 
room who could do a month or two in that program that requires rigorous 
honesty, it requires paying attention all the time to your motives, your 
feelings and we don't just turn out rehabilitated socialized citizens that go 
out and participate in the community, I have seen, from what I have seen of 
the residents who go out, they enhance the community. Hegira is clean, its 
cleaner than my own home. Its well cared for, its a place of respect, I 
never hear anyone treat anyone rudely or disrespectfully. I've heard more 
rudeness in this room than I've heard in six weeks at that house, its not 
allowed. Its not allowed to get an attitude, its not allowed to look cross 
eyed at somebody. You have to deal with your stuff and take responsibility 
for growing up. I think that anyone who does have fear, ought to address 
it by going down there, -meeting the residents and seeing what its like. To 
sit in these chairs and form opinions that are uneducated do not leave us in 
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a place to make proper decisions and my appeal is that if anyone is afraid to 
please go there, your fears will leave. Thank you. 

Mr. Banks: 
I just want to correct a statement that was made. That young lady said 
that I made up about going to jail or either going to Hegira House, that was 
told to us at that meeting at High Street, that's why I mentioned it, I didn't 
make it up. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you. Your name and address please. 

Mr. Dow: 
My name is Douglas Dow. I live at 1537 Rugby Boulevard, Southwest 

Chairman: 
Mr. Dow, alright. 

Mr. Dow: 
I had not planned to say anything today I just thought I would come and 
listen to the discussion. But as I look around I see my friends here, 
retired friends. I lived on Rugby for 37 years and I'm not against any 
program that benefits humans, but we are in a residential neighborhood 
and I feel that another site should be found for this facility so should take 
care of people. I believe there is a time and place for everything. There is 
a time to help these people, but I feel there is a proper place to help them 
rather than a residential neighborhood. There are no businesses located in 
this area where we live and we've been a stable neighborhood for many 
years. As I look around and see some of my retired friends and this is 
where we want to stay. I think we've worked long enough to sit down and 
enjoy our retirement. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Thank you. 

Mr. Fizer: 
In an explanation of my statement of fear. There are some people that 
might be working with the Mental Health Department or working at Hegira 
and they feel very safe because they say these are the rules. Uh, some 
people who are in those positions they might not have their children there 
each day, each waking hour of the day and all night and this makes a great 
difference. When you speak of educated guesses and noneducated 
guesses, uh, I can assure you as a father and as a parent, that my fears 
are well founded and jf you were to take a uh a point of understanding 
about a the the the feelings about the people in this community and 
anywhere else, you'd find out that gee whiz, uh, there are lots of things in 
our community and uh, only an official level that gives us the rights as 
parents to be afraid, so please consider that. 

Chairman: 
Alright Mr. Fizer (Tape ends and new tape is inserted) 

Rev. Fizer: 



1919 Andrews where a lot of beautiful things have been said by those who 
are in favor of this home, but we believe, I believe that the bottom line is 
that our property value will be lowered and there is a possibility that uh, it 
would be a threat to our children and so we respectfully ask you to not to 
allow this home to be built there. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you Rev. Fizer. Your name. 

Cynthia: 
Good afternoon. My name is Cynthia and I am a graduate of Hegira House. 

Chairman: 
Did you get 

Cynthia: 
379 Highland Avenue Southwest 

Chairman: 
I thought did you say Cynthia? 

Cynthia: 
Yes sir, 

Chairman: 
What's your last name? 

Ms. Brooks: 
Brooks 

Chairman: 
Alright 

Ms. Brooks: 
Sorry 

Chairman: 
Ms. Brooks, go ahead. 

Ms. Brooks: 
Okay, Uh, I just want to speak briefly, I don't want to take up too much 
time or to keep going over the same things that uh, have already been 
stated, uh. I ultimately hear that a major concern is uh, or are fears and 
the risk of uh, uh people in the community's children and their safety, uh, 
and I also keep hearing Hegira and representatives of Hegira saying to you 
and I am a firm witness and its nothing that I've been told to say, this is 
something that is from my heart and something that is in true honesty, is 
that no,no Hegira people, residents of Hegira, clients of Hegira cause uh 
the things that you are perceiving, your fears uh uh that are going to be 
caused with your children. Uh, that has not been going on at the 
community that we are located right now in Southwest, uh as far as the 
drugs it has already been said, its in honesty, you know that drugs are not 
permitted there. Uh, I hear people saying well we already have this in our 
community, shooting and uh that children are doing this and people are 
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coming up here and saying that their own children have been exposed to 
drugs and are going through certain problems in terms of drugs, and I 
can't see why uh, for me I would just say uh uh I think I would I would 
want this in in in my community. I mean we are already dealing with the 
problem in the community. I do not think that and I know that Hegira 
would not uh enhance this problem. And and and in other words I'm saying 
that I think that it would be for the betterment of the community. In terms 
of property value and see when people keep saying, when I hear people 
keep saying that uh that uh that that that that this is not true, we're 
giving facts, we're giving statistics, we're giving information saying that 
this time to substantiate or trying to deal with some of these fears and 
people don't you know have have their own perceptions or whatever. They 
they don't want to hear that, but you know that's neither here nor there 
because you know I'm I'm sure that there are probably warranted fears. 
Uh, just like people have said also that Hegira is very structured. Uh, I 
was I was with Hegira uh approximately about three years, uh, in my 
treatment. My treatment was at least two years because of some mistakes 
that I made, uh, but I'm I'm for Hegira being in this community because we 
can all say well put it over here put it over there put it over there, but we 
as black people, we as white people, we as a minority period or however 
you want to see it, we are going to have to deal with this one way or the 
other. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Just a very few more, lets. Alright sir, your name and address. 

Mr. Gallaway: 
I'm Dennis Gallaway, I li\.,.e at 1033 Mercer Avenue, Northwest. And uh, I 
heard the lady say about being smart and I worked with the drug addicts 
and mental patients for 34 years at the Salem Medical Center, uh, I'm not 
afraid of a drug addict or uh uh the biggest concern is putting the Hegira 
House in the neighborhood. That's the biggest concern. I'm for this 100%, 
but not in our neighborhood. I mean its plenty property out on the out in 
the County or anywhere, but why should we have it in the neighborhood. 
Out on the highway out towards the garbage dump there's plenty of 
property out there, I mean open land where its opened up. And I 
understand that these people are coming from all over the different 
counties and out of the state too, and if they don't go by the rules, I mean 
this is my understanding, that they would be put out. I don't know for 
sure, this is just my, that they would be put out of the Hegira House and 
out on the street and then where would they go. But our big concern is 
not having it in our neighborhood. 

Chairman: 
Alright Mr. Gallaway. Alright, one or two more now. Your name please. 
Your name and address. 

Ms. Saunders: 
Good morning my name is Deborah Saunders. I live at 148 Rutledge, Salem, 
VA and I am here speaking on behalf of my mother. She lives on 2519 
Springhill and other residents that are involved with this issue here today. 
First of all let me make it very clear that I am totally, I totally disapprove 
of this Hegira Home. Let there be no doubt that I feel this would be a 
terrible mistake for this to come into our neighborhood. I've grown up· in 
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Roanoke, I've lived here all of my life with the exception of being away at 
school and I've lived at all areas of Roanoke and I truly feel that this is not 
a positive thing to come into you know our community. I do not feel that 
this would enhance our community in any way and in fact, to be blunt, I 
feel it would be a devastating blow to our community as a whole. I feel that 
we already have enough negative elements in our environment and I do not 
feel that we need any more things that would enhance a negative quality of 
our environment. Uh, I have several reasons personally and I am sure I am 
not alone in this feeling as you have heard today. Uh, my biggest concern 
for not wanting this in our neighborhood is the safety risk issue. Now we 
have heard from several people who are pro this house today uh who have 
tried unsuccessfully I may add to convince us that this uh is not a 
dangerous place that is that would in fact uh, in fact uh they've tried to 
make it sound like it is a safety issue for the people who would live in the 
homes and safety is a two way issue, but I am concerned for the safety of 
the residents who are already living in these environments in our 
community and I feel that you know I've listened to the gentleman as he 
tried to tell us uh some of the safety things that they have for this house 
and I was not convinced. You know, uh, it was very vague and a couple of 
other speakers got up and when they were addressed to the safety issues 
by you the Board members and the members are large, their answers were 
vary vague in my opinion and uh, not convincing at all. So I do not feel 
that they have convinced anyone here that they are safe to be in our 
environment. Also, uh, we talked about depreciation of people's homes and 
their lands, what about the depreciation of people's lives. I feel that you 
know that's gonna cause a lot of lives to you know have problems with their 
and uh you know I'm not happy with that at all. There's depreciation of 
homes and lives at stake here. Uh, also, um as the lady mentioned, Ms. 
Banks when she got up and spoke there are other sites that we would the 
Board to you know uh have these people to consider putting this home. 
There are other locations you know, uh it does not have to be Andrews 
road. We feel what is the rush with this. We need to meet we need to take 
time and not be in such a rush to put this home in our neighborhood. We 
are not happy with that and we feel you know that our feelings you know 
we're tax payers, we feel that that should be taken into consideration as 
well as any other neighborhood in this city. You know, uh, I uh, it was 
alleged that other neighborhoods have refused this, whether or not that is 
true is not up to me to prove, I can only speak for our neighborhood and 
our feeling, we do not want it and we would like for you to please if there is 
any justice in this system to please reject these uh desires to put this home 
in our neighborhood. Um, uh alright that is basically all I needed to say 
today I just could not sit there and listen to these pleas for this home 
anymore without getting up and speaking. Please you know, please listen 
to our plea and reject this plea for zoning RS3 at 1919 Andrews Road and 
you know like Ms. Banks and other speakers have said, we are willing to 
meet with these people, you know its not like we said, we've been hidden 
under the wood works, a lot of people was not aware of you know the 
communicative things that they were trying to put out and you know I feel 
that they were you know very low key and I feel that if they are serious 
about trying to find a site, we're serious about trying to help them find 
another site, but please don't let it be 1919 Andrews Road. Thank you. 

Chairman: 
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Lets, lets uh, we are going to sta~t limiting this now to some facts or new 
facts, I think we've had enough opinions from probably both sides, but lets 
try to stay with facts. 

Ms . McCadden: 
I am Ester L.H. McAddden 2128 Mercer Avenue Northwest co-president of 
the Melrose Rugby Neighborhood Forum. I heard in the first opening 
statement that establish a community committee. I think its a little late. 
The community committee should have been established before this came to 
floor, this would have cut out some of this lengthy meeting we have here 
this afternoon. My organization received a letter that this zoning was 
being changed after your first hearing. We were not aware of this. If you 
are going to send us these communications in our neighborhood partnership 
groups I think we should get them before you have your first hearing. I 
also heard in the first opening statement that there were going to be two 
additional buildings built instead of one to the existing building. The 
letter that I received said there would be one additional building tot he 
existing building. He said that there would not be if I remember correctly 
not many more than what they have if I remember it says that they have 
eight. They are gonna move those eight and the building the one building 
to be constructed would house a total to make a total of 24. Alright, uh, 
I've heard some good things for Hegira. I've heard some good things for 
not Hegira. My thing is this, we have members in that community who were 
displaced from Northeast. Uh, the old cliche is you keep on pushing us till 
you push us in the river. We're tired of being pushed. It brings down to a 
breakdown of the community. I must say we have something else going on 
in my community that I will not say right now that's going to be another 
breakdown with my my organization's territory. Hegira is in Melrose 
Rugby Neighborhood territory. Some duplexes are being built in Melrose 
Rugby Neighborhood territory. Uh, don't give it all to us, let someone else 
share it. I have friends, I've taught some of these students who have been 
to Hegira House they have come out to be good, but all are not good, all in 
the others are not that. I'm not saying we're gonna throw them out, we 
need to do, but we should have sat down and talked about this and helped 
looked for some things before all of this came to this. It would have cut out 
some of this time here this afternoon. 

Chairman: 
Alright sir, your name. 

Mr. Wooldridge: 
My name is Dian Wooldridge, I live at 1919 Andrews and uh, I just have a 
couple of things to say. One, you have my sympathy, all five of you, 
you've got a real tough job and I just want people to realize that I've been 
getting a lot of flack, neighbors as far as two or three miles have accused 
me of breaking up the neighborhood and all this sort of thing. I want you 
to realize that my house went on the market over a year ago. Two of my 
neighbors were aware that it was on the market, its been on the multiple 
listing service, it has been listed with a real estate agent, there is no one 
who has made me an offer until this offer came along. Uh, it was accepted 
on a contingency basis based on what goes on with your body here. The 
only other thing I would like to say is that its really strange to me, two 
things are strange, there are .a lot of people who are up here saying that 
there's gunfire in the immediate neighborhood all the time and there's other 
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people up here saying that it is a really great place to live and somewhere 
in between there must be the truth, I'm not sure exactly at what end of the 
spectrum its at, but it must be pretty tough for you people to try and 
figure this out and last of all. In the eleven years that I've lived there, 
excuse me ten, I have had a hard time getting people to come to the house 
because they can't find it. I'm talking about plumbers and electricians and 
cab drivers and limousine drivers and so on and so again I wonder 
sometimes, uh this house is not smack out there on the street, its back by 
Lick Run and I've lived there and if you have any questions for me please 
go right ahead. 

Chairman: 
Do any board members have any questions of Mr. Wooldridge? 

Mr. Wheaton: 
You said you had possibly maybe some other offers contingent upon this for 
your house. 

Mr. Wooldridge: 
No, what I said is that the offer that these people made is, this is the only 
offer that I've had. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Uh huh. 

Mr. Wooldridge: 
And this offer is contingent upon the zoning appeal board. 

Chairman: 
Alright alright I I 

Mr. Wheaton: 
In other words there is not a contract. 

Mr. Wooldridge: 
There is a contract on the house, but the contract becomes null and void if 
they can not get the zoning variance, that's the substance of it. And for 
your information the contract is for ten percent under the real estate 
appraised value. 

Chairman: 
Alright thank you. Very brief, alright sir. 

Mr. Pleasant: 
My name is Thomas Pleasant. 1528 Grace Avenue, Northwest. Its not 
important how long I've lived there but I'm satisfied when I had that little 
house built there and I'm not satisfied with what I've heard here today. 
I've lived in the and I didn't know anything about the until one 
gentlemen brought the flyer by my house on Sunday. And I sit down and 
read it and I looked at it and I said they're pulling a fast one over me and I 
said. I talked to my neighbor. He hadn't heard nothing about it. I always 
thought that before they make these big decisions that they let the people 
who was involved know about them and I hadn't heard nothing .• 
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Chairman: 
Lets lets just stop right here. This has been the same, unless you want to 
change the laws in the city, people were notified the same way they've been 
done the last thirty five years. There's been no difference. Maybe there 
wrong. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Its been in the newspaper too. 

Chairman: 
Its been in the newspaper several times. 

Mr. Pleasant: 
.... a man brought it by my house and knocked on my door and asked me 
would I please be there and its a little pink piece of paper. Now, they keep 
talking about they're going to build a fence. How tall are you going to 
build that fence. You know it could be a two foot three foot fence, but I 
know now .... 

Chairman: 
He said he'd cooperate with the people they wanted, I, what else can we say 

Mr. Pleasant: 
But all I'm interested in is the people walking in the park and I'm might 
afraid that when that thing is built the people that I see, the old citizens, 
older they myself they walk in that __ Park, I'm might afraid early in th_e 
morning you won't see them anymore. 

Chairman: 
Well, of course this has been right on the street you know, here in 
Southwest for years and there is no fence around the present building. 

Audience: 
That area isn't residential 

Chairman: 
Fifty Fifty or Fifty Forty 

Mr. Pleasant: 
It appears to me like the lady said before me, I hate to keep on repeating, I 
know its been a long meeting. I don't know I've never worked before where 
we've been in a meeting this long and nobody had to go to the restroom 

Chairman: 
Yeah, but if you all talk much longer we're going to declare a recess. 

Mr. Pleasant: 
We have been railroaded, I don't know why because maybe we gonna get the 
new layer because they put it in the paper, I didn't see it, maybe someone 
else who reads the paper more than me. But nobody, if (inaudible), but 
happened to call me, but nobody called me nobody then when this 
gentleman come ..•• his son lived across the street from me he gave me that 
flyer Sunday evening and I know he was concerned because I'd never see 
him knock on my door before. 
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Chairman: 
Alright, I think every body has been heard on both sides. Is everybody 
satisfied or have anything new that we don't know or that, I'm ready for a 
motion, any way upside down, sideways. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
In view of what I have heard here. And it has always been the opinion of 
the Board of Zoning Appeals to take seriously the citizens concern, we've 
done this many many times before. No disgrace or no down to the Hegira 
House. As I look at Section 36560 and it says to ensure the compatibility of 
these uses with the neighborhoods, that's what the ordinance says, it is 
with that thinking in mind I offer a motion that this uh, the request for 
Hegira House be denied. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I'll second the motion, but give me a chance. 

Chairman: 
Alright, we have a motion on the floor that the request be denied, is there 
a second to that motion. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Yes, I'd like to second the motion with a few remarks if I may. I'd like to 
compliment the proponents of the Hegira House for presenting a good, 
making a good presentation. I understand the situation a lot more now than 
I ever did before and I think that that organization is doing a great work in 
the city. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
I do to. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I think that they ought to be commended for it, that they ought to be 
encouraged to find another location if this one is denied and I think we 
ought to support them in every way we can. I'm looking at it from a selfish 
standpoint. I think the main apprehension of most of the people here is a 
decrease in property values and you can't blame people for that. They've 
spent there whole life's earnings on a house and they don't want it to be 
divided, I can understand that too. But he compatibility, the 
apprehension, the apprehension that these folks have about something 
coming into the neighborhood that they are fearful, I think we'd make 
mistake if we granted that place. So, I therefore, I second the vote. 

Mr. Copty: 
This is really a tough decision. I think that we've got a perfectly 
wonderful it sounds like program and its made and designed and the reason· 
it works is that its in communities I mean this is the reason it works. And 
not just Northwest, we all, every community in Roanoke has a problem with 
drugs and every community in Roanoke should have a program like this. 
Every community in Roanoke should work to take care of its own problems 
an the problems of the rest of the communities. If we take the attitude that 
we do only what we the neighbors of a particular thing want, we will never 
have any programs, we· won't have any sewage treatment plants, we won't 
have any, any anything that we would all rather not have next to us, but 
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we all only enjoy a good life because we have. So I think that I would 
probably not feel the way that this uh uh uh vote is going and that's the 
reason why and maybe I'm wrong, but I honestly think that if we turn this 
down, we are turning down probably one of the better things that we could 
do for the community. Not just for the Hegira house, but also for the 
people who will live around the Hegira House. Because their children will 
see the benefits of what a community can do with its problems, they will 
benefit from the pride that they will have, that they have taken in hand 
their problems. So I honestly think that this is something that we should 
perhaps do for the community. That's my feeling. 

Chairman: 
Alright, sir. You can just about tell how the votes going already. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
It could make a difference. 

Chairman: 
Alright if there are not other comments we'll call for a vote. It has been 
moved and seconded that a request be denied. All in favor signify by 
saying Aye. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Aye 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Aye 

Chairman: 
All opposed , no. 

Mr. Copty: 
No 

Chairman: 
No. Would you poll the Board please. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts 

Mr. Roberts: 
Aye 

Secretary: 
Mr. Norris 

Mr. Norris: 
No 

Secretary: 
Mr. Wheaton 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Aye 
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Secretary: 
Mr. Copty. 

Mr. Copty: 
No. 

Chairman: 
Alright Mr. City Attorney, would you like to explain where we stand. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Neither the special exception nor the variance has been granted because 
neither the special exception nor the variance received three votes in favor 
of it. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
You explained that in the beginning didn't you. 

Chairman: 
Yes, I just wanted to hear it. I just wanted everybody to understand it. 
Alright. If there is no other. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
I think the audience ought to be informed. 

Chairman: 
Just a minute one person please. 

Mr. Talevi: 
I said neither the special exception nor the variance was granted because 
neither the special exception nor the variance received three votes in favor 
of it. 

Chairman: 
Right, so in effect the request has been denied. 

Mr. Talevi: 
The requests, both of them have been denied. 

Chairman: 
Alright, now. They can take this to Court, that there prerogative or 
would have been yours. To a Court of Record. Seldom does this Board 
ever get overturned in Court, however, with a split decision the judge's 
can do whatever they want to do. We thank you good day . 
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Dear Resident, 

The staff of Hegira House of Mental Health Services 
of the Roanoke Valley is aware of your concerns about our 
program being moved into the Northwest Community. We 
believe that our program will be an asset to the community 
and help combat the drug problem that currently exists. We 
also feel it is important that the members of the Northwest 
Community be aware of specifically what Hegira does, how 
it wot .. ks and the security and accountabi 1 i ty that is bu i 1 t 
into the program. Our staff is also concerned you may have 
questions that have never been answered about our facility 
and we are willing to answer your questions and concerns 
to the best of our ability. 

!=~ed P Roessel. Jr. Ph.D 

In order to help accomplish this we would like to 
invite you to Hegira House so you can see first hand what 
happens here and address your questions to our staff. 

I 
i 

I' 

We would like for this to take place on May 16, 1991, 
from 4:00pm-6:00pm. If you can attend please call and let 
us know you are coming. (703} 343-6332. If there is a· 
more convenient time foryouto visit, please call and we: 
will attempt to make the necessary arrangements. If you cannot 
visit, but would like to discuss this issue, please call 
me. 

Sincerely, 

Henry L. Altice, CAC 
Director 

HLA/gc 
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THE HOUSE AT 1919 ANDREWS ROAD IS.LOCATEO IN THE MIDDLE OF 13+ ACRES 

TO THE NORTH: 

TO THE EAST: 

TO THE SOUTH: 

TO THE WEST: 

WOODS AND EMPTY LAND 

LICK RUN, EMPTY LAND, THE CITY DRAINAGE POND 
AND INTERSTATE 581 

VIA THE DRIVEWAY THE HOUSE IS WELL OVER ~ MILE 
FROM THE NEAREST HOUSE, THE DISTANCE TO ANDREWS 
ROAD IS ALMOST ~ MILE VIA THE ONLY ROAD INTO THE 
PROPERTY THROUGH THE WOODS 

THE NEAREST HOUSE IS OVER 500 FEET AWAY THROUGH 
DENSE WOODS AND THE WEST BOUNDARY IS FENCED. 

Within the city of Roanoke there is probably no other property of 
any size that is any more secluded or better protected, the house 
itself is either difficult or impossible to see from any road or any 
other house. 
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SOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

AS A RESULT OF OUR MEETINGS ~I!HIN THE NEIGHBORHOODS ~E 

WOULD LIKE TO AMEND OUR RECUEST FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO 

INCLUDE THE FOLLO~ING TWO REQUIREMENTS: 

FIRST, TO ESTABLISH A COMMUNITY ADVISORY BOARD TO SERVE THE 

PURPOSE OF RECEIVING ANY COMPLAINTS AND RESOLVING ANY 

DIFFICULTIES RESULTANT FROM THE PRESENCE OF THE PROGRAM IN 

THE AREA, AND TO TAKE ANY REQUESTS FROM THE NEIGHBORHOODS 

TO THE PROGRAM FOR ASSISTANCE WITH DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE 

PREVENTION IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD; 

SECOND, TO ERECT A FENCE IN THE PERIMETER OF THE PROPERTY 

IN WHICH A GATE NOW EXISTS. 
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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

Roanoke, Virginia 
June 4, 1991 

The Board of Zoning Appeals met in regular session on 
Tuesday, June 4, 1991, in the Council Chamber, Municipal 
Building, and conducted a public hearing on the request of 
Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc., said hearing having 
been continued from April 9, 1991. 

PRESENT: L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, T. E. Roberts, 
Walter Wheaton, Bob Copty. 

ABSENT: Richard A. Rife (Illness) 

CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Ronald H. Miller, Zoning Admn. 
Steve Talevi, Asst. City Attorney 

PREMISES: 1919 Andrews Road, N. W. 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by the 
Chairman, who presided. 

SUBJECT: 

The request of the applicant for a special exception, as 
provided under Section 36.1-90 (2), Zoning, to permit a 
group home, with a variance from Section 36.1-560 to 
allow as many as 24 persons in lieu of eight. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

Henry Altice appeared before the Board in regard to the 
application filed. He advised that as directed by the 
Board, the petitioners had conducted three meetings with 
the neighborhood involved in the request herein in an 
effort to rsolve some problems and to promote a better 
understanding of the proposed use of the property. He 
explained that as a result of these meetings he would 
like to amend the request for a special exception to 
include the following two requirements. 

First, to establish a Community Advisory Board to serve 
the purpose of receiving any complaints and resolving 
any difficulties resultant from the presence of the 
program in the area and to take any requests from the 
neighborhoods to tAe program for assistance with drug 
and alcohol abuse prevention in the neighborhood. 

~ 
ACopy, Te~t9: ~·£.~,.. 
Patti C. Hanes, S:.3cr0t:::~' ct 
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Second, to erect a fence in the perimeter of the 
property in which a gate now exists. 

Upon being asked the type fence proposed and the purpose 
of the fence, Mr. Altice explained that he would discuss 
this with representatives of the neighborhood and work 
with them as to the type fence erected. He explained 
further that the purpose of the fence would be to secure 
the residents of the home and to discourage others from 
trespassing on their property. 

Mr. Altice explained that from the meetings conducted he 
concluded that there were five areas of concern. 

1. Property values. 

2. Program security and client freedom. 

3. Threats to children in the community. 

4. Lack of initial community involvement. 

5. Why this community? 

Mr. Altice discussed each of these issues at length. He 
explained that it has been proven that property values 
in the area in which Hegira House is presently located 
have not been lowered due to its presence in the 
community. He advised that residents of the home are 
not free to roam the community, that they would not be a 
threat to children in the area. He stated that he 
realized it was a mistake on the .Part of the petitioners 
that the community was not involved in the initial 
planning for the home but that they had made an attempt 
to compensate for that by initiating meetings with the 
neighborhood. As to the reason for choosing the site in 
question, he advised that it has been determined that 
this property, which consists of some thirteen acres, is 
the most suitable in the area for the use proposed. 
He added that he believed that if they were allowed to 
locate in this community, that within a year the home 
would be seen as an asset and not a detriment to the 
area. He submitted for the Board's perusal and file 
copies of a letter distributed to the residents at the 
meetings and a flyer which was distributed to 
approximately 200 locations. 

Ms. Angie Williams, coordinator for the Roanoke Drug and 
Alcohol Abuse Council, spoke in support of the request. 
She referred to a Task Force of 17 members appointed by 
the Ci-ty Manager. in 1989 to make a study of drug abuse 
problems in the City. She stated that the Task Force 
has now evolved into 35 members of an on-going council 
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and reminded the Board that the Chairman of that council 
has written a letter to the Board endorsing this move. 

Ms. Marguerite Kiely, Director of Substance Abuse 
Services for Mental Health Services of Roanoke Valley, 
then spoke at some length giving further reasons for 
support of Hegira House. 

Mrs. Doris Banks, 1823 Syracuse Avenue, N. w., then 
approached the Board and submitted a petition of over 
200 signatures of persons opposed to the location of 
Hegira House at the site in question. She offered 
reasons for the opposition, many of which had been 
stated at the hearing in April and addressed by Mr. 
Altice in his opening address. 

Mr. Dowe, President of Fairland Lakes Civic League, 
gave statements of objection to the request and stated 
that if the owner would like to meet with the 
neighborhood, he was sure they would be glad to appoint 
a committee to work out a use for his property. 

Mikal Karim Alahhanm, 1630 Norris Drive, N. w., 
addressed the Board and expressed his opinion that he 
realizes that such facilities need to have a place, but 
that the northwest section has enough to deal with 
without something else coming to burden the residence. 

Phillip Cooper, 1933 Andrews Road, N. w., stated that he 
recently built his home in the area of the property in 
question and that he is concerned with property values. 
He went on to say that he believed the location of the 
facility proposed would tend to lower property values in 
the area. 

Alfred T. Dowe, 2711 Kirkland Drive, N. w., spoke in 
opposition and expressed the view that the fact that the 
community was not duly notified was totally unfair. He 
stated that he believed there are areas where such a 
facility would not be opposed. 

Robert Shaw, a graduate of Hegira House, spoke in 
support of the request. He stated that the home would 
have a positive effect on the neighborhood. After being 
asked about the relationship of the community and the 
residents, he advised that in the southwest area of the 
City, where the home is now located, the relationship 
with residents is positive, that in some cases the 
residents of the community provided job opportunities 
for those living at Hegira House and that the residents 
caused no disturbance in the neighborhood. He cited one 
instance of a minor offense and related severe action 
by the Hegira House staff. He stated further that this 
was only one instance several years ago and that he has 
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known of no problems since that time. 

Mr. Howard Hopkins, 1659 Syracuse Avenue, N. w., 
appeared before the Board and stated that while he has 
the interest of his neighbors at heart in that they have 
a community that is relatively drug free and they would 
like to keep it that way, after attending one of the 
meetings and learning the way Hegira House is operated, 
he does not object to their moving to the property at 
1919 Andrews Road. 

Dorothy Lee, 1546 Syracuse Avenue, N. w., advised that 
she feels that Hegira House is a 'business and that she 
would like to keep the neighborhood residential. 

Carolyn Patterson, 2025 Andrews Road, N. w., spoke in 
opposition to the request, stating that she attended two 
of the three meetings conducted and that she detected 
that the people are trying to preserve the neighborhood 
and do not want this move. Therefore, she would ask the 
Board to let the will of the people prevail and to deny 
the request. 

Walter Fizer spoke at length, stating that among other 
positions that he holds he is Co-President of the 
Melrose Rugby Neighborhood Forum, that he has had 
personal dealings with drugs within his family and that 
he would ask that this not be allowed in .the 
neighborhood. 

Mr. T. w. Banks, 1823 Syracuse Avenue, N. w., expressed 
strong opposition to the request regarding disturbance 
in the neighborhood, property values and asking that the 
Board deny the request. 

Sharon Eves, 647 Albemarle Avenue, s. w., appeared and 
stated that in working on her associate degree in Mental 
Health she has had occasion to spend some time at Hegira 
House. This experience has convinced her that her 
preconceived notions regarding the facility were wrong 
and that it is an asset to the neighborhood. She spoke 
highly of the residents of the home and supported the 
request. 

Douglas Dowe, 1537 Rugby Blvd., N. w. spoke in 
opposition to the request and suggested that another 
site should be found for the facility. 

The Rev. Pullen, former pastor of Blue Ridge Baptist 
Church, spoke in opposition to the request, stating that 
he believed property values in the area would be lowered 
if the request is granted. 

Cynthia Brooks, 379 Highland Avenue, s. w., spoke in 
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support of the request and advised that she is a 
graduate of Hegira House. · She assured the neighbors 
that their children's safety would not be at risk and 
that the facility would have no detrimental effect on 
the neighborhood. 

Dennis Galloway, 1033 Mercer Avenue, N. w., appeared and 
stated that he is 100 percent for the program, but not 
in that neighborhood. 

Ms. Debra Saunders spoke in opposition and advised that 
she felt it would be a mistake and would have a 
devastating effect on the neighborhood if Hegira House 
were allowed to locate in this area, citing as one of 
her concerns the safety of the residents. 

Mrs. Estelle McCadden, 2128 Melrose Avenue, N. w., spoke 
in opposition to the request. 

Mr. Daniel Woolridge, owner of the property in question, 
spoke briefly and brought out some discrepancies in 
testimony. He also advised that the offer from Mental 
Health is the only offer he has had for the property. 
He mentioned that in the years he has lived at that 
location he has had problems with deliverymen, etc., 
being able to locate the site, indicating that it is so 
located that it is secluded from the community. 

Mr. Thomas Pleasant, 1526 Grayson Avenue, N. w., then 
offered opposition to the request and stated that he did 
not know of the proposal until Sunday evening when a 
flyer was brought to his door. 

Following testimony from those both in support and 
opposition of the request, the Board gave due 
consideration to all views expressed. While the site in 
question is of considerable size and somewhat secluded 
from the neighborhood, the concern of the property 
owners in the area was considered. It was obvious that 
the majority of the residents present felt that the 
facility would lower property values and would pose a 
threat to their neighborhood. 

THE MOTION: 

A motion was made by Mr. Wheaton and seconded by Mr. 
Roberts that the request be denied. 

Mr. Wheaton explained that one of the issues for the 
Board's consideration.in granting special exceptions is 
compatibility. He stated that in view of what he had 
heard at the public hearing from property owners he did 
not believe the proposed facility would be compatible 
with the neighborhood. O)o-S 
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Mr. Roberts commended Hegira House for their program 
and for their presentation to the Board. He stated that 
he believed that due to the apprehensions expressed by 
property owners in the area, it would be a mistake to 
grant the request. 

Mr. Copty stated that this is a hard decision to make 
but that he sees in Hegira House a wonderful program and 
one that is needed in every community. He stated that 
every community in Roanoke has a drug problem and that 
if the Board takes the attitude that only the desires of 
the neighborhood are considered, we will have no such 
programs. Therefore, he would vote against the motion 
on the floor. 

THE VOTE: 

AYES: Mr. Wheaton and Mr. Roberts. 

NAYS: Mr. Copty and Mr. Norris. 

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Mr. Rife 

The Chairman thereupon declared the motion failed 
to pass. Therefore neither the requested special 
exception nor the variance was granted. 

FINAL DISPOSITION OF APPEAL: 

There being no further business in connection with this 
appeal, final disposition is hereby made of it. 

/~u~ 
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Board of Zoning Appeals 

L 8wood Norris, Chairman 
T. E. Roberts, Vice ChaJnnan 

W. L Wheaton 
Robert R. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Ruth C. Armstrong. Secretary 
ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

Applicant: Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 
Premises: 1919 Andrews Road, N. w. 

In accordance with the authority vested in the Board of 
Zoning Appeals, as set forth in Section 36.1-656, Zoning, 
City Code, to hear and decide applications for special 
exceptions, a public hearing was conducted on Tuesday, June 
4, 1991, in the Council Chamber, Municipal Building, 
on the following request, said hearing having.been continued 
from April 9, 1991. 

The request of the applicant for a special 
exception, as provided under Section 36.1-90, 
Zoning, to permit a group home, with a variance 
from Section 36.1-560 to allow as many as 24 
persons in lieu of eight. 

Facts and conditions involved in. said application were 
investigated by the Board, inspections of the property in 
question having been made prior to the public hearing date. 

On April 9, 1991, the Board heard testimony from the 
petitioner and property owners in the area who were strongly 
opposed to having the facility located on the subject 
property. After due consideration, the Board deemed it wise 
to continue the public hearing for two months to allow time 
for the applicant and representatives from the community to 
discuss the issues and, hopefully, reach a solution to the 
problems discussed. 

on this date the request was again presented, and the 
Board was advised that three meetings had been initiated by 
the applicant to give the community opportunity to discuss 
their concerns with moving Hegira House from its present 
location in the southwest section of the City to the subject 
property. However, the Board heard objections from sixteen 
property owners, and a new petition with 262 signatures of 
persons in opposition was submitted. ~ 
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Upon consideration of testimony both from the petitioner 
and property owners in the area of the subject property, two 
of the four members of the Board present at the public 
hearing are of the opinion that the facility in question is 
not compatible with the character of the neighborhood 
surrounding the subject property. The other two members, 
while being sympathetic with the desires of the residents, 
note that the use is provided for in this district and are of 
the opinion that the request is reasonable and justified. 

A motion to deny the request failed to pass by a 
majority of the Board. Therefore, the Chairman declared that 
neither the requested special exception nor the variance was 
granted. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request herein is not 
granted. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, this the 4th 
day of June, 1991. 

·~£d. 11 ~irman 
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APPEAL NO. 

APPLICANT: 

PREMISES: 

PRESIDING: 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

32-91-A 

Roanoke, Virginia 
July 9, 1991 

Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 

1919 Andrews Road, Northwest 

L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, T .E. Roberts, Walter Wheaton, Bob Copty, 
Richard Rife 

Chairman: 
The next request is that of Roanoke Mental Health Services for a rehearing 
of application to permit the group home at 1919 Andrews Road. Alright sir, 
here's your attorney, you going to speak? Alright, do you swear to tell the 
whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God? 

Mr. Dodson: 
Yes Sir. 

Chairman: 
Alright Mr. Dodson 

Mr. Dodson: 
Mr. Chairman and members of the Board and Mr. Altice and I are here 
representing the Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. I have had 
distributed to you a four page memorandum ~hat uh I think sets forth our 
position. The first thing I would like to call attention to is that your 
agenda refers to our request for a rehearing. That is not technically 
correct if you will notice the last Hne on page one of the memorandum, uh, 
our position is that the matter is still before the Board and can be acted 
upon as the Board sees fit either with or without a further hearing. Out 
point on the fact that its still before the Board relates to the two to two tie 
and our position is that that was not action on the part of the Board. 

Chairman: 
Alright sir, now just a minute. I don't have what you all have. 

Mr. Dodson: 
Its a four page memorandum. 

Chairman: 
Oh, I'm sorry, thank you. I'm sorry Mr. Dodson. 

Mr. Dodson: 
We have cited in that memorandum uh Roberts Rules of Order and the Rules 
of the House of Representatives upon which Roberts Rules of Order is 
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based and also the City Code and I think that what we are talking about is 
that it takes three votes to kill the request that uh we maintain is still 
before you. Now uh if we go to a rehearing then according to your rules 
its necessary to have some new evidence that couldn't have been presented 
before and in that regard I point out that we are raising this parliamentary 
point, but we are also raising the point that as of July 1, 1991, there went 
into effect in Virginia a Fair Housing Law an oddly enough that Fair 
Housing Law applies to the people that Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, 
Incorporated ministers to. The Fair Housing in the beginning of course 
was a federal program and then we came along with a state program and 
what they were talking about in the beginning was discrimination on 
account of race, color, national origin, sex and so forth, but this new law 
that uh that uh went into effect July 1, 1991, covers what is defined as 
handicapped and that is something new in Virginia. They have defined 
handicapped uh to include uh millions with respect to a person a physical or 
mental impairment which substantially limits or one or more persons major 
life activities, a medical or psychological record of having such an 
impairment or being regarded as having such an impairment and then they 
go on and specifically provide that the term does not include current illegal 
use of or addiction to a controlled substance as defined in Virginia or 
federal law. In other words, they left out of the Fair Housing any drug 
addicts, but they did include the people who are being treated by Mental 
Health Services and the Mental Hygiene Services, Incorporated and I 
submit to you gentlemen that its a new ballgame. That whereas some years­
ago we were saying that you couldn't discriminate on account of race or 
national origins and things like that I think they have opened that up and I 
base that on the fact that there have been cases elsewhere in Virginia and 
in the United States that have attempted to protect these people that are in 
so-called halfway houses, you've heard that word used a lot. We are not 
dealing here with what you have been considering before non-violent 
offenders. Our people are non-violent offenders in a sense. But they are 
tied into drugs and alcohol and I think there's a very big difference 
between that type of person. We look to the City Code for the uh how you 
are to measure whether you grant a variance or not and the uh, City Code 
refers to compatibility and I think that concept was addressed at a previous 
hearing and in the City Code they say that the appropriateness of the 
application is to be considered on the following standards: the use is 
compatible with the character and appearance of the surrounding 
neighborhood by virtue of the type, bulk, location on the lot and the 
design and location of parking, signage landscaping and other outside 
activities or structures. Now this may be a lawyer's strict interpretation 
of the law, but I don't believe, I was not at the previous hearings, but I 
don't believe there was anything said about most of these things that are 
referred to in here and I don't know why there was such an opposition to 
what was endorsed by Judge Trompeter and the Roanoke Task Force on 
Drugs and so forth. This is considered, the work that our people .are 
doing is considered to be a part of the war against drugs. But it does not 
put in jeopardy any neighbors and it hasn't put in jeopardy any neighbors 
in the area where they have operated and I submit to you that whereas at 
one time you might have been looking at the neighborhood and saying these 
people don't like people who have had alcohol problems or drug problems, 
but we can no longer uh, discriminate against them on housing. Now that's 
a little far fetched according to the city attorney here, but its not far 
fetched, its not gonna be far fetched, and I uh, think that's something that OlS-~ 
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you ought to consider, but we feel that you have heard uh, the story of uh 
the Hegira House and the problem that exists there is that they are 
crowded. Those people are within four walls all day long and the 13 acre 
tract that has been offered and is available is an ideal place for them to be 
treated. The other angle to it is that the house now occupied by Hegira 
House is one that is in bad need of capital improvement, the electrical 
system is outmoded, there is need of structural repair and the landlord is 
not willing to do this sort of thing· and the Mental Health Services can't do 
it because they don't own the property. And I submit that we are urging 
you to take a great step to help the war against drugs and I don't believe 
your gonna find that the people who objected to it are gonna have any 
cause to object to it. And I can't answer specific questions, Mr. Altice 
can, and I'm happy to uh attempt to respond to anything you have on your 
mind. 

Chairman: 
Fair Housing is, those laws, we better be careful on that law. Pushing the 
wrong button. Uh, its an awesome thing to consider and what you are 
saying is that's true then the Board's going to need a lot of legal 
assistance, your not including something like this that we just heard, but 
your saying that someone on a treatment program cannot be, well I, we 
wouldn't necessarily be against those people, it was the it was the use of 
the property, so I don't, I'm not sure you C8l:l bring Fair Housing 

Mr. Rife: 
We're not refusing to house, there's people who are refusing to house 
thirty of them in one location and that's where zoning would come in 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Twenty-four. 

Mr. Rife: 
Twenty-four. On a single family residence· zoned property we would refuse 
to allow a duplex. We're not preventing someone from living on that 
property we are regulating how that property can be utilized. 

Mr. Dodson: 
I'm not suggesting in any way you all are doing anything Uke that 

Mr. Rife: 
We're kind of 

Mr. Dodson: 
What I am saying there is that the new law dealing with housing is very 
general and if the effect of what a city is doing results in any 
discrimination of housing regardless of the absence of any attempt on the 
part of anybody, it gets to be a violation of the law, but that's not before 
you. 

Mr. Rife: 
If you said the, the uh, your present location, you could not conform with 
the Disabled Americans Disability Act, is that, I would believe that, I 
would believe that might be a reason you might have to move because that 
that is, your famiUar with that Mr. Miller that Congress has recently ~ 
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passed legislation on handicapped accessibility that its so broad as to be 
almost uninterpretable. 

Mr. Dodson: 
I know what your talking about. 

Mr. Rife: 
And it has been interpreted that any building anywhere has to be handicap 
accessible, not only to people passing through, but people who might work 
there, such as this podium would be illegal because you can't wheel a 
wheelchair up to it. I mean its that, if you represented to us that that is 
the situation Mental Health Services found themselves in I could buy that, 
but I don't see how Fair Housing would, I don't know are we allowed to 
have an opinion as to whether Fair Housing is applicable, Mr. Talevi, I 
mean, is that within our 

Mr. Talevi: 
First of all the Act that he is referring to he states becomes effective on 
July 1, 1991 and while I'm not uh stating whether the Act has any effect on 
this manner that is coming before the Board or not, I do think that the Act 
effective date comes subsequent to the Board's decision on June 4, 1991. 
Uh, I construe what you were saying Mr. Rife, is that notwithstanding, the 
status of the people, their condition was not the basis for their denial, and 
that would take us out from under any applicability that the Virginia Fair 
Housing Law or Act might have. 

Chairman: 
Alright, I'm willing to just drop the Fair Housing. Let's go to Roberts 
Rules and our Rules and see where we stand on that. Would you like to do 
that Mr. Thompson. 

Mr. Thompson: 
Yes sir, I have addressed that on the first part of this memorandum. {The 
tape runs blank) 

Chairman: 
We had a two two tie vote that it was not granted or not denied and it 
should be continued. 

It should still be before you that's right 

Chairman: 
I don't know when we've ever had one. 

Mr. Rife: 
You know the planning commission has a rule where if you don't have a 
majority, not of members present, but a majority of the Board. If you don't 
have four votes, something does not pass the planning commission. I 
believe I'm correct on that. 

Chairman: 
Well I think that the closest thing you have to that is 38.1853 which says a 
concurring vote of three members of the Board shall be necessary to 
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reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of any such 
administrative official or to decide in favor of the applicant on any matter 
upon which it is required to pass pursuant to this chapter. 

Chairman: 
That's right. 

Or to effect any variation of this chapter. I think what they are saying is 
you have to have three votes to do it. And that, I think the Code takes 
precedent over Roberts Rules of Order and so forth. 

Mr. Rife: 
Our vote was to deny the petition, is that correct. 

That's correct. The motion was denied. 

Mr. Rife: 
Since the motion didn't pass we denied the petition, and that's in essence 
what he is saying. 

Mr. Rife: 
And that we have in effect, not decided. 

We didn't deny the position, we didn't pass it, but we haven't voted on it 
yet. 

That's basically the position I take. 

Chairman: 
It does say that three members have to, only three have to be present, but 
all three have to vote to grant or deny it. Does it 

Mr. Rife: 
Does in indeed say that, I mean 

I think it means that 

Mr. Rife: 
This is specifically talking about it. If Mr. Miller were to turn down 
someone and then they brought it to the Board to reverse his decision isn't 
it as opposed to making a request in general, but Mr. Miller referred to the 
Board. 

Mr. Copty: 
Mr. Talevi, what do you say to speak to all this 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Copty. Let me try to start from square one. I have passed out to the 
Board a copy of Article 9. in the Board's Rules of Procedure. While Mr. 
Dodson, I'm not sure I fully appreciate how he is characterizing the 
memorandum that he has filed with the Board, I believe that a rehearing is 
what must be sought at this point. It Mr. Dodson or his client disagrees 
with how the decision was reached on June 4, I believe that there remedy is 
to appeal that decision or to seek a rehearing. Of course they can always 
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file another application that is substantially different than the previous 
application, that doesn't seem to be the approach that is being taken here. 
Having said that Section 1 provides that the motion for a rehearing must be 
held at this meeting. The first meeting succeeding the meeting at which 
the decision was rendered. It also provides that that motion must be 
carried by not less than the majority affirmative vote of the Board members 
present at the original meeting. Mr. Rife was not present at t!le June 4 
meeting and, therefore, on a motion for rehearing, we are going to need 
three people who that it should be reheard. Now, the finding that the 
Board must make is contained in paragraph 2 of Article 9 and that says no 
motion for a rehearing hall be considered by the Board unless new evidence 
is submitted which in the opinion of the Board could not have been 
reasonably presented at the meeting in which the original meeting was held. 
Now, Mr. Dodson is contending that his new evidence consists of not only 
the Virginia Fair Housing Act, but also the new evidence of this position on 
the motion and whether it was correct and whether there was a lawful 
decision made on June 4. This -Board must decide, actually the four 
members of the Board must decide whether that constitutes new evidence 
which could not have been reasonably presented at the meeting. 

Chairman: 
Alright, let's start right there for a minute. Give me the page uh, let me 
just read this section. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
What page are you on. 

Chairman: 
Uh, 34. Section 36 .1653. (The Chairman reads silently and ou tloud, but 
in a manner that was inaudible for transcription) That last sentence, the 
concurrent vote of three members of the Board shall be necessary to 
reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of any such 
administrative official, or to decide in favor of the applicant for any matter 
upon which is required to pass. A lawyer must have written that. 

Mr. Rife: 
The concurring vote of three members shall be necessary to decide 

Chairman: 
Alright in favor of 

Mr. Rife: 
The applicant on any manner 

Chairman: 
.•......•.••• when you get reading it that way, 3034, that's it, unless •.. 

The Board continues a discussion in very low monotones which proved regarding 
this section. 

Chairman: 
... or determination of any such administrative official. Steve does that 
mean to you whether it takes three to vote or not? To make any order 
legal? ~b 
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Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Norris, I believe that at the last hearing the applicant had the burden 
to garner three votes in favor of his application. There was not three 
votes in favor of that application. 

Chairman: 
We never voted that way though, the question was to not grant it. It was 
to not grant the application. 

Mr. Talevi: 
That's correct, to deny the application. 

Chairman: 
Yes, to deny it. I need my own attorney I think. 

Monotone discussion 

Chairman: 
Somebody use to correct me I think at times, was that you who said when I 
said a tie vote is noted, did you correct me that that wasn't right? 

Mr. Talevi: 
I don't recall if it was a tie vote or not and frankly, I don't recall 
correcting you Mr. Norris. 

Chairman: 
It must have been another attorney then. You haven't been here too long 
have you? Somebody corrected me, I guess ... Alright. 

Mr. Dodson: 
If it please the chairman, our feeling is that we ought to be entitled to the 
vote of the five members of the Board. I mean I think that's the fair thing 
to do on something this important to the community. 

Chairman: 
I don't think there's anything that says, they could have asked for a 
continuation until five members were present and we could have decided 
whether or not to do that, but just to say that's not fair, I think we could 
have three members and have decided for it and it would have been just as 
legal. Um, I voted against the motion so I'm for it if that means anything, 
but you still need to prove to the Board that you have, that we were in 
error and of course, you can always go to Court to do that. Or, if you do 
have information that was not presented. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Dodson are there any other, I didn't mean to synthesize your argument 
to succinctly or to concisely, are there any other facts that you want to 
present at this time in support of a motion for a rehearing. 

Mr. Dodson: 
I'm not aware of any new facts that we can present unless Mr. Altice 

Mr. Altice: 
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Well, one of the facts, that uh, two things I want to just mention. One 
again is that uh I left here disappointed needless to say about what 
happened and one of the things that bothered me most was was that the 
motion was to deny and by your rules the motion was defeated and thats 
why I said to Mr. Dodson that I thought it was still no the table because the 
motion itself was denied, so thats a concern and I feel like it needs to be 
addressed. Uh, also, the fact that I think there are two issues that 
continue to happen there. One was the fact that there are no programs in 
Northwest Roanoke and the fact that the programs are continuing to be 
overloaded in other parts of the city and I think its only fair that there is 
equal distribution and I don't think that was clearly stated at the last time 
when we were here. As well as there was an alliance stated between us and 
the Embassy Halfway house which we were not a part of and are not a part 
of and that was never I felt clearly stated. So thats the other two pieces 
for me. And I wish I had needless to say asked for a five member vote. 

That wouli have had the three votes here regardless? 

Mr. Dodson The only new information it occurs to me is that I was told that the 
question was asked and not answered as to why it was necessary to 
move out of the present location of Hegira House and the answer to 
that I have mentioned here before is that that place is in bad shape 
and Mr. Altice can testify to that and the the uh, its owned by 
someone that is uh not well, that would not put any money into it to 
remedy the things that have to be remedied and in addition to that 
the the the uh people that are there are confined to those four walls 
and the alternative is this new location where they wouldn't be. Now 
that's that's I don't know that that information was brought before 
the hearing. 

Chairman: 
It was 

Mr. Altice: 
And the other thing if that is enforced we will lose our license eventually if 
we don't make these repairs so we're stuck in a point to. We don't 
own the facility and we will eventually lose our license as a result of the 
plumbing and electrical ••• 

Chairman: 
You'll lose your license as a result of what now 

Mr. Altice: 

Chairman: 

As a result of the plumbing and electrical work and the structural 
process and so forth and so that is an issue. And we have been 
looking for other sites since the last time and we really haven't had 
any luck. We've had some people offer us some property that was 
just vacant and no buildings on it and things of that nature, but we 
really haven't had any luck. 

Alright, uh, 

Mr. Wheaton: 
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I'd like to raise a question on Section 2 here that we uh received. New 
evidence, I haven't heard any new evidence. New evidence that should be 
submitted. I haven't heard any new evidence yet. 

Mr. Dodson: 
Well the only new evidence that I can present to you is of a legal nature and 
uh) I don't know what there is, what basis there would possibly be fore 
new evidence. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
If you read the whole sentence it says new evidence which, in the opinion 
in the Board, could not have been reasonably represented at the meeting at 
which the original meeting was held. I haven't heard that yet. 

Mr. Dodson: 
Well, we are we are not uh I I I haven't proceeded beyond the first point 
that we were asking for a reconsideration on the basis of the vote. It does 
say that for a rehearing you have to have new evidence, and uh, the only 
new evidence that I come up with is of a legal nature, and we can uh uh, 
and I will say this to you which I haven't mentioned in that memorandum, 
we were faced with the cillemma that your two meetings were more than 
thirty days apart and if we didn't file an appeal within thirty days, we lost 
our right to appeal, so we filed an appeal in the Court in order to cover 
that situation, but that was the reason it was done. We are not interested 
in an appeal, we would like for you all to go ahead and decide the question, 
and, and 

Chairman: 
Mr. Talevi, can the Judge order this Board to rehear it? 

Mr. Talevi: 
He could. 

Chairman: 
Take us to Court why don't you. 

Mr. Dodson: 
Well, well 

Chairman: 
I believe that would probably 

Mr. Altice: 
On the basis of a procedural error? 

Mr. Talevi: 
There would be 

Mr. Altice: 
We've got some standing is that the right term 

Chairman: 
He might interpret this to mean that we have to have three members to 
pass, we do have to have three members to pass on a motion, but Steve is OI.S..C, 
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taking the course that a tie vote is. a no vote, right? And I have been, I 
have been threatened by some attorney before on that, but that is the way 
I have taken that. So I say if a Judge says that's wrong, then we'd have to 
rehear it. 

Mr. Talevi: 
There would be some delay in the appeal and putting together the record 
and that sort of thing, but I think 

Chairman: 
Or if he simply requested that we rehear it before 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well, he, he 

Chairman: 
I think the Board would have to consider it 

Mr. Talevi: 
He would remand it, he or she would remand it to you. 

Chairman: 
Or of course, he could, the Court could reverse our decision which doesn't 
happen very often, but it was a tie vote so it may give you a better chance 
with the Judge. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
I'd still like by way of conversation Mr. Chairman 

Chairman: 
Wait a minute he's trying to whisper something to me. Your not supposed 
to do that. Go ahead, talk loudly. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Okay, I've looked at this house that Hegira now occupies, it looks like a 
substantial building. It looks like it could be restored, it looks like since 
Hegira has gotten along so well in that neighborhood, it keeps bothering 
me, why couldn't that be restored and the operations continue there. 

Mr. Altice: 
Well the trouble Mr. Roberts is one 

Mr. Roberts: 
You mentioned plumbing and electricity and so far and I know that costs a 
lot of money, but thats a beautiful building •. 

Mr. Altice: 
It's a very beautiful building 

Mr. Roberts: 
I didn't mean to get a debate started, I'm just questioning in my own mind, 
I want to satisfy in my own mind 

Mr. Altice: 
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Okay, the issue for that is again, that we wrestle with i~ that we 
don't own the property. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Can't you buy it. 

Mr. Altice: 
Well, we've tried to buy the property on several occasions and. the man we 
are dealing with is elderly and he has a hard time remembering sometimes 
what the prices are and 

Mr. Roberts: 
Well, he's going to die one of these days 

Mr. Altice: 
I know and thats why we are trying to get a new place. His daughter 
apparently has a lot of influence on him and she wants to be able to get a I 
think move into the place herself. We are bound because our the money we 
get from our various funding sources, does not allows us to spend in the 
neighborhood of $150,000.00- $200,000.00 in renovations. We have a hard 
enough time putting food on the table. And we can't go to the Mental 
Hygiene Corporation to get the money or to a bank because we don't own 
the property. So we're stuck in a real bind and there's no way out and 
ultimately, something's going to happen to our landlord and we are going to 
be out and the other side of it is is that if that is not preceded by the fact 
that we lose our license because we can't do what we need to do. If you 
look at the facility you '11 see that a lot of the overhangs are in a bad state 
of repair, we've tried to get these fixed and in the past eighteen years 
there's been some work done, but not a lot, and and the fact that the 
program is in the condition and is in part of the condition it is is because of 
the residents and we've been able to juggle the money together. But there 
has been times when there were more monies· available than there are now. 
So thats thats, I hope it answers your questions. Thats as honest as I can 
be to you. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I just wanted you to know why I was so bothered. I understand. 

Chairman: 
Alright, so if, well. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Chairman I think the thing to do now is to ask for a motion that the 
rehearing be granted. 

Chairman: 
On the basis of 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well, again the Board would haye to find that there was new evidence that 
could not have been reasonably presented at the previous meeting. 

Chairman: 
And not on the basis of our voting 
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Mr. Talevi: 
Sir? 

Chairman: 
And not on the basis of our voting as far as your concerned, because 
you've ruled that we voted right, on the two-two decision. 

Mr. Rife: 
Your saying that procedurally we're correct on the vote. 

Chairman: 
Is that what you're saying? 

Mr. Talevi: 
I'm not sure I've made a ruling Mr. Norris, but again, I think at this point 
his remedy to question the correctness of that decision on June 4 is an 
appeal to the Circuit Court. 

Chairman: 
You think that would be an appeal to the Circuit Court rather than to the 
Board itself. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Uh, that's true, but again, if the Board believes that the the facts and 
when I say facts I am also including the two so-called legal arguments that 
Mr. Dodson has p~sented, if this Board believes that those facts 
constitutes new evidence which could not have been reasonably presented, 
then this Board may grant a rehearing. Again with Mr. Rife abstaining. 
Thats within the discretion of the Board. 

Mr. Dodson: 
I don't understand, excuse me, why Mr. R~e has to abstain. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well, on a on a rehearing motion and decision, it says that uh 

Chairman: 
I think just the members that were here. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Yes just the members that were here. 

Mr. Rife: 
The Board members present at the original hearing. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Right, thats in Section 1. 

Chairman: 
He's right on the line. Alright, do I hear, I I, my trouble is I don't think 
there's anything thats new evidence that could not have been reasonably 
presented at the original hearing. Thats my problem. I think the best bet 
is to take this to Court and let the Judge decide. 
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Mr. Talevi: 
Could we have a motion, at least someone make the motion and seconded and 
have a vote on it. 

Chairman: 
Alright do we have any motions. 

Mr. Rife: 
Not from me. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well it can't be you Mr. Rife. 

Chairman: 
Do I have a motion then that we deny his request for a rehearing? 

Mr. Copty: 
And we can't speak to this 2-2 negative vote. 

Mr. Talevi: 
What do you mean we can't speak to it. 

Mr. Copt: 
Uh we can't use that as a basis for a rehearing. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well, the uh, it doesn't define new evidence and its a pretty broad term. 

Mr. Copty: 
So we've determined that this is still not on the table, we are not 

Mr. Talevi: 
I believe that the Board has issued an Order in connection with its June 4 
hearing. The Board has made a decision. Now whether that decision was 
correct, Mr. Dodson has a right to appeal that decision to the Circuit 
Court. If this if this Board believes that there is new evidence and 
perhaps this Board agrees with some of the points made by Mr. Dodson or 
finds that some of the other statements made by the other gentlemen 
constitutes that in part or considered together, then this Board could 
rehear the matter or vote to rehear it. 

Chairman: 
Alright, do we have any motions then? About it being reheard or new 
evidence •••• 

Mr. Copty: 
Its a waste of time, I make a motion that we rehear it for new evidence and I 
make it on the fact that I think that there is just so much confusion with 
this whole thing that it would be nice if we clear it up ourselves. 

Chairman: 
I'd personally like the time to read Mr. Dodson's complete memorandum and 

Mr. Talevi: 
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We can take a short recess if you'd like Mr. Norris 

Chairman: 
Legally? 

Mr. Talevi: 
Take a short recess 

Chairman: 
No, oh a recess 

Mr. Talevi: 
Yes Sir. 

Chairman: 
Alright lets take a, anybody want a drink of water. Let's declare a five 
minute recess. 

RECESS 

Chairman: 
This is interesting, the last thing on Mr. Talevi's Ust hear was the Rules 
contained in Roberts Rules of Order newly revised'shall govern the Board 
in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not 
inconsistent with the standing rules of the Board. If you go by Roberts 
Rules we would need· three votes, if we go by what your saying is written 
in the ordinance, your saying that a tie vote is a no vote, you won't come 
right out and say that, but thats in effect what your saying isn't it? 

Mr. Talevi: 
I do think that the City Code 653 specifically permits the Board to reverse 
or affirm, reverse or affirm a decision by the zoning administration. And I 
think that means that the motion can be characterized either in terms of 
denying the application or granting the application, in this case of a special 
exception. Again, the burden is on the applicant to get those three votes. 

Chairman: 
Let the Judge decide. I can see we '11 be in a tie vote if we try to do 
anything. 

Mr. Talevi: 
We do have the motion for rehearing on the floor and I don't recall whether 
it was seconded or not. 

Chairman: 
Alright, who made it? 

Mr. Copty: 
I did 

Chairman: 
You made a motion for a rehearing, alright do I 
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Mr. Wheaton: 
What is the motion 

Mr. Copty: 
The motion is that we we rehear this petition for variance on this property. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Special exception 

Mr. Talevi: 
It was a special exception 

Mr. Copty: 
Alright 

Chairman: 
Alright do I hear a second. I'll second it. All in favor signify by saying 
Aye. Aye. 

Mr. Copty: 
Aye 

Chairman: 
The opposed no. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No 

Mr. Roberts: 
No 

Chairman: 
So we're at the same place again. 

Mr. Talevi: 
The motion for rehearing is defeated, there is no rehearing granted. At 
this point there only recourse would be to 

Chairman: 
To go to a court of law 

Mr. Talevi: 
That's right or to flle a substantially I believe its substantially different 
application. 

Chairman: 
Alright. Thank you. 

Mr. Altice: 
Thank you 

Chairman: 
I really appreciate your efforts, but we agreed to disagree. 
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Mr Copty: 
Do you want to poll the Board 

Mr. Talevi: 
Yeah, did you poll the Board 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts 

Mr. Roberts: 
Since I voted against the petition to begin with I think I would be 
inconsistent if I didn't vote the same way so I therefore, my is no 

Secretary: 
Mr. Wheaton 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No 

Secretary: 
Mr. Copty 

Mr. Copty: 
Yes 

Secretary: 
Mr. Norris 

Mr. Norris: 
Yes 

Mr. Roberts: 
I would not object to a new hearing if we could have some new evidence or 
something to base a change in my decision. 

Chairman: 
Or if the Court tells you to you would probably 

Mr. Roberts: 
That's true of course 

Chairman: 
Did you have fun, did you get anything down. 

Are we going to get another editorial for this. 

I think you ought to put Eldwood's picture on the paper for this. 

Chairman: 
Take a picture of the Board Joe. (inaudible) How about we start at the 
beginning, all in favor say Aye. 

Your elected .... 

:11.9 



To The Board of Zoning Appeals of 
the City of Roanoke, Virginia· 

Appeal No. 32-91-A 

Applicant: Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Inc. 
Premises: 1919 Andrews Road, N.W. 

Applicant and petitioner would respectfully show that 
by an order entered June 4, 1991, the board rendered a decision 
denying petitioner a variance as sought in its appeal in the 
above numbered case. 

Your petitioner alleges that the action taken by the 
board in denying its request was contrary to the established 
rules of parliamentary procedure and did not conform with the 
legal requirements in that there was a tie vote on the motion to 
deny its request and there was no vote taken on a motion to grant 
its request. 

Your petitioner alleges that the concept of 
"compatibility with the neighborhood" upon which the motion to 
deny the request was based was erroneous in that compatibility is 
expressly limited by the City Code to "the character and 
appearance of the surrounding neighborhood by virtue of the 
height, bulk, location on the lot, and the design and location of 
parking, siqnage, landscaping and other outside activities or 
structures••, none of which standards were addressed in the 
hearing. 

Your petitioner alleges that the refusal to permit the 
requested variance which is necessary to afford handicapped 
persons equal opportunity to use and enjoy the subject dwelling 
amounts to a discrimination under the Fair Housing Act of 1988. 

'l 
Wherefore, petitioner respectfully reque$.ts that the 

order of the board dated the 4th day of June, 1991, be set aside 
and the board reconsider this matter and that its requested 
special exception and variance be granted. 

The Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, 
Incorporated 

Petitioner 

L~~~/1_ 
BY--~------~~~------~--~~---

~~91} A Copy, T~ste:-4m~.....:......Q~~~ 
Patti C. Hanes, Saci~;~.::0' 0i 
Roanoke City Soard of Zoning Appea!s 
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To The Board of zoning Appeals of 
the City of Roanoke, Virginia 

Appeal No. 32-91-A 

Memorandum 

Applicant and Petitioner, The Roanoke Mental Hygiene 

Service, Inc. has requested a variance in order to purchase 

real estate and move its activities at Hegira House, to which 

there have been no complaints, from its present leased quarters 

at 1301 2nd Street, s.w. to 1919 Andrews Road, N.W. The need 

for this move is twofold - first, the condition of the present 

quarters and second, the _ideal suitability of the 13 acres at 

Andrews Road. The present leased quarters are in dire need of 

capital improvement and repair which the landlord is unwilling 

to furnish. The persons ministered to in the present quarters 

are limited to the building proper without adjoining property 

available for their use. The 13 acres at Andrews Road, N.w. 

would alleviate these cramped conditions and ownership would 

enable the owner to maintain the premises appropriately. 

The vote taken by the Board on June 4, 1991 on a 

motion to deny.the variance applied for resulted in a 2 to 2 

tie vote, with the other member of the Board absent because of 

sickness. It is submitted that despite the order stating that 

final disposition was made of the application, the matter is 

still before the Boa~d and can be acted upon as the Board sees 

fit either with or without further hearing. 
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I. THE APPLICATION IS STILL BEFORE THE BOARD. 

According to Article XV of the Rules of the Board: 

"The rules contained in Roberts Rules of 
Order newly revised shall govern the Board 
in all cases to which they are applicable 
and in which they are not inconsistent with 
the standing rules of the Board." 

Under Robert's Rules of Order, Section 46 Voting, 

pages 191 and 192, it is stated: 

1'0n a tie vote the motion is lost, and the 
chair, if a member of the assembly, may vote 
to make it a tie unless the vote is by 
ballot. 1' 

The title page of Robert's Rules of Order Revised 

indicates that it is a compendium of parliamentary law, based 

upon the Rules and practice of Congress. 

The Rules of the House of Representatives of the 

United States are equally clear. 

Rule 1 deals with the duties of the Speaker, who is 

the presiding officer. In paragraph 6 it is stated: 

"He shall not be required to vote in 
ordinary legislative proceedings, except 
where his vote would be decisive, or where 
the House is engaged in voting ··by ballot: 
and in cases of a tie vote the -guestion-
shall be lost." ~ 

In the footnote beneath· this· statement is the 

following: 

1'The Chair may vote to make a tie and so 
decide a question in the negative, as he may 
vote to break a tie and decide a question in 
the affirmative. 1

' 

2 
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In the present case, the chair voted to make a tie and 

so decided the question in the negative - that is, the motion 

to deny the application did not pass and accordingly the 

application is still before the Board. 

With regard to Rehearings, Article IX of the Rules of 

the Board state: 

"No rehearing of an appeal or application on 
which the Board has previously rendered a 
decision shall be held, except on motion 
made by a member of the Board to reconsider 
the previous decision, made not later than 
the first meeting succeeding the meeting at 
which the decision was rendered and carried 
by not less than a majority affirmative vote 
of the Board members present at the original 
hearing. 

No motion for a rehearing shall be 
considered by the Board unless new evidence 
is submitted which, in the opinion of the 
Board, could not have been reasonably 
presented at the meeting at which the 
original hearing was held. •• 

It is notable that this rule dealing with Rehearings 

presupposes that the decision to be reconsidered was "rendered 

and carried by not less than a majority affirmative vote of the 

Board members present at the original hearing". This confirms 

the contention that it would have taken 3 votes to determine 

the question. 

The same 3 vote requirement for the Board of Zoning 

Appeals is covered by Roanoke City Code Sec. 36.1-653 which 

states in part as follows: 

"The concurring vote of three ( 3 ) members of 
the board shall be necessary to reverse any 
order, requirement, decision or 
determination of any such administrative 

._%c-~ 
. . - .. .. 

•• • o I -:-



:SON. ;:a~NCi: ·/tAR. 

:CORUM &. ~AC-<£Y 

official, or to decide in tavor . of the 
applicant on any matter upon which it is 
required to pass pursuant to this chapter or 
to effect any variation of this chapter." 

II. IF A REHEARING IS TO BE CONSIDERED, THE NEW 

EVIDENCE BEING SUBMITTED IS THE PARLIAMENTARY QUESTION 

HERETOF.ORE ADDRESSED AND THE NEW VA. HOUSING LAW EFFECTIVE JULY 

1, 1991. 

The Virginia Fair Housing Law, effective July 1, 1991 

has the following declaration of policy: 

coverage. 

"It is the policy of the commonwealth of 
Virginia to provide for fair housing 
throughout the commonwealth, to all its 
citizens, regardless of race, color, 
religion, national origin, sex, elderliness, 
familial status or handicap; and to that end 
to prohibit discriminatory practices with 
respect to ·residential housing by any person 
or group of persons, in order that the 
peace, health, safety, prosperity and 
general welfare of all the inhabitants of 
the Commonwealth may be protected and 
insured. This law shall be deemed an 
exercise of the policy power of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia for the protection 
of the people of the commonwealth." Acts of 
Assembly, 1991, Ch. 557. 

This same law adds handicapped persons to its 

In other words, there can not be discrimination 

against handicapped persons just as tflere cannot be 

discrimination in housing against persons 'because of race, 

color, religion, national origin, etc. 

If the basis for denying the variance_ is attributable 

to the handicapp~d status of those at Heqira House , it is 

submitted that their rights are being violated. 

4 
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In conclusion, we would suggest that it is only fair 

that in a matter such as the one before the Board involving the 

entire Roanoke community, the issue should be determined by a 

vote of all 5 members of the Board. 

E. Griffith Dodson, ·Jr. 

Respectfully submitted, 

THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE, INC. 

By Counsel 

Dodson, Pence, Viar, Woodrum & Mackey 
110 Church Avenue, s.w. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24011 
(703) 345-0426 
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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

Roanoke, Virginia 
.~ July 9, 1991 

The Board of Zoning Appeals met in regular session on 
Tuesday, July 9, 1991, in the council Chamber, Municipal 
Building, and considered the request of The Roanoke Mental 
Hygiene Service, Incorporated, for a rehearing, as stated 
below. 

PRESENT: L. Elwood Norris, T. E. Roberts, Walter Wheaton, 
Richard Rife, Bob Copty. 

ABSENT: None 

CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Ronald H. Miller, Zoning Adm. 
Steve Talevi, Asst. City Attorney 

PREMISES: 1919 Andrews Road, N. W. 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by the 
Chairman, who presided. 

SUBJECT: 

The request of the applicant that the Order of the 
Board, dated the 4th day of June, 1991, be set aside 
and the Board reconsider this matter and that its 
requested special exception and variance be granted. 

After due consideration and in keeping with the Rules of 
the Procedure of the Board, the following action was 
taken to let the courts decide if the Boards action 
of a tie vote was in conformance with the Rules of The 
Procedure of the Board. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

Mr. Griffin Dodson appeared with Mr. Henry Altice on 
behalf of Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 
requesting a rehearing and submitting evidence to 
the Board concerning "compatibility with the 
neighborhood" and the Fair Housing Act of 1988. 

~ 
:1.20 A Copy. Tsste;~W: ... C cQ!c:Nb 

. C H c- ~,--.-:-... ~r'j "'~f ?attl .• anes, \JC..,......... "". 
Roanoke City Boaid of Zomng Appeals 
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THE MOTION: 

A motion was made by Mr. Copty and seconded by Mr. 
Norris to rehear the application of Roanoke Mental 
Hygiene, Inc., for new evidence for a special 
exception to allow a group home at 1919 Andrews Road, 
N.W. 

THE VOTE: 

AYES: Messrs. Norris, Copty 

NAYS: Messrs. Roberts, Wheaton 

PRESENT AND NOT VOTING: Mr. Richard A.· Rife (illness 
prevented attendance at 
previous hearing) 

The Chairman thereupon declared the motion failed to 
pass. Therefore neither the special exception nor the 
variance nor the request for a rehearing was granted. 

~););\ C ~ Secretary 
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L. Eiwood Norns. Chairman 
i. E. Roberts. Vice Cha1rman 

W. L. Wheaton 
Robert A. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Patti C. Hanes. Secretary 

ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

Applicant: Roanoke Mental Hygiene service, 
Incorporated 

Premises: 1919 Andrews Road, N.W. 

In accordance with the authority vested in the Board of 
Zoning Appeals, as set forth in Section 36.1-656, Zoning, 
City Code, to hear and decide applications for special 
exception, a public hearing was conducted on Tuesday, July 9, 
1991, in the Council Chamber, Municipal Building, on the 
following request, said hearing having been heard on June 4, 
1991. 

The request of the applicant for a special exception, 
as provided 1.1nder Section 3 6 • 1-9 0 , Zoning, to permit 
a group home, with a variance from Section 36.1-560 
to allow as many as 24 persons in lieu of eight. 

The request of the applicant for a rehearing and that 
the Order of the Board, dated the 4th day of June, 1991, 
be set aside and the Board reconsider this matter and 
that its special exception and variance be granted. 

Facts and conditions involved in said application were 
investigated by the Board, inspections of the property in 
question having been made prior to the public hearing date. 

In consideration of the request herein, the following 
action was taken by the Board to not grant the request of 
a rehearing and to let the courts decide if the Boards action 
of a tie vote was in conformance with the Rules of The 
Procedure of the Board. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request herein not be 
granted. ® 

A COP'/· Teste: ~~'gj:C: •~ 
c~,.,.,.~· r. H-::"e:::. Soc:-~iary of 
I ~i,., ....-• ~* 1 "•. 

r--,."'·.:(l ... l,-.:-. r~··t'' :~.·.~~c;; of Zonina Appeals ,,....,..__.,..,, .... J • ., •• ~ ._,__ w 

Room 170, MunicipaJ Building 215 Chuch \~~· W., Roanoke, Virginia 24011 {703) 981-2250 



BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, this the 9th 
day of July, 1991. 

Secretary 
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'TTORN£YS AT LAW 

ROANOKE. VA 

VIRGIMIA: 

IH THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE, INCORPORATED 

v. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF 
THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AMENDED PETITION 

Your petitioner, The Roanoke Mental Hygiene service, 

Incorporated, respectfully represents as follows: 

COUNT I 

1. On the 19th day of March, 1991, it filed an 

appeal No. 32-91-A to the board of zoning appeals of the 

City of Roanoke, seeking a special exception as provided 

under Section 36.1-90(2), zoning, to permit a group home at 

1919 Andrews Road, N.W., with a variance from Section 36.1-

560 to allow as many as twenty-four persons in lieu of 

eight. 

2. Petitioner alleges that its request for 

relief was reasonable and proper and within the jurisdiction 

of the board. 

3. Petitioner alleges that Sections 35.1-650 and 

35.1-651 of the Code of the City of Roanoke provide for a 

Board of Zoning Appeals consisting of five members for which 

a quorum for the taking of action shall be not less than a 

majority of all the members of the board. 

4. Petitioner alleges that when its appeal last 

came on to be heard before the board on the 4th day of June, 

.124 
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1991, only four members were present for the said hearing. 

In the course of the meeting, a motion to deny the request 

failed to pass by a majority of the Board on a vote of 2 to 

2. Thereupon, the chairman declared the motion failed to 

pass by a majority of the board and that neither the 

requested special exception nor the variance was granted and 

it was so ordered on that day. 

5. Petitioner alleges that as a potential buyer 

of the subject property conditioned upon a necessary 

variance, it is a person jointly or severally aggrieved by 

the action of the board; that there was no vote taken on a 

motion to grant its request and as a consequence there was 

no appropriate basis for a final disposition thereof. 

Likewise, the vote on the motion to deny its request was not 

passed by a majority. Accordingly, petitioner alleges that 

the action of the board did not conform with legal 

requirements and in was excess of its jurisdiction under the 

circumstances. 

6. Your petitioner alleges that the concept of 

"compatibility with the neighborhood" upon which the motion 

to deny the request was based was erroneous in that 

compatibility is expressly limited by the city Code to "the 

character and appearance of the surrounding neighborhood by 

virtue of the height, bulk, location on the lot, and the 

design and location of parking, signage, landscaping and 

2 
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other outside activities or structures", none of which 

standards were addressed in the hearing. 

7. Your petitioner alleges that the refusal to 

permit the requested variance which is necessary to afford 

handicapped persons equal opportunity to use and enjoy the 

subject dwelling amounts to a discrimination under the Fair 

Housing Act, 42 u.s.c. §3601 et seg. and the Virginia Fair 

Housing Law §36-96.1 et seg. 

8. Petitioner further alleges that the action of 

the said board constituted a violation of its rights under 

the laws of the City of Roanoke, and the Constitution of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia and the Constitution of the United 

states and was not in accordance with the laws of the land 

and due process of law. 

COUNT II 

9. That the Petitioner reaffirms the allegations 

of paragraphs 1 - 8 COUNT I of this· Amended Petition and 

incorporates the same as if fully set out herein. 

10. Petitioner alleges that in Item 17 

(Transcript of Board of Zoning Appeals, June 4, 1991, public 

hearing) of the original Certificate of Record filed by the 

defendant on August 19, 1991, at page 32, the vote of the 

Board was polled on the question to deny petitioner's 

request and the count reported was one aye and three noes. 

Contrary to that count, the vote is set forth in the signed 

minutes of the Board June 4, 1991, item 20-6 as 2 to 2. The 

3 
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; 

order of the Board dated June 4, 1991, item 22-2 states that 

a motion to deny the request failed to pass by a majority of 

the Board, whereupon the Chairman declared that neither the 

requested special exception nor the variance was granted. 

In fact, only the denial of the variance was significant for 

Va. Code §15.1-486.3 provides that residential facilities 

for no more than eight handicapped persons with one or more 

resident counselors or other staff persons shall be 

considered occupancy by a single family. According to the 

transcript, minutes, and order, no motion to grant the 

request for the variance has ever been voted upon. The 

confusion of the record requires clarification by the Board. 

COUNT III 

11. That the Petitioner reaffirms the allegations 

of paragraphs 1 - 10 of Counts I and II of this amended 

petition and incorporates the same as if fully set out 

herein. 

12. Petitioner alleges that the Board has failed 

to make the findings of fact required by the applicable 

Roanoke City Ordinance. section 36.1-656 provides, in part, 

as follows; 

(b) In considering an application for special 

exception, the board of zoning appeals sha11 

determine the appropriateness of the application 

based on the following standards: 

4 
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(1) The use is compatible with the character and 

appearance of the surrounding neighborhood by 

virtue of its height, bulk, location on the lot, 

and the design and location of parking, signage, 

landscaping and other outside activities or 

structures. 

(2) The use does not create a demand on public 

water or sanitary sewer services that exceeds the 

design capacity of these systems or that would in 

any way decrease the quality of service to the 

surrounding neighborhood. 

(3) The use does not generate traffic on public 

streets that exceeds the design capacity of said 

streets and does not create a dangerous traffic problem 

by virtue of driveway location, site clearance, 

driveway slope or other factor. 

(4) The use does not increase· the flood potential in 

the surrounding neighborhood. 

(5) The use is in conformance with the setback, yard, 

frontage, lot area, parking, signage, screening, 

shading and other applicable requirements of this 

chapter as they pertain to the district in which the 

use is located or to the specific use, whichever the 

case may be. 

(6) The use furthers the intent of the comprehensive 

plan. 

5 
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13. That it is ess~ntial to the exercise of 

judicial review in variance cases that a sufficient record 

be made in order for the court to review the Board's action. 

hmes v. Town of Painter 239 VA .342 (1990.) The Board's 

failure to make certain findings of fact required by statute 

in this variance case violates the requirements of law. 

Wherefore the petitioner prays that the Court reverse 

the decision of the Board of Zoning Appeals or refer this 

matter back to the Board for a proper and legal action as 

required by law. 

STATE OF VIRGINIA 

CITY OF ROANOKE 

) 
) 
) 

The Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, 

Binycor~ ~ece~Jy 

to-wit: 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this~~day of 
August, 1991. 

My commission expires: 

(JpJ1iJ ~ ttff3 
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Dodson, Pence, Viar, Woodrum & Mackey 
E. Griffith Dodson, Jr. 
Clifton A. Woodrum 
110 Church Avenue 
Post Office Box 1371 
Roanoke, Virginia 24007 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby c~f~ th~ a copy of the foregoing Amended 
Petition was sp~£tr slass ma~·to Wilburn c. Dibling, 
Jr., City Attorney, and Steven J. Talevi, Assistant city 
Attorney. 464 Municipal Building, Roanoke, Virginia 24011, 
this Af~ day of August, 1991. 
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~~~ Board of Zoning Appeals 
--------------------------------------~~~~~== 

L. 8wood Norris, Chairman 
T. E. Roberts, Vice Chairman 

W. L Wheaton 
Robert A. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Patti C. Hanes, Secretary 

Mrs. Doris H. Banks 
P.O. Box 6062 
Roanoke, Virginia 

RE: Hegira House 

Dear Mrs. Banks: 

September 17, 1991 

24017 

According to our files and records of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals public hearings on the request made by Roanoke 
Mental Hygiene Service, Inc. to establish a group home for 
up to 24 adults at 1919 Andrews Road, N.W., you have served 
as an area/neighborhood spokesperson in regard to this 
matter. The purpose of this letter is to notify you of the 
scheduled court hearing on the Hegira House which has been 
set for Tuesday, October 22, 1991 at 8:45 a.m. before Judge 
Willett in the Roanoke City Circuit Court. 

We would also like to inform you that we are notifying those 
persons that spoke at the last Board of Zoning Appeals 
public hearing on the subject matter and we would appreciate 
your cooperation and assistance in informing all other 
concerned property owners and residents in the area of the 
upcoming court hearing date, time and location as well. 

For your information, enclosed please find a copy of the 
notice letter and list of persons that are being notified by 
our office.· 

If you should need any additional information or 
clarification of any material contained herein, please do 
not hesitate to contact our office at your earliest 
convenience. Again, your assistance and cooperation in this 
matter is appreciated. 

Room 170, MunicipaJ Building (703) 981-2250 



Letter to Mrs. Banks 
Page 2 
September 17, 1991 

PCH:edd 
attachments 
copy to file 
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Sincerely, 

~-~ 
Mrs. Patti Hanes, 
Secretary to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

~\-~ 
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Notices were mailed to the following: 

Oliver Stein 
4102 Mud Lick Road 
Roanoke, Virginia 24018 

Dr. & Mrs. T.W. Banks 
1823 Syracuse Avenue N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24012 

L. H. Hamlar 
1837 Grayson Avenue N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

Omar Rabb 
1325 Crescent Street N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

Mary Terry 
3408 Pittsfield Avenue N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

Hugh w. Ennis 
1811 Syracuse Avenue N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24012 

George Riles 
1925 Andrew Road N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

133 

Mike Smith 
2922 Forest Hill Avenue 
Roanoke, Virginia 24012 

Mr. & Mrs. w.c. Prunty 
P.O. Box 6615 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

David Burke 
1529 Grayson Avenue N.W. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

Bill Lawrence 
Reentry Director/Hegira 
House of Roanoke Valley 
1301 2nd Street s.w. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24016 

Gary H. Brown 
3053 E. Ordway Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

Tyrone Charlton 
. 3419 Pittsfield Avenue 

Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

3>\-~ 

· :. · -~-c_);;Jawe 
..... .; · .... 

• ;·-·~ •• ·.::-,:.: ._ .. J .. ~ ::~:· . .: ,::,: ~~rt:~:g A~pea!s 



<~ 

~~ Board of Zoning Appeals 
--------------------------------------------~~~~~ 

L. Elwood Norris, Chairman 
T. E. Roberts, Vice Chairman 

W. L Wheaton 
Robert R. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Patti C. Hanes, Secretary 

September 17, 1991 

Dear concerned Property owner/Resident: 

RE: Hegira House 

According to our files and records of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals public hearings on the request made by Roanoke 
Mental Hygiene Service, Inc. to establish a group home for 
up to 24 adults at 1919 Andrews Road, N.W., you spoke as a 
concerned neighborhood resident in regard to this matter. 

The purpose of this letter is to notify you of the scheduled 
court hearing on the Hegira Bouse which has been set for 
Tuesday; October 22, 1991 at 8:45 a.m. before Judge Willett 
in the Roanoke City Circuit Court. 

We would also like to inform you that we have notified Mrs. 
Doris Banks as the spokesperson for this area and we would 
appreciate your cooperation and assistance in this matter by 
sharing this information with any pther concerned property 
owner or resident in the area of the upcoming court hearing 
date, time and location. 

If you should need any additional information or 
clarification of any material contained herein, please do 
not hesitate to contact our office at your earliest 
convenience. Again, your assistance and cooperation in this 
matter is appreciated. 

PCH:edd 
attachments 
copy to file 

Room 170, Municipal Building 

134 

Sincerely, 

-\Jc...,~.~~ 
Mrs. Patti Hanes, 
Secretary to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

215 Chuch Avenue, S. W., Roanoke, Virginia 24011 (703) 981·2250 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE, INCORPORATED 

v. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF 
THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

) 
) 
) 
) ORDER 
) 
) ehancer]~O. 91000659-00 

~ ~/JW 

On the 22nd day of October, 1991, came the parties hereto, by 

.: counsel, and the matter which had previously been set for hearing , 
d 
! and argument and was argued by counsel. 
I 

I 
1 At the conclusion whereof, the Board of Zoning Appeals of the 

:j City of Roanoke, by counsel, stated that if certain procedural 
II 

·! ambiguities exist as to the proceedings before the Board of Zoning 

; Appeals of the City of Roanoke, such ambiguities could be cured by 
; 
l 

·: a remand and hearing before the Board and further indicated that it 
:1 
1 would not object to an order remanding this case to the Board of 

! Zoning Appeals of the City of Roanoke. 
i 
' I 

l 
l 

It is accordingly ADJUDGED and ORDERED that this case be and 

the same hereby is remanded to the Board of Zoning Appeals of the I 
' I 
l I 

I 
City of Roanoke for a hearing by the Board and such further l 

I 

I 

1 
proceedings as it may determine •. LJa 

/'} .-""' 
ENTERED this Z_ =>· day of _ .. ·......;;;;,;,,_;t::~;T/~J.;;u.;..: ~....__~--.-..'*---
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~~Dibling, Jr. 
City Attorney 
Steven J. Talevi 
Assistant City Attorney 
464 Municipal Building 
Roanoke, Virginia 24011 

Counsel for the Board of Zoning 
Appeals of the City of Roanoke 

of 
& MACKEY 

24007 

li Counsel for The Roanoke Mental Hygiene 
ll'l Service, Incorporated .4L- \ 
I I :_':li\J 
:l 
r~ 

l 

- 2 -

136 

BK 00 



L. 8wood Norris, Chairman 
T. E. Roberts, Vice Chairman 

W. L Wheaton 
Robert R. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Patti C. Hanes, Secretary 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS BEFORE THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

Pursuant to provisions of law made for such purposes, 

the Board of Zoning Appeals will hold public hearings on 

Tuesday, December 3, 1991, at 2 p.m., in the Council 

· Chamber, Municipal Building, on the following applications: 

1. Request of Gene Lucas, 1005 35th Street N.W., 

for a variance from Section 36.1-111 (a), Zoning, 

minimum yard requirements, to provide a front yard set back 

of 13.7 ft. in lieu of the required 30ft., to allow 

reconstruction of house. 

2. Request of Lady Bird Apparel, Inc., 1255 

Williamson Road, S.E., for a-special exception as provided 

under Section 207 (8), Zoning, to allow light manufacturing 

with retail sales in a commercial district. 

3. Request of NuT. Kong, 920 Stewart Avenue, s. E., 

for a variance from Section 36.1-130 (a), Zoning, minimum 

yard requirements, to provide front yard set back of 22.1 

ft. in lieu of the required 30 ft., to allow a 4 ft. x 5 ft. 

roofed addition to side of house. 
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4. Request of Mr. & Mrs. Hugh A. Thornhill, 2715 

Rosalind Avenues. W., for a variance from Section 36.1-93 

(a), minimum yard requirements, to provide front yard set 

back of 29.1 ft. in lieu of the required 30ft., for rear 

porch addition. 

5. Request of Dorman M. Miller, 10-24th Street s.w., 

for a variance from Section 36.1-93 (c), Zoning, minimum 

yard requirements, to provide a rear yard set back of 14 ft. 

in lieu of the required 25ft., to permit construction of a 

10 ft. 9 in. x 15 ft. addition to rear of house. 

6. Request of John c. Campbell, 1506 Tazewell Avenue 

s. E., for a variance from Section 36.1-111 (b), Zoning, 

' minimum yard requirements, to provide a side yard set back_ 

of 2.8 ft. in lieu of the required 4 ft. for an existing 18 

ft. x 20 ft. addition. 

7. Request of Fahed T. Twalbeh, 4.19-13th Street S. W., 

for a variance from Section 36.1-211 (b), Zoning, 

minimum yard requirements, to provide a side yard set back 

of 0 ft. in lieu of the required 20 ft. to allow a 9.5 

ft. x 11.8 ft. addition. 

8. Request of Jeffrey w. Hayslett, 411 Dale Avenue 

s. E., for a variance from Section 36.1-429, Zoning, parking 

requirements, to waive 4 off-street parking spaces required 

for a duplex. 

9. Request of Helen Knight Bujnak, 2619 Alberta 

Avenue, s. w., for a variance from Section 36.1-93 (a), 

1.38 
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Zoning, minimum yard requirements, to permit construction 

of a house.15 ft. 6 in. from front property line in lieu of 

the required 30 feet. 

10. Request of Robert E. Ford, 2443 Garden City Blvd. 

S.E., for a variance from Sections 36.1-594 (a) & 596, 

Zoning, nonconforming uses of buildings and structures, and 

change of nonconforming use to another use, to permit 

the resumption of operation of a carpet, tile, vinyl, wall 

paper, furniture and appliance store. 

11. Request of Geneva Kincer, 4215 Appleton Avenue 

N. w., 421:5 Appleton Avenue N. w., for a variance from 

Section 36~1-76 (a), Zoning, minimum yard requirements, to 

permit carport 20 ft. from front yard set back in lieu of 

·the required 30 feet. 

12. Request of Roanoke Valley Church of Christ/ 

Christian, 3622 Hershberger Road N. w., for variances from 

Section 36.1-93 (a), Zoning, minimum yard requirements; 

to provide a front yard set back of 15 ft. in lieu of the 

required 30ft., Section 36.1-407, Zoning, multiple 

structures on the same lot; and Section 36.1-433 (a), 

Zoning, surface treatment of off-street parking lots, to 

provide for the construction of a new church building. 

13. Request of Edward Walker, 701-12th Streets. W., 

for a special exception as provided under Section 36.1-127 

(3), Zoning, t9 allow an art gallery. 

14. Request of Karl A. Vandegriff, 2629 Wycliffe 

Avenues. w., for a variance from Section 36.1-402 (b) (5), 

1.39 
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Zoning, additional yard requirements, to permit constructi 

of an addition 8 ft. 8 in. from side property line in lieu 

of the required 15 feet. 

15. Request of WVFT-TV, 2618 Colonial Avenues. w., 

for a variance from Sections 36.1-211 (a) & 404 (a), Zoning, 

minimum yard requirements, and set back lines from major 

arterial highways, to permit satellite dish to remain 11 

feet from the front property line in lieu of the required 25 

feet. 

16. Request of Stephen s. Kennedy, 3260 Allenda~e 

Streets. w., for a variance from Section 36.1-531 (d)~ ·. 
Zoning, accessory uses and structures, to permit garage to 

be used for human habitation. 

17. Request of Roanoke Mental Health Services, Inc., 

for a rehearing of a special exception, as provided under 
~ 

Section 36.1-90 {2), Zoning, to allow a group home for 

substance abusers at 1919 Andrews Road N. W. with a variance 

to permit 24 persons in lieu of the required 8. 

At these hearings persons affected by the Board's 

decision may appear and present their views in person or by 

agent or attorney, as provided by the Zoning Ordinance. 

Patti c. Hanes 
Secretary 

(Publish in ROANOKE TIMES & ~-JORLD NEWS Monday, November 18, 

1991 and Monday, November 25, 1991) 

,, 

'" 
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~QAKE Board of Zoning Appeals 
------------------------------------------------~~~~ 

L. 8wood Norris, Chairman 
T. E. Roberts, Vice Chairman 

W. L Wheaton 
Robert A. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Patti C. Hanes, Secretary 

ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

Applicant: Roanoke Mental Health Services, 
Inc. 

Premises: 1919 Andrews Road N.W. 

In accordance with the ·authority vested in the Board of 
Zoning Appeals, as provided under Sections 36.1-655 & 
36.1-656, Zoning, City Code, to hear and decide appeals from 
the decision of the Zon.ing Administrator, a public hearing 
was conducted on Tuesday, December 3, 1991, in the Council 
Chamber, Municipal Building, on the following request: 

The request of the applicant for a special exception 
as provided under Section 36.1-90 (2), Zoning, to 
allow a group home for substance abusers at 1919 Andrews 
Road N.W., with a variance to permit 24 persons in lieu 
of the permitted a. 
Facts and conditions involved in said application were 

investigated by the Board, inspections of the property in 
question having been made prior to the public hearing date. 

Pursuant to a Decree entered under date of October 23, 
1991, the Circuit Court remanded this matter to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals for a hearing. 

Upon consideration of the record, and evidence and 
testimony adduced to the hearing held on December 3, 1991, 
all interested persons and parties being given a f~ll and 
fair opportunity to be heard. Motion to grant the request 
was made by Mr. Robert R. Copty. Mr. Richard A. Rife 
seconded the motion. Whereupon a vote was taken, Messrs. 
Copty, Rife and L. Elwood Norris voting in favor of said 
motion, and Messrs. w. L. Wheaton and T. E. Roberts voting 
against said motion. The vote being a three (3) votes in ~ 
favor of the motion and two (2) votes against the motion. ~ 
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request herein 
be granted. 

The Building Commissioner is hereby authorized to 
issue the proper permit for said certificate of occupancy 
in accordance with the decision of the Board, with the 
understanding that said certificate is null and void if not 
obtained within six months from the date of this Order. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, this the 3rd 
day of December, 1991. 

~~~an • lwood s 

RiCfiai: A. Rr e 

'27.:/. ]1~~-15;; 
W. L. Wheaton 

~~ 
Secretary 
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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

Roanoke, Virginia 
December 3, 1991 

APPEAL NO: 32-91-A 

APPUCANT: Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc. 

PREMISES: 1919 Andrews Road. Nonhwest 

PRESIDING: L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, 

Chairman: 
Alright is uh, we'll come back into session. Have we got all the microphones the way 
its supposed to be. How is everyone going to see this t.v. Mr. Talevi? Should they 
see it or how .. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well, Mr. Norris, the most im~t thing is that the Board sees it, maybe we can 
turn it at an angle or something so that the Board and at least some of the audience 
can see it, but again, the most important thing is that the Board see it for its 
consideration. 

Chairman: 
Alright, will anyone who's getting, who's t.v. is it? Who's going to operate this. 

Uh the video is part of my presentation uh of my representation of the neighborhood who is 
opposed to the request for special 

Chairman: 

Ten 

Well, if you would ay and nun it a little sideways so as to the let them see it but as 
the city attorney says, we're the ones that have to see it so, I'm just trying to let 
everybody see everything. Uh, before we start. .. Just as a little preface to this hearing. 
This will be a complete new hearing. This went through the Coun and due to cenain 
procedural ambiguities, the CoUit ordered that the Board of Zoning Appeals rehear this 
request so I still will ask you not to be repetitive in any way if you can possibly help 
it or we'll just be here for hours. But, we want everyone to have time to be heani 
completely because it is a new hearing Oldered by the Court. So, let's see, how many 
folks .do you have to speak, three or four? 

Chairman: 
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Ten, alright then let's have everyone then that is for, let's have everyone that is going 
to spe~ those who are going to speak, or think they are going to speak, stand to be 
sworn in at the same time. If you'll stand please and remember that you will have to 
give your name and address to the secretary before you speak and also sign the roster 
before you speak. Alright, will everybody raise their right hand. Do you solemnly 
swear to tell the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God. Alright then 
if ya '11 would be seated and let this gentlemen proceed. 

Mr. Altice: 
Okay, once again I'm glad to be here before the Board. My name is Henry Altice, 
I'm Director of Hegira House and we're requesting a zoning variance to allow the 
Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Incorporated and Hegira House Mental Health 
Services of the Roanoke Valley to place twenty-four residents at 1919 Andrews Road 
instead of eight Uh, I want to say that there is a lot of documentation that you have 
on record so I'm going to try and not be redundant. I just want to reiterate a couple 
of points and then I will turn it over to the speakers and uh, I feel like the speakers 
that will be speaking is new information that I feel like needs to be considered this 
afternoon. Uh, as you know, that the program has been at 1301 Second Street for 
over eighteen years and uh, I feel like we have established ourselves quite well in the 
community and we '11 have some speakers to be able to talk about that. We've also 
talked considerably in the past about the security of the program and the rigid 
licensure requirements has and how that the program is staffed twenty-four hours a 
day, seven days a week by professional counselors with a close liaison with the 
Department of Corrections, Probation and Parole and the Couns and the Roanoke City 
Police Department and that, of course, will remain in effect if we move to 1919 
Andrews Road. I know that there are many concerns about uh what the clients do, 
and the clients of course can talk some today and we've had them on public record in 
the past on the intensity of the program and the difficulty of the program and that 
people are not allowed to do what they want to there, that they have to make some 
changes in their life to complete the Hegira House program. Also I want· to reiterate 
the fact that no one, no resident in the program is currently under the influence or 
using alcohol or drugs. These people are totally involved in their treatment and totally 
absent of these substances. They are dealing with the psychological addition, any kind 
of physiological addiction was already addressed before they were actually placed in 
the program. Also, I want to say that I believe by that and by the fact that are 
security is very tight that we are not going to contribute to bringing drugs into this 
community and into devaluating the community. I know from listening and reading 
over the testimony from the last hearing in April, several of the residents from the 
Andrews Road area talked· about being scared at night to go in to the park, that there 
were drug dealers or pistol people or people shooting pistols or automatic weapons, uh · 
and this testimony is part of the public record. So I want to say that our clients are 
not allowed to go anywhere they want and there has never been any indication in our 
community that om clients were doing anything of this nature, but rather being a 
contributing member of the community there in Southwest. Also, I want to say that 
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the new speakers today can talk about who we are in the community that we have 
been in the past. I think that a lot of people don't really understand our reputation 
and how we've been functioning in the community from someone who has actually 
lived beside us and dealt with us on an everyday basis and I think that will be 
enlightening to uh the Board. So, with that in min~ I will uh, conclude briefly my 
comments and let Margo Kiely give us some more information. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you Mr. Altice. 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Good afternoon, I'm Margo Kiely and I live at 2029 Maiden Lane, Southwest. I'm 
the Director of Substance Abuse Services Programs for Mental Health Services of the 
Roanoke Valley and today I'd like to address in particular, two issues with you. The 
first issue is what kind of hardship we would face if we could not continue to 
accommodate our twenty-four residents rather than the eight provided for and why we 
cannot remain in our current location. Both of these issues have come up before this 
Board of Zoning Appeals before and what I'd like to provide is a little more detail in 
the answers we were able to give you in the pasl First, as to the issue of program 
size. Hegira is built on what we call the therapeutic community model. Any 
therapeutic community requires four basic components in order for it to operate and be 
successful The first is intensive staff supervision. Second, peer pressure. Pressure 
from, positive peer pressure from one individual in the program, one group of 
individuals in the program to another. Third. a structure of increasing client 
responsibility so that as time goes one the responsibilities and duties of the clients 
increase in their intensity. And founh, saict abstinence monitored by random testing. 
For the first three of the these factors I have mentioned, there is a critical community 
size. Intensive staff supervision by high quality •. preferably certified addictions 
counselors is an expense which needs to be spread over a group in order for that 
expense to be a reasonable one. For example. if we were to have only eight residents, 
we would still need to provide twenty· four hour a day, seven days a week supervision. 
In order to do that and provide for any kind of sWf illnesses or ttaining or any kind 
of absences like that we would still need to tuve a minimum of five counselors and a 
coordinator on duty. If we did tha~ if we raiuce ro the level of eight residents, and 
reduce the staff to that level, we would tncreaK our per client cost to $15,739 per 
client based on last year's figures, last fisa! year·s figures as opposed to our current 
cost of $6,731. This is 2 1/2, almost 2 1/2 ames our current expense per clienL In 
addition, our current income from fees whiCh now accounts for roughly 20 percent of 
that cost would be reduced to less than 7 pa cent of that cost. We could not bear this 
expense. This would be a grave and senous hardship which would result in the 
closing of this therapeutic community program. The second and third factors I 
mentioned, peer pressure and increasing client responsibilities have to do with the 
client population. In terms of developing positive peer pressure, clients acquire this 
from a wide variety of peers while in the program. A group of eight would not 
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provide either a sufficient variety or the intensity of suppon or confrontation which is 
needed for this client group.! The program designed, as I mentioned, incorporates 
increasing levels of client responsibility as clients work in the program. Our clients 
are organized into crews. Each crew has a responsibility, for cooking, for maintenance 
or for communications within the treaanent program. Their responsibilities include 
the development and maintenance of a positive peer support environment to counter 
the previous negative peers that they have associated with in the past. As individuals 
progress in the program, their responsibilities increase, they may be promoted, they 
may be fired from their jobs, they may gain status in the community in the therapeutic 
community and they may lose status in the therapeutic community. This helps us 
replicate the real world that the rest of us live in where things can go well for us or 
things can go not so well for us, we can get ahead or we can get behind. This 
prepares residents for return into the larger community. To fill this roles, to fill these 
roles, just the clinical needs of the program, we couldn't do it with only eight people 
in residence. So to maintain the kind of program we have financially and clinically 
we need to have this variance to permit twenty-four residents. Next I'd like to address 
briefly with you the problems we have remaining in our present location. WE have 
already informed this zoning board of the need for new space for our residents and of 
greater opportunities to be outside of a building either working or exercising in the out 
of doors. We have already spoken to you of the hope we have to move to a facility 
which would be owned by the Mental Hygiene Corporation rather than rented. Now, 
I'd like to say parenthetically the Mental Hygiene Corporation exists only to hold 
properties for use by clients of Mental Health Services, it has no, it is a non-profit 
organization, it has no other function beside that Our program, like all of our 
programs at Mental Health is licensed by the Department of Mental Health, Mental 
Retardation and Substance Abuse Services. The licensing process which we undergo 
covers a variety of issues, staff quality, program design, program implementation, 
record keeping and the physical plan. On September 10 the licensing office both our 
normal licensing representative and her regional supervisor made a visit to the Hegira 
Program and in a subsequent letter which I have copies of for you uh they expressed 
serious concern about the building. As the officer of licensure notes in this letter, 
problems with plumbing, water pressure, electricity, ventilation, sagging floms and 
other structural problems and concludes that and I quote: 

... the ongoing general deterioration of the building structure is, 
over time going to substantially increase the cost of repair and 
maintenance add to the disruption of programming and 
ultimately result in more stringent action by our office. 

Now, as the manager of this program, when you hear from your licensing people that 
more stringent action is something that is in their mind, it gives you pause. We 
cannot operate without a license. We would not operate without sufficient staff for 
supervision and treatment of this group of recovering people. Therefore, we repeat 
our request to you for the varian~e to permit twenty-four rather than eight people in 
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this treatment facility which you propose to locate at 1818 Andrews Ro~ wait a 
minute do I have that right, 1919 Andrews Road. Uh, do I have any questions, can I 
answer any questions for you? 

Mr. Roberts: 
I'd like to ask a couple of questions. You mentioned the fact that your clients are 
confin~ in what way? How are they confined? 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Presently? 

Mr. Roberts: 
Yeah 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Is that what you're asking? 

Mr. Roberts: 
No, I mean, I just wonder if you were granted permission to establish the Hegira 
House at this new location, how would they how would they, what would it consist of, 
you said they were confined, or someone did just a little while ago ... 

Chairman: 
He understood you to say they were confined. .. 

Mrs. Kiely: 
No, they are restricted, they are not confined. This is not a secure facility with locks 
and bars, it is not. It is a community based facility. The program structure is such 
that the clients are not permitted in the community on their own initially at all. They 
always must be with another program person. They uh eventually, when they have 
reached certain levels of responsibilities, as we talked where they have progressive 
levels of responsibility in the program, they'd be permitted for certain supervised 
activities, and then eventually when they are ready to re-enter, we'll move them into 
our apartment program and put them in a community on a ttial basis. Uh, they uh 
would be discharged from the program for persistent violation of any of these roles. 

Mr. Roberts: 
You have twenty-four there now? 

Chairman: 
No .•• 

Mrs. Kiely: 
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We currently, we currently have twenty-four in our cUITent location and we have a re­
entry capacity of six, so our total is thirty, but we currently have twenty-four in the 
building that we are in and propose to move that same number to the Andrews Road 
location. 

Mr. Robens: 
How long have you had that size 

Mrs. Kiely: 
How long have we had that size? 

Mr. Robens: 
I mean is that. .. 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Twenty four in that building ... 

Mr. Robens: 
For how long? 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Good question, probably something between twelve and fifteen ye~. 

Mr. Roberts: 
This is the normal size of the population then ... 

Mrs. Kiely: 
This is the normal size of the population sir .. 

Mr. Robens: 
Who licenses this program? 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Our program is licensed by the Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation & 
Substance Abuse Services 

Mr. Robens: 
That's the state 

Mrs. Kiely: 
That's a state licensure, yes sir. This program is also licensed by the Department of 
Corrections, it has two licenses. 

Mr. Robens: 
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Thank you very much. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Question. 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Yes Mr. Wheaton. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
I heard all your narration relative to the operation, function, etc. etc. concerning the 
Hegira House. My main question is why do you particularly select 1919 Andrews 
Road. What's the reason for that. 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Okay, the selection of a propeny for a treatment program has a variety of factors that 
play into it. First, you want to have an environment that is conducive to the recovery 
of the people you are working with. Second, the properties of this nature are difficult 
to find in the Roanoke City area, and our real estate agent will speak to you about his 
search for other suitable properties for us. Third, uh, in the past we have had requests 
from the Nonhwest Community to place a program in this area, in fact, we did have 
an outpatient program in the area in the past. That closed for lack of continuing 
funding. We also so, uh, the city manager's task force on drug abuse also had as a 
specific recommendation the location of a residential treatment program for substance 
abuse in the Nonhwest Community so we were uh, of the impression that that would 
be a suitable location. We also find the property to be extremely amenable to the use 
that we have for it and we have found no other suitable propeny. 

Chainnan: 
Alright, thank you. Mr. Altice? 

Mr. Smith: 
Gentlemen, I'm Mike Smith, the broker at Progress Rush Company and I've been 
involved in this transaction with Hegira House trying to purchase the property at 1919 
Andrews Road for well over a year. I had the property listed for some months prior 
to approaching Hegira House about the propeny and had advertising in the MLS and 
had no other offers, not any other lookers at that point and it just happened that I had 
some other business through rental properties with Hegira House and just happened to 
mention this and they said well let us see it and it went from there. Since we've had 
all the problems I have also actively been seeking another property that would be 
equally as suitable for their purposes and so far I have been able to come up with 
nothing at this point. I can't find a house that's large enough and you also have to 
have a certain amount of land because if you can't get a large enough home you are 
going to have to expand just a little bit and it has been as far as I can tell at this point 
in life impossible to come up with anything else that will suit. Also, I have 

7 



researched the fact that since Hegira House has been at their present location propeny 
values in that area and residential propeny values over there have increased at a 
normal rate versus the rest of the city and not, they did not lag because of Hegira's 
presence and uh, like I said, I've had no other offers on the propeny before Hegira 
signed up for it, we did try diligently, I can find them no where else to go that suits 
there criteria and I just want to point out like I said that I haven't seen that propeny 
values were adversely affected at all where they have been for the past so many years. 

Chairman: 
Alright 

Mr. Wheaton: 
I have a question. 

Mr. Smith: 
Yes Sir. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Would you tell me of some of the areas that you possibly have looked at that may be 
suitable for Hegira House. 

Mr. Smith: 
Wel4 as far as ... 

Mr. Wheaton: 
What, what section did you look in ... 

~S~: . 
It's anywhere in time, I'm a realtor, I'd like 10 make a commission, so like I said 
consequently, I have looked anywhere and everywhere .. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
That didn't answer my question. 

Mr. Smith: 
I've looked in all sections of the city. Thea ~-ntena wants to be in the city, when 
you're looking for property for a person. you look for what they tell you to look for, 
we need a certain amount of land, we need a <.'eftain size suucture and just a cenain 
layout and I have found nothing else a1 any pnce so far. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
So you are saying to me that 1919 Syracuse is the only section in Roanoke that meets 
uh that meets 
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Mr. Smith: 
1919 Andrews Road 

Mr. Wheaton: 
...... the Hegira House criteria 

Mr. Smith: 
It's 1919 Andrews Road. .. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No where else. 

Mr. Smith: 
No where· else that I have found that is on the market. There may be some other 
places, but if they are not for sale I can't do much about it. 

Mr. Robens: 
I was going to ask you about the entrance and the exit to this place 

Mr. Smith: 
Yes Sir. 

Mr. Roberts: 
You have a long narrow driveway. 

Mr. Smith: 
That's correct. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Is that wide enough to accommodate the traffic thats •. 

Mr. Smith: 
It's, it's amply wide. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I went down it and it looked like it was kind of crowded if I'd met somebody I don't 
what I would have done. 

Mr. Smith: 
Well, it could be a little tight, but they don't have a lot of incoming and outgoing 
traffic. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I was going to ask that question later on, how much traffic there would be? 
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Mr. Smith: 
Well now there going to sort of have to answer that one for you, they know more 
about that than I, Mr. Altice will answer that for you. 

Mr. Robens: 
That's the only entrance to the propeny, that one driveway. 

Mr. Smith: 
Yes sir. 

Mr. Roberts: 
No sir, no other way, not that's useable. 

Mr. Robens: 
Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Smith: 
Yes Sir. 

Mr. Copty: 
The one question I have that maybe you can't answer, maybe its something that Mr. 
Altice should answer, but why the preference for a location in Roanoke City. I mean 
the client base is not limited to Roanoke City is it? 

Mr. Altice: 
No, but primarily, it is uh, most of the clients come from Roanoke City and that's the 
primary reason why we're looking, also it's closer to some of our other programs and 
some of the other services that we provide. Seventy to seventy-five percent of our 
clients are from Roanoke City and that's the maiD reason why. As well as being close 
to bus lines, employment, opportunities for the clients to be involved with AA 
meetings and things like that. 

Mr. Copty: 
Did you get any funding from any of the local governments. 

Mr. Altice: 
Yes we do, we get plenty from uh from all the all the local governments as part of the 
community service. 

Mr. Copty: 
You want to speak about the traffic again Mr. Robens? 

Mr. Robens: 
Yes, I was going to, let me 
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Chairman: 
Grab that microphone and speak into it Mr. Altice. 

Mr. Altice: 
Oh, I'm sorry. 

Mr. Smith: 
Are you going to have any funher questions for me. 

Chairman: 
No, you may be seated. 

Mr. Robens: 
You mentioned proximity to a bus line or transportation, how would these people, do 
they own automobiles, do they 

Mr. Altice: 
No, nobody, if they own an automobile they do not have an automobile while they are 
with us. 

Mr. Robens: 
How are they going to get transponation 

Mr. Altice: _ 
Our van that we transpon our clients with. Yeah that's how they travel, and that's 
why they travel in a group usually and the staff would be the only other people there 
other than probation officers or something like that would be coming in and out of the 
facility so there's not a great deal of traffic. 

Mr. Robens: 
So the fact that this facility, this property sits back a considerable distance from the 
street would pose no problem. 

Mr. Altice: 
No, it would not because we provide transportation. 

Mr. Robens: 
Thank you sir. 

Chairman: 
Alright, who's next? 

Ms. Grove: 
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, my name is Anne Grove, I'm an attorney with 
Dodson, Pence in Roanoke, we are located on Church Street in downtown Roanoke. I 
am here today with a colleague of mine Mr. Griffith Dodson and we are here on 
behalf of Hegira House and more specifically uh the effons of the Roanoke Mental 
Hygiene Services, Incorporated. I will keep this presentation very shon uh but I want 
to look very closely at some of the code sections that we are dealing with in this 
matter and look at some of the standards that we are to be, to be deciding these issues 
based on. An important point that I think we should emphasize is the fact that we are 
seeking a variance and not a special exception use. The use is provided for in the 
City Code in Section 36.1-560 which states that "group care facilities are allowed in a 
residential disttict". As does Va. Code § 15.1-486.3. It's not necessary for me to read 
these, I'm sure we're all familiar with them, but they are imponant because they 
approve the use of this facility. It is our opinion, according to the statutes that we 
could at this time move into 1919 Andrews and operate this facility with eight people 
with the guidelines provided for in the City and State Codes. 

Chairman: 
Well let's uh stop just a minute. 

Mr. Talevi: 
I have a copy of the application that I understand is being heard today and it states 
that it is an application for a special exception, uh, that same application also states 
that they are seeking a variance uh from Section 36.1-560 to allow as many as twenty­
four residents in lieu of the permissible eight. Am I not understanding what you are 
saying Ms. Grove? 

Ms. Grove: 
We have to approach obtaining this variance through the special exceptions provisions 
in the City Code by meeting those standards alsci. If we were not seeking to increase 
the number of our clients at the facility then I don't believe we would have to go 
through uh a special exception. 

Chairman: 
Your saying yes you would, we disagree with that but that's alright. 

Ms. Grove: 
Okay well let me read one 

Chairman: 
I don't think we're all going to agree on everything anyhow today .. 

Ms. Grove: 
One further evidence of support for this was most 
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Mr. Talevi: 
Excuse me Ms. Grove if I might interrupt you, can you explain to me, well are you 
seeking a special exception under Section 36.1-656 or am I misunderstanding. 

Ms. Grove: 
Yes, with the notation that it is for the purpose of increasing the number of our clients 
at the facility. It is to be read as one entire statement. 

Mr. Talevi: 
So you are seeking both the special exception and the variance? 

Ms. Grove: 
Correct for the purpose of a variance. Okay, uh, I will read one funher piece of 
support for this fact which was adopted by City Council on August 26 of 1991 which 
is the definition of a family dwelling and uh this funher supports the point I am 
attempting to make here. It states that "one or more persons occupying a single 
dwelling unit and living and cooking together as a single housekeeping unit constitutes 
a family dwelling. The words shall not be construed to mean more than four persons 
unrelated by blood, marriage or adoption. The above notwithstanding, up to and 
including eight mentally ill, mentally retarded or developmentally disabled persons, 
who reside with one or more resident counselors or other staff persons in a facility for 
which the Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation & Substance Abuse 
Services is the licensing authority pursuant to the Virginia Code may constitute a 
family." And there is another little piece of that and I will leave it at that. Uh, a 
variance according to City Code and according to cases that have attempted to define 
this word defines it as a "reasonable derivation from zoning ordinance provisions 
regulating size or area of land or size or area [or size or area] of a strict building or 
structure when the strict application of the ordinance would result in a necessary 
hardship". Very quickly uh I would like to look It some of the requirements that we 
are supposed to meet with regard to thC' special exception part of the Code. This can 
be found in Section 36.1-656 and it lists sax criteria that are to be considered. The 
first one is compatibility and appearance wuh the surrounding neighborhood. Hegira 
House has made it very clear that they wdl make every effort to keep any 
improvements on this property in complete confonnity with the neighborhood. The 
second one is that the use does not crea1e a demand on public water or sanitary sewer 
services. We have spoken with utility dcpanmcnts in Roanoke City and they have 
stated that there is definitely sufficient capacny tn this area to service a facility of this 
size. The third concern is traffic. As you h~ve heard, there only three to five staff 
members at all times and they will be conilng and going on alternate shifts. We do 
not anticipate any problem with traffic: flow on tlw private drive. Number four, it 
mentions that the use does not increase the flood potential in the SUlTOunding 
neighborhood. When Valley View Mall was built. the city of Roanoke put a flood 
pond at the base of this property, it is sufficient to accommodate this property. 
Number five states that the use is in confonnance with set back yard, frontage lot area, 
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etc. of this residential district, uh, this property does currently meet all requirements of 
set back frontage, etc. as they pertain to this district and they will make every attempt 
to continue that conformity. Number six fmally, is comprehensive plan. Right beside 
this property is a private indusaial park, it is cutTently zoned commercial so this area 
already has some derivation from a strict uh residential neighborhood. We are not 
looking to change the zoning of this property, we, it is zoned residential, it allows for 
the use of this facility and we have no desire to put any commercial or any industrial 
use there. Uh, we feel basically, and I will not reiterate what has already been said 
before that the Hegira House is a very imponant asset to the Roanoke community. 
The Andrews Road property is a very unique piece of land, it is perfect in size and 
location and it is desperately needed. The greatest hardship of all for us to prove is 
what a loss this would be if uh we did not have some place for our Roanoke citizens 
to go and uh the granting of this variance would definitely alleviate a very 
demonstrable hardship and we would definitely appreciate your consideration and I'd 
be happy to answer any questions uh I'd liked to reserve a few minutes at the very 
end of all speakers that we may address any questions that are left. 

Mr. Robens: 
You mentioned that the variances should be reasonable, do you think that an increase 
from eight to twenty-four would be in that category, would that be reasonable. 

Ms. Grove: 
Yes I do. Based on.the size of this property. It's very unique to find 13 acres in 
Roanoke· City .... 

Chainnan: 
It's got 13 acres. 

Mr. Robens: 
Could they ... 

Ms. Grove: 
... and I think it could easily accommodate that number of clients. 

Mr. Robens: 
Could the Hegira House operate with less than twenty-four? 

Ms. Grove: 
They could, but as explained previously the financial hardship that would come to 
Hegira House would pose a very difficult problem for them. 

Mr. Copty: 
One question, you said that there was some commercial property adjacent to this 
property. 
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Ms. Grove: 
Yes there is. 

Mr. Copty: 
Could you explain to me where that is? 

Ms. Grove: 
There is a private industrial park right beside this property. Uh you can even see 

Mr. Copty: 
Towards Valley View~ towards 581? 

Ms. Grove: 
No, on the other side of Valley View Mall. It's right smack beside this propeny uh 
you can see it in the comprehensive plan that is supposed to cover the period from 
1985 to 2005, it is marked as Industrial in this plan. I'm not sure if it was changed to 
commercial at some point when the industrial park was uh was uh located in that spot, 
but it is definitely zoned commercial and it is adjacent and on the other side of this 
property, I believe it is vacant now, it is owned by the City of Roanoke. 

Mr. Copty: 
Okay. 

·Ms. Grove: 
Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Rauck: 
Mr. Norris, Gentlemen, my name is John Rauck, my address is 210 West Church 
Avenue. I'm employed by the Virginia Department of Conections as Chief Probation 
and Parole Officer for the Roanoke Valley. In that capacity I've been associated with 
the Hegira House for approximately sixteen years. My responsibilities associated with 
Hegira is to provide for the supervision of probationers, parolees and defendants 
sentenced to Hegira in lieu of incareeration. It has been my experience that long-term 
residential treatment is the most effective means of treating addictions to legal and 
illegal substances. As Ms. Kiely explained, it removes the client from the drug using 
environment and provides a system of support based on positive peer pressure. Hegira 
House engages in a very rigorous screening of applicants for their services. 
Individuals convicted of crimes of violence, sex offenders and arsonists are excluded, 
not solely for the safety of the program itself, but also for the safety of the 
community. Despite that rigorous screening, not every client which is accepted into 
Hegira is successful there. Many clients simply lack the motivation or the internal 
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strength to make it through the rigors of the program, it's very demanding. Many 
clients simply don't realize how difficult it will be to confront their behaviors and 
their pasts and to change those behaviors. Obviously a number of clients are 
terminated from the program. The vast majority who fail recognize their failure 
contact my staff and voluntarily return to incarceration subsequently to appear before 
the Court and accept whatever punishment the Court hands out to them I would say 
that this constitutes 95% of the failures of Hegira House, that they voluntarily return 
to my office and to jail. The remaining 5% are individuals who go underground, they 
do not stay in the neighborhood, many do not stay in the Roanoke valley, they are . 
running for their freedom. In light of that issue I would say that Hegira is not a 
danger to that community, it's not a danger to Old Southwest at its present location. 
In fact, I would echo the comments of previous speakers that Hegira is an asset to the 
current location and will continue to be on Andrews Road. Do you gentlemen have 
any questions for me? 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Did I understand you to say that the, the persons who are part of Hegira House are 
either those who have been sentenced in lieu of Hegira House to be incarcerated or 
Hegira House, is that right, did I hear that? 

Mr. Rauck: 
Yes sir, there is a code statute that allows for courts to sentence individuals to 
residential drug treatment or alcohol treatment. Such treatment is to be licensed or 
certified by the Deparnnent of Mental Health and Mental Retardation and that there 
treatment at the facility constitutes incarceration. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
I see, okay. I thought that's what you said. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Hegira House is certainly and asset to the City, no question about that but explain why 
its an asset to this particular area. 

Mr. Rauck: 
Hegira House engages in a number of community service projects. Uh, litter pickup, 
snow removal, leaf raking, it's there attempt to give something back to the community 
to gain acceptance and to demonstrate that they are not three-headed monsters running 
at large. 

Mr. Roberts: 
Well, if I lived there how could I acquire the services of some of these people in the 
case· of snow removal or something like that. 

Mr. Rauck: 
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I would imagine it would be volunteered to you. 

Mr. Roberts: 
I would just apply at Hegira House for some help. 

Mr. Rauck: 
Uh I'm not even sure that you would need to apply or you may come home and find 
your drive shovelled, I'm not sure. 

Mr. Robens: 
Thank you very much. 

Chairman: 
Alright. Your name. 

Ms. BUITess: 
Gail Burress, my address if 517 Washington A venue, Southwest. I've lived and 
worked in Old Southwest for over ten years. My home is approximately 5-6 blocks 
away from Hegira House. I've always known what and where .Hegira House is and 
I've never seen or heard anything from that facility to suggest that the neighborhood 
or the value of my propeny is in any way diminished by the presence of Hegira in 
Old Southwest. On numerous occasions uh Hegira residents have worked for me, I've 
always found that to be a favorable experience. I've also recommended their 
residence to friends and neighbors as a source of labor for odd jobs and they also have 
reponed very favorable experiences from that Never in any way felt that the residents 
of Hegira present any kind of threat to the neighborhood. As a neighbor of Hegira the 
program to me appears to be very well managed, very well supervised and extremely 
well staffed and uh, it appears to me that the concerns of the Northwest Community 
are based on erroneous perceptions that are not reality based. It's from what I've been 
able to see of the pro~ Hegira has not been dettimental to Old Southwest and in 
no way do I see that it would be detrimental to the Nonhwest community. 

Chairman: 
Any questions? Thank you. 

Mr. Tanger: 
My name is Bill Tanger and my address is 1302 Second Street, Southwest. Uh, I've 
been in the advertising business for nineteen years and in 1978 I moved to that 
address from Campbell Avenue so I've had thineen years of living directly across the 
street from Hegira House and I would say its been thirteen years of having good 
neighbors. My office used to be on Campbell Avenue and we were broken into twice 
in six years and uh, while we were there, but never once in thirteen years while across 
from Hegira House. Uh, some people have mentioned that the residents of Hegira 
House help people in the neighborhood that is true, I have seen them, I have been the . 
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recipient of that, that, includes shovelling snow and as people said raking leaves, that 
sort of thing. Uh, my business is advertising, in fact the name of my business is 
Image Advertising and one of the things we take pride in is having a good image of 
the building and the office that we work in and the building that I lived in for seven 
years. The uh, we have all kinds of clients come to this building during the day and 
during the evening, uh, business people, politicians and all kinds of clients, bankers 
and state legislatures and we cenainly would not want to have our office, or I 
wouldn't want to have my home that son of thing in an area or neighborhood or near 
a building that was a problem. We don't have and have ·never had a problem with 
Hegira House. Uh, I can also tell you that uh it is uh sort of an odd situation that a 
uh rehabilitation place like this would actually be an asset to the community, it's a 
little hard to grasp, but I can tell you from living there that uh, since there's somebody 
there across the street from where I was living, twenty-four hours a day, the lights are 
on, uh when I come, if I'm working late at night, uh or if I'm coming home late at 
night, or coming back to the office or whatever the case may be uh, it's really a 
comfort to have someone there to have the lights on, to have some people that if you 
needed something you could uh, get a hold of them. So, I think in that sense they are 
an asset and the evidence I could say is that we have had a very very secure building, 
we've never had any problems there in thineen years. Uh, the Hegira House grounds 
are always neat and clean and orderly. Uh, the building as much as they can control it 
is kept in a good condition, we simply have not had any problems of that nature, uh, 
its obvious that they perform a community service, uh, its not as obvious uh that they 
are a community asset and uh a neighborhood asset, it is my opinion and the opinion 
of my partner in my business which is ~y across the street that they are an asset. 

Chairman: 
Thank you. 

Ms. Nichols: 
Mr. Norris and committee members. My name is Estelle Nichols. I am at 1240 Third 
Street. I'm the Executive Director of the Bradley Free Clinic. I have been neighbors 
with Hegira House for seventeen years and I wtU say that I am truly honored today to 
have the opponunity to stand up here and ~ on their behalf. This is a very unique 
and very very special program. These are people who are working very hard to make 
their lives different. The people who ~ oppos~ng this move are concerned about the 
kinds of people who will be in their nes ghbornood and what I would like to say is that 
I am not wonied about the residents from Hegua House, I am in fact worried about 
the people who are not in a program like tJus and who are actively using dmgs and 
alcohoL At the Bradley Free Clinic the sWT and I have had for seventeen years a 
very close association with these residents and with their executive director. Our 
Board of Directors consider these residents to be a vital pan of the free clinic in tenns 
of community service. They do not get credit for working for us as volunteers, they 
don't get any benefit from us, but I call them because we need something done, 
because they are right there so close, they will come over immediately and send us 
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whatever number of people we need to get our job done. Two years ago when we 
moved into our new facility, our Board of Directors felt and the staff felt that we 
could not have done it without the extensive help that we got from Hegira House. 
They did the most incredible things in terms of moving, in terms of cleaning, in terms 
of helping us organize they did great things. I loved your question Mr. Robens when 
you said how would you know if they how you could get in touch with them to help 
you. They didn't give you the answer, but I'm going to give you the answer, all you 
have to do· is call them up. I call John Jamison directly and I say John I've got a 
problem and this is what I need and he says Estelle I'll get right back with you and 
we '11 help you solve your problem. Hegira House does need to move and I am here 
today to tell you that I am very sorry that they are going to move out of our 
neighborhood because it will be a tremendous void to our program. One of our most 
outstanding volunteers right now and he works for us several days a week as a 
computer inputter is here today and we don't know how we are going to solve that 
problem of getting him back to the clinic several days a week to help us with our 
computer inputting. Other people are talking about the building and the variance and 
the section of Roanoke and laws and codes. I'm going to tell you tell you one shon 
story about an individual, about an experience my staff had with a resident of Hegira. 
When we were moving we had several desks that we had received from one of the 
physicians in Roanoke and I had several residents come over and clean the desks. 
They were all in the baclaoom by themselves doing this task and one of them came 
up in the front and found me and he said Estelle I found money in the desk and I 
want to give it to me. Ac~ally, he was in that room all by himself and he found 
$27.00 iri the desk, no one would have know that it was there, cenainly we did not, 
when I called the secretaries at the physician's office, they had not missed it. I think 
this is a perfect indication of what the program is about. Henry Altice has been 
running the program ever since I have been associate with Hegira and as the 
administrator of a program myself I have had the opponunity for many years to watch 
other administrators in action and I am here to tell you that I think we do have a 
tremendous I call him a hero in the Roanoke Valley because he is an outstanding 
manger of that program an outstanding administrator and director I don't really know 
what his title is. Hegira is a program that a lot of people in the Roanoke Valley don't 
know much about and its because there have not been a lot of problems, especially in 
the seventeen years I've been associated with them. I haven't heard any terrible 
stories that have occmred there since I have been associated with them, I think 
Henry's philosophy and Margo Kiely's philosophy is to quietly do their jobs. I get 
very tired of reading the newspaper and watching the news because the problems that 
we have in this nation and in our society are absolutely horrendous and I'm I don't 
know what the solutions are, but I think we are talking today about one of the 
solutions. i think we're talking about a program in Roanoke City and the Roanoke 
Valley that makes a lot of sense and it improves the quality of life in the roanoke 
Valley, in fact I think that the Hegira program is absolutely saving lives. Yes, it is 
going to be a hassle for them to move into a new neighborhood, its going to be a 
hassle for the people in that part of the city, I think any thing that makes a difference 
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in starting a solution to some of our problems is a hassle. It takes a great deal of 
courage on the part of every body. I'm going to finish by saying that I really hope 
that serious consideration will be given to Hegira House to uh Mental Hygiene 
Services, to the people who are trying to move this program forward. Thank you very 
much. 

Mr. Robens: 
Estelle, I think some of the apprehension, a lot of the apprehension that these folks 
right here concerns the trustworthiness of these people, is there any thing else you 
could say to emphasize that? 

Ms. Nichols: 
Uh, I really wish that some of my staff members could have been here today because 
we view these people as an extension of the Bradley Free Clinic program and that 
really is saying a lot about another program. Uh, because of the seriousness of this 
program people who are placed at Hegira, first of all, as you've heard, are very 
seriously screened and hand picked and then once they get there they cannot mess up, 
they cannot really uh get away with a lot of things because they are immediately uh 
made to adhere to the rules of the program, and I really understand the way the 
program is run a lot because of my seventeen year association with Henry and with so 
many of the residents. Uh we have had residents go out with us with me and with 
one of our physicians to a drug store to take down, uh you know pharmacy shelves to 
bring them back in a pharmacy that was closed. I've been uh one night I was out 
with a whole group of them at the Holiday Inn when we were moving chairs and it 
was supposed to take a couple of hours, it ended up being four hours and I brought 
four of them back and we stopped at McDonald's and had dinner at about 11 :30 at 
night, uh. I am a very cautious person, I wouldn't do something like that unless I had 
built up years of uh trust in these people and anyone that John Jamison would send 
me I would trust immediately and my staff would say that also. 

Mr. Robens: 
Thank you. 

Ms. Nichols: 
Thank you. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Arrington: 
Good evening, my name is Gary Arrington, I'm presently a resident at Hegira House 
at 1301 Second Street. Uh, I've come to you today to express just basically just what 
she said about honesty. You know, right now, I'm nervous, real nervous and uh, 
mostly angry also, because as being uh, an addict in recovery, uh people shy away 
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from you, they don't give you the opportunity to revitalize yourself, to get back into 
the community, but still that's fme, I can own that and uh with Hegira I can deal with 
that later on, that's part of what we do there. Uh, as I go back to Hegira, uh part of 
what we do there is a sauctured program is that we get in touch with our feelings. 
We are basically trying to be honest as possible and being conftontative as possible 
with all behaviors that we have, whatever they may be. Uh on a daily schedule we 
are functioning at all times we participate with various interactions with each other, 
we share with each other the feelings that. we go through, the let downs, 
disappointments that we may have in a given day. And we are also confronted on that 
to make sure that we are still trying to be honest with ourselves. Uh, but my concern 
today also is that the facility within itself is very limited. Uh, we all, we all combine 
in the whole unit to do things in the house and once we try to do that after we eat we 
try to wash our dishes, we're all bumping into each other. The plumbing thing is very 
very bad, uh when you flush the commodes you may have to flush it three or four 
times uh, when you try to wash the dishes you might have ·to wait a half hour to get a 
whole wash bowl full of water so uh, I say this today, uh I hope to the council, that I 
uh hope that you will consider these things that I've said and try to do the best that 
you can. 

Mr. Roberts: 
What do you feel like the difference is going to be in a big busy place like this and 
being out on thirteen acres do you feel like that's going to make any difference in 
what you're learning and ... 

Mr. Arrington: 
Yes, it will make a great difference. As congestion applies stress levels build up and 
with the modification of space, you don't have that much stress level there. 

Mr. Rife: 
I've got a couple of questions. Uh, Mr. Arrington you say that you are a removing 
addict, I assume that's from illegal drugs? 

Mr. Arrington: 
Right. 

Mr. Rife: 
And I guess I can assume that you understand the ins and outs of purchasing illegal 
drugs in Roanoke Virginia. 

Mr. Arrington: 
Oh yeah. 

Mr. Rife: 
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Uh, I wasn't at the most previous meeting, I was at the first uh hearing we had, and it 
was expressed at that time, concern from the neighborhood that the location of this 
facility in their neighborhood would encourage drug sales, now can you as a person 
who knows how to buy drugs uh what about that? 

Mr. Anington: 
It's no way possible. 

Mr. Rife: 
Now why is that. 

Mr. Anington: 
For me, if I wanted to buy drugs, I could go to any neighborhood in this city and buy 
drugs, its not just one neighborhood that I could go to on Andrews Drive to buy 
drugs, its all over the city nationwide, from city to city. 

Mr. Rife: 
Would the uh, but but the location of you know twenty-five recovering addicts such as 
yourself, I mean is that going to lure or· attract uh entrepreneurs in the drug business. 

Mr. Aningron: 
No way, believe it or not, uh coming from drug behavior like I have, you run from 
recovering addicts. 

Mr. Rife: 
Why is that because they'll tum you in? 

Mr. Anington: . 
Because their trying to do something with your life and and if you're not trying to do 
something with your life, you're not going to go around somebody that's trying to do 
something with their life. 

Mr. Rife: 
So someone selling drugs would be wasting their time at Hegira House. 

Mr. Anington: 
Exactly right, exactly right. 

Mr. Rife: 

Okay thank you. 

Chairman: 
Thank you. 
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Ms. Hairston: 
Uh my name is Carole Hairston, I'm cmrently a resident at 1301 Second Street and 
Hegira House Drug Treatment program. I've came here today to speak on behalf of 
myself and the rest of my peers at Hegira House. Uh, basically what you is talking 
about is being honest and trustwonhy. Us as being recovering addicts, it's hard for 
anyone to really trust us and that's what we're trying to get back out into the 
community and do now. Uh, at Hegira House it teaches us a lot of responsibility a lot 
of things that we have to work within ourselves to prepare us to go back out into 
society. You know it's not easy there but all of us there are now recovering from 
drugs and we are trying to be accepted back out in the community and I feel like if 
we were to move to Andrews Road that it would be an asset to the community 
because we are people that are trying to do things with our lives. We are no longer 
trying to go back out on the street and do drugs and use drugs, you know for me six 
months ago, I was out in the streets doing drugs and getting high and stuff and now 
that I'm in treatment I'm getting ready to go to college in January, I have a 
relationship with my children and things are working out and we do do things in the 
community for people and basically what I'm hearing everyone in hear say is are we 
trustwonhy or not and I feel like that yes we are. 

Chairman: 
Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Rife: 
I've got a question please. Ub, Ms. Hairston9 I had a phone call a couple of days ago 
from a gentlemen who uh I'm a little reluctant to get into this, but he implied to me 
that he felt that there was some racial ovenones tO the location of this facility in this 
neighborhood, now I guess I'd like to ask you9 uh you know what would be your 
response to that, what's the racial makeup of the uh people in the program with you, I 
mean is it reflective of the racial makeup of Roanoke City, is it more is it less? 

Ms. Hairston: 
Well the ratio seems to be going within our facdity. we talk about them and we have 
groups sUITOunding racial issues. 

Mr. Rife: 
Are there a disproportionately high or lo• number of black people in the program 
compared to the general population? 

Ms. Hairston: 
Yes it is mostly black people there, you know but. I feel like as for myself speaking I 
feel like the color of your skin should noc matter it's what's on the inside. 

Chairman: 
Yes. Ms. Kiely. 
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Ms. Kiely: 
I'd like to just answer that question a little bit myself. Our admissions policy is not 
discriminatory we are a public program and people in the public sector tend to serve 
more people with low income and because of the class structure we also have a racial 
composition which would be different from the city as a whole, but our admissions is 
non-discriminatory. 

Chairman: 
Very good, alright. 

Mr. Altice: 
That's it. 

Chairman: 
Is that it? 

Mr. Altice: 
If there are any questions you may have of my or my people just. .. thank you sir. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Mr. Noms, I'm Arelia Langhorne, I'm an attorney, my office is located at 2700 
Langhorne Road in Lynchburg, Virginia, I'm going to give one of my business cards 
to your secretary so she can take this down. 

Chairman: 
Alright. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
I'm here today representing the neighbors who live 1919 Andrews Road who are in 
opposition to the application for a special exception and variance to the Roanoke 
Zoning Ordinance. I was contacted by Mr. L. H. Hamlar, who I'm sure all·of you 
personally know is the proprietor of the Hamlar Curtis funeral home. He basically 
said that they were looking for a lawyer to represent them and had to go out of town 
because most of the attorneys who practice here felt that it would not be good for their 
business to represent a neighborhood that would be opposed to the Hegira House and 
that is "because the coun' s refer people to Hegira House as an alternative to 
incarceration". You've heard in the presentations here today that they are confmed, 
technically they are getting credit for jail or penitentiary time when they serve in the 
Hegira House so any attorney practicing before the Coutts here in Roanoke who wants 
to send one of their clients who is involved with drugs to this program would be 
hesitant to appear before you. Mrs. Banks has organized the neighborhood and raised 
the funds to hire me to be here today. They tell me that I am representing the 
neighborhoods that are known as Willington Hills, Rosemont, Stanford Hills, Tower 
Heights, Highland Manor, Heritage Acres, and Fairlane. Mr. Hamlar told me that he 
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built his home in 1969 and he refers to the totality of that community that I've called 
by various names as the Tower HeightS Community. When I came to meet with the 
neighborhood he took me on a tour of Roanoke carrying me to 1301 Second Street 
and the surrounding area so that I could see where Hegira House is currently located 
and he took me to 1919 Andrews Road and uh, it is a very narrow drive Mr. Robens, 
I doubt very seriously that two vehicles could accommodate passage there. Somebody 
would have to pull back up or pull down in order to get in and out of there and I have 
had a video prepared which I want you to view at the end of my presentation which 
shows the difference in the neighborhood where Hegira House is currently located and 
where they propose to be located. Before I begin a presentation which addresses the 
concerns that you have to in the decisions that you have to make in deciding whether 
or not to grant this special exception I have to make some procedural objections to 
this hearing even taking place because a record is being made here today. 
Procedurally, the notice that was mailed to the neighbors and is on the agenda today 
says that this is a re-hearing. Mr. Norris when he opened the meeting today said that 
this is a re-hearing, its going to be a completely new hearing, its been ordered by the 
Coun. I have been to the counhouse and viewed the court's file and I have a copy of 
the Coon's order remanding this matter to the Order, it basically is a Consent Order. 
I don't know if any of the members of the Zoning Board here are attorneys or not, but 
you have an Assistant City Attorney here advising you and he knows what a Consent 
Order is, it basically says that the City did not object to this matter coming back 
before the Board. Zoning is purely a statutory matter and even if people agree to 
things if it is not a lawful proceeding, if it is procedurally incorrect, even if you agree, 
it doesn't make it right. The thing that I think make this matter procedurally incorrect 
is it cannot be a re-hearing unless it is based on new evidence that could not have 
been produced at the hearings previously held on April the 9th and June the 4th. 
Nothing that has been presented in the ten speakers who have come before you that 
are for the exception being granted is new. I've read the transcripts of those three 
hearings, the April 9th, the June 4th and the July· hearing, and there is nothing new 
that has been said before you. As far as the question of a procedural ambiguity in 
regards to the motion made at the June 4th hearing, the motion was td deny, the 
motion failed two-two, the chairman then asked his council, would you like to explain 
where we stand, I am reading from your official reading minutes and the number on 
them in the Court's file is 17-33 for page reference. Mr. Talevi, I'm not sure if that's 
the correct pronunciation of the name, stated neither the special exception nor the 
variance has been granted· because neither the special exception nor the variance 
received three votes in favor of it. I've served on many public boards, in fact I've 
served as chairman of a significant board and whenever you have a negative motion, 
it's up to the discretion of the chair whether to call for an affirmative motion. If the 
negative motion fails on a tie vote, the chair specifically asks where do we stand, the 
chair was not requested to ask for an affirmative motion, the chair didn't ask for one 
and when it was announced that the exception nor the variance had been granted, no 
body objected and the meeting was adjourned. According to Roberts Rules of Order, 
if there is a Motion to Reconsider, if there is consideration of a Negative and/or 
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Affirmative Motion, if you want reconsideration of it, the Motion to Reconsider should 
be made prior to the meeting being adjourned and I have copies of pages from Robens 
Rules of Order that specifically speak to that issue and when I finish my presentation I 
will present them to you as Exhibits so that they will be a part of the record in this 
matter. So the fact that, you know a hearing is taking place 

Chairman: 
Pardon me, ma'am may we ask you a question. 

Mr. Copty: 
I think that at a subsequent meeting we were requested to rehear it as a tribunal or 
whatever and we did not, we elected not to hear it and the Coun has sent it back to 
us, we're not here at our own discretion to have a re-hearing and we didn't vote to 
have a re-hearing. We're here as I understand it, is this right, because the Coon's 
issued uh uh a proclamation saying for us to see that again. 

Mr. Rife: 
The Board has made a procedural error isn't it and had in effect, not decided. 

Mr. Copty: 
Do you disagree with this, I mean did you read the second, the uh this, this 

Ms. Langhorne: 
The July 

Mr. Copty: 
This is our third time with this and it came before us again and we did not elect to re­
hear it and it is only back before us because as I tinderstand it a court has sent this 
back, are you disagreeing with that? · 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Uh, yes I am, Mr. Rife. Yes, the Court sent it back to you and in the Order it says 
that basically the City did not object. This Board was represented by the City 
Attorney and he did not object. He basically conceded that there were procedural 
ambiguities in your June 4 hearing, yes this matter came to you in July for a re­
hearing and on that basis they were arguing that a law that had been amended 
effective July 1, the Virginia Fair Housing Act had been amended to include 
handicapped persons. 

Mr. Copty: 
But also they did say that you made a procedural etror last time, I mean there was, 
there ·were two avenues, yeah 

Ms. Langhorne: 
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That was the second, the second issue was that you had made a procedural error and 
by your decision not to rehear you basically said you did not make a procedural error. 
I think what you are saying to me is that the Coun has made a determination that this 
body made a procedural eiTOr. 

Mr. Rife: 
Our decision to not re-hear it was based on uh, uh, the point that you made about new 
evidence being presented and we declined to get into this Fair Housing issue ~ new 
evidence and that was the basis for us not rehearing it. We didn't admit that we made 
a procedural error, I don't think. 

Chairman: 
No, but here's what the judge says, "it is accordingly ADJUDGED and ORDERED 
that this case be and the same hereby is remanded to the Board of Zoning Appeals for 
the City of Roanoke for a hearing by the Board and such funher proceedings as may 
be determined", and you say that's not an Order? 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Mr. Nonis it is a court order, yes it is a court order. 

Chairman: 
Well you argue with the Coun, take it to the Judge then and not.. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
That, you know, Mr. Norris, Mr. Norris, I understand your position, I hope you 
understand mine and I hope that each member of this Board will keep an open mind 
until I have completely my entire presentation. 

Chairman: 
Alright. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
I have to make these objections to the lawfulness of this hearing in order to have it in 
the record if this matter has to go back to court. 

Chairman: 
Alright. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Alright, because it is, it is the paragraph before the paragraph that you read that said 
"if certain ambiguities exist and the city doesn't object", then, the Court adjudges, 
orders and decrees. And I know it's all legalese and whathaveyou and everybody 
would like to cut all the lawyer's heads off and throw them in the river but it's 
something that I have to get in the record. 
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Chairman: 
Alright, continue. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
And I also want to say this Mr. Copty and its cenainly nothing personal, if there had 
been a re-hearing in July you would not have been able to participate according to 
your own rules here 

Mr. Rife: 
That's cotreet and I did not participate in that vote. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Right, because it had to be the people who had made the decision earlier and here, I 
know I'm just beating a dead horse but uh the issue is even this proceeding, I think 
there is some question as to whether it is. a hearing or a re-hearing and if it is a re­
hearing and the notice says a re-hearing and whathaveyou, whether or not you should 
participate in it, and it's you know nothing personal in that regard, but stated. Uh .. 

Mr. Rife: 
Can I go home? 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Uh, I beg your pardon. 

Chairman: 
He wants to know if he can leave. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
He's being facetious. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Oh, okay, uh but since the Chairman of thas body has announced that this is a hearing 
and that it is going on full blown, although we make those, uh exceptions and we 
basically object to this hearing uh taking pLace. we would present the following in 
support of your of you denying the requeu for ~~aJ exception and variance. First of 
all, the house at 1919 Andrews Road wdl noc accommodate twenty-four people. At 
the April 9th, 1991, hearing on this matter ~. Alllce got up and he told you that he 
planned to build two buildings, he told you lhal one of them would be a general 
purpose building 27-~ feet by 56 feet .. uh would have a multi-purpose· dining hall and 
be used for recreational uh things, people swtcd asking questions and there never was 
a description of the size of the building thai's going to house founeen clients. But 
what he told you was they not only were going to occupy the house and they didn't 
tell you they were going to expand the house and there was nothing in the court's file 
to indicate any pictures or plans or whathaveyou in regards to what these buildings 
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were going to look like, I recall testimony that the would make it attractive and look 
nice and be compatible with the house itself, but if you ride down the streets of that 
neighborhood what you will see is single family dwellings and some of them may 
have garages and some of them may have some storage sheds but you don't see any 
27~ feet by 56 feet buildings in addition to the house being on that propeny. I realize 
that its what some 13 acres of land and that this might not be aesthetically a problem, 
but that is not the issue that is before you the issue before you is whether or not it is 
compatible with the rest of the neighborhood and we are arguing to you that having 
two additional buildings on that property is not compatible with the rest of the 
neighborhood because the rest of the neighborhood are single family dwellings. 
People talk about compatibility and they got into the arguments about the emotions 
and whether they are trustworthy, whether they are trustwonhy in a work environment 
versus being trustworthy in a home environment. But the issue when it comes to 
compatibility deals with the size, the bulk, the height, the shape, and this is what I'm 
telling you; if they are going to put two buildings on there they have something that is . 
not compatible with the rest of the neighborhood because the rest of the neighborhood 
does not have it. Another thing that was uh presented uh was presented at the April 
9th hearing and that was uh that uh this environment would be therapeutic and that uh 
you know people think that uh that they got demons or something that they are 
working with and that what they are really doing is uh treating and they are 
ministering and they are healing. We have sickness in our society of every nature and 
kind, we have treatment facilities, we have hospitals to tend to the sick, but do we put 
a hospital in a single family residential neighborhood. I looked through your zoning 
ordinance to see ·where you put your hospitals and I saw there was a permitted use in 
C-1, now there may be a specific one that includes hospitals as a general use but I saw 
it as a permitted use in C-1. They are operating on a small scale a hospital, do you 
put that in a residential neighborhood, is it compatible, is it reasonable to do so. By 
having these additional buildings on the propeny are they creating a campus type 
atmosphere? An atmosphere where people will be able to walk the lawn, engage in 
recreational activities out on the lawn, a campus type activity. Where do you have 
your colleges and universities in your zoning plan? You have them in general uses 
and in permitted uses in C-1, C-2 and C-3, all business districts. And yes this 
community has a school, it has an elementary school, the academy of math and 
science, but what would this do in terms of this community, would it be creating a 
small scale hospital in a residential neighborhood, would it be creating a college 
campus type atmosphere based on what has been described to you as to what they 
want to do there. The second point that I want to make is that it is a business. It is a 
business. It is not a residence, it is a group home, it has competition. Lewis-Gale, 
probably your community hospital, others are in the business of treating drug 
addiction. Others are in the business that Hegira House is in, what makes Hegira 
House different from those other places? Is it simply because the source of their 
clientele is from the poor which means we got an uphill battle if we go the coun 
because they've got a self interest in this thing? Is it cheaper to house them in the 
Hegira House than it is in the Roanoke jail and the penitentiaries of the 
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commonwealth? This is a business. A business that they want to put in a single 
family residential neighborhood. It is not a residence, it is even different from those 
residential facilities that are established to teach independent living skills to the 
mentally ill who have formerly been institutionalized. Why is it different? Because in 
those residential facilities, those people stay there long term, they stay there long term. 
What has been the evidence before you as to the time of stay at the hegira House? 
Six to nine months then move out into d,teir independent living situation? This is 
going to be a "transient~~ [in quotes] residence. This is a transient population, are you 
going to put a dormitory in a single family residential neighborhood, is it reasonable 
to do that? The third thing that I want to point out is the what it appears to be just 
the tremendous conflict of interest by endorsements from a sitting judge who also 
happens to be on the drug task force for the area, all of the politics that have been 
involved in this matter and the economics which I previously mentioned. There was a 
lady in here earlier today who wanted to do something that required some type special 
exception of variance and I wasn't paying close attention but the bottom line was it 
was going to cost her more money to comply with the zoning ordinance and what did 
you say to her, no ma'am, we can't consider your economic situation. Hegira House 
has come before you and said to you they operate twenty-four now, they are 
comfonably operating twenty-four now, they could operate with eight but it would 
cost them more money, it would cost them more money. Are you to consider the 
economics of the programs or are you to consider the compatibility of letting this 
thing be at 1919 Andrews Road, letting them have more than eight which the city 
code has designated as the appropriate number for a group home to be considered a 
single family residence. The city code has basically told you what they think is 
compatible, they've stretched it from four to eight, four unrelated individuals that are 
not handicapped, eight if they are mentally ill or handicapped in some manner for a 
group home. They are asking you to triple it in a single family residential district. 
Mr. Roberts ask~ "is that reasonable" to triple the capacity in a single family 
residential neighborhood. Mr. Altice in the April· hearing according to the transcript 
told you that when they first moved on Second Street that it was largely residential 
and now, of course, your real famiHar with this, I've only had two shots at the view, 
there are lots of advertising firms, art galleries, accountant offices, law offices, 
restaurants, medical care facilities in that neighborhood. Do you see seventeen years 
from now in the Andrews Road area it being art galleries, doctor and lawyer offices, 
accountant offices, restaurants, or do you consider that that Tower Heights 
neighborhood will continue to be a residential neighborhood. I submit to you that it 
will. It is not a changing neighborhood, it is a residential neighborhood and the land 
immediately adjoining 1919 Andrews Road where it looks like somebody was 
developing a neighborhood, put a few houses up, there are lots of vacant lots there, if 
you approve this exception do you ever think that another single family resident will 
be built on those empty lots? I doubt it gentlemen. I ask you to seriously consider it. 
I'm not familiar with what's been described as an industrial park, but because I was 
over in that neighborhood there must be some physical barriers between this 1919 
Andrews Road and that uh property that's been described and recommended to you as 
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being part of an industrial tract because we went in and out of every nook and cranny 
and street over there and we didn't ron into any industrial park, you must have to 
leave the neighborhood and come in to it from another direction in order to get to it. 
Finally, for my last point that I want to make and then I want to address some things 
that Ms. Grove said, a house is not a house unless there is someone living there 
making it a home. We've always valued our homes, we give them special 
constitutional protections, our home are our castles. Our homes are the places where 
we celebrate thanksgiving, they are the places where we sleep, where we eat, where 
we make memories, we don't treat our homes like hotels. We entertain our friends, 
our children play, they have -their friends come over, this is where they study, this is 
where the learn and play their musical instruments. This is where our children learn 
the values and morals of our homes, this is where we come at the end of a day's work 
from the stress of the world of work ........ (tape ended) ... at night and my kids are 
hustling and bustling, this is where I'm rejuvenated, in my home. The people who 
have spoken to you today about Hegira being a good neighbor, we don't question that 
they've been a good neighbor in that environment One gentlemen says that his 
business is there and he lives there, others there businesses are there, but they live 
elsewhere and there is a difference. The staff of Hegira House works there, they don't 
live there, it's not there home. The people who they treat don't live there, but for six 
to nine months, it is not there home. They have a home that they are going to, go 
back to, a home that they are going to make when they leave there. It is not a home, 
it is a place where they have gone to be healed. Zoning protects the orderly 
development of any community. Zoning exists for that purpose. If all that you were 
being asked to do is to evaluate whether or not Hegira House was a good, just thing, 
your job would be easy because they are doing a great work, a work that needs to be 
done, but that is not what your decision is all about Your decision is whether or not 
to grant an exception in a RM-3 district, in a community where everything out there is 
single family. No duplexes, no multiple family d~ellings, everything out there is 
single family. To allow this exception would have an adverse impact on that 
community, it would be an invasion of privacy and the propeny rights of the 
homeowners in that community and everybody gets scared when you say something 
about the people who live there or the race of the people who Hegira House has as 
clients. We can't be afraid to talk about race. When I went through that community 
with Mr. Hamlar that is just a very nice upper middle class black neighborhood. He 
built his home in the late 1960's, he's been in business for himself all his life. It's no, 
I mean there's no question about the fact that black people have been discriminated 
against in housing, in employment, since this nation's founding, it wasn't until 1964 
that we got a Civil Rights Act. .I'm young enough and old enough to remember the 
signs, young enough to have had the opportunities that integration has brought, but 
there is nothing wrong with saying that this is a middle class black community with 
saying that these home owners, like white homeowners, these homeowners have 
worked hard and long to establish their homes in this community. You had a 
gentlemen come and testify in one of these prior hearings who said he built his home 
fourteen months ago in that neighborhood. Building of single family neighborhood 
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homes is still going on in that neighborhood. If you grant this exception, do you think 
that that gentlemen would have built his home there? That is the single largest 
investment that most people make. Most people don't have the luxury of having 
stocks and bonds and that type of thing, everybody ought to have some type of 
savings, but there home is the single largest investment and so people wonder why this 
room is full, they wonder why people get up in arms, they wonder why people search 
for the emotional issues and argue those things to you. And then somebody says, let's 
go get us a lawyer so we not only arguing emotional issues but we are arguing those 
things which under the zoning ordinance you have to consider in order to make your 
decisions. Yes, this neighborhood is scared to death that you are going to take away 
their biggest investment, the enjoyment of it, by granting this exception. I understand 
that Ms. Grove indicated that she wanted to be the last person to speak on this matter 
and usually when a patty has the burden of convincing you to do something they get a 
chance to have the last word so I want to speak to just a couple of things that she 
said. First of all she said that they were looking for a variance, not a special 
exception, but I guess that got corrected, she said she thought they could move over 
there and just house eight people without appearing before you but I guess that got 
corrected. She read to you the statute that talked about the four unrelated people and 
the eight handicapped or mentally ill and I'd like to say that Roanoke's ordinances are 
a lot more liberal than Lynchburg. Lynchburg considers three unrelated people a 
family and then of course eight is mandated by the state code which says that uh eight 
unrelated people and the staff will be considered a single family uh for a group home 
facilities for the mentally ill and it's interesting to note that the state code does two 
things that cause a legal question to be raised and that is in defining handicapped 
individuals it expressly excludes those who are addicted to illegal, elicit drugs. 
However, it then adds everybody that uh, all the group homes that are operated by the 
Mental Heath & Retardation Board and the Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services is 
licensed by that entity. Some of the presenters said that letters had been written by 
the licensing agency saying that they had inspected the current location and found it to 
be deteriorating and would jeopardize their license and I liked to know the date of that 
letter if it has been filed as an exhibit. 

Secretary: 
September 23, 1991. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
September 23, 1991 and the date of the application for this exception cenainly 
precedes that because it preceded April and I'm sure I could find it here in my papers 
uh, 19th day of March, 1991. When you need something in order to support your 
position, usually you can get it and I just you know uh submit that to you. It's a 
beautiful place where they are currently locat~ I'm sure the residents of the 
neighborhood near 1919 Andrews Road regret the deterioration of the condition, but I 
submit to you that nothing has been presented to you that says that they have 
attempted to purchase that building. Mr. Altice told you that the owner was elderly 
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and somebody said he was going to die some day and then they'd have to deal with 
the daughter and that he wasn't willing to put a lot of money in there but have you 
had presented to you an offer that was rejected? No you haven't When you asked 
the real estate agent and he says he looked all over Roanoke and he couldn't find 
anything, did he give you the address of a place that he took them to look at? Was he 
specific about the criteria that Hegira House had? No he wasn't Size, amount of 
land, and whathaveyou. He did not specifically answer your questions. I submit to 
you that this is not the only location that they can continue to function at, I submit to 
you that they have not shown you all that they should have shown you for you to even 
consider this request because they haven't shown you that they tried to purchase the 
building where their at, this just happens to be a place that might be better for them to 
do the great work that they do. It's not on their faces that any exception should be 
granted and as far as making those findings of fact, I will ask you that in whatever 
decision you make and I certainly hope that it is going to be for those neighbors who 
are in opposition to this and I hope that you will deny the request to grant an 
exception and variance, but those findings of fact need to be made because if this 
matter has to be appealed, the record has to be sufficient upon which the Coun can 
look to see that you'd made those findings of fact. Ms. Grove staned going down 
them, I'm just going to go down them again. I got so many papers here it may take 
_me a second to find it. Well ...... Oh, here it is. I have uh dealt with the compatibility 
issue and what their going to do in regards to putting up an additional building, the 
second one was whether they were going to make a demand on public water sanitary 
and sewer services and we don't really have any evidence in that regard. The third is 
the generation of traffic. I think the concern about that driveway, the location, the 
narrowness of it and whathaveyou should be a uh consideration there. They have uh 
testified that they just have the staff cars coming and going. They talked about how 
great the current location is because it's on a bus route which will allow their people 
to get to and from employment and other things in the community and yet when asked 
about the question about how that was going to be accommodated on Andrews Road 
where there is no bus se~ce you were told that a van was going to accommodate 
that. As far as the police and others coming there I don't think anybody's told you. 
this but uh I know that ·persons who-are uh confined to the Hegira House by the 
Couns usually are in custody and they usually are delivered there by the Sheriff's 
deputies in marked vehicles and they would be going through this neighborhood and I 
think that that is an imponant factor w'ith regards to the view that the neighbors and 
children would see. And we don't have any 'omment in regards to the flood uh 
potential and uh the stuff about conformance wuh the setback and the yard and of 
parking and signage and screenage and wtwh.aveyou. We have addressed that 
basically uh in dealing with the is.sue of companbtlity and as far as it furthering the 
comprehensive plan we argue that it docsn · t because that neighborhood is single 
family residence, building is still occurring there and that community is not in a 
changing mode and uh to confonn with the plan that neighborhood ought to be kept 
single family. For the record, the petitions that were filed at the April and June 
hearings, we would ask that they be made a pan of the record of these proceedings. 
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A substantial number of people had signed those petitions and we'd like it a pan of 
the record that those people oppose the granting of this exception. Additionally, all 
those people who live near 1919 Andrews Road who are opposed to it, I would like 
you at this time to stand to indicate your opposition to this Board. Let the record 
reflect that about half of the council chambers stood in opposition. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Ma'am do you have any problem with having the proceedings and materials made 
parts of the record at previous hearings be considered pan of the record at this 
hearing, do you have any problem with that? 

Ms. Langhorne: 
No, I don't and that is what I'm asking be done, I was identifying specific things, but 
the entire proceedings, I think its appropriate that they be a a pan of it in order to 
have a full record in this matter. Uh, now I'd like to play the video. Basically we're 
going to be looking at two areas of Roanoke, uh, the first area, a little narration on it 
and this is the Hegira House at 1301 Second Street. That's directly in front of Hegira 
House. This is a swinging another view of the current location. 

Mr. Rife: 
This is a view looking North on Second Street at the Comer of Maple Avenue 
Southwest and Second Street Southwest. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
This is still that current neighborhood. 

Mr. Rife: 
Now at the Comer of Second Street Southwest and Highland Avenue Southwest 
looking in a southerly direction. · 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Then it is clearly obvious the business nature (tape was inaudible). 

Mr. Rife: 
Now turning north on Third street. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
I am going to apologize to the Board for this being so long. Basically asked uh my 
video person to do the perimeter. First, Second and Third Streets and uh two or three 
blocks on Nonh and South of uh the location, and he did a little more thorough job 
than I wanted so it is right a little long winded on this end. 

Mr. Rife: 
Now proceeding South on Third Street. 
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Video is fast forwarded 

Ms. Langhorne: 
I just viewed this last night and it was quite a lot more than I wanted. I thought it 
was very imponant to have a visual view, however, of both of these communities. 

Mr. Wheaton: 
Very good. Very good. 

Mr. Rife: 
Could you hold it for just a second Mr. Copty had to step out to make a phone call. 

While we are waiting for him to rerum I wold like to leave with your secretary a xerox from 
your city directory of the Andrews Road neighborhood, uh all the streets over there and what 
I'm calling the Tower Heights community showing the residences there and the single family 
nature of that community and a copy of your city directory showing uh First Street, Second 
Street, Third Street the neighborhood sUITOunding Hegira House and this directory of close 
quarters with what's going on and that clearly shows business. This exhibit that I mentioned 
earlier is a copy of Raben's Rules of Order in regards to uh motions to reconsider and seeing 
about the failure to object to procedural defect prior to the hearing of the meeting and then uh 
finally I have another exhibit, it is a police incident repon. ... 

Mr. Copty: 
My apologies. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
That's alright .... that's the narrative drive Mr. Roberts, I told him not to trespass so he 
didn't go up in there. That's uh a single family resident immediately adjoining that 
propeny, that's Kennedy Park I believe on the other side of it. And then this is the 
subdivision where it looks like the developer went broke or something. And this is 
going down the street, that's the newest house built fourteen months ago the sec_ond 
adjoining propeny to 1919 Andrews. 

Tape plays 

Again Mr. Noms and members of this Board I apologize for the length of the video, 
but I just thought that was important and I didn't get a chance to view it until last 
night and realized how lengthy it was. The last exhibit uh that I would like to present 
to you is a police incident report. At the June 4 hearing when you denied the hearing 
on a negative motion vote of two two, following that incident it was reported to me in 
the neighborhood meeting that there was rapid firing of gunshots between houses on 
Syracuse around 1:00 in the morning on the 5th of June. I had a local attorney to go 
to the police deparnnent and tty to find some police incident repons on this matter, we 
didn't find one for the 5th at 1:00 in the morning, but we found one for the 6th of 
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June at a little after 1:00 in the morning,uh and this is a report of an incident that 
occurred at the home of ura Curtis at 1826 Syracuse Avenue, Northwest and also that 
a David Lewis who also lives in the 1800 Block of Syracuse Avenue, Northwest and it 
basically, doesn't report the gunshot tiring, it reports knocking and banging on 
windows and doors and uh nothing really can be concluded from this with any degree 
of credibility. I simply submit it to you because the neighbors reponed it to me and 
they weren't implying that someone was mad with the Board's decision or something 
and was trying to engage in propeny damage out there or harassing tactics, but the 
closeness of the incident to the negative decision caused them some concern and I 
don't I say I'm just submitting it because the neighbors asked and I'm not drawing, · 
I'm not telling you that anything in regards to credibility ought to be given to it, I'm 
just reporting it to you. I don't want the Hegira House people to think you know 
somebody is accusing them of something like that you know because that is not what 
is being done. There was just some problems in the neighborhood close in proximity 
to the time of a negative decision here and uh you know I've told the neighbors to 
they've got to respond in a responsible manner as well, you know we can't have any 
breaches of the peace and vihathaveyou, it's just that this does get to be a real 
emotional type thing. In conclusion, I'd just like to say that the people who would be 
adversely affected by the granting of this special exception and zoning variance who 
live in the Andrews Road neighborhood and they tell me that there are over 400 
homes in that neighborhood, they would be adversely affected by a decision to grant 
and they are adamandy opposed to it and I think that's been clear by everything that 
has occurred to date and ·their presence here today and we'd ask your careful and 
deliberate consideration of this matter and we'd ask you to deny it You have all the 
legal basis upon which to deny it to make the findings of fact necessary to support 
your decision to deny and there has got to be some place else in Roanoke there's got 
to be the possibility of acquiring the .current site and fixing it up. They were going to 
spend $400,000.00 on the Andrews Road propeny ·to acquire it and to build those two 
buildings. I would think that they would be able to purchase the site that they have 
and be able to renovate it within those dollar limits well and so a decision not .to grant 
it is not a decision against the program, it is a decision not to permit an exception in a 
single family residential neighborhood and I thank you for your consideration and your 
patience with me. 

Secretary: 
Ms. Langhorne could you leave my pad? 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Your pad all the women lawyers take the pads, let me sign it. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Nonis while we're between speakers here, there was some reference to an Order· 
entered by Judge Willett earlier and I believe you read from the Order entered by him 
on October 23, 1991. 
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Chairman: 
Whatever I received, yes. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Would you confirm that as being the date. 

Chairman: 
Let's see, the 23rd of October. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Okay, I think the language of the Order speaks for itself, I just wanted to make sure 
we were all talking about the same order. 

Chairman: 
From Judge Willett yes. 

Ms. Banks: 
I am Doris Banks and I live in the 1800 block of Syracuse Avenue, Northwest. First 
I'd like to say that we have no qualms with Hegira's program, we just don't think it 
fits at 1919 Andrews Road. There has been some confusion as to who we are, who 
oppose the location of Hegira Home on the Brown Estate in the midst of our 
residential subdivision. We are not the neighborhood partnership or the nosey 
neighbors as we have been dubbed by the news media. We are the affected ones. 
The 486 property owners and tax payers who live around the proposed site. It's time 
that we came to the point that the issue at hand is not the tall building or the number 
of acres, it is crime. Crime with a capital "C" from all over Southwest Virginia. We 
are not dealing with the Betty Ford Clinic, but a half-way house to house those who 
have committed crimes and don't want to go to jail. In the early morning hours of 
June the 5th after the Board denied the exception· on June the 4th, we were given a 
test of what it would be like to have Hegira in our residential neighborhood. There 
was violence like I have never seen in all my days on eanh around 1:00, 2:00, 3:00 
a.m. in the morning, there was shooting, rapidfiring. Not from the street from an 
occasional passing automobile, not from Kennedy Park, not from the field, but on our 
lawns underneath our bedroom windows. Our backdoors were banged on and shook. 
Mind you, our lots are fenced. Low lighted front windows were knocked off while 
the police were busy all night long. There were three cruisers in the front of my 
house and seven officers running around with search lights. I was so terrified. While 
at Raleigh Court and there cat burglar couldn't have felt as violated as we were on 
that infamous morning so you can see how these people deal with adversity and how 
it would change the character of six tranquil and practically drug free residential 
subdivisions. The location of Hegira on the proposed site would restrict us to our 
homes. Seniors could no longer walk in Kennedy Park. Elementary school children 
could not walk to school unattended nor would it be safe for those students of middle 
and high school who miss the bus or stay after school activities to walk home alone. 
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The three beauty salons in the area would be out of business because of the 
doubtfulness of transients in the area. The premiums on our homeowners, automobile 
and possibly life insurance would skyrocket if available at all and citizens who would 
rather not would be forced to bear arms. To the current residents of Hegira, we are 
sony that you are in trouble, but we hope you understand the city's have zoning 
ordinances to protect citizens, its citizens and the taxpayers. Also subdivisions don't 
just pop up. There is much money, energy and character invested in our area. We 
hope that you will tum your lives around in the proper zone, behave yourselves, 
become productive citizens. Having done this we more than welcome you to our area 
and we will try to see that there are some single family homes over there for you and 
your families. To the commissioners of Roanoke City, don't destroy our subdivision 
by voting for this exception. Thank you. 

Mr. Prunty: 
My name is Rev. Alfred Prunty and I am not a citizen of Roanoke, I'm a member of 
the Human Relations Task Force appointed by the mayor of the City of Roanoke and 
the City Manager. I have been contacted by people of the area of the Northwest 
concerning this venture. I'd like to begin by saying I appreciate the history of those 
who stood here and talked about Hegira House, but I want to let you know I know 
when it was sony. I'm a retired employee of the Veteran's Administration Hospital 
and was a pan of the drug rehabilitation program at the time that Hegira House was 
statted. It has done good works, we did good work out there in the V .A., but the 
program has long since been cancelled. I don't think the citizens of Roanoke are 
against Hegira House, what they are against is the City of Roanoke dumping on 
Northwest Roanoke. And I want to say this, you talk about Andrews Road, many of 
you may have even driven in a car around there. Get in a police cruiser and drive 
around there at 10:00 at night and you'll really find out what's going on over there. 
That's a haven for drugs and prostimtion and the citizens of Nonhwest Roanoke don't 
want anymore parts of that, they've had enough. · Sow about a year ago there was a 
big disturbance over there on 11th Street People aied to. make it a racial situation. 
We were as close to having a race riot in the cny of Roanoke as I have ever known 
and I was born and raised right here. And u long as you continue to try to push 
things off on the people of Northwest Roanoke you're going to come closer and closer 
to it. What are you going to, put this in hss back yard? Mr. Walter Wheaton there? 
Or maybe they want to put Hegira House n gh1 behind High Street Baptist Church. 
Those people have been their all their liv~ .tnd ~ve worked all their lives to try and 
have decent homes and housing. Hegira has been a nothing but a program for 
transients ever since its inception. You· ve goc ~ people that work it, I'm not 
knocking their jobs, but I'm just telling you wtw the program is. And we found the 
same thing out there at the V.A. Medica! Center. ~ost of the people that we tteated 
out there in that drug program were going an and out. these people's lives are invested 
in that property over there and I think its awful to think that somebody would come 
up and talk about putting a Hegira House. If the man who owns the house tell him to 
go down the bank and tell the people to let the money go and black folks will buy it 
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and build over there, there' 11 be more homes. We need to start thinking in the City of 
Roanoke and I'm going to let the City Manager know this when I see him and I hope 
to see him this evening when I see him on behalf of these people. Don't try to force 
this on them, you ran us out of Nonheast Roanoke, just dumped us, then when we 
come out from down there to try and get some decent homes and a place to live, now 
you want to tum around and dump on us again, what are you doing? You think about 
what you're doing, I hope I never see the ugliness that I saw, that incident there on 
11th Street and I want to let you know something else, those people are concerned 
about the drugs going on over there in that neighborhood. Just get in a police cruiser 
and drive through there about 10:00 at night all through the upper Nonhwes~ you'd be 
surprised at what you see. Cadillacs and Oldsmobiles, people who are driving those 
cars are not black, their over there to buy drugs. Think about what you're doing, 
these people want a decent place to live and protection. A man can't get rid of his 
propeny no other way than to sell it to the city of roanoke so they can put a police 
precinct over there. It's serious enough, we have a serious drug problem in this city. 
We just put a coke program over there in Lincoln Terrace you need about five others 
in every other area in the city. You try to stem the problems with drugs and crime 
that exist right here in this city. I ask you, no tum this down, don't impose this on 
these people. My name is on there. 5836 Pony Drive. On this pad. It's A.S. Prunty. 

Chairman: 
Preacher would you come back just a second? I'm not going to argue with you, but 
uh, no one said a word about it being in Southwest. We're not talking about 
something awful. All we've heard is good things for eighteen years in Southwest, I 
don't agree with you on putting something off on somebody else. 

Mr. Prunty: 
Mr. Notris let me explain it this way. And expl$ it from the standpoint from 
somebody that's familiar with rehabilitation. Now I'm not talking about just an 
average citizen or just on this issue. I've been in rehabilitation for about twenty-eight 
and 1/2 years. When we first started placing veterans out in the community they did 
fairly well for a while and then we began to see them throughout the community half 
dressed, not cloth~ begging, the idea itself was an admirable idea, to place somebody 
out among the people who were ordering their people so that they could probably 
profit from that, it just didn't work out. 

Chairman: 
Your not talking about 

Mr. Prunty: 
The same is true with people that go through and from these rehabilitation houses. 
They are in, they are out and they don't go back into the community and make any 
much, make any conaibution. No, these people are transients. 
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Chairman: 
That was the veteran's program. 

Mr. Prunty: 
Yeah that part was but I'm talking about people who go through Hegira House. Their 
going to be here and gone. Their not going to make a contribution, their not going to 
become a taxpayer in the city of roanoke. These people are taxpayers, propeny 
owners. 

Chainnan: 
What would you suggest be done with all these folks? 

Mr. Prunty: 
Listen, I can understand that they need some place to expand, but there is more area in 
the City of Roanoke then over there on Andrews Road. They can find other areas. 

Mr. Copty: 
So what do we do when the next neighborhood comes to us and and says to us this is 
part of all our problem in the City of Roanoke, but we don't want it in neighborhood, 
fmd some other place. 

Mr. Prunty: 
That answer is easy. Invite them to build a place right next door to where you live. 
Everybody has a general idea, the same idea, no body wants them. Why do you want 
to force them on the people of Nonhwest 

Mi. Copty: 
Well other parts of the city have programs. 

Mr. Prunty: 
Yeah I know they have programs but what I'm saying is this. ·They can find property 
in this city to locate if they really want to move from where they are without imposing 
on 487 families in Nonhwest Roanoke and these are hard working people who worked 
and paid their taxes and everything, kept up their property, don't throw this thing on 
them. 

Mr. Rife: 
Pastor Prunty. You know I, I appreciate what you and Mrs. Banks are talking about 
here, I live in Raleigh Court and the Raleigh Court burglar got the house on either 
side of my house and uh my wife doesn't like me to go out of town on business if 
she's there alone and even with two children and a dog she's still concerned about that 
and I understand where you're coming from, what I can't understand is how twenty 
five rehabilitating drug, former drug us~ will contribute to crime and I guess, you 
know that's why I was asking, uh, Mr. Arrington about if this, in his opinion, I mean 
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he's a person that you know could tell me about how to buy drugs in Roanoke, I can't 
figure out how this would attract them, and I guess I'd like to hear your thoughts on 
that. 

Mr. Prunty: 
Let me give you an answer why would you want to seat twenty-five people who are 
going through rehabilitation in a cesspool of drugs and prostitution. Now you tell me 
that why would you want to do that. See everybody looks at that over there in the 
day time and it looks good, the weeds are cut down, but I say go over there when the 
action is, on Friday night in one of those police cruisers and you can see what's goitlg 
on, not only on Andrews Road in Northwest, but in upper Nonhwest This is actually 
what's taking place. 

Chairman: 
Your attorney is saying this is a beautiful place to live and your saying just the -
opposite. 

Mr. Prunty: 
What I'm saying is it is a beautiful place to live, you don't need anything else in there 
to interrupt what the people are trying to work with now. We have been working with 
the police depamnent of the city of Roanoke to try and enhance all of this. To tty to 
help them, through citizens reports and everything else, but why put ~omething over 
there now t~ upset the apple cart. 

Mr. Rife: 
You know Mr. Prunty if you want donate money to the salvation army one of the best 
places I know is to go stand before a liquor store and I guess maybe I'd say that 
maybe a good reason to have this over here if this a drug place that it sets an example 
against it and it makes a stand against this activicy. 

Mr. Prunty: 
Let me say this to you, I don't want you and this committee to sit here and make the 
mistake of thinking those people are dumb back there. They are not dumb. They 
have seen in times past just what happens when it happens when it comes to laws like 
this and they have seen how black citizens of Roanoke have been dumped on, yeah 
and, and I'm just telling you how it is. 

Chairman: 
Your familiar with the present location. 

Mr. Prunty: 
Yes.-

Chairman: 
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Uh do you object to it being there? They've had no problem. All these people that 
live in that area and there are just as nice of homes there as in .... 

Mr. Prunty: 
They have had no problems because they have told you that they have had no 
problems. I don't know of a drug program anywhere even on a federal reservation or 
in any city that doesn't have problems don't believe that, no, no. 

Chairman: 
They swore to tell the truth. Alright 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Let me just say here that by bringing things back to an emotional level rather than an 
objective level, I think it is going to impede decision making aspect of this body and 
this is a Board of Zoning Appeals. Zoning is purely statutory, the reasons why you uh 
grant an exception or not grant an exception, there are guidelines for doing that, I 
went over those guidelines, the very first one is compatiablility with the neighborhood. 
I know that crime is always a human factor to be consi~ however, when you deal 
with those six criteria, nothing in there has anything to do with crime, nothing in there 
deals with the wholesomeness of the community. What it deals with is the physical 
compatibility of the facility to be located in that particular neighborhood. The actual 
zoning itself deals with the uses in the neighborhood and deals with someone' s 
decision of the compatibility of those uses within Cl, C2, C3, the uh residential 
districts and the various categories and levels of the residential districts and the 
densities and the sizes of the lots and all of that and to get this back on focus I'd ask 
you to remember what I've said about the about what they want to do at 1919 
Andrews Road, they want to add two additional buildings, they basically want to turn 
that single family residence into a campus type annosphere with a dormitory on it, a 
multi-purpose room with people engaged in outside recreational activities with twenty­
four or more participants in those activities. That's different than a couple of kids 
shooting hoops over their garage in their yard or neighborhood kids playing outside 
together and its all, you know, it's getting back to the basis of what you should be 
making your decision on, I'd ask you to consider that as well as the other criteria that 
goes down those six points. Mr. Copty did you have a question. 

Mr. Copty: 
Yes, as far as the physical capacity is concerned and as far as sitting on this panel, we 
are here considering a 13 acre piece of paper in the City of Roanoke and the City of 
Roanoke just doesn't have any 13 acre pieces of ·propeny or even· 7· or S acre pieces 
that has a potential for this and so 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Uh huh but do they need 13 acres, do they need 13 acres? 
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Mr. Copty: 
Well I guess we're here to consider a program that one of the protective measures or 
certainly one of the buffering measures between a neighborhood uh and this program 
certainly is accomplished by land, is it not? This piece is visually separated from the 
neighborhood as much as the commercial property ont eh back end and I agree with 
you, it is not a pan of this community and I don't, you know, this piece of property is 
somewhat unique for we troubled people up here on this podium because as we have 
to deal with this, this uh this does have a controlled interest and it is visually 
separated and its uh uh uh from a physical plant, it's it's something that we don't find 
very often in an available nature so uh what we have to convince ourselves is that the 
community is not going to be put at a disadvantage from measures and uh I guess 

Ms. Langhorne: 
And. .. what I'm saying to you is that right now there is a single family residence on · 
that thineen acres, if someone wanted to develop that into additional family lots with 
just the homeplace and a surrounding acreage today versus what 13 acres was when 
that house was initially built, you know I haven't done any title work on this 
subdivision but I would judge to say that all of this was probably a pan of some farm 
that went back and the main house and whathaveyou and some acreage was preserved 
and it was a judgment then that 13 acres would be a comfortable amount to reserve 
for a home house type place with the subdivision surrounding it. What I am saying to 
you is that the very second lot adjoining this property, a man built a brand new home 
on their 14 months ago and so single family development is continuing in that 
neighborhood and it will not continue if you grant this exception and the propeny that 
you are talking about, that too can be developed into further single family housing and 
we need single family housing, we desperately need it and we need the kind of 
housing that uh where the developer went broke. that is a lower income housing than 
the majority of this neighborhood. The majority 9f this neighborhood is upper middle 
class, that housing on the bankrupt pan I would gather to say, those houses probably 
$30,0000 houses, but for a first home for a family just starting out, at least it's a 
place to start. 

Mr. Rife: 
If this was a private exclusive high school and they wanted to locate a piece of 
property would 

Ms. Langhom: 
I would be opposed to it and I think thss netghborhood would be opposed to it. 

Chairman: 
Let me just say something as far as value goes. I have some personal friends that just 
bought on Walnut Avenue within 3-4 blocks of this and paid $100,000.00 for the 
house they new Hegira was there, they spenl about $25,000 renovating. He's an 
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attorney and she works at the V.A., uh they saw no objection to the Hegira House and 
bought in Southwest 

Ms. Langhorne: 
And that's a personal preference, but their home is in a C2 district isn't it? 

Chairman: 
No there's just over the lin~ and hit that historical district just blocks from this. 

Mr. Hamlar: 
My name is L.H. Hamlar, my address is 1837 Grayson Avenue, Northwest. I don't 
have but a few words to say but answering most of the questions I think since we 
staned this on this propeny to me there was only one thing we had in mind that was 
rather we should change the people, our neighbors and friends who bought their 
property, built their homes, they bought neighborhood residences, now we're coming 
up and in the midst of it we can't move, we don't want to move, we don't want to sell 
our homes, now their asking the zoning board to change it and we want to know as 
Ms. Langhorne has so eloquently stated, we are not asking for a change, we want it to 
stay like what we bought it for and we could stand here all night, we could have 
hearings forever, but I think the point that we are trying to make is according to the 
point why it was zoned like Mr. Rife asked about the place over in Southwest where it 
is now. I don't think that they would want to if that was resident, I don't think they 
would change it but the way the businesses are as the tape showed it's a different type 
of residence but we have residential homes, single family homes and seem to me that 
unless and we are not asking you to change what we bought, but we are asking you 
not to change it to something that we did not buy and I think this is what are 
neighbors and friends are here for this evening. I know many of my friends, I know 
people who work for the mental health services, many of us contribute to mental 
health, Hegira House and everything else that goes into making a city a good place to 
live. We are proud of our city, we bought homes here, we want to live here, but we 
don't think that just because somebody would come in and say I need thineen acres of 
land and I am going to spend a quarter of a million dollars to buy the land when we 
like T.A.P. we like homes for the elderly, we like Headstan and we all contribute to 
that but I still don't see why we want to change. Now if we had bought it knowing 
that it was a place where you could come in an put places like the Hegira House or 
any other place we would have known, but we did not know and we thought the city 
would protect us and that's why we are here and we could argue these points forever, 
but I think the main thing is we are trying to protect what we bought years ago and 
we're getting older now, we don't want to move, we like our neighborhood as it is 
and we would ask you please do not change it. 

Chairman: 
Alright we are going to let you speak. 
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Ms. Grove: 
I will be very very brief. First of all just to break this up a bit, I would like to have 
copies of your exhibits if I can for our files and I don't know whether I should get 
those from you, we do not have any of that. Uh, also, we agree with the suggestion to 
make all the previous hearings and all the transcripts a pan of this record and we are 
fully in favor of that. Uh, it's hard for me to address a police repon of gunshots when 
their is absolutely no correlation of proof between the neighborhood having anything 
to do with that and so I am ont going to even attempt to address it. Uh, I think it is a 
shame that a segment of our society that thinks that once individuals have problems 
with either drugs or alcohol there is absolutely no hope for them to ever be a 
contributing factor. Hegira House is here to help in that respect and as far as making 
major changes in a neighborhood the zoning regulations uh the intent of the zoning 
regulations for these group care facilities are to permit the development of ·them in 
residential neighborhoods. That includes RSl, RS2, RS3 and RMl. Uh it is up to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals to ensure compatibility of these uses within the 
neighborhoods in which they are located and this is in black and white. Hegira House 
will do anything possible to be compatible with this neighborhood and to work within 
this system and I'd just like to leave you with that and thank you very much for your 
time and ask for your serious consideration in this matter. 

Tape becomes inaudible (Board discussion) 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Noms unless there is additional evidence that needs to be taken this Board should 
entenain a motion to grant the special exception. As I have told this Board in the past 
simply asking for the motion to grant the special exception does not mean that the 
moving person or the person that seconds that motion has to vote in favor of it, it 
would simply be getting the motion on the floor for consideration and then after if a 
special exception is granted then there would have to be a vote on the variance. 

Chairman: 
You can't take them both at the same time? 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well you could. 

Chairman: 
I don't see why we couldn't. Do I hear a motion. 

Mr. Copty: 
I'd like to make a motion to grant the special exception for the Hegira House and the 
use to be permitted on this property and for the variance and for twenty-four persons, 
uh, I understand what the neighbors are saying and I agree with what the neighbors 
are saying I think we need to hold our neighborhoods very sacred but as a part of our 
neighborhoods I honestly believe that treatment programs, programs for children with 
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problems programs for our problems as a city and as neighborhoods are going to need 
to be addressed and I am convinced by what has been said that the Hegira House will 
pose no adverse affects for this neighborhood and I think that is what would what I 
was listening for, how would this program uh affect this neighborhood? I'm 
convinced that all of our neighborhoods are going to have to have the programs in 
them to handle the problems of our society, 

Mr. Rife: 
I'd like to second the motion and make a couple of comments. FU'St of all, we uh, it's 
been brought up to the Board as a basis for some appeal that previous decision of the 
Board may be in violation of Equal Housing Acts or something like that and I would 
just like to state that you know that I am not concerned about that in this regard, I'm 
concerned about it, but it has no bearing on my feelings on this. I'm looking at this 
stricdy as a land use issue and the issue here isn't whether -or not this location on - -
Andrews Road is better or worse than some other that may or may not exist in 
Roanoke City, Roanoke County, Salem wherever, and the issue is not whether this is a 
better locatiCJI\than the current location. The issue before us is a land use issue of 
whether or not this property is suitable for the proposed use and needs to be looked at 
from a strict land use perspective and certainly it's zoned the same uh RS3 as __ 
property but it is a unique property, 13 and some acres and you can stand in the 
driveway in front of that house and you can turn 360 degrees ad you cannot see 
another house. You can drive all away around the perimeter of this property and the 
only place you can see into it from is Route 581, uh its very isolated. The majority of 
the properties around there are lot sizes of a quarter to a half acre and by virtue of 
their lot size are inherendy very different from the property in question and and, uh, 
you know, I'm an architect and trained as an architect and if Hegira House had come 
to me and asked you know what would you look for, uh, you know what kind of 
things should we look for, acreage is it, I mean acreage, the buffering aspects, the 
topographical layout of this property is well suited to this use and uh that's what we 
have to find, we have to find that is the basis of giving the special exception that the 
adjoining properties are not negatively affected and I just haven't seen it and while I 
have seconded the issue I am going to not support it. That was a long winded second. 

Chairman: 
Alright a motion on the floor to grant the request are ya'll ready for a vote? All in 
favor signify by saying Ay. Alright would you poll the Board please? 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts. 

Mr. Roberts: 
No. 

Secretary: 
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Mr. Rife 

Mr. Rife: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Noms 

Mr. Noms: 
Aye. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Wheaton 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Copty 

Mr. Copty: 
Aye. 

Mr. Rife: 
Excuse me I thought the motion was, excuse me, may I change my vote? 

Chairman: 
He asked.. 

Mr. Rife: 
I meant for my vote to be in favor of the motion .. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Nonis, so that there is no misunderstanding here, a vote in favor of the motion 
would be a vote to grant the special exception and to grant the variance as requested. 

Mr. Rife: 
That was my intent. 

Mr. Talevi: 
That was my understanding. 

Chairman: 
After that five minute speech. 
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Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Norris would you again call for a vote please. 

Chairman: 
Alright, let's we've given every body time, please be quiet. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Norris in light of Mr. Rife's seconding the motion to grant special exception and 
in light of his uh remarks would you please call for an oral vote ftrst just as you 
ordinarily would. 

Mr. Rife: 
Can I have the motion restated to so I can end my confusion. 

Mr. Copty: 
My motion was made and I remake my motion to say that I make a motion in favor of 
granting the special exception of allowing twenty four persons to be uh included in 
this facility and also a motion uh that would allow for the special exception or special 
use of this property to be used for the Hegira House and for their purposes. 

Chairman: 
Alright now do I have a second motion. 

Mr. Rife: 
I. second it again. 

Chairman: 
So we have a second to the motion. I'll say again. all in favor signify by saying Ay. 
Now will you poll the Board. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts. 

Mr. Roberts: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Rife 

Mr. Rife: 
Aye. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Noms 
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Mr. Norris: 
Aye. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Wheaton 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Copty 

Mr. Copty: 
Aye. 

Ms. Langhorne: 
Mr. Chairman before the meeting is adjourned on behalf of the Neighborhood 
Association I want to note an objection in this record to uh the procedural matter that 
just occUlTed here in the taking of the vote and the changing of the vote after it was 
made and there-voting on a motion as being contrary to Roben's Rules of Order. 
The motion had failed and the chair failed to expressly state that motion had failed 
and I note that for the record. 

Chairman: 
On! y if you will accept that he made an honest mistake will I admit it in the record. 
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THE MOTION: 

A motion was made by Mr. Copty and seconded by Mr. 
Rife that the request be granted. 

THE VOTE: 

AYES: Messrs. Rife, Norris, Copty 

NAYS: Messrs. Roberts, Wheaton 

FINAL DISPOSITION OF APPEAL: 

There being no further business in connection with this 
appeal, final disposition is hereby made of it. 
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CIRCUIT COURT 
RECEIVED & FILED 

/0,•3d ~ 

VIRGINIA: IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF ROANOKE 
By,~~~ 

DE TYCLERK 

CITY OF ROANOKE 

GEORGE F. RILES, PHILLIP A. COOPER 
CAROL PATTERSON, GORDON BRAXTON, JR., 
BUFORD C. MOTLEY, LAWRENCE HAMLAR, 
DORIS BANKS, ARNESBIA TODD, JAMES BALL, 
DOROTHY STEVENSON, LAVERNE PRUNTY, 
GLORIA TBECKAPERA, ANNIE DEANE, 
B. C. SMALLWOOD, MARY PERDUE, 
HOWARD COOPER, WILLIAM POWELL, 
GEORGE MCGHEE, ARTBEA POLK, NORMAN JONES, 
ALFRED DOWE 1 MARY LOUISE WILLIAMS 1 

JAMES DICKASON, HAZEL FINNEY, 

!' 

v. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF THE 
CITY OF ROANOKE, 

Petitioners, 

Respondent. 

To the Honorable Judges of the aforesaid Court: 

R::qk~'7 
c~ u 

PETITION FOR WRIT 
OF CERTIORARI 

Your petitioners are homeowners adjoining and surrounding the 

property commonly known as 1919 Andrews. Road, Northwest, Roanoke, 

Virginia and for themselves and other homeowners similarly situated 

are aggrieved by the December 3 1 1991 decision of the Board of 

Zoning Appeals which was filed in the said Board's office on 

December 12 1 1991 and respectfully represent to the Court as 

follows: 
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COUNT I 

1. That the action of the Board of Zoning Appeals of the City 

of Roanoke (hereinafter referred to as Board) on December 3, 1991 

granting a special exception to permit a group home for substance 

abusers at 1919 Andrews Road Northwest and a variance allowing such 

use for twenty-four persons rather than the statutory, (Section 
" 

15.1-486.3 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, and Section 

36.1-562(1) of the Code of the City of Roanoke} -permitted use of 

eight was illegal. 

2. Your petitioners have been jointly and severally aggrieved 

by the December 3, 1991 illegal action of the Board. 

3. The advertisement for hearing and agenda of the Board 

characterized the matter before it as a "rehearing". See Exhibit 

4. The Chairman of the Board, L. Elwood Norris, announced at 

the beginning of the public hearing that, "This will be a complete 

new hearing. This went through the Court and due to certain 

procedural ambiguities, the Court. ordered that the Board·· of: Zoning 

Appeals rehear this request •••• it is a new hearing ordered by the 

Court ••• "(Minutes of Meeting, December 3, 1991, page 1). 

S. The Order entered by this Court October 23,· 1991, states 

that counsel for the Board represented that if certain procedural 

ambiguities exist as to the proceedings before the Board of Zoning 

Appeals of the City of Roanoke, such ambiguities could be cured by 

a remand and hearing before the Board, and that it would not object 

to an order remanding the case. 
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6. On remand and hearing before the Board, the alleged 

procedural ambiguity, that no affirmative motion to grant the 

request was made and that the motion to deny the request failed on 

a two/two vote at the June 4, 1991 meeting, was not addressed; 

rather a "new" hearing was held. 

1. On July 9, 1991, the Board of Zoning Appeals, on a motion 

to rehear the matter, voted two/two to deny a rehearing. The issue 

of whether or not the matter was still before the Board because a 

negative rather than an affirmative motion had been made was argued 

by The Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service Incorporated at the July 9, 

1991 meeting. (Minutes of Meeting, July 9, 1991, page 25-2. 

8. The alleged procedural ambiguity could have been cured on 

awaffir.mative motion to grant the relief with voting by the four 

members of the Board who participated in the original action of the 

Board on June 4, 1991. See Article IX REHEARINGS-Rules of 

Procedure of the Board of Zoning Appeals, Roanoke, Virginia. 

·g. Any action and or hearing beyond the action necessary to 

cure procedural ambiguities, if any did in fact exist, was illegal. 

10. The Board of Zoning Appeals is a public body which must 

take action publicly. The Board can not agree to have a complete 

hearing without publicly taking action for such. Such action would 

require either a motion to rehear, duly passed by an affirmative 

vote of the majority of the Board members present at the June 4, 

1991 hearing or a suspension of the rules of procedure passed by a 

unanimous vote of the Board. See Rules of Procedure of the Board 

of Zoning Appeals, Roanoke, Virginia, Article IX Rehearings and 

-3-
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Article XIV Amendments. 

11. The Court Order of October 23, 1991 did not order the 

Board to have a complete new hearing but rather to correct any 

procedural ambiguities, if any existed. 

12. Your petitioners allege that the hearing held on December 

3, 1991 exceeded the scope of the remand of the Court's Order and 
r 

exceeded the scope of action which the Board could properly take 

without an affirmative vote on a motion to rehear and or a 

suspension of the Board's rules. 

13. Richard A. Rife was absent from the June 4, 1991 hearing 

and should not have participated in the correction of any 

procedural ambiguities from the June 4, 1991 meeting. 

14. Your petitioners allege that the Court's Order of October 

23, 1991 was used as an excuse and disguise to get around the split 

and tie on the Board of those members present and voting on the 

request for special exception and variance at the June 4, 1991 

meeting. At the July 9, 1991 meeting where the request ~o rehear 

was defeated two/two, Counsel for the ·Roanoke. Mental .Hygiene 

Services, Incorporated argued that his client was "entitled" to the 

vote of the five members of the Board for something so important to 

the community (Minutes of the Meeting, July 9, 1991, page 25-7), 

and the Director of the Heqira House, Mr. Altice, stated, "And I 

wish I had needless to say asked for a five member vote." ( Id., 

page 25-8) The Chairman of the Board was in favor of ·the request. 

(Id., page 25-7) When the motion to rehear was defeated, he 

responded to Mr. Roberts of the Board in reference to a new 
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hearing, "Or if the Court tells you to you would probably." (Id., 

page 25-16) The Chairman of the Board deliberately and 

intentionally used the Court's Order to have a completely new 

hearing with all five members of the Board participating to 

overturn a decision contrary to his own position on the request. 

15. The December 3, 1991 action of the Board of Zoning 

Appeals denied the petitioners due process of law, violated the 

Zoning provisions of the Code of the City of Roanoke, the 

Constitution of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the Constitution 

of the United States of America. 

COUNT II 

16. The petitioners reaffirm the allegations in paragraphs 1 

thru 15, Count I of this. petition and incorporate the same as if 

fully set out herein. 

17. Section 36.1-88 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of 

Roanoke provides that, "The RS-3 district is intended to provide 

for medium population densities and to promote and encourage the 

revitalization and preservation of single-family neighborhoods in 

the inner areas of the city •••• " 

18. Petitioners allege that they are not aware of any 

residential drug treatment facility for up to twenty four persons 

that are currently located in any RS-3 Zoned residential single­

family district in the City of Roanoke. 

19. The home owners adjoining and surrounding the 1919 

Andrews Road Northwest property are predominantly black. 

20. This residential neig_hborhood is predominantly black 
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because of prior segregated housing patterns in the City of 

Roanoke, Virginia. 

21. To permit a special exception and variance to allow a 

residential drug treatment facility for twenty-four persons 

addicted to illegal drugs without such a special exception and 

variance being granted in racially majority districts denies these 
r 

minority citizens of Roanoke the equal protection of the Zoning 

Ordinance of the City of Roanoke and violates their rights under 

the laws of the City of Roanoke, the Constitution of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia, and the Fourteenth Amendment of the 

Constitution of the United States of America. 

COUNT III 

22. The petitioners reaffirm the allegations in paragraphs 1 

thru 21 of Counts I and II of this petition and incorporate the 

same as if fully set out herein. 

23. Petitioners allege that the special exception granted by 

the Board on December 3, 1991 failed to make the findings of fact 

required by Section 36.1-656(b) of the Code of the City of Roa~oke. 

"In considering an application for special exception, the board of 

zoning appeals shall determine the appropriateness of the 

application based on the following standards: 

( 1) The use is compatible with the character and 
appearance of the surrounding neighborhood by virtue of 
its height, bulk, location on the lot, and the design and 
location of parking, signage, landscaping and other · 
outside activities ·or structures. 

(2) The use does not create a demand on public water or 
sanitary sewer services that exceeds the design capacity 
of these systems or that would in any way decrease the 
quality of service to the surrounding neighborhood. 
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(3) The use does not generate traffic on public streets 
that exceeds the design capacity of said streets and does 
not create a dangerous traffic problem by virtue of 
driveway location, sight clearance, driveway slope or 
other factor. 

( 4) The use does not increase the flood potential in the 
surrounding neighborhood. 

(5) The use is in conformance with the setback, yard, 
frontage, lot area, parking, signage screening, shading 
and other applicable requirements of this chapter as they 
pertain to the district in which the use is located or to 
the specific use, whichever the case may be. 

( 6) The use furthers the intent of the comprehensive 
plans. '1 

24. The Board made no findings of fact in regards to the 

request for special use exception. No restrictions were made on 

the size, location and or appearance of the multipurpose building 

and dormitory the applicant stated would be constructed to 

accommodate running a twenty-four resident group home. The 

narrowness of the driveway was discussed, but no requirements were 

made as part of granting the special exception that the driveway be 

enlarged or that the sight clearance in ano out of the driveway be 

improved to avoid a dangerous traffic situation. 

25. Failure to make findings of fact to support the granting 

of a special exception violates the requirements of the zoning 

ordinance and Article VII (4) (g) of the Rules of Procedure of the 

Board, and denies these petitioners due process of law and the 

equal protection of the law. 

COUNT IV 

26. The petitioners reaffirm the allegations in paragraphs 1 

thru 25 of Counts I, II, and III of this petition and incorporate 
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the same as if fully set out herein. 

27. The petitioners allege that the Board of Zoning Appeals 

failed to consider the factors set forth in Section 36.1-655 of the 

Zoning Ordinance of the City of Roanoke with respect to variances. 

Section 36.1-655(b) provides, "No such variance shall be authorized 

by the Board unless it finds: . 
(1) That strict application of this chapter would produce 
undue hardship. 

( 2) That such hardship is not shared generally by other 
properties in the same zoning district and the same vicinity. 

(3) That the authorization of such variance would not be a 
substantial detriment to adjacent property, and that the 
character of the district will not be changed by the granting 
of the variance. 

(4) That the condition and situation of the property 
concerned or the intended use of the property is not of so 
general or recurring a nature as to· make reasonably 
practicable the formulation of a general regulation to be 
adopted as an amendment to this chapter." 

28. None of the statutory factors set out in the aforesaid 

paragraph were addressed by the Board· in its decision making 

process on December 3, 1991. In allowing a variance from the 

permitted use of eight to twenty-four persons allows three times 

the special exception permitted use and changes the character of 

the property of 1919 Andrews Road from a single family dwelling to 

an institution. The house currently located at 1919 Andrews Road 

will not accommodate twenty-four residents. The applicant proposed 

the building of a multipurpose dining and recreational facility and 

a dormitory for fourteen persons. (Minutes of Meeting, April 9, 

1991, page 7-5.) The addition of these two buildings totally 

changes the character of 1919 Andrews Road and the adjoining and 
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surrounding single-family residenees of the petitioners. 

29. The use desired by the applicant exceeded the capacity of 

the single family residence currently existing on the property or 

any expansion of the house which would keep its appearance as that 

of a single family residence. 

30. The Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Incorporated stated 

they wanted a variance from eight to twenty-four, because it was 

not economical to operate a facility for just eight people, and 

that the current program had twenty-four residents in one building. 

(Minutes of Meeting, December 3, 1991, page 3) 

31. Section 15.1-427 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 

amended provides that this Chapter, Planning, Subdivision of Land 

and Zoning, is intendedn ••• that residential areas be provided with 

healthy surrounding for family life." The petitioners allege that 

the location of an institution to treat twenty-four persons 

addicted to illegal drugs in a single-f~ly residential community 

does not provide healthy surroundings for family life. 

32. Failure to make findings of fact as required by tlie 

Zoning Ordinance, and the Board's own Rules of Procedure, failure 

to consider the impact of two additional buildings on the property, 

to adjoining and surrounding single-family residences, failure to 

consider the use of the facility as a drug treatment facility for 

twenty-four convicted felons addicted to illegal drugs on the 

family life of this single family residential district is contrary 

to law and violates the petitioners rights to due process of law, 

the equal protection of the law, their rights to the protection of 
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the zoning ordinance of the City of Roanoke, the Constitution of 

the Commonwealth of Virginia and the Constitution of the United 

States of America. 

COUNT V 

33. The petitioners reaffirm the allEgations of paragraphs 1 

thru 32 Counts I, II, III, and IV of this petition and incorporate 

the same as is fully set out herein. 

34. At the December 3, 1991 meeting, a motion was made by Mr. 

Copty to grant the request for special exception and variance. The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Rife, who went on to state that he would 

not support the motion. (Minutes of meeting, December 3, 1991, 

page 46) When the Chairman called for the vote, it was three no's 

and two aye's. This vote was a roll call vote. (Id., pages 46 & 

47) The Chairman refused to declare that the motion had failed. 

After the vote was concluded, the Assistant City Attorney told the 

Chair to, "again call for a voten (Id.,.page 48) The motion to 

grant was made again by Mr. Copty, seconded by Mr. Rife, and a vote 

taken which came in three aye's and two no's. The petitioners 

objected to the Board remaking the motion and taking another vote 

on a motion identical to the motion that had failed as being done 

in violation of Robert's Rules of Order. The second motion and 

vote was illegal action by the Board. 

35. No motion was made to reconsider the motion that had 

failed nor was there a motion to suspend the rules of procedures of 

the Board. Once a vote is cast and recorded it can not be undone· 

without a motion to reconsider the action. See Roberts Rules of 
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Order 

36. The action on the subsequent identical motion was illegal 

and violated the Rules of Procedure of the Board, the Zoning 

Ordinance of the City of Roanoke, the Constitution of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia and the Constitution of the United States 

of America. 

WHEREFORE, the petitioners pray that proper process issue and 

be served on the respondent Board of Zoning Appeals, that the Court· 

issue a writ of certiorari, removing this cause to the Circuit 

Court and superseding the action of the Board of Zoning Appeals of 

the City of Roanoke and on review and hearing reverse the decision 

of the Board of Zoning Appeals, and declare the action taken by the 

Board on December 3, 1991 as being illegal and contrary to law and 

a violation of the laws of the City of Roanoke, the Constitution of 

the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the Constitution of the United 

States of America. 

GEORGE F. RILES, PHILLIP A. COOPER 
CAROL PATTERSON 1 GORDON BRAXTON 1 

JR. 1 BUFORD C • MOTLEY 1 LAWRENCE 
BAMLAR 1 DORIS BANKS, ARNESHIA TODD, 
JAMES HALL, DOROTHY STEVENSON 1 

LAVERNE PRUNTY, GLORIA TBECKAPERA, 
ANNIE DEANE, H. C. SMALLWOOD, MARY 
PERDUE, BOWARD COOPER, WILLIAM 
POWELL, GEORGE MCGHEE, ARTHEA POLK, 
NORMAN JONES, ALFRED DOWE, MARY 
LOUISE WILLIAMS, JAMES DICKASON, 
HAZEL FINNEY 
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STATE OF VIRGINIA 
to-wit: 

COMMONWEALTH AT LARGE 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this /D~day of January 

1992, by fr' ~ ..;.J. dt.>./7'../~J· , who states that he/she is 

duly authorized to sign these legal pleadings on behalf of all 

named petitioners. 

My Commission expires: 

SEAL 

ARELIA S. LANGHORNE, Esquire 
Attorney and Counsellor at Law 
2700 Langhorne Road 
P. o. Box 2453 
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(804) 528-1560 
Counsel for Petitioners 

a, 
/ -

NOTARY PUBLIC 
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Writ of Certiorari was mailed, first class mail postage prepaid, 

this /arlt- day of £)-a.vu.u:=t , 1992, to Wilburn c. Diblinq, 

Jr., City Attorney and counsel or the Board of Zoning Appeals, 464 

Municipal Building, Roanoke, Virginia 24011. 
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I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

AGENDA 

December 3, 1991 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Request of Gene Lucas, 1005 35th Street N.W., 
for a variance from Section 36.1-111 (a), Zoninq, 
minimum yard requirements, to provide a front yard set back 
of 13.7 ft. in lieu of the required 30ft., to allow 
reconstruction of house. 

2. Request of Lady Bird Apparel, Inc., 1255 ~ 
Williamson Road, S.E., for a special exception as provided~ 
under Section 207 (8), Zoning, to allow light manufacturing 
with retail sales in a commercial district. (Richard R. 
Sayers) · 

3. Request of NuT. Kong, 920 Stewart Avenue, s. E., 
for a variance fr~m Section 36.1-130 (a), Zoning, minimum 
yard requirements, to provide front yard set back of 22.1 
ft. in lieu of the required 30ft., to allow a 4ft. x 5 ft. 
roofed addition to side of house. 

4. Request of Mr. & Mrs. Hugh A. Thornhill, 2715 
Rosalind Avenues. w., for a variance from Section 36.1-93 
(a), minimum yard requirements, to provide front yard set 
back of 29.1 ft. in lieu of the required 30 ft., to permit 
rear porch enclosure. 

5. Request of Dorman M. Miller, l0-24th Street s.w., 
· for a variance from Section 36.1-93 (c), Zoning, minimum 

yard requirements, to provide a rear yard set back of 14 ft. 
in lieu of the required 25ft., to permit construction of a 
10 ft. 9 in. x 15 ft. addition to rear of house. 

6. Request of John c. Campbell, 1506 Tazewell Avenue 
s. E., for a. variance from Section 36.1-111 ·(b), Zoninq, 
minimum yard requirements, to provide a side yard set back 
of 2.8 ft. in lieu·of the required 4 ft. for an existing 18 
ft. x 20 ft. addition. Z05 

7~ Request of Fahed T. Twalbeh, 419-13th Street s.w., 
for_ a_ variance from Section_36.1~211_ (b). Zenina. 



10. Request of Robert E. Ford, 2443 Garden City Blvd. 
S.E., for a variance from Sections 36.1-594 (a) & 596, 
Zoning, nonconforming uses of buildings and structures, and 
change of nonconforming use to another use, to permit 
the resumption of operation of a carpet, tile, vinyl, wall 
paper, furniture and appliance store. 

11. Request of Geneva Kincer, 4215 Appleton Avenue 
N. W., 4215 Appleton Avenue N. W., for a variance from 
Section 36.1-76 (a), Zoning, minimum yard requirements, to 
permit carport 20 ft. from front yard set back in lieu of 
the required 30 feet. 

12. Request of Roanoke Valley Church of Christ/ 
Christian, 3622 Hershberger Road N. W., for variances from 
Section 36.1-93 (a), Zoning, minimum yard requirements; 
to provide a front yard set back of 15 ft. in lieu of the 
required 30ft., Section 36.1-407, Zoning, multiple 
structures on the same lot~ and Section 36.1-433 (a), 
Zoning, surface treatment of off-street parking lots, and 
to provide for the construction of a new church building. 
(Rev. Roy B. Miller) · 

13. Request of Edward Walker, 701-12th Streets. w., 
for a special exception as provided under Section 36.1-127 
(3), Zoning, to allow an art gallery. 

14. Request of Karl A. Vand~griff, 2629 Wycliffe 
Avenues. w., for a variance from Section 36.1-402 (b) (5), 
zoning, additional yard requirements, to permit construction 
of an addition 8ft. 8 in. from side property line-in lieu 
of the required 15 feet.· 

15. Request o"= WVF'J'-TV, 2618 Colonial Avenues. w., 
for a variance from Sections 36.1-211 (a) & 404 {a), Zoning, 
minimum yard requirements, and set back lines from major 
arterial highways, to permit satellite dish to remain 11 
feet from the front property line in lieu of the required 25 
feet. (Robb Gray) 

16. ReqUest of Stephen s. Kennedy, 3260 Allendale 
Streets. w., for a variance from Section 36.1-531 {d), 
Zoning, accessory uses and structures, to permit garage to 
be used for human habitation. (Mrs. Kennedy) 

17. Request of Roanoke Mental Health Services, Inc., 
for a rehearing of a special exception, as provided under 
Section 36.1-90 (2), Zoning, to allow a group home for 
substance abusers at 1919 Andrews Road N. W. with a variance 
to permit 24 persons in lieu of the required 8. (Henry 
Altice) 

IV. SIGNING OF MINUTES 206 
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BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MINUTES OF MEETIN'G 

Roanoke, Virginia 
December 3, 1991 

DEC 16 1991 

APPEAL NO: 32-91-A 

APPUCANT: Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, Inc • 
.. 

PREl\tfiSES: 1919 Andrews Road, Northwest 

PRESIDING: L. Elwood Norris, Chairman, 

Chairman: 
Alright is uh, we '11 come back into session. Have we got all the microphones the way 
its supposed to be. How is everyone going to see this t.v. Mr. Talevi? Should they 
see it or how .. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Well, Mr. Nonis, the most imponant thing is that the Board sees it, maybe we can 
tum it at an angle or something so that the Board and at least some of the audience · 
can see it, but again, the most important thing is that the Board see it for irs 
consideration. 

Chairman: 
Alright, will anyone who's getting, who's t.v. is it? Who's going to operate this. 

Uh the video is part of my presentation uh of my representation of the neighborhood who is · 
opposed to the request for special 

Chairman: 

Ten 

Well if you would tty and tum it a little sideways so as to the let them see it but as 
the city attorney says, we're the ones that have to see it so, I'm just trying to let 
everybody see everything. Uh, before we start. .. Just as a little preface to this hearing. 
This will be a complete new hearing. This went through the Comt and due to certain 
procedural ambiguities, the Court ordc=d that the Board of Zoning Appeals rehear this 
request so I still will ask: you not to be repetitive in any way if you can possibly help 
it or we'll just be he:e for hours. But, we want everyone to have time to be heard 
completely because it is a new hearing. ordered by the Court. So, let's see, how many 
folks do you have to speak, three or four? 

Chairman: 
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based and also the City Code and I think that what we are talking about is 
that it takes three votes to kill the request that uh we maintain is still 
before you. Now uh if we go to a rehearing then according to your rules 
its necessary to have some new evidence that couldn't have been presented 
before and in that regard I point out that we are raising this parliamentary 
point, but we are also raising the point that as of July 1, 1991, there went 
into effect in Virginia a Fair Housing Law an oddly enough that Fair 
Housing Law applies to the people that Roanoke Mental Hygiene Services, 
Incorporated ministers to. The Fair Housing in the beg;nning of course 
was a federal program and then we came along with a state program and 
what they were ta11dng abol.tt in the beginning was discrimination on 
account of race, color, national origin, sex and so forth, but this new law 
tbat uh that uh w~nt into effect July 1, 1991, covers what is defined as 
handicapped and that is something new in Virginja. They have defined 
handicapped uh to include uh millions with respect to a person a physical or 
mental impairment. which substantially limits or one or more persons major 
life activities, a medical or psychological record of having such an 
impairment or being regarded as having such an impairment and then they · · 
go on and specifically provide that the term does not include current illegal 
use of or addiction to a controlled substance as defined in Virginia or 
federal law. In other words, they left out of the Fair Housing any drug 
addicts, but they did include the people who are being treated by Mental 
Health Services and the Mental Hygiene Services, Incorporated and I 
submit to you gentlemen that its a new ballgame. That whereas some years 
ago we were saying that you couldn1t discriminate on account of race or 
national origins and things like that I think they have opened that up and I 
base that on the fact that there have been cases elsewhere in Virginia and 
in the United States that have attempted to protect these people that are in 
so-called halfway houses, you've heard that word used a lot. We are not 
dealing here with what. you have been considering before non-violent 
offenders. Our people .are non-violent offenders in a sense. But they are 
tied into drugs and alcohol and I think there's a very big difference 
between that type of person. We look to the City Code for the uh how you 
are to measure whether you grant a variance or not and the uh, City Code 
refers to compatibility and I think that concept was addressed at a previous -
hearing and in the City Code they say that the appropriateness of the . _ 

. application is to be considered on the following ·standards: the use is 
compatlcle with the character and appearance of the surrounding 
neighborhood by virtue of the type, bulk, location on the lot and the 
design and location of parking, signage landscaping and other outside 
activities or structures. Now this may be a lawyer's strict interpretation 
of the law, but I don't believe, I was not at the previous hearings, but I 
don't believe· there was anything said about most of these things that are 
referred to in here and I don1t know why there w&S such an opposition to 
what was endorsed by Judge Trompeter and the Roanoke Task Force on 
Drugs and so forth. This is considered, the work that our people are 
doing is considered to be a part of the war against drugs. But it does not 
put in jeopardy any neighbors and it hasn't put in jeopardy any neighbors 
in the area where they have operated and I submit to you that whereas at 
one time you might have been looking at the neighborhood and saying these 
people don't like people who have had alcohol problems or drug problems, 
but we can no longer uh, discriminate against them on housing. Now that's 
a little far fetched according to the city attorney here, but its not far 
fetched, its not gonna be far fetched, and I uh, think that's something that 

~'\\;<' ..lh~.g.o.. A Copy, Testa5 -- f 
P . C Hanes Se-cretary o als 
R~:noke CitY Soard of Zoning Appe 

~ 
~-~-



' 
3. 

G;e v1'1- '1' ,w,~ •1 ,d~L:t_ t!~~ ~ 
~~ 

~e a~pliean: may _appear i~ person or by agene or by ae:orney. 
absenc~ of any personal a?pe~~a~ee on behal! of e~e applicant, 
may p:oeeed eo dispose of :~e mac:er on e~e agenda beiore ie. 

!n the 
the Board 

4. At a he~ring of each appeal a~d applieae!on the order shall be as follows: 

a. Applicant's presentation of request. 
~. Evidence of property o~~ers in favor of request. 
c. £vidence of p~oper:y 0 9Mners opposing request. 
d. E~aminacion of witnesses. 
e. Applicant's rebuttal. 
f. Dec is ion of Board. 
g. Entering of.decision on records of Board cogethe~ with the 

reasons on which the decision vas based • 
. 

ARTICL! V!II. F!~AL O!S?OSITION OF AP?!AL. 

1. The final disposition of any a~peal or application before.ebe Beard 
shall be cede ~ichin a reasonaole leng~~ of time after the conclusion 
of the public hearing. 

2 •. The decision of the Board shall be in the for= of an o:der or a 
resolution which shall affir=, modify or reverse the refusal of 
a permi~ by, or any order or dec!sion of, ehe Zoning Adminiscrator. 
In case of an application for variation or modification, the resolu• 
tion shall set: forth that the applicac:ion is denied or chat. it is 
granted wit~ or wic:hout condic:ions, and said resolution shall speei• 
fic:tlly sec forth '.Jhac: variations or a:odi.ficacions ·are permie:ad and 
what conditions, i! any, shall be complied with. 

3. A copy of said order or resolution shall be sent to the applicant 
and to the Zoning Administrator and a copy filed with che record of 
the appeal or application. Ot~er copies ·may be sent eo interested 
parties at t~e Secretary 1s discretion. 

4. The Secretary may notify the ap~licant verbally of ~e !oard'a deci5ian· 
pending cocplecion of the reeor~s of each c~e. 

S. Any applicant may withdraw his appeal or application at any ti:e p~ior 
to the call to order for ehe ~ublic ~earin; by the Bonrd. Any reque5t 
fa~ withdrawal after the meeti~SJ has been called to order shall be . 
granced only upon eor.sent of :~e 3oard. 

AR.TIC!.! tx. l!SEAR.INCS • 

l. ~o rehearing of an ap~eal or ~~plic:4c:ion on which the Board ha5 
previously rendered !-9eeision shall be held, excep~ moc!on mace 
by a me=ber of che 3oard :o reconsider ehe previous decision, made 
noc la:er ::4n e~e f~:sc ~ee~i=s succeeding the meet!ng ac whic~ e~e 
decision was ~endered and ear~!ed ~Y no~ less than a_majority af!i~· 
tive \~te of e~e Board me=bers present at t~e original hearing. - . 

2. ~o motion !or a rehearing shall ~e considered by :he Board unless new 
evidence i3 su~mi::cd ~hie~, i~ :~e op~~!on of che !card, could noc have 
been reasonab~y ?~ese~:ed.~: :~e meee!:g at which t~e origi~al hear!~g 
wa~ ~elc:!. 209 
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3. I£ a rehearing is granc~d, the case shall be put on che agenda for a 
rehearing, and che sa~e procedure shall be followed as for a new appeal 
or application. 

A..~ TIC!.!: Y.. .l.P?!.11.LS ~OM THE BOARO 'S OEC!S!C~l. 

1 •• Appe3ls fro= che Board's decision shall be ~de in accordance with the 
provisions of the Zonins Or:inance. 

ARTICI.E XI. ::t!CO:·~·€~DATtO::s • 

" 

1. The Saard m3y su~mit a recommendation for a change in the Zoning Ordinance 
whenever it has Teason co believe that any provisions of the Ordinance 
~re not in ha~ny wi~h the public good. Sucn raco~endation may be 
submitted either to Roanoke Cicy·Counctl or the City Plarining·co~ission. 

ARTICU: XII. R!CONS!D~T!C~t OF APP~ALS PS.!~l!OUSLY :EARD. 

·/ 

1. Having once cons icfereci and rendered a dec is ian ul)on a reques c, the Board· 
shall not reconsider subsc4ntially the same request for one year, except 

·as provided in Areic:leiX, ~l!EARL'lGS. 

ARTICI..E XIII. ADV!C!. 

1. No info~al requests of applicants for advice or mgot questions will be 
con_s iciered by the Board. 

2. If legal advice is dea~ed necessary, t~e Board may ask t~e City Attor~ey 
for an opinion. 

AR.TICU: XIV. AMENDMENTS • 

l. These rules, insofar as they do not ~onflicc wit~ the latest official 
copy of the Zoning Ordinance, may be amended or =Cdified by· a majority 
vote of the whole Board, provided that sucb amendment be presented in 
writing ac a regular =eeting and action taken thereon ac a subsequent 
regul•r =eeting. 

2. The suspension of any rule of p~oeedure may be ordered at any ~eecing 
by a unanimous vote of the Board members p~esenc. 

Approved by the Board ·of Zoning Appeals, 
Septe=ber 2, 1969. 

ART!CI..E 'N. PARLIA~1ENT.\R.Y Atrt'HOR.I'n' - AMENDMENT 

1. The r~les contained in Rober:s Rules of Order newly revised shall 
govern t~e Boa~: in all cases to whic~ t~ey are applicable and in 
whic~ t~ey are act inconsistent ~i:~ che standing rules of the !card. 

21.0 
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Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Norris, I believe that at the last hearing the applicant had the burden 
to garner three votes in favor of his application. There was not three 
votes in favor of that application. 

Chairman: 
We never voted that way though, the question was to not grant it. It was 
to not grant the application. 

Mr. Talevi: 
That's correct, to deny the application. 

Chairman: 
Yes, to deny it. I need my own attorney I think. 

Monotone discussion 

Chairman: 
Somebody use to correct me I think at times, was that you who said when I 
said a tie vote is noted, did you correct me that that wasn't right? 

Mr. Talevi: 
I don't recall if it was a tie vote or not and frankly, I don't recall 
correcting you Mr. Norris. 

Chairman: 
It must have been another attorney then. You haven't been here too long 
have you? Somebody corrected me, I guess ... Alright. 

Mr. Dodson: 
If it please the chairman,. our feeling is that we ought to be entitled to the 
vote of the five members of the Board. I mean I think tllat's the fair thing 
to do on something this important to the commUnity. 

Chairman: 
I don't think there's anything that says, they could have asked for a 
continuation until five members were present and we could have decided 
whether or not to do that, but just to say that's not fair, I think we could 
have three members and have decided for it and it would have been just as 
legal. Um, I voted against the motion so I'm for it if that means anything, 
but you still need to prove to the Board that you have, that we were in 
error and of course, you can always go to Court to do that. Or, if you do 
have information that was not presented. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Dodson are there any other, r didn't mean to synthesize your argument 
to succinctly or to concisely, are there any other facts that you want to 
present at this time in support ot a motion for a rehearing. 

Mr. Dodson: 
I'm not aware of any new facts that we can present unless Mr. Altice 

Mr. Altice: 

2U 
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Well, one of the facts, that uh, two things I want to just mention. One 
again is that uh I left here disappointed needless to.say about what 
happened and one of the things that bothered me most was was that the 
motion was to deny and by your rules the motion was defeated and thats 
why I said to Mr .. Dodson that I thought it was still no the table because the 
motion itself was denied, so thats a concern and I feel like it needs to be 
addressed. Uh, also, the fact that I think there are two issues that 
continue to happen there. One was the fact that there are no programs in 
Northwest Roanoke and the fact that the programs are continuing to be 
overloaded in other parts of the city. and I think its only fair that there is 
equal distribution and I don't think that was clearly stated at the last time 
when we were here. As well as there was an alliance stated between us and 
the Embassy Halfway house which we were not a part of and are not a part 
of and that was never I felt clearly stated. So thats the other two pieces 
for me. And I wish I had needless to say asked for·a five member vote. 

That would have had the three ·votes here regardless.? . 

Mr. Dodson The only new information it occurs to me is that I was told that the 
question was asked and not answered as to why it was necessary to 
move out of the present location of Hegira House and the answer to 
that I have mentioned here before is that that place is in bad shape 
and Mr. Altice can testify to that and the the uh, its owned by 
someone that is uh not well, that would not put any money into it to 
remedy the things that have to be remedied and in addition to that 
the the the uh people that are there are commed to those four walls 
and the alternative is this new location where they wouldn't be. Now 
that's that's I don't know that that information was brought before 
the hearing. 

Chairman: 
It was 

Mr. Altice: 
And the other thing jf that is enforced we will lose our license eventually jf 
we don't make these repairs so we're stuck in a point to. We don't 
own the facility and we will eventually lose our license-as a result Qf ·the . 
plumbing and electrical ••• 

Chairman: 
You'll lose your license as a result of what now 

Mr. Altice: 

Chairman: 

As a result of the plumbing and electrical work and the structural 
process and so forth and so that is an issue. And we have been 
looking for other sites since the last time and we really haven't had 
any luck. We've had some people offer us some property that was 
just vacant and no buildings on it and things of that nature, but we 
really haven't had any luck. 

Alright, uh, 

Mr. Wheaton: 
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Mr Copty: 
Do you want to poll the Board 

. Mr. Talevi: 
Yeah, did you poll the Board 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts 

Mr. Roberts: 
Since I voted against the petition to begin with I think I would be 
inconsistent jf I didn't vote the same way so I therefore, my is no 

Secretary: 
. Mr. Wheaton 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No 

Secretary: 
Mr. Copty 

Mr. Copty: 
Yes 

Secretary: 
Mr. Norris 

Mr. Norris: 
Yes 

Mr. Roberts: 
I would not object to a new hearing if we could have some new evidence or 
something to base a change in my decision. 

Cha:irman: 
-c Or jf the Court tells you to you would probably 

Mr. Roberts: 
That's true of course 

Chairman: 
Did you have fun, did you get anything down. 

Are we going to get another editorial for this. 

I think you ought to put Eldwood's picture on the paper for this. 

Chairman: 
Take a picture of the Board Joe. (inauchcle) How about we start at the 
beginning~ all in favor say Aye. 

Your elected •.•• 

2:13 A Copy, T~ CJ!P .... 
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possible treatment available to them. We have been 
seen in many areas as one of the finest programs in the 
state of Virginia and in the east coast and it has been 
a model program for programs throughout the state of 
Virginia. To be a program for this length of time says 
a lot for who·we are and what we are about. We do not 
want to come in and devaluate a community or cause 
problems in the community, but rather to be a 
supportive part of that community. What I would like 
to do now, before I address some other concerns, is to 
talk a little bit about the facility and the site plan 
itself. Oliver and Mike Smith you could come up with 
me. 

{Someone in the audience) Mr. Chairman, could you please 
limit these talks? It seems like they have all the 
time and by the time you get to us it could be 6 or 
7:00. 

Chair.man: It's always the person asking the request gets to 
explain the request first. We'll give you all the time 
that you need. 

Mr. Altice: OK, Oliver. 

Mr. Stein: I'm Oliver Stein, a retired architect and ! 
was asked to wor~ .with Henry Altice on preparing a site 
plan. These is a 14 acre site as illustrated here and 
the very nice existing residence on that. I think some 
of you have be~n out to see that.· And they propose to 
add two buildings. One a general purpose or 
multipurpose building which is 27 1/2 feet wide and s·s 
feet lonq and that's ba-sically a multipurpose room,. 
dininq hall sort of a building. We've located it in 
this location. This is the old existing building and 
this is the old existing garaqe and the multipurpose 
buildinq is to the right and 40 feet this direction 
we've located the dormitory building 

Chairman: And the creek is to the right, there? 

Mr. Stein: · The creek is, this is Lick Rock. You drive 
in off Andrews Road some quarter of a mile I think it 
is ••• 

Chairman: Well now Andrews is going to be up here and 581 is 

Mr. Stein: 581 is riqht in this location, parallel to 
Lick Run and it's just off drawing. And, of course, 
Valley View Mall is up here. And you drive in going 
toward the city's property and ~~en into this driveway 
and this existing residence has been back there since, 

-
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the new speakers today can talk about who we are in the community that we have 
been in the past. I think that a lot of people don't really understand our reputation 
and how we've been functioning in the community from someone who has acmally 
lived beside us and dealt with us on an everyday basis and I think that will be 
enlightening to uh the Board. So, with that in min~ I will uh, conclude briefly my 
comments and let Margo Kiely give us some more information. 

Chaimlan: 
Alright, thank you Mr. Altice. 

Mrs. Kiely: 
Good afternoon, I'm Margo Kiely and I live at 2029 Maiden Lane, SouthwesL I'm 
the Director of Substance Abuse Services Programs for Mental Health Services of the 
Roanoke Valley and today I'd like to address in particular, two issues with you. The 
first issue is what kind of hardship we would face if we could not continue to 
accommodate our twenty-four residents rather than the eight provided for and why we 
cannot remain in our cmrent location. Both of these issues have come up before this 
Board of Zoning Appeals before and what I'd like to provide is a little more detail in 
the answers we were able to give you in the past. FU'St, as to the issue of program 
size. Hegira is built on what we call the therapeutic community model Any 
therapeutic community requires four basic components in order for it to operate and be 
successful. The first is intensive staff supervision. Second, peer pressure. . Pressure 
from. positive peer pressure from one individual in the program, one group of 
individuals in the program to another. Thir~ a strUcture of increasing client 
responsibility so that as time goes one the responsibilities and duties of the clients 
increase in their intensity. And fo~ snict abstinence monitored by random testing. 
For the first three of the these factOrS I have mentioned. there is a critical community 
size. Intensive staff supervision by high quality, preferably certified addictions 
counselors is an expense which needs to be spread over a group in order for that 
expense to be a reasonable one. For example, if we were to have only eight residents, 
we would still need to provide twenty·four hour a day, seven days a week supervision. 
In order to do that and provide for any kind of staff illnesses or training or any kind 
of absences like that we would still need to have a minimum of five counselors and a 
coordinator on duty. If we did that, if we reduce to the level of eight residents, and 
reduce the staff to that level, we would increase our per client cost to $15,739 per 
client based on last year's figures, last fiscal year's figures as opposed to our current 
cost of $6,731. This is 2 1/2, almost 2 1/2 times our cuxrent expense per client. In 
additio~ our cmrent income from fees which now accounts for roughly 20 percent of 
that cost would be reduced to less than 7 percent of that cost. We could not bear this 
expense. This would be a grave and serious hardship which would result in the 
closing of this therapeutic community program. The second and third factors I 
mentioned, peer pressure and incre3Sing client responsibilities have to do with the 
client population. In termS of developing positive peer pressure, clients acquire this 
from a wide variety of peers while· in the program. A group of eight would not 
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problems programs for our problems as a city and as neighborhoods are going to need 
to be addressed and I am convinced by what has been said that the Hegira House will 
pose no adverse affects for this neighborhood and· I think: that is what would what I 
was listening for, how would this program uh affect this 'neighborhood? I'm 
convinced that all of our neighborhoods are going to have to have the programs in 
them to handle the problems of our society, 

Mr. Rife: 
I'd like to second the motion and make a couple of comments. FtrSt of all, we uh, it's 
been brought up to tlie Board as a basis for some appeal that previous decision of the 
Board may be in violation of Equal Housing Acts or something like that and I would 
just like to state that you know that I am not concerned about that in this regard, r m 
concerned about it, but it has no bearing on my feelings on this. I'm looking at this 
strictly as a land use issue and the issue here isn't whether or not this location on 
Andrews Road is better or worse than some other that may or may not exist in 

-~ Roanoke Gty, Roanoke County, Salem wherever, and the issue is not whether this is a 
better locatiQ\than the cmrent location. The issue before us is a land use issue of 
whether or not this property is suitable for the proposed use and needs to be looked at 
from a sttict land use perspective and certainly it's zoned the .same uh RS3 as __ 
property but it is a unique property, 13 and some acres and you can stand in the 
driveway in front of that house and you can rum 360 degrees ad you cannot see 
another house. You can drive all away around the perimeter of this property and the 
only place you can see into it from is Route 581, uh itS very isolated. The majo~ty of 
the properties around there are lot sizes of a quarter to a half acre and by virtue of 
their lot size are inherendy very different from the property in question and and, uh, 
you know, I'm an architeCt and ttained as an architeCt and if Hegira House had come 
to me and asked you know what would you look for, uh, you know what kind of 
things should we look for, acreage is it, I ~an acreag~ the buffering aspectS, the 
topographical layout of this property is well suited to this use and uh that's what we 
have tO find, we have tO find· that is the basis of giving the ·special exception that the 
adjoining properties are not negatively affected and I just haven't seen it and while I 
have seconded the issue I am going to not suppon it. That was a long winded second. 

Chairman: 
Alright a motion on the floor to grant the request are ya'll ready for a vote? All in 
favor signify by saying Ay. Alright would you poll the Board please? 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts. 

Mr. Roberts: 
No. 

Secretary: 
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Mr. Rife 

Mr. Rife: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Notris 

Mr. Noms: 
Aye. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Wheaton 

Mr. Wheaton: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Copty 

Mr. Copty: 
Aye. 

Mr. Rife: 
Excuse me I thought the motion was, excuse me, may I change my vote? 

. . 

Chairman: 
He asked.. 

Mr. Rife: 
I meant for my vote to be in favor of the motion.. 

Mr. Talevi: 
:Mr. Nmrls, so that there is no misunderstanding here, a vote in favor of the motion 
would be a vote to grant the special exception and to grant the variance as requested. 

Mr. Rife: 
That was my intenL 

Mr. Talevi: 
That was my understanding. 

Chairman: 
After that five minute speech. 

J.­
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:Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Noms would you again call for a vote please. 

Chairman: 
Alright, let's we've given every body time, please be quiet. 

Mr. Talevi: 
Mr. Nozrls in light of Mr. Rife's seconding the motion to grant special exception and 
in light of his uh remarks would you please call for an oml vote first just as you 
ordinarily would. , 

lWr. Rife: 
Can I have the motion restated to so I can end my confusion. 

Mr. Copty: 
My motion was made and I remake my motion to say that I make a motion in favor of 
granting the special exception of allowing twenty four persons to be uh included in 
this facility and also a motion uh that would allow for the special exception or special 
use of this property to be used for the Hegira House and for their pmposes. 

Chairman: 
Alright now do I have a second motion. 

Mr. Rife: 
I second it again. 

Chairman: 
So we have a second to the motion. I'll say again, all in favor signify by saying Ay. 
Now will you poll the Board. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Roberts. 

Mr. Roberts: 
No. 

Secretary: 
Mr. Rife 

Mr. Rife: 
Aye. 

Secretary: 
~Ir. Notris 
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GEORGE F. RILES 
1925 Andrews Road 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

PHILLIP COOPER 
1933 Andrews Road 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

CAROL PATTERSON 
2025 Andrews Road 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

GORDON BRAXTON 1 JR. 
2105 Andrews Road 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

BUFORD C. MOTLEY 
2109 Andrews Road 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

LAWRENCE HAMLAR 
1837 Grayson Street 
Roanoke, Virginia 24016 

DORIS BANKS 
1823 Syracuse Avenue 
Roanoke, Virginia 24012 

ARNESBIA TODD 
1801 Syracuse Avenue 
Roanoke, Virginia 24012 

JAMES BALL 
1606 Syracuse Avenue 
Roanoke, Virginia 24012 

DOROTHY STEVESON 
Florida Avenue 

Roanoke, Virginia 

LAVERNE PRUNTY 
Florida Avenue 

Roanoke, Virginia 

HAZEL FINNEY 
1507 Rugby Blvd. 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

PETITIONERS 

GLORIA THECKEPERA 
1719 Leon Street 
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ANNIE DEANE 
2504 Springhill Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

H. C. SMALLWOOD 
2305 Sherman Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

MARY PERDUE 
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Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

HOWARD COOPER 
2302 Sherman Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

WILLIAM POWELL 
2212 Sherman Drive 

. Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

GEORGE MCGHEE 
2521 Lakeview Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

ALTHEA POLK 
2513 Lakeview Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

NO.RMAN JONES 
2512 Lakeview Drive 
Roanoke, Virginia 24017 

ALFRED DOWE 
2711 Kirkland Avenue 
Roanoke, Virginia 

MARY LOUISE WILLIAMS 
Kirkland Avenue 

Roanoke, Virginia 

JAMES DICKASON 
Meadowview Drive 

Roanoke, Virginia 
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~~KE Board of Zoning Appeals 
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L. 8wood Norris, Chairman 
T. E. Roberts, Vice Chairman 

W. L Wheaton 
Robert R. Copty 
Richard A. Rife 

Patti C. Hanes, Secretmy 

ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

APPEAL NO. 32-91-A 

Applicant: Roanoke Mental Health Services, 
Inc. 

Premises: 1919 Andrews Road N.W. 

In accordance with the authority vested in the Board of 
Zoning Appeals, as provided under Sections 36.1-655 & 
3·6.1-:-656, Zoning, City Code, to hear and decide appeals from 
the decision of the Zoning Administrator, a public hearing 
was conducted on Tuesday, December 3, 1991, in the Council 
Chamber, Municipal Building, en the following request: 

The request of the applicant for a special exception 
as provided under Section 36.1-90 (2), Zoning, to 
allow a group home for substance abusers at 1919 Andrews 
Road N.W., with a variance to permit 24 persons in lieu 
of the permitted a. . 

Facts and conditions involved in said application were 
investigated by the Board, inspections of the property in 
question having been made prior to the public hearing date. 

Pursuant to a Decree entered under date of October 23, 
1991, the Circuit Court remanded this matter to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals for a hearing. 

Upon consideration of the record, and evidence and 
testimony adduced to the hearing held on Dec~~er 3, 1991, 
all interested persons and parties being given a full and 
fair opportunity to be heard. Motion to grant the request 
was made by Mr. Robert R. Copty. Mr. Richard A. Rife 
seconded the motion. Whereu1:on a vote ~..tas taken, Messrs. 
Copty, Rife and L. Elwood Norris voting in favor of said 
motion, and Messrs. w. L. Wheaton and T. E. Roberts voting 
against said motion. The ~Jete being a three ( 3) votes in 
favor of the motion and ~~c (Z) votes against the motion. 
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request herein 
be granted. 

The Building Commissioner is hereby authorized to 
issue the proper permit for said certificate of occupancy 
in accordance with the decision of the Board, with the 
understanding that said certificate is null and void if not 
obtained within six months from the date of this Order. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, this the 3rd 
day of December, t991. 

~~~an • lwood s 

T. · E. Roberts 

~4/~ 
w. L. Wheaton 

~4£S 
~~.· ¢opty 
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VIRGINIA: IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

GEORGE F. RILES, et. al., 

Petitioners, 

v. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS FOR 
THE CITY OF ROANOKE, 
DOCKET #L91-l356, 

AND 

THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE, INCORPORATED 

v. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS FOR 
THE CITY OF ROANOKE 1 

DOCKET IL9l-659 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) o( 9/-/J~b 

ORDER OF MERGER 
AND CONSOLIDATION 

This day came all parties in the subject cases by 

their counsel, on a Motion for Conso~idation and Merger of~ the 

above-styled cases made by George F. Riles, et. al. and 

previously filed herein1 

And it appearing to the Court that said motion 

should be granted and further; 

1. That there are two case& on this Court's docket 

involving actions of the Board of Zoning Appeals for the City_ 

of Roanoke, to-wit: June 4, 1991, July 9, 1991 and December 

3, 1991 in regards to an application by The Roanoke Mental 

Hygiene Service, Incorporated for a variance and special 

exception to the zoninq ordinance of the City of Roanoke for 

~ 

\\.11 
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the use of 1919 Andrews Road in the City of Roanoke, Virginia, 

as a residential drug treatment facility for twenty-four 

persons; and 

2. That the parties now with an interest in the 

matters include George F. Riles, et. al.; The Roanoke Mental 

Hygiene Service, Incorporated and the Board of Zoning Appeals 

of the City of Roanoke; and 

3. The. parties do not object to the merger and 

consolidation of these cases; and 

4. The Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Incorporated 

desires to accept service of process of the amended petition 

filed by Riles, et. al. and to file an answer thereto. 

NOW THEREFORE, it is ORDERED that the matter styled 

George F. Riles, et. al. v. Board of Zoning Appeals for the 

City of Roanoke, (Docket #L91-1356) and the matter styled The 

Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Incorporated v. Board of 

Zoning Appeals for the City of Roanoke, (Docket #L91-659) ,·be, 

and they hereby are, merged and consolidated under the style 

George F. Riles, et. al. v. Board of Zoning Appeals of the 

City of Roanoke and The Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, 

Incorporated; and it is further 

ORDERED that a copy of the amended petition of 

George F. Riles, et. a!. be served upon the The Roanoke Mental 

Hygiene Service, Incorporated and they file their 

thereto within twenty-one days of service; and 

eiJ2 
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The Clerk is directed to send a certified copy of 

this Order to all counsel of record; 

And this matter is continued for such other and 

further proceedings as may be necessary. 

I ASK FOR THIS: 

Esquire, 
F. Riles, et. al. 

SEEN: 

GRIFFITH DODSON, R., Esquire, 
Of Counsel for The Roanoke Mental 
Hygiene Service, Incorporated 

Assistant City Attorney and Counsel 
for the Board of Zoninq Appeals for 
the City ~anoke 
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VIRGINIA: CIRCUIT COURT 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CI REC~~R~ED 

GEORGE F. RILES, ET AL. I 

Petitioners. 

-v-

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS FOR THE 
CITY OF ROANOKE 

and 
THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE I INC. I 

Defendants. 

t:9 ~ / s-PIYJ 
AY 2 2 i992 

ey __ , 
DEPUTY C'-·~- · ·' -

CITY OF ROAi~OKI:: 

case No: 
770CL91001356 
770CL91000659 

i"'O'I'IONS: 

HONORABLE ROY B. WILLETT, JUDGE· SUPR£ME ~~~F:VIRGIN 

April 3; 1992 

10:00 a.m. o'clock 

RICHMOND. VIRGINIA 
APPEARANCES: 

COUNSEL FOR THE PETITIONERS: 

COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANT, 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS: 

COUNSEL FOR THE DEFENDANT, 
ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE, INC. 
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ARELIA S. LANGHORNE, ESQ. 
P. o. Box 2453 
Lynchburg, Virgin~a 24_501 

STEVEN J. TALEVI, ESQ. 
464 Municipal Building 
Roanoke, Virg~nia 24011 

ANN C. GROVE, ESQ. 
Dodson, Pence, Viar, 
Woodrum & Mackey 
P. o. Box 1371 
Roanoke, Vlrginia 24007 

Jacqueline B. 8Grut9• 
Registered Professional Reporter 

CUllen, Virginia 23934 Phone: 804-542-§4~§ 
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1 THE CLERK: Docket Number CL9113, 

2 George F. Riles versus Board of Zon1ng, and 

3 Docket Number CL9165 which is Roanoke Mental 

4 Hygiene versus the Board of zoning. Is the 

5 plaintiff ready? 

6 MR. TALEVI: Ma'am, I believe the style 

7 of the case is actually Riles versus BZA and 

8 Mental Hygiene Service, and we are the defendant 

9 and we are ready. 

10 THE COURT: That•s correct. George F. 

11 Riles, et als, are petitioners. 

12 MS. LANGHORNE: Your Honor, I represent 

13 the pet~tioners, and we are ready. 
~ 

~ 14 ~ THE COURT: All right, do you wish to 
~ 
~ 
~ 

6 15 ~ 
~ make any statements in opening for the 
0 
u 
~· 16 
~ 

petitioner? 
% 
~ 

~ 17 ~ 

~ 
MS. LANGHORNE: Yes, sir, Your Honor. 

< 
~ 

w 
~ 18 ~ This is a very thick file. But this 
~ 
a 
~ 
~ 
~ 19 petition was filed by the petitioners because 
~ 
~ 
~ 

~ 20 they were aggrieved by the December 3rd, 1991 
: = ~ 

! 21 decision of the Board of zoning Appeals to allow 
< 
~ 
~ 
~ 

22 u 
~ 

a special exception and variance to the zoning 
~ 
c 
~ 

23 ordinance for Hygera House which is run by the 

24 Roanoke Mental Hygiene service, Incorporated, to 

25 operate a residential drug treatment facility for 
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1 up to twenty-four residents. These residents 

2 primarily are conv~cted felons. 

3 The petition was flled and numerous 

4 counts are in the petition. The petition was 

5 filed on December 31st, 1991. At the time that I 

6 sent the petition up here to be filed, I also 

7 sent a request for a leave of court for the 

8 filing of the petition. I have researched this 

9 issue, and it does not appear that leave of court 

10 is required to initiate a proceeding to complain 

11 about a decision by the Board of zoning Appeals 

12 when the parties are aggrieved. In any event, 

13 that leave of Court order was not entered, and 

14 I'm not qu~te sure to th~s day why it was not 

15 entered. But in any.event, when it came to my 
0 
u 
0 
14. 

16 attention that it had not been entered and that 
:1 ., 
a: 17 11.1 
~ 

service of process was being· denied on the 
< 
~ 

(/) 

a: 18 ~ petition that had been filed on December 31st, I 
a: 
0 
~ 
11.1 
a: 19 did some quick one evening research and 
a: 
11.1 
(/) 

< 20 ~ - determined that in the case of Board of 
z 
i: 
~ 

< 21 ... 
< 

supervisors versus the Board of Zoning-----
0. 
ci: 
(/) 

22 u 
:1 

THE COURT: Let me interrupt you. Is 
a: 
c 
14. 

23 that an issue before th~s court? 

24 MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, I think we can 

25 move on to the merits . 
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-
1 THE COURT: I think it's properly 

2 before the Cotirt. All that is moot. The 

3 procedure for getting it here is stipulated to be 

4 acceptable and it's properly before the Court. 

5 MS. LANGHORNE: Thank you, Your Honor. 

6 THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. 

7 MS. LANGHORNE: As far as the evidence 

8 that we feel is necessary for the Court to make a 

9 determinat1on in regards to the petitioner's 

10 cla1rn, the record 1s an extensive record. 

11 However, we would like the court to hear evidence 

12 today from four w1tnesses that we have; Mrs. 

13 ~atty Hanes who is the secretary of the Board of 

14 zoning Appeals, Ronald Mlllner who is the 

15 administrator for the Board of zoning, and Mrs. 
0 
(J 

ci 16 
~ 

Banks who is one of the petitioners, and Mr. 
:1 
... 
c: 17 w 
a. ·Hamler who is also a petitioner. And we feel 
.r: 
Q, 

Cl) 

c: 18 w ... that with this additional information and the 
a: 
0 
Q, 
w 
a: 19 record before the court, that the court will find 
c: 
w 
C/1 
< 

20 ..... 
..... that the Board of Zoning Appeals' action on 
z 
a: 
Q, 

< 21 ... December 3rd was contrary to law and the evidence 
< 
0 
a: 
C/) 

22 (J before it and exceeded the scope of the order 
:1 
a: 
c 
u. 

23 which this Court had entered in October of 1991 

24 in regards to the scope of what was remanded to 

25 the Board. 
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1 Thank you. 

2 THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Talevi? 

3 MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, briefly, the 

4 City is satisfied with the record that is before 

5 the court. It's a voluminous record. It's one 

6 which consists of no less than four hearings. 

7 And I think that with all the documents that have 

8 been put into the record, all the opportunities 

9 that the residents had, includ~ng the petltion 

10 singed by many of the folks who live in the area 

11 of the subject property, I think there has been 

12 ample opportunity to put on evidence in support 

13 of their position. 

14 I would obJect vehemently to any 

15 further testimony, any further issues raised at 
0 
u 

~ 
~ 

16 this level, especially including the testimony of 
2 
d 

~ 17 ~ 
~ 

the Zoning Administrator and his secretary who is 
< 
~ 

~ 

= 18 ~ 
~ nothing more than a custodian of records. Mrs. 
= 0 
~ 
~ 
~ 19 Banks has already testified in this matter, if 
~ 
~ 
~ 
< 
~ 20 ~ memory serves me correct. Mr. Hamler's name I'm 
z 
i 
~ 

<' 21 ~ 

<: 
not familiar with. But again, he had the same 

~ 
= ~ 

22 u 
2 

opportunity that the numerous residents had to 
=· 0 
~ 

23 testify in this matter which is now pending 

24 before the court. It's our position that there 

25 is ample evidence in the record to support BZA's 
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1 decision. The law 1s well settled that the 

2 decision should not be set aside unless it's 

3 plainly wrong. And I think there is sufflcient 

4 evidence for the granting of the special 

5 exception and the variance in this case to 

6 support the Board's decision granting that 

7 special exception and variance. 

8 THE COURT: Do you wish to respond to 

9 that, ma'am? You know, the court is to review 

10 the record and why do you want, upon what basis 

11 do you wish to present new evidence? 

12 MS. LANGHORNE: Your Honor, the 

13 proceeding under the Statute provides for a 

14 rev1ew of the record and any addit1onal ev1dence 

15 in regards to basica~ly facts that are not 
0 
u 
0 16 
~ 

stipulated by the parties in the petition here. 
~ 

~ 

= 17 w 
~ 

And I don't think that there is evidence before 
< 
~ 

~ 

= 18 w 
~ 

the court in regards to basically three issues 
= 0 
~ 
w 
= 19 here that tie into our arguments that the Board's 
= w 
~ 

< 
20 ~ 

~ 
action was lllegal. That evidence, what we would 

= = ~ 

~ 21 expect to get from Mrs. Hanes and Mr. Miller is 
< 
Q 

~ 
0 

22 u 
~ 

basically what the Board has done in regards to 
= 0 
~ 

23 other petitions for residential group homes of a 

24 capacity greater than eight. The Statute 

25 provides that eight unrelated persons in a group 
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1 home shall be considered a single family 

2 residence. 

3 In this particular case, after the many 

4 proceedings that were before the Board and then 

5 before this court, the variance was for twenty-

6 four. we alleged in our petit~on that we were 

7 not aware of any zoning variances that had been 

8 granted in this city ~n ·any residentiallY zoned 

9 neighborhood for a group home with a capac1ty of 

10 twenty-four. And we would expect to be able to 

11 solicit that kind of information from the zoning 

12 Administrator who•s worked for the City a number 

13 of years and who is famil~ar with this 

14 1nformat1on, and Mrs. Hanes, who is the custodian 

15 and record keeper of the Zoning Board. 
0 
u 

ci 16 
~ 

Additionally, Mr. Hamler and Mrs. Banks 
2 
~ 

c 17 w 
~ 

did not go into the detail in regards to their 
< 
~ 

~ 
~ 

18 w 
~ neighborhood and how it came to be. 
~ 
0 
~ 
w 
~ 19 one of the allegations in this petition 
~ 
w 
~ 

~ 20 
~ 

is that this is a predominantly black 
z 
~ 
~ 

~- 21 
< 

neighborhood, and that it is a predominantly 
0 

= ~ 

22 u 
2 

black neighborhood because of prior segregated 
~ 
0 
~ 

23 housing patterns in the City of Roanoke. And we 

24 don't feel that there is any evidence before the 

25 court in regards to that. And ------
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1 THE COURT: Shouldn't that have been 

2 presented to the Board if it's pertinent? 

3 MS. LANGHORNE: Well, all I can say is 

4 that there was some limited testimony in that 

5 regard but it did not go into the detail that may 

6 be necessary for a finding that that was in fact 

7 the case. 

8 THE COURT: As counsel knows, this is 

9 not a Trial De Novo. It's a review of 

10 administrative proceeding by the Board. 

11 MS. LANGHORNE: I understand that, Your 

12 Honor. But there is a case that said that---

13 There was a case where the parties agreed that 

14 the matter could be st1pulated before the court 

15 and could be decided on the record. It was a 
0 
u 
0 16 
~ 

case involving a non conforming use. And once 
2 

"' c: 17 w 
c. the zoning act was passed, any change in that non 
< c. 
en 
a: 18 w 
1-

conforming use would have required a petition for 
a: 
0 
c. 
loll 
a: 19 a variance before the Board. It involved a sign. 
c: 
w 
en 
< 
..J 20 ... It involved the Days Inn Motel that changed and 
z 
a: 
c. 

:! 21 became a Quality Inn. And they stipulated to 
< 
Q 

ri: 
en 

22 u 
2 

everything except whether or not a structural 
a: 
~ 

23 change had been made in the sign. Now, there was 

24 a dispute in regards to whether it was just 

25 information that was changed or whether there was 

233 
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1 a structural change. And the supreme Court of 

2 Virginia sent 'that case back for the Trial court 

3 to take evidence in regards to whether or not in 

4 fact there was a structural change to that sign, 

5 such that evidence should have been taken at the 

6 Circuit court level. 

7 THE COURT: Do you have that case? 

8 MS. LANGHORNE: I tell you, I read so 

9 many cases 1n regard to this, I pulled everything 

10 out that I felt that I would need for today. If 

11 the Court would give me a minute I probably could 

12 find the reference to it. It involved a change 

13 of 1nformat1on on a sign. 

14 THE COURT: Are you fam1liar Wlth the 

15 case, Mr. Talevi? 
0 
(J 

CJ 16 
"" 

MR. TALEVI: No, sir, I'm not. But 
::e 

a: 17 w 
a. again, there is no stipulation in this case, and 
< a. 
Cll 
a: 18 w ... the res1dents were represented by an attorney 
a: 
0 
a. 
w 
a: 19 before the BZA at least at the last of the four 
a: 
w 
Cll 
< _, 20 .... hearings held in this matter. Had there been a 
z 
a: 
a. 
< 21 < need for testimony-------I'm not conceding in any 
Q 

~ 
Cll 

22 (J 

::e way that these issues and this testimony or 
a: 
0 

'"" 23 contentions are relevant-------they had an 

24 opportunity to raise these issues and bring these 

25 facts before the Board and then before the court. 
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1 I would like to point out to the Board 

2 that where this structure 1s be1ng sought to be 

3 located is not within the City's power. This is 

4 something where Hygera House came to the City and 

5 said, We want to locate in this neighborhood. 

6 And the City processed the application. How, 

7 then, can the City, or how then can any evidence 

8 relating to the neighborhood or any of these 

9 protect1on arguments have any bearing on this 

10 case? 

11 Furthermore, what the Board has done in 

12 other cases for residential group homes is 

13 completely 1rrelevant to what they've dohe 1n 

14 this case. certa1nly aga1n there were plenty of 

15 opportunities to develop those issues, again not 
0 
C.) 

Cl 
~ 

16 conceding that they•re relevant. And Mr. Miller 
::lE ,., 
c: 17 w 
a. is just the zoning Administrator. He can't speak 
< a. 
en 
c: 

18 w ,... for the Board. The record speaks for the Board 
a: 
0 
a. 
:ll 
:z: 19 in these other cases. That testimony is totally 
c: 
"" en 
~ 20 .. irrelevant to the issues being raised. 
~ 
c: 
a. 
;: 
< 

21 And the same relevancy argument would 
0 

a: 
en 

22 C.) 

::lE 
apply to Mrs. Banks and Mr. Hamler, Your Honor. 

a: 
c .... 

23 MS. LANGHORNE.: Your Honor, if we go 

24 directly to the statute, 15.1-497, and you go to 

25 the fourth paragraph. It says----
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1 THE COURT: Let me qet that. I didn't 

2 bring that into the courtroom. 

3 MS. LANGHORNE: All right. 

4 THE COURT: He's right, though. I've 

5 reviewed the record. There is not a matter of 

6 stipulation in here. There is a complete record 

7 here. 

8 You may go ahead. 

9 MS. LANGHORNE: Okay. "If upon the 

10 hearing it shall appear to the court that 

11 testimony 1s necessary for the proper disposition 

12 of the matter, it may take evidence or appoint a 

13 comm1ssioner to take such evidence as 1t may 

14 d1rect and report the same to the court with his 

15 findings of fact and.conclusions of law which 
0 
(J 

CJ 16 
1.1. 

shall constitute a part of the proceedings upon 
:I! 

c: 17 w 
Q. 

which the determination of the court shall be 
< 
Q. 

en 
a: 18 ~ made." And then it goes on. 
a: 
0 
Q. 
w 
a: 19 THE COURT: Okay; give me that section 
a: 
w 
en 
< 

20 ~ ... again. 
: 
i: 
c.. 

~ 
< 

21 MS. LANGHORNE: Okay; it's 15.1-497, 
Q 

1%: 
en 

22 (J 

2 
and it is the fourth paragraph. 

a: 
c 
1.1. 

23 THE COURT: I've read it but I didn't 

24 remember the number. 

25 Okay. All of it is moot now. The 
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1 issue of the Writ of Certiorari in this issue is 

2 a matter of right to you, but it still has to be 

3 done and that's what counsel hadn't done earl1er 

4 according to the case law and the statutes. 

5 But I'm not at all sure that I 

6 understand the basis for my hearing those things 

7 which weren't presented to the Board. And that's 

8 basically what you're ask1ng me to do, isn't it? 

9 MS. LANGHORNE: I understand what 

10 you're saying, Your Honor; that if it wasn't 

11 presented to the Board, then they didn't have a 

12 chance to cons~der those issues. 

13 THE COURT: As you well know, 1t's well 

14 settled that the act1ons of the Board are 

15 presumptively correc~ly. And there is basically 
ci 
tJ 

0 16 
~ 

a capricious or arbitrary standard that the court 
~ 

Ill 

c:: 17 w 
a. looks at, plainly a wrong standard, in order to 
< a. 
co 
c:: 18 w .... modify, reverse or impart in whole what the Board 
c:: 
0 
c.. 
w 
a: 19 did. And I hav·e read this record, and as you 
a: ... 
1/) 

< 
~ 20 ... alluded to, have had earlier hearings on this. 
~ 
a: 
a. 

~ 21 I'm inclined to let the petitioners 
< 
9 
c:: 
1/) 

22 tJ 

:E 
make a record, Mr. Talevi. I'm frankly inclined 

c:: 
c ... 

23 to think you're right. But let them proffer the 

24 test~mony within the reasonable time bounds we 

25 have. I can envision situations where additional 
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1 ev1dence would be necessary if there were 

2 allegations of a certain type made. But with 

3 this record, I have troubl~ seeing the need for 

4 more evidence. 

5 MR. TALEVI: Tha·nk you, sir. 

6 THE COURT: But the other side of that 

7 coin is that if e1ther side should want to 

8 appeal, the court will allow a proffer of the 

9 testimony and see 1f there is anything that I 

10 think can properly be considered under the 

11 statute. You and your supporters, of course, 

12 must understand whether I agree or disagree with 

13 what the Board did, think it's right or wrong, 

14 has noth1nq to do with th1s. 

15 MS. LANGHORNE: I understand that, Your 
0 
u 

0 16 Honor. 
u. 
2 

"' 
~ 17 w 
a. THE COURT: All right, who are the 
~ 
a. 

"' a: 18 ~ witnesses, again, that you want? 
cz: 
0 
a. 
w 
cz: 19 MS. LANGHORNE: It was Mrs. Patty 
cz: 
w 

"' ~ 20 ... Hanes, Ronald Miller, Mrs. Banks and Lawrence 
z 
a: 
a. 
~ 21 ... Hamler. 
~ 
Q 

~ 

"' 22 u 
2 

THE COURT: Will those persons stand, 
cz: 
0 
u.. 

23 please? would each of you raise your right hand 

24 and be sworn? 

25 
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1 {Whereupon, all witnesses were duly 

2 sworn:) 

3 

4 THE COURT: Again, the Court is 

5 inclined to agree with the position of the City 

6 Attorney. That's the way I read the case law and 

7 the statutes. But on the other hand I want you 

8 to make whatever record you think is appropriate 

9 again within the bounds of reasonable time and so 

10 forth. 

11 Whom do you wish to call first? 

12 MS. LANGHORNE: Mr. Miller. 

13 THE COURT: That's not to say if 

14 objection or questions are asked for other 

15 reasons, that counsel can't object to them, of 
0 
0 

~ 16 course. 
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 17 w 
~ 

< 
~ 

~ 
~ 18 ~ 
~ 
0 
~ 
w 
~ 19 
~ 
w 
~ 

< 
20 ~ 

~ 

RONALD S. MILLER, having been duly 
z 
~ 
~ 

! 21 sworn, testifies as follows: 
< 
Q 

~ 
~ 

22 0 DIRECT EXAMINATION 
~ = c 
~ 

23 BY MS. LANGHORNE: 

24 Q Will you state your name, please? 

25 A I'm Ronald s. Miller. 
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1 Q And what is your occupation? 

2 A I'm the Building Commissioner and 

3 Zoning Administrator for the City of Roanoke. 

4 Q And how long have you served in that 

5 capacity? 

6 A Almost nine years. 

7 Q Mr. Miller, during your tenure, are you 

8 aware of any variances being granted for group homes in 

9 excess of the eight wh1ch the Statute provides as being 

10 considered a residential group home? 

11 A I couldn't really say that we have or 

12 we haven't. I got my summons yesterday, and I have not 

13 researched any records to that effect. r•m sure we can 

14 find that out. I would be guessing 1£ I answered. 

15 Q Well, even more recently in the last 
0 
(,) 

C) 
' 16 

1£. 
year, have there been any approvals by the Board of zoning 

2 ., 
a: 17 "' ~ Appeals for a variance in excess of the eight which the 
< 
~ 

Ul 
a: 18 "' .... Statute allows for a single family residential zoned 
a: 
0 
~ 

"' a: 19 district? 
a: 
w 
Ul 
< ... 20 ... 
z 
a: 
~ 

< 21 .... 
< 

MR. TALEVI: Excuse me, Your Honor. I 
0 
a:. 
Ul 

22 (,) 

2. 
assume my objection as to relevancy still stands. 

=:· 
c 
""' 23 THE COURT: Yes, sir, I understand 

24 that. I think you've clarified that. 

25 MR. TALEVI: Thank you. 
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1 THE COURT: Go ahead, if you Will. 

2 

3 A I would have to look back through our 

4 records to really be sure of that. I would only be 

5 guessing one way or the other whether we had or whether we 

6 hadn't. 

7 

8 (Continuing by Ms.· Langhorne:) 

9 Q Are you aware of any group homes that 

10 have as many as twenty-four persons in a single family 

11 zoned district? 

12 A Again, to answer the question honestly 

13 I'd have to look through our records. That informat1on 

14 could be gotten, but I do not have that right now, and I 

15 don't want to be on record as guessing what we may have. 
0 
u 

~ 16 
~ 

Q Mr. Miller, do you determine whether or 
~ 

~ 17 ..... 
~ 

not building permits will be issued in regards to the 
< 
L 

0 
= 18 .... 
~ 

zoning aspect of building permits? 
~ 
0 
~ 
~ 

~ 19 A That's correct, I make that decision. 
= .... 
0 
< 
~ 20 Q All right, the Mental Hygiene Services 
z 
= ~ 

< 21 < indicated that they want to put two buildings on this 
9 = ~ 

22 u 
z 

residentially zoned property. would the Board's approval 
= c 
~ 

23 of a special exception and varlance allow you to issue them 

24 a building permit to put a dormitory and a multipurpose 

25 building on a piece of property zoned residential? 
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1 MR. TALEVI: I object to the form of 

2 the question, Your Honor. I th1nk it contains 

3 terms like dormitory and multipurpose use 

4 buildings, terms which are undefined and vague. 

5 Furthermore they're calling for the witness to 

6 make a legal conclusion and to speculate. 

7 THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the 

8 objection·. 

9 

10 (Continuing by Ms. Langhorne:) 

11 Q Are building permits issued for 

12 anything other than residential buildings on residentially 

13 zoned property? 

14 A No. 

15 Q What would.be required for someone to 
0 
CJ 

CJ 16 
II. 

build something on a residentially zoned property other 
2 
.... 
a:· 17 ~ 
a. than a residence, what would they have to do? 
< a. 
en. 
a: 18 : A A rezoning. 
a: 
0 
a. 
1.1& 
a: 19 Q A rezoning? Thank you, Mr. Miller, 
a: 
W· 
en 
< 
~ 20 ... those are all my questions. 
z =· a. 
<. 21 1-. 

<-· 
Q; 

r:: 
en. 

22 CJ 

~ 
THE COURT: Questions by the Board's 

a: 
c 
II. 

23 attorney? 

24 MR. TALEVI: No questions. 

25 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 
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1 (THE WITNESS STANDS ASIDE:) 

2 

3 THE COURT: All right, Ms. Langhorne. 

4 MS. LANGHORNE: I call Mrs. Hanes. 

5 

6 

7 

8 PATTY B. HANES, hav1ng been duly sworn, 

9 testifies as follows: 

10 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MS. LANGHORNE: 

12 Q would you state your name? 

13 A My name is Patty B. Hanes. 
M 

M 14 :Q Q And, Mrs. Hanes, what is your position 
<D 

"' <Q 

Q 

15 0 
CD with the Zon1ng Board? 
0 
(,) 

<!J 16 
II. 

A I'm Secretary to ·the Board of zoning 
::1! 

a: 17 w 
a. Appeals. 
< a. 
en 
a: 

18 ~ Q How long have you had that position? 
a: 
0 
a. 
w 
a: 19 A I was appointed to that position July 
a: 
w 
en 
c 
~ 20 ... 1st, 1991. 
: 
a: 
a. 

~ 21 
< 

Q Had you previously worked in that 
Q 

c:: 
en 

22 (J office? 
::1! 
a: 
c 
II. 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q What position did you hold? 

25 A I assisted the previous secretary, Ruth 
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1 Armstrong. 

2 Q And.how long had you done that? 

3 A since March, I believe 1989. 

4 Q During your tenure there from '89 to 

5 the present, are you aware of any variances in zoning that 

6 have been granted by the Board for group homes in excess of 

7 eight people in a residentially zoned district? 

8 A I'm not aware of any. 

9 Q As far as the procedure of the aoard is 

10 concerned, is there a delay in time between the time the 

11 orders are entered and their decisions are made? 

12 A could you repeat that, please? 

13 Q When the Board makes a decision, 

14 approximately how long does it take for orders to be 

15 entered reflecting their decis~ons? 
0 
u 
0 16 
~ 

A Entered into the file, is that what 
~ 

~ 

~ 17 w 
~ 

you're asking me? 
< 
~ 

0 
~ 18 ~ Q urn-hum. 
~ 
0 
~ 
w 
~ 19 A I have an amount of time to prepare the 
~ 
w 
~ 

< 
~ 20 z paper work, and then I have the chairman sign it, and then 

= ~ 

< 21 ~ 

< 
I forward the original order to the applicant. 

Q 

~ 
~ 

22 u 
~ 

Q I mean, is there any written guideline 
~ 
0 
~ 

23 on how long that should take? 

24 A I'm really not sure. 

25 Q Okay. 
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1 A I can verballY: you know, pass that 

2 information along to the applicant. I know that's in the 

3 procedures, but as far as the time limit goes, I'm really 

4 not sure. 

5 Q Okay; thank you. Those are all my 

6 questions. 

7 

8 MR. TALEVI: No questions. 

9 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. 

10 

11 (THE WITNESS STANDS ASIDE:} 

12 

13 THE COURT: All right, Ms. Langhorne. 

14 MS. LANGHORNE: I call Mrs. Banks. 

15 THE COURT: Mrs. Banks? 
0 
u 
o. 16 
IS. 

2 ., 
c:: 17 "" :L. 
< a. 
IIJ 
a: 18 w 
~ 
a: 
0 
a. 
w 
a: 19 DORIS BANKS, having been duly sworn, 
a: 
..... 
II) 

< 
20 ..J 

~ 
testifies as follows: 

z 
~ 
a. 
;: 21 DIRECT EXAMINATION 
< 
0 
ci: 
II) 

22 u BY MS. LANGHORNE: 
2 
a: 
c 
IS. 

23 Q Mrs. Banks, will you state your name? 

24 A My name is Doris Banks. 

25 Q And where do you live, Mrs. Banks? 
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1 A 1823 syracuse Avenue Northwest. 

2 Q And how close is that to 1919 Andrews 

3 Road? 

4 A About a block, one block. 

5 Q How long have you lived there? 

6 A I have lived there twenty-six and one 

7 half years. 

8 Q Mrs. Banks, when-you moved there what 

9 was that neighborhood l1ke? 

10 A You had farm animals and bushes and 

11 trees. There were no houses in the middle of Andrews Road. 

12 Q was housing segregated or integrated in 

13 Roanoke twenty-six and a hal£ years ago when you moved to 

14 syracuse Road? 

15 A It was very definitely segregated. 
0 
u 

CJ 16 ... Q In terms of the racial composition of 
:I 

a: 17 w 
a. that neighborhood today, what is it? 
< 
Cl. 

en 
a: 18 w ... A It's a black neighborhood, 
a: 
0 
Cl. 
w 
a: 19 predominantly black. 
a: 
w 
(J) 

< 
~ 20 ,_ Q Are there any white families in that 
z 
~ 
Cl. 

~ 21 
< 

neighborhood? 
Q 

a: 
en 

22 u 
:I 

A We're talking about six subdivisions 
a: 
0 ... 

23 that are adjoining this property. 

24 Q urn-hum. 

25 A I know of one white family in Fairlane 
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1 Lake and that's all. 

2 Q And the current owner of 1919 Andrews 

3 Road, what is his race? 

4 A 1919? 

5 Q 1919, the property that's the subject 

6 of this petition? 

7 A Oh, he's white. 

8 Q Twenty-six and a half years ago when 

9 you moved on syracuse Road, did you have much choice 1n 

10 regards to where it was you were going to live? 

11 A No, that area was designated for us to 

12 live in, and we were glad to get it because we didn't have 

13 anywhere to build. 

14 Q What was your occupation: Mrs. Banks? 

15 I know you're retired now but ~hat was your occupation? 
0 
(J 

Cl 16 
II. 

A I taught school for a number of years. 
::1! 
... 
c: 17 w 
~ Q In terms of occupation of the people 
< 
~ 

rn 
Cl: 

18 w ... who live in this neighborhood, what are some of those 
a: 
0 
C1. 
w 
a: 19 occupations? 
a: 
w 
rn 
~ 20 ... A Do you mean in my neighborhood? 
z 
~ 
~ 

< 21 ... Q urn-hum, in your neighborhood. 
< 
'? 
a: 
rn 

22 (J A Attorneys, teachers, business people, 
2 
Cl: 
c 
u. 

23 that type thing. 

24 Q In terms of the economic status of the 

25 black race, how would you categorize your neighborhood; 
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1 low, middle or upper income in terms of black people in 

2 this community? 

3 A I would characterize it as middle 

4 income. 

5 Q Have there been any changes in your 

6 neighborhood since this application for special exception 

7 and variance has been filed? 

8 A You mean changes with residents moving; 

9 is that what you mean? 

10 Q Yeah, anything in regards to the 

11 character of the neighborhood. 

12 A Oh, we did have a police chase the 

13 first sunday in February, and, of course, they just went 

14 over their fences going from Syracuse Road, and this is 

15 what we're trying to avoid. 
0 
u 

Cl , 16 
u. Q Has there been any 1mpact on property 
:I 
.... 
a: 17 "' a. values? 
< a. 

"' a: 18. "' ~ a: 
0 
a. 
w 
a: 19 MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, I object to 
a: 
w 

"' < 
20 ~ - the question. I don't think there has been a 

z 
a: 
a. 
< 21 -< 

foundation laid for the question. 
0 
a: 

"' 22 u THE COURT: I would have trouble 
:E 
a: 
0 
u. 

23 thinking she could answer that quest1on, Ms. 

24 Langhorne. 

25 
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1 Program and what a good program it is. But you 

2 can't grant a variance to an organization no 

3 matter how appealing that is unless you can prove 

4 that there is going to be a hardship. And they 

5 failed to present any evidence showing that that 

6 was going to be a hardship if they weren't 

7 allowed to have twenty-four people in that place. 

8 In fact, in addition to asking for the twenty-

9 four people, they affirmatively stated to the 

10 Board that the residence that was on that 

11 facility would not accommodate twenty-four 

12 people. And their plans as stated before the 

13 Board was not to expand that residence so that it 

14 would continue to look like a single fam~ly 

15 residence, but rather they were go~ng to build a 
0 
u 

ci 
u.. 16 couple of buildings. I don't see in this record 
~ 

"' c: 17 w 
a. here anything that shows the sketch of the 
< a. 
en 
a: 

18 w ... buildings, and what have you. 
a: 
0 
a. 
Lll 
a: 19 But at the April 9th hearing there was 
a: 
Lll 
Ul 
< ..... 20 ... a presentation, and evidently there was a sketch 
z 
a: 
a. 
< 21 ... because the record indicates a dialogue in that 
< 
a 
a: 
Ul 

22 0 

~ 
regard; that they were going to build a 

a: 
c ... 

23 multipurpose building and they were going to 

24 build a dormitory. 

25 You•ve heard the zoning Administrator 
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1 say that you can•t build anything on property 

2 that•s zoned residential without having the 

3 property rezoned. And these petitioners are 

4 questioning whether or not the intended motive 

5 here is basically to get your foot in the door 

6 and then try to proceed with having this property 

7 completely rezoned. If they•re going to have it 

8 rezoned, then there is no need for special 

9 exception and variance. They can take care of 1t 

10 in the rezon~ng aspect of it. 

11 But in addition to this case that came 

. 12 out of Roanoke, c&c Incorporated -v- Simple, 

13 there. is another case. !t's the Packer case, 

14 Packer -v- Hornsby. That's 221 va. 117. And 

15 there the court held that the Board of Zoning 
0 
u 
0 16 u. Appeals did not have the authority under the 
::E 
... 
a: 17 w 
a. ordinance to grant a variance so that somebody 
< a. 
en 
a: 

18 w ... could put their house in the ocean when there 
a: 
0 
Q. 
w 
a: 19 were setback lines defining how close to the 
a: 
w 
en 
< 
~ 20 ... ocean that you could get just for their 
! 
a: 
Q. 

< 21 .... 
<( 

convenience and their view and just because other 
0 
i 
en 

22 u 
::E 

people in the neighborhood had done so evidently 
a: 
c 
u. 

23 without having to deal with the setback 

24 requirements. And in that case the Trial court 

25 overturned the Board of Zoning Appeals, finding 
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1 that the Hornsbys, findlng that the Packers had 

2 failed to show a hardship. They wanted to expand 

3 their property, they already had a lovely home, 

4 they could have expanded on the side rather than 

5 out to the ocean, and they had not demonstrated 

6 any hardship. And for the Board to grant them a 

7 variance just because there had been others who 

8 carne in prior to the zoning ordinance going into 

9 effect, that that was worng and that they had not 

10 gone through the four criteria by which the Board 

11 should consider whether or not a variance should 

12 be granted! and they had not shown any hardship. 

13 And the supreme Court affirmed the decision of 

14 the Trial court that bas1cally the Board was 

15 plalnly wrong in granting a variance when the 
ci 
u 
ci 
"-

16 applicant had not met the criteria of showing the 
~-

"' a: 17 w. 
Q;, hardship. 
c(• 

a. 
:n 
: 18 "' we would argue that in addition to them 
a: 
0 
Q;, 

"' a: 19 not showing the hardship, that the Authorization 
a: ... 
<I) 
c( 
~ 20 ... Number 3 in your zoning ordinance, that the 
~ 
a: 
Q;, 

!" 21 authorization of such variance will not be of 
c( 
Q 

a: 
(fJ 

22 u 
~-

substantial detriment to adjacent property and 
a:_ 
c 
"--

23 that the character of the district will not be 

24 changed by the grantlng of the variance; that 

25 that was not properly considered by the Board. 
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1 we also would submit to the Court that 

2 while there is an extensive record here, no 

3 findings were stated by the Board when it made 

4 its decision. And as a mat~er of procedure, 

5 those findings need to either be stated when the 

6 decision is made or each individual Board member 

7 needs to say why it is they are voting the way 

8 that they are vot1ng so that there is some record 

9 upon wh1ch a rev1ewing Court can determine what 

10 they considered. And we would submit that that 

11 was not done in th1s case. And that on close 

12 rev1ew of the record 1n this case and the facts 

13 in this case, we feel that the court should find 

14 that ~he Board was plalnly wrong, that their 

15 decision was arbitra~y and capricious; that they 
0 
u 

<' 16 
"" 

abused their discretion·~n granting this 
2 ., 
a: 17 w 
0.. variance; that they made no conditions, 
< 
0.. 
(/) 

a: 
18 w ... restrictions ore regulations in regards to the 

a: 
0 
0.. 
w 
a: 19 decision to grant it; that twenty-four is three 
a: 
w 
(/) 

< .... 20 ... times what the statute provides in regards to 
z 
a: 
0.. 

~ 21 
< 

group homes being considered a single family 
9 
a: 
(/) 

22 u 
2 

residence within a single family residentially 
a: 
c 
u. 

23 zoned district. 

24 I think that covers the arguments that 

25 we have. And the other arguments thdt we had are 
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1 clearly stated in our petition, and we ask the 

2 court to consider the cases that we brought to 

3 the court's attention in regards to the proper 

4 rev1ew of this matter. Thank you. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. 

6 Do you care to respond? 

7 MR. TAVEL!: Yes, sir. First of all, 

8 in respect to the scope of the order, I would 

9 like to say that as Your Honor knows well, back 

10 in october, 1991 this matter was remanded back to 

11 the Board. The basis for the court's doing so 

12 and the scope of that order I think is set out in 

13 the languag~ of the order, and there is no 

14 restr1ct1on as to what the Board can or should be 

15 considering upon reh~aring the matter. I think 
0 
u 
0 16 the Board decided to permit additional evidence 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 17 ~ 
~ 

and to re-decide the issue. That was obviously 
< 
~ 

0 = 18 ~ 
~ 

an opportunity that the Neighborhood took full 
= 0 
~ 
w = 19 advantage of, because they put on some evidence 
= w 
0 

~ 20 
~ 

at that last hearing. 
~ 
~ 
~ 

! 21 THE COURT: Point me to that. 
< 
Q 

~ 
0 

22 0 MR. TALEVI: To the order, sir? 
~ 
~ 
c 
~ 

23 THE COURT: No, the part of the record 

24 where the Board took up the issue of additional 

25 evidence. 
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1 MR. TALEVI: Page 49 is where the 

2 transcr~pt ~s. And basically the Board s~mply 

3 decided to go ahead and permit additional 

4 evidence. There is also a stipulation in the 

5 record that this record of December 3, 1991 would 

6 also incorporate the previous three hearings and 

7 the testimony at those three hearings. 

8 Stipulation was made· by counsel for the 

9 neighborhood organization. Again, the chairman 

10 simply opened up the meeting and proceeded ahead 

11 to take additional evidence, evidence which 

12 consisted in part as testimony from the 

13 Neighborhood. But, again, there was no 

14 restrlction 1n the court's order as to the scope 

15 of the hearing or wh~t the issue which needed to 
0 
0 

e 16 
~ 

be decided had·to be. 
~ 
~ 

~ 17 ~ 
~ 

Now, with respect to the second part of 
< 
~ 

~ 
~ 18 ~ 
~ counsel's argument with respect to whether there 
~ 
0 
~ 
w 
~ 19 is sufficient evidence to support the court's 
~ 
w 
~ 

< 20 ~ 

~ 
decision, I think the record is clear on pages 

~ 
~ 
~ 

~ 21 
c 

thirteen to fourteen on the facts that support 
9 
~ 
~ 

22 0 

~ 
the court's decision on the granting of the 

~ 
c 
~ 

23 special exception. I think all of the elements 

24 or all of the factors to be considered were 

25 brought specifically to the attention of the 
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1 Board. And therefore, I don't think it can be 

2 argued that the Board did not consider those 

3 factors and the facts which support his dec1sion 

4 on the granting of the special exception. 

5 With respect to the variance, I think 

6 the record is replete with information and facts 

7 that support the finding of a hardship. I think 

8 if you look at 36.1-655, part of the first 

9 paragraph 1n that code section says, "Whereby 

10 reason of exceptional topographic conditions or 

11 other extraordinary situations or conditions of 

12 such piece of property, a variance should be 

13 ·granted by the Board. 11 And that's exactly what 

14 we have in thls case. we have a thirteen acre 

15 parcel located in the City of Roanoke. Now I'm 
ci 
(.) 

~· 16 
"'· 

no expert on the Cl ty of Roano·ke, but I can't· 
2 

c: 17 w 
a. imagine there being another thirteen acre parcel 
< a. 
en 
a: 18 ~ that's privately owned. And there was certainly 
:1: 
0 
::1. 
.&.1 
a: 19 plenty of testimony that this is the ideal site 
a: 
w 
en 
< 

20 ~ ... for this kind of facility. But the man who owns 
z 
a: 
a. 
< 21 ... 
< 

the piece of property, Mr. Woolridge, or actually 
0 
ci: 
en 

22 (.) 

2 
his agent testified, it had been on the market 

a: 
~ 

23 for at least a year without a single bit of 

24 interest shown in its sale. I would submit to the 

25 court that if the use of this large mansion type 

255 
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1 home on a thirteen acre tract were not permitted 

2 for something like a group home, I would submit 

3 that would be a confiscatory type of ruling by 

4 the Board of Zoning Appeals. Who else would buy 

5 a single family residence on a thirteen acre 

6 tract? once you consider who could buy it, who 

7 could afford it; and then further narrow down 

8 that field to who would even need thirt~en acres, 

9 I think that if the Board had denied the variance 

10 to expand the use from eight to twenty-four, 

11 there may have been a taking argument being made 

12 there. And that's outside the scope of this 

13 hearing, but my point is, Your Honor, the 
M 

~ 14 ~ hardship here is tnat tnere 1s really no other 
~ 
N 
~ 

0 15 = = use by virtue of it ~eing a thirteen acre tract 
0 
u 

0 16 
~ 

with a single family residence on· it that it 
2 

c 17 w 
~ could be used for. 
< 
~ 

~ 
~ 18 w 
~ 
~-

Your Honor, there is also in the brief 
0 
~ 
w = 19 a reference to the vote taken at the December, 
= w 
~ 
< 
~ 20 ~ 1991 hearing. And I would like to make it clear 
~ 
= ~ 
! 21 
< 

on the record that what occurred at the hearing 
~ 
= ~ 

22 u 
2 

December, 1991 is in accordance with the rules of 
= c 
~ 

23 Robert's Rules of Order. 

24 THE COURT: December 3? 

25 MR. TALEVI: Yes, sir; the last 

256 
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1 hearing. section 44 of Robert•s Rules provides 

2 as follows 1n bold face Changing One•s vote. And 

3 I quote from Robert's Rules. 11 A member has a 

4 right to change his vote up to the time the 

5 result is announced. After that he can maKe the 

6 change only by permission of the assembly which 

7 can be given by general consent or by the 

8 adoption of a motion to grant permission which is 

9 undebatable." The definition of general consent 

10 is discussed in another section of Robert•s 

11 Rules. That sectio~ relating to Adoption of a 

12 Motion or Action without a Motion by General or 

13 Unanimous Consent. 
... 
"' 14 "' 

Well: Your Honor, that's exactly what 
"' <II 

~ 
Q 

15 Q 
Q) we have here. A second roll call was taken by 
0 
(.) 

CJ 16 the chairman whe-re· it was obvious that Mr. Rife, 
~ 

2 

c:: 17 w 
a. R-1-f-e, had misstated his vote and the vote came 
<( 
Q. 

en 
a: 18 w ... down three to two. 
a:· 
0. 
Q. 
w 
a: 19 THE COURT: Where is that? 
c:: 
w 
en 
<( 

20 ... ... MR. TALEVI: 49; at the very end, Your 
= a: 
Q. 

~ 21 Honor, page 47. 
c 
Q 

ti: 
II) 

22 0 THE COURT: 49-47? 
:I 
a: 
0 
I&. 

23 MR. TALEVI: Yes, sir. 

24 THE COURT: Okay. 

25 MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, as you 
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1 correctly pointed out earlier in the hearing, and 

2 I think as counsel candidly acknowledges, the 

3 standard here is plainly wrong. It is a 

4 difficult standard. There are as I pointed out 

5 to the court sufficient facts to uphold the 

6 court's decision. The question isn't whether the 

7 court would agree or not and therefore set it 

8 aside. The question is whether the Court can 

9 find facts in the record that support the Board's 

10 decision in this case. I think I've outlined to 

11 the Court sufficient facts to support the Board's 

12 decision, and for that reason I believe that the 

13 Board's decision should be affirmed. 

14 THE COURT: s~eak to the issue of 

15 rehearing procedure adopted by the Board that was 
0 
(.) 

(!I 16 
u. raised by Ms. Langhorne. 
2 

C:' 17 w 
Q. MR. TALEVI: Okay. Your Honor, looking 
<. 
Q.. 

rn 
a: 18 w ,_ at the court's order of october 23 or entered on 
a:· 
0 
Q. 
w 
a: 19 the day of october 23, 1991, the last, well 
a: 
w 
rn 
< 

20 .. ... actually it~s a single sentence paragraph, but 
~ 
a: 
Q. 

< 21 ... 
< 

the last phrase in that paragraph provided 
Q 

ci: 
rn 

22 U· 
2 

certain ambiguities could be cured by a remand 
a: 
0 
I&. 

23 and hearing before the Board, and further 

24 indicated that it would not object to an order 

25 remanding this case to the Board of Zoning 

258 
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1 Appeals in the City of Roanoke. There is no 

2 requirement in the court 1 s Order. And that's how 

3 the Court speaks, is through its orders; there is 

4 no requirement in the court's order that a 

5 consideration of the issue be limited just to a 

6 re-vote on the matter. surely had that been the 

7 wish of the court, I think it could have inserted 

8 that in the order. But, again, the hearing was 

9 opened up. It was noticed. The notice was sent 

10 to all the persons, and the notice provided that 

11 we•re here on special exception and variance, if 

12 you•re 1nterested in appearing, come forth and be 

13 heard. And all the par:ies did. The 

14 nelghborhood certa1nly did. The neighborhood 

15 organizat1on certa1n~y did. They did by counsel 
0 
u 

0 16 in fact. 
~ 

~ 
~ 

= 17 w 
~ 

THE COURT: I understand that, but the 
< 
~ 

~ 
~ 18 ~ 
~ 

Board's procedure, adopted procedure for 
= 0 
~ 
w = 19 considering whether or not to grant a rehearing. 
= w 
~ 

~ 20 
~ 

MR. TALEVI: Yes, sir; that was not 
~ = ~ 

< 21 ~ necessary to go into that procedure in it•s by-
< 
Q 

~ 
~ 

22 u laws because that procedure is triggered only by 
~ = 0 
~ 

23 a petition for a rehearing, and that•s not what 

24 brought the matter back to the BZA. That had 

25 previously been tried in this matter. That's one 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
0 
(J 

C7 16 ... 
z. 
...,. 
c: 17 ~ 
11. 
< 
11. 

en 
a: 18 LU 
•· a: 
0 
::1. 

~ 19 
:: 
..u 
:n 
< 

20 ~ 

% 

= a. 

! 21 
< a 
c:i: 
:n 

22 (J 

::z 
a: 
c ... 

23 

24 

25 
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of the r~asons why we had one of t~e pr9vious 

hear1ngs 1n chls case. 

THE COURT: I went through t~at. 

MR. TALEVI: Rlqht; bu~ wha~ brough~ it 

back to the BZA for the December 3: !991 hearlng 

was the court•s order. They weren•t ~here on a 

petition to rehear. 

THE COURT: My probl9m 13, does tha~ 

change the posl~ion ~hat the Boa=d is ~n rela~lve 

to----couldn•t the Board still say that it's the 

Board's decis1on noc to reconsider and :~·s vote 

stands in effect? 

MR. TALEV:: :•m no~ certain : 

understand iully your ques~~on,·Your Honor. 

Could you restate it .or rephrase 1t? 

THE COUrtT: Does ~he Board have to 

reconsider because the court remanded ~t by 

agreement, or could it just deny reconsideration 
! 

and therefore the prior vote would stand? 

MR. TALEVI: Well, You~ Honor, I think 

the Court ~nstructed the Board to rehear the 

matter, and I do believe, and I would advise the 

Court that if the cour~ tells you to do that, you 

have to do. 1~. And they may very well have 

turned down ~he request for a special exception 

·· zsD A 
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1 variance because that's not what the court was 

2 saying. The court wasn't saying the Board made a 

3 correct decision or it made an 1ncorrect 

4 decision. All the court was saying was, let's 

.s clear up these procedural ambiguities, rehear the 

6 matter and bring it before the Court on a full 

7 and proper record. 

8 THE COURT: Thank you. Anything else? 

9 MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, I'm looking 

10 quickly through the record, and I don't recall my 

11 reading in the record that there was any 

12 objection at that time; certainly not at the 

13 outset of the hearing, to proceeding along with 

14 the full hearing. And I think s1nce the 

15 Neighborhood pu~ on ~vidence, I think I have a 
0 
u 

0 16 lot of problem with them objecting at this point. 
~ 

2 

~ 17 ~ 

~ 
THE COURT: The estoppel principal, I 

< 
~ 

~ 
~ 18 w 
~ 

guess. 
~ 

0 
~ 
w 

19 ~ MR. TALEVI: That's correct. Thank you. 
~ 
w 
~ 
< 

20 ~ 

~ 

THE COURT: Do you with to respond? 
~ 
~ 
~ 

< 21 ~ 
MS. LANGHORNE: Yes, I'd like to rebut. 

< 
9 
~ 
~ 

22 0 Your Honor, I think the record is clear 
2 
~ 
0 
~ 

23 that when I represented the Neighborhood at that 

24 December 3rd hearing, I took exception to the 

25 fact that the Board was having an entirely new 

260 
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1 hearing. I made the same argument that is in 

2 this petition; that they were exceed1ng the scope 

3 of the court's order and that they were using the 

4 court•s order to do what they were not able to do 

5 as a public body. As a public body they've got 

6 to act publicly, they can't whatever, use the 

7 court or use counsel's advice as an excuse for 

8 not act1ng as a public body. And that is clearly 

9 stated. I objected to the proceeding being an 

10 entirely new hearing. But certa1n, even though I 

11 objected to that, the fact that they were doing 

12 it------

. 13 THE COURT: Call my attention to where 

14 that 1s ln the record, your objection. 

15 MS. LANGHORNE: All right; the 
0 
CJ 

CJ 16 ... beginning of my ·presentation. 
2 

c: 17 w 
a. 
< 

THE COURT: It looks like 49-26,27, in 
a. 
(I) 

a: 18 w .... 
a: 

that range. 
0 
a. 
~ 
a: 19 MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, 25, 26, 27, 
a: 
w 
(I) 

< .. 20 .... all the arguments raised there relate to whether 
z. 
i 
a. 
< 21 
< 

there should have been a rehearing back at the 
'?-
a: 
(I) 

22 CJ 

2 
July, in the July hearing. All of those 

a: 
c ... 

23 arguments related to whether there should have 

24 been an immediate re-vote at that time. In other 

25 words, all the arguments raised by Ms. Langhorne-
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1 

2 THE ~CURT: That's the way I read that 

3 before. That's why I wanted to-----In fact, Ms. 

4 Langhorne, you say the July hearing. 

5 MS. LANGHORNE: All right. Your Honor, 

6 on 49-25, of course, the lines are not numbered 

7 here in the text, but it goes down to, it says, 

8 Mr. Norris, when he opened the meeting today said 

9 that th~s is a rehearing, it's going to be a 

10 completely new hearing. It's been ordered by the 

11 court. And then I go on to argue about the 

12 consent order. And the zonlng Appeals, people 

13 agree, procedure 1s incorrect, you know, can't 

14 agree to make it rignt. And basically that it 

15 can't be a rehearing.unless it's based on new 
0 
u 
0 16 
~ 

evidence, and it goes, you know, on intci that. 
2 
~ 

~ 17 ~ 
~ 

And then I think on page 26 in responding to Mr. 
< 
~ 

w = 18 w 
~ 

Coffee, you know, I'm basically saying that what 
~ 
0 
~ 
w 
~ 19 they're trying to do now is to redo what was done 
~ 
w 
~ 

~ 20 
~ 

in July and use the court's Order as the reason 
z 

= ~ 

~ 21 for doing it when the Board had not itself voted 
< 
c 

= ~ 

22 0 

2 
to rehear. I think if you go through basically 

= c 
~ 

23 the three pages which 1s the beginning of my 

24 presentation at the Board, I think if you take 

25 the entire three pages there and the totality of 
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1 the context in which that argument is being made 

2 to the Board, it's clear that I'm objecting to 

3 them having a new hearing and having Mr. Rife 

4 participate in the matter. And the chairman got 

5 a little disturbed with me and basically said 

6 this is a court order, you know; you can't tell 

7 me that we can't do this because the court said 

8 we're going to do it. And I even asked him to 

9 bear with me, that a record was being made and I 

10 needed to state my objection for the record. And 

11 that was done before the Neighborhood proceeded 

12 to continue to argue against this thing. You 

13 know, 1f they basically were not going to 

14 consider my objection to a hear1ng, we had no 

15 alternative but to p~rticipate in it. And I 
0 
u 
ci 16 
~ 

don't think that we waived anything by our 
~ 

~ 17 w 
~ participation in it. 
< 
~ 

0 
~ 

18 w 
~ MR. TALEVI: Your Honor, I think the 
~ 
0 
~ 
w 
~ 19 important thing to focus on is what the chairman 
~ 
w 
0 
< 
~ 20 
~ construed the order 1ssued by this court to be. 
~ 
~ 
~ 

< 21 ~ 

< 
And the chairman's understanding, I think, is 

a 
~ 
0 

22 u 
~ 

very clearly set forth in 49-27 when he quoted 
~ 
0 
~ 

23 the language from the sense that I read earlier 

24 from the order into the record. And I think the 

25 order very clearly required him to hold a new 

263 
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1 hearing. That's certainly how he understood it 

2 to be, and that's why he proceeded in that 

3 direction. 

4 I'm like you, Your Honor, when I heard 

5 the remarks at the December, 1991 meeting and 

6 when I read them again today, the remarks being 

7 made by Ms. Langhorne, I construed them to be 

8 dissatisfaction with the events of I believe it 

9 was the July hearing. 

10 THE COURT: In rereading it, I think 

11 she makes it clear that she objected to the re-

12 hearing in December, reading from her, quote, Ms. 

13 Langhorne, on page 28. 

14 "Okay; but since the cha1rrnan of this 

15 body has announced this is a hearing and that it 
0 
(J 

o· 16 
I&. 

is going on full blown although we make those 
:E 

"' a: 17 w 
Q, 

exceptions and we basically object to this 
c 
a. 
CIJ 
a: 18 w 
1-

hearing taking place, we present the following in 
a: 
0 
a. 
w 
a: 19 support of your denying the request ·for special 
a: 
w 
CIJ 
c 

20 ...I 

1-
exception and variance." 

z 
a: 
Q, 

< 21 1- she did object. It's clear on the 
c 
'? 
a: 
UJ· 

22 u record. 
2 
a: 
0 
I&. 

23 Ms. Langhorne, that is frankly the only 

24 issue you raised that I think has merit or may 

25 have merit, and I would like for counsel to 
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1 develop that for me. Again, it's not whether I 

2 agree or disagree with the people whom you 

3 represent. It's the statutory review as you 

4 know. But I am a l~ttle concerned that the Court 

5 by agreement remanded because there were 

6 ambiguities in what I had read at the hearing 

7 back whenever it was, the fall. But I'm 

8 concerned that if· t·here were another full hearing 

9 when the Board didn't entertain it according to 

10 its own procedures, I'd like a memorandum from 

11 each of you on that issue. That issue alone is 

12 the only issue before the court. I find no other 

13 basis in the petition. 

14 And the petitions are denied based 

15 upon the earlier oth~r arguments made by counsel 
0 
(,J 

ci 16 
I.L. 

for the petitioner in each instance, and their 
~ 

"' a: 17 w 
~ 

exceptions are noted and preserved. But the 
< 
~ 

en 
a: 18 w 
1- procedural issue, I really would like more on. 
a: 
0 
~ 
w 
a: 19 MS. LANGHORNE: All right. 
a: 
w 
en 
< 

20 ...I 

1- THE COURT: can counsel agree to a 
~ 
a: 
~ 

-< 21 1-
-< 

briefing schedule so that we can reset this? ~'d 
0 

a: 
(I) 

22 u 
~ 

rather rule on it publicly rather than by letter, 
a: 
0 

"" 23 because it obviously has a great deal of meaning 

24 to a lot of people. 

25 You'll need to do that with my 
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1 secretary. How long do you need to get me 

2 pointed information and authority for your 

3 position on why the hearing was not properly 

4 conducted on December the 3rd, and why the 

5 earlier tied vote should then prevail or remain 

6 in effect? 

7 MS. LANGHORNE: Your Honor, I generally 

8 like three weeks, if that•s not too much. 

9 THE COURT: It's been going on this 

10 long: I don't think that sounds unreasonable to 

11 me. How long do you want to respond? 

12 MR. TALEVI: I think ten days. 

13 THE COURT: Of course, you. can begin 

14 working on the issue. of course, you understand 

15 it. Ten days after she files her copy of your 
ci 
0 

C!J 16 
u. 

response before the court, and if counsel will 
:1 

"' a: 17 w 
Q. 

get a date for the court to rule on that 
"' Q. 

C/J 
a: 18 w .... remaining issue, you can then make it known to 
a: 
0 
Q. 
w 
a: .19 the people interested. You can do that through 
a: 
w 
C/J 

"' 20 ...I 

.... the docket secretary. Set it for a half hour. 
z 
a: 
Q. 

"' 21 .... 
"' 

By the time I reread this and read whatever else 
~ 
a: 
C/J 

22 0 

:1 
you've filed, that will certainly be enough time 

a: 
0 
u. 

23 for verbal argument. 

24 All right, Ms. Langhorne, if you would 

25 draft an order reflecting what the court has 



54 

1 ruled today, preserv1ng your exceptions, and have 

2 counsel for the other parties endorse that, I'd 

3 appreciate it. 

4 MS. LANGHORNE: Yes, sir. 

5 THE COURT: Thank you. 

6 on the record, then, the court applies 

7 the ruling in both Law Numbers 91659 and 911356, 

8 the issues being the same in both. This matter 

9 is reset for a hearing on a date to be set by 

10 counsel. 

11 

12 ******************************** 

13 

14 

15 
0 
u 
0 16 ... 
2 .., 
a:· 17 w 
a. I, Jacqueline E. Scruggs, Registered 
< a. 
C/) 

a: 18 w .... Professional Reporter, do hereby certify that I 
a: 
0 
a. 
w 
a: 19 was duly ·sworn prior to the commencement of this 
a: 
w 
C/) 

< 
20 ...J 

.... cause; that the proceedings herein contained were 
z 

= a. 
;! 21 
< 

reported by me and thereafter transcribed to the 
0 

a: 
til 

22 u 
2 

best of my abilities. 
a: 
0 ... 

23 

24 

25 

·~t-0, ',_ £ k'j? .. ../ 
~i:tered Professional Reporter. 
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VIRGINIA: IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

GEORGE F. RILES, et. al. 

v. 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS FOR THE 
CITY OF ROANOKE, and 

THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE SERVICE, INC. 

Case No: 770CL91001356 

ORDER 

770CL91000659 /~ I 
OIJ A Pll..Jt- 31 t1fz, t::8iV 

These consolidated cases came on be heard~upon the Writ of 

Certiorari granted to the petitioners to review the decision of the 

Board of Zoning Appeals .of the City of Roanoke, Virginia on 

December 3, 1991 granting a special exception and variance to the 

Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Incorporated to operate a group 

home; and upon the Writ of Certiorari granted to Th~ Roanoke Mental 

Hygiene Service, Incorporated to review the June 4, 1991 decision 

of the Board of Zoning Appeals denying the application for variance 

and special exceptions; and upon evidence heard ore tenus and the 

record of the proceedings before the Board and in this Court of 
... ·. ·. =·.; 

th~·~e ,~~a~~·ily;" ~·~j1:~4~.ies ... ~ere present and· represented by·. counsel. · . " .. . .... .._,.,...,. 

Upon.~~onsideration. thereof the Court finds that the petition 
•• ' .... _. .• •• t ••• ,,.,;-~-~'-"' ,.,.,_ .... _, I e I e 

of George F. RJ.les 1 .~ et .... al. was tJ.mely fJ.led wJ.th the Clerk of thJ.s ... : .. . 

Court; that .the claims in Counts II thru V of the Riles petition 
..... ,..~ 

are deni~d~to ~hich the petitioners take exception for the reasons 

orally stated to the·Court and recorded by"the Court Reporter as 

part of the record herein and on the holdings in C&C Incorporated 

v. Semple, 207 Va 438 (1966) and Packer v. Hornsby, 221 Va 117 

(1980) that it was error for the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant 

variances without the appli~demonstrating the characteristics 

26B /Sa 
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required by statute which would make the denial of the variance a 

hardship amounting to unconstitutional confiscation of the property 
"' and the legal arguments in its petition. 

The Court reserves its decision on Count I of the Riles et. 

al. petition and ORDERS that the petitioners' file a brief in 

support of Count I of their petition with this Court on or before 

April 24, 1992; and the Board of Zoning Appeals and the Roanoke 

Mental Hygiene Society, Incorporated are ORDERED to file their 

response to the petitioners' brief within ten days of their receipt 

of a copy of the brief; and 

The Clerk is directed to send a certified copy of this Order 

to all counsel of record; and 

This cause is continued. 

SEEN AND OBJECTED TO: 

~V) 
ARELIA S. LANGBO 
Counsel for pet• 

w 

-2-
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STEVE-~-TALEVI, Esquire, 
Assistant City Attorney 
Counsel for the Board of Zoning Appeals 
of the City of Roanoke 
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Counsel for 
Hygiene Service, Inc. 
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VIRGINIA: 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 

GEORGE F. RILES, ET AL., 
Petitioners. 
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1 THE CLERK: We have the case of George 

2 F. Riles verstis the Board of zoning, CL91356. Is 

3 the plaintiff ready? 

4 MS. LANGHORNE: We are. 

5 THE CLERK: Is the appellant ready? 

6 MR. TALEVI: We are. 

7 THE COURT: For the record, the court 

8 has the oath of the court reporter. The court 

9 received and filed a brief of the petitioners 

10 filed by Ms. Langhorne in this Court on April the 

11 24th. And the court received, filed and in each 

12 instance read the responsive wr1tten argument by 

13 the Assistant CltY Attorney for the Board. That 

14 was rece1ved and filed on May the 4th. The court 

15 has carefully consid~red arguments made by both 
0 
CJ 

ci 16 
II. 

sides and would ask Ms. Langhorne if she wishes 
::! ., 
a: 17 1.11 
~ 

to make additional verbal argument. 
< 
~ 

en 
a: 18 loll 

:: MS. LANGHORNE: No, Your Honor. I 
0 
~ 
loll 

19 a: think that every point in issue that we wanted to 
a: 
1.11 
1/) 

< 20 ... 
! 

raise is fully covered in our brief, and we 
a: 
~ 

< 21 t- expected today to have the Court•s ruling. And 
< 
0 
a: 
en 

22 <J as far as a response or rebuttal to anything that 
::! 
a: 
c 
II. 

23 the City has filed, I don't think that the 

24 memorandum even addressed the issue raised before 

25 the court in regards to the failure of the Board 
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1 to follow 1ts rules duly adopted for rehearing. 

2 THE COURT: All right, response from 

3 either of you? 

4 MR. TALEVI: Not on behalf of the Board 

5 of Zoning Appeals, sir. 

6 MS. GROVE: No. 

7 THE COURT: Well, the Court, as an 

8 1nterest to the citizens understand, is not here 

9 to agree or disagree w1th the rul1ng of the Board 

10 of Zoning Appeals. The court has to find it 

11 clearly wrong. 

12 The procedural considerations could be 

13 corrected, if necessary, by yet another remand to 

14 the Board. But I don't f1nd that that is 

15 appropriate nor can t find it bas1s for reversing 
0 
u 

c:r 16 
~ 

the finding of the Board based upon those 
2 .,. 
a:: 17 "' ~ procedural concerns. And there is frankly no way 
< 
~ 

tn. 
a:: 18 w ._ that this court can find that the Board acted 
a:: 
0 
~ 
w. 
a: 19 clearly wrong or that the petit1oners met their 
a: 
w 
Cl) 

< 
20 ..1 ... burden in presenting a basis for reversing what 

z 

= ~ 

< 21 ._ the Board has done. 
< 
0 

= Cl); 

22 u 
2 

The authority of this Court and the 
a:. 
c 
~ 

23 basis upon which it acted is quite clear. It 

24 doesn 1 t hear these things De Novo. It rather 

25 reviews the record and determines if there are 
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1 bases or if there is a basis for finding 

2 capric1ousness or clear error or things of that 

3 sort. And our Supreme court has spoken to that 

4 repeatedly. 

5 The procedural issue is well aired by 

6 Ms. Langhorne, and she has argued this well, but 

7 I just can't find the basis for ruling in your 

8 favor, Ms. Langnorne, or your clients' favor. 

9 And I 1nvite, if you wish and your clients wish, 

10 I invite your appeal of this. Certainly you will 

11 discuss that with them and make that decision. 

12 But I spent a great deal of time reviewing this 

13 file and the author1t1es and arguments presented 

14 by both s1des, and must rule 1n favor of the 

15 Board in th~s instanc;e. 
0 
(,) 

ci 16 
11. 

MS. LANGHORNE: Exception is taken, of 
::E 

"' cr 17 Ill 
Cl. 

course, to the court's ruling. 
< 
Cl. 
(/) 

cr 18 Ill ... THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. Any order 
cr 
0 
Cl. 
Ill 
cr 19 drafted which should be drafted by the City 
cr 
w 
In 
< 

20 ..... ... Attorney should preserve the objection of the 
z 
~ 
Cl. 

< 21 ... petitioners clearly and reflect the Court's 
< 
0 

cr 
In 

22 u 
::E 

ruling. 
cr 
0 
11. 

23 All right. ThanK you very much. 

24 MS. LANGHORNE: Your Honor, you had 

25 asked me to prepare an order in regards to your 
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VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF ROANOKE 

GEORGE F. RILES, et al. 
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v. 
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THE CITY OF ROANOKE, and 
THE ROANOKE MENTAL HYGIENE 
SERVICE, INC., 

Defendants 

0 R D E R 

Case Nos. CL91001356 
CL91000659 

/ 

1 ) I • .Ju )c. 

On May 7, 1992, came the parties upon the Writ of Certiorari 

granted to Petitioners to review the decision of the Board of: 

Zoning Appeals of the City of Roanoke, Virginia, on December 3, 

1991, granting a special exception and variance to the Roanoke 

Mental Hygiene Service, Inc., to operate a group home; upon the 

Writ of Certiorari granted to the .Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, 

Inc., to review the June 4, 1991, decision of the Board of Zoning 

Appeals, denying an application for special exception and variance; 

and upon the record of the proceedings before the Board and in this 

Court of these cases. 

UPON CONSIDERATION thereof, the Court finds that the claim in 

Count I of the Riles Petition is denied on the grounds st·ated by 

the Court at the hearing held on May 7, 1992, to which ruling of 

the Court Pet! tioners' exceptions are noted on the grounds set 

forth at the hearings held in these matters and in the brief and 

memorandum of law filed on behalf of Petitioners . 
. .. J ,: 

'• .· 
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Appeals and Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Inc., to the court's 

considering this matter upon the Writ of Certiorari granted to the 

Roanoke Mental Hygiene Service, Inc., to review the June 4, 1991, 

decision of the Board of Zoning Appeals, both of said objections 

being based upon all of the grounds set forth at the hearing of May 

7, 1992. 

The Clerk is rtirected to send a certified copy of this Order 

to counsel of record. 

This cause is dismissed from the docket. 
, .. , , 

ENTERED this ~·· .( ,." 9ay· of 

. 
, . ; 

. r 

noted: 

b .. ,.~-~T. Talevi 
Assistant City Attorney 
COUQSe~~!or the Board of Zoning 
App~als _' ... ~J:~:.i~.P.~·~~~~Y~ic!?f Roanoke 

- .. . .. -· .. .. ..... ···~·· -· ..... -·~····· ............. 
Seen ... ~~~d o~.jf1ct:eq to as noted: 

•~I • . ·-:'~ ~-,~..---,..--
• - I 

~· I I ~· I • · .. • -

I :?(• M4:. / ~/tA:·.,..c: . 
Anne c. Grove, Esquire 

Counsel· for Roanok·e Mental 
Hygi·ene Service, Inc. 

Seen and objected to as noted: 

• /·~.. ~ ~~' I 
"·.'.;,·' ~·, • " / ,.Y • r _,. 
f~L (..( • ~-' 't: . . )I.'· .. ·-"-'-

f /..4,.1 19 92. 

f': :] /' .J 
. . I . I 

' t ,I ;' .. .-.. , • 

. •• • .. I I ~ (. ,; . ': ... I , 
I . . ..,.~, ..•. ' I I ..:.. 

Judge 

Arelia s. Langhor~~ Esquire 
Counsel for George F. Riles, et al. 

~· . ~-~-.. ) 
- 2 -

276 



, 
ASSIGNMIQI'!S or ERBQB 

George P. Rileo et. ala. as•ign• a• error the followings 

1. The trial Court erred in ruling that the Board of 

zoning Appeals acta~ properly in using a Consent Court Order to 

conduct a rehearing on December 3, 1991 without complying with the 

Zoning Ordinance and ito · duly adopted Rule• of Procedure for a 

rehearing. 

2. The trial Court erred in upholding the December 3, 

1~91 action of the Board of Zoning Appeals grantinq a special 

exception and variance for the operation of a residential drug 

treatment facility for twenty four convicted felons in a 

predominantly black, middle-claa•, single-family, resida~~ial 

neighborhood, when no such special exception and variance have been 

granted in majority raaidential districts. 

3. The trial Court erred in upholding the December 3, 

1991 decision of the Board of Zoning Appeal• when the Soard failed 

to make the findings of fact required by Section 36.1-656(8) of the 

Zoning Ordinance of the City of Roanoke for special exceptions to 

its zoning statutes. 

4. The trial Court erred in upholding the December 3, 

1991 decision of the Board of Zoning Appeal• when the Board failed 

to consider the factor• set f·orth in Section 36.1-655 of the Zoning 

Ordinance· of the City of Roanoke with respect to variances. 

s. The trial Court erred in upholding the December 3, 

1991 decision of the Board of Zoninq.Appaala when it was made by a 

second roll call vote which reversed the first roll call vote on 

the motion without a motion to .reconsider the action by a member 

voting with the majority, which procedure violates of Robert's 

Rules of Order, the duly adopted parliamentary procedure for·the 

Board of Zoning Appeals. 
Z77 


